


4 B
BIBLIO HEQUE DU PARLE
HI BRARY P RLIAM F NT

il IINIIMIII il

3 2354 00409 650 2

DATE DUE

Avg 15 2

& Cgr'lga abt}Péq?[@ ﬁ of '3 Spec!Lal
Comm,on Administration of the
~ Dept.of Customs and Excise,
— Etec. ,Etc,. ,Etc,
Minutes of proceedings
Bd- Ll R

NAME - NOM

Canade . Parl. H.of Ce Special
Comm.on Administration of the
Dept.of Customs and Excise, Btec.

4










ot

SESSION 1926

HOUSE OF COMMONS

SPECIAL COMMITTEE

INVESTIGATING THE ADMINISTRATION

OF THE

 DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS AND EXCISE

ETC., ETC,, EXTE,

No. 1—TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 9, 1926

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

OTTAWA
Ghwa F. A. ACLAND
A 1D, PRINTER TO THE KING’S MOST EXCELLENT MAJESTY
&) 1926












SESSION 1926

HOUSE OF COMMONS

SPECIAL COMMITTEE

INVESTIGATING THE ADMINISTRATION

OF THE

DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS AND EXCISE

ETC., ETC., ETC.

No. 3—THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 1926

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS AND EVIDENCE

WITNESS:

Mr. R. R. Farrow, Deputy Minister of Customs and Excise.

OTTAWA
E. A. ACLAND
PRINTER TO THE KING'S MOST EXCELLENT MAJESTY
1926



EXHIBITS FILED:

. 1—Department of Customs and Excise. Chart showing organization.

. 1 (a)—Department of Customs and Excise. Organization. for Preven-

tive Service.

. 1 (b)—Department of Customs and Excise. Organization for Inspec-

tion Service.

. 1 (c)—Department of Customs and Excise. 'Organization for Special

Branch, Toronto.

. 2—Department of Customs and Excise. Memorandum No. 55, to Col-

lectors of Customs and Excise, amendments to Customs Act, 1925.

. 3—Letter from Mr. Farrow, Deputy Minister of Customs and Excise, re

reports made by Inspector Walter Duncan.

. 4—Recommendation to Council re dismissal of Inspector J.'E. Bis-

aillon.

. b—Letter from Mr. Farrow, Deputy Minister of Customs and Excise,

re liquors released from bonded warehouses.




McB.
e o

Clerk of:: Commitftees. it

.' : ‘ i




ORDER OF REFERENCE

House or ComMmoNs,

-

Otrawa, Friday, February 5, 1926.

Resolved,—That a Special Committee of this House, consisting of nine
members, be appointed forthwith to investigate the administration of the
Department of Customs and Excise and alleged serious losses to the public
treasury because of inefficiency or corruption on the part of officers of the
Department and others, and that such investigation extend back over such
period of time as the Committee may decide and have regard to all matters
affecting the prevention of smuggling, the prosecution of offenders, the seizure,
storage and disposal of smuggled goods; or goods seized for purposes of excise
or other taxes, the appraisal of goods for revenue purposes, the collection of
customs and excise duties, the knowledge of ministers or officials of offences or
irregularities affecting the public service in said department, the efficiency of
the administration thereof, and the necessity of safeguarding the public revenue
and the public treasury, and that such Committee have power to send for
persons, papers and records, to adjourn from place to place, to print the evidence

taken before the Committee, and to report from time to time.

Attest.

|
ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,
Clerk of the House of Commons. '

Friay, February 5, 1926.

Ordered—That the Special Committee appointed this day to investigate
and report upon the administration of the Department of Customs and Excise
be composed of the following members, viz.: Messieurs Bell (Hamilton),
Bennett, Donaghy, Doucet, Elliott, Kennedy (Peace River), Mercier (St.
Henri), St. Pere and Stevens. X

Attest.

ARTHUR BEAUGHESNE,
Clerk of the House of Commons.

IR i S5, T S—
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SPECIAL COMMITTEE INVESTIGATING THE ADMINISTRA-
TION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS AND EXCISE

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

TugspAy, February 9, 1926.

The Committee met at 10.30 a.m.

Present: Messrs. Bell (Hamilton, West), Bennett, Donaghy, Doucet,
Elliott, Kennedy (Peace River), Mercier (St. Henri), St. Pére, and Stevens, 9.

In attendance: Hon. G. H. Boivin, Minister of Customs and Excise.

On motion of Mr. Elliott; it was
Resolved, That Mr. Mercier (St. Henri), be chairman of the Committee.

The Order of Reference was read by the elerk.

The question of obtaining the services of a French interpreter and a French
stenographer having been discussed,

Mr. Bennett moved

~ That the clerk be authorized to obtain the services of a competent French
interpreter, and also a competent French stenographer, which was agreed to.

Hon. Mr. Boivin informed the Committee that the Government was willing
to engage counsel for the purpose of assisting the Committee in bringing out
the facts in evidence in connection with the investigation, and that he had
accordingly communicated with Mr. Aimé Geoffrion, K.C., of Montreal, who
had accepted the mandate.

Objection having been taken by some of the members to the appointment
of a counsel for the Committee by the Government, instead of by the Committee
itself, after discussion, it was, on motion of Mr. Bennett, Resolved: That Mr.
%imé Geoffrion be recognized as appearing for the Department of Customs and

xcise.

The question of the appointment of counsel to assist the Committee was
postponed to a later meeting.

Moved by Hon. Mr. Stevens:—That summons be issued requiring the
attendance upon the Committee, on Wednesday, 17th February, and to remain
until discharged, of official representatives of the following firms:—

Charles Jenkins, Jenkins Overall Co., Rock Island, Que.
Mr. Bissonnette, Peerless Overall Co., Rock Island, Que.

\ Mr. Turner, Snag Proof Overall Co., Rock Island, Que.

G. Scherer, Ford, Ont. :
. John W, Gaunt, John W. Gaunt & Co., Ltd., Montreal, Que.

\ { v



vi i SPECIAL COMMITTEE

and that each be required to produce all original books of entry, receiving books
and shipping books, cash beoks, journals, ledgers, and bank books or bank
account statements and cancelled checks; also for the years 1924 and 1925,
~ invoices of goods inwards, invoices of goods outwards, waybills (express and
freight), shipping receipts, warehouse receipts, original order books, orders
received for goods, shipping instructions, Customs entries, Customs receipts,

Sales Tax returns, Sales Tax receipts, transfer and cartage accounts and all

insurance policies of all descriptions, also particulars of the names of the
officers and directors of each firm.

Motion agreed to.

Moved by Hon. Mr. Stevens:—That summons be issued requiring the
attendance upon the Committee- Monday next and from day to day until dis-
charged of official representatives of the following firms:—

Mr. G. A. George, Secretary.

The Dominion Distillers Products Co., Litd., Montreal, Quebec.
W. George, Limited, 1185 St. James street, Montreal, Quebec.
W. J. Hushion, 1195 St. James street, Montreal, Quebec.

And that each be required to produce all original books of entry, receiving
books and shipping books, cash books, journals, ledgers, and bank books or
bank account statements, and cancelled checks; also for the years 1924 and
1925, invoices of goods inwards, invoices of goods outwards, waybills (express
and freight), shipping receipts, warehouse receipts, original order books, orders
received for goods, shipping instructions, Customs entries, Customs receipts,
Sales Tax returns, Sales Tax receipts, transfer and cartage accounts and all
insurance policies of all deseriptions, also particulars of the names of the officers
and directors of each firm.

Motion agreed to.

Moved by Hon. Mr. Bennett:—That a summons be issued requiring the
attendance of Commissioner Cortland Starnes and Superintendent A. J. Cawdron
of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police, at the next sitting of the Committee
to-morrow, Wednesday, and that they be then and there required to produce all
papers, documents, evidence, reports, memoranda and correspondence on the
files of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police, and relating to any .question or
matter of Customs and Excise smuggling, or any violations of the Narcotic
Drug Act, or of the regulations governing bonded warehouses, liberation of
liquor of any form and seized liquor. As well as all reports made by the said
Royal Canadian Mounted Police, by the said Commissioner Starnes or Super-
intendent Cawdron, or any other officers to any and all Ministers of the Crown,
any and all Deputy Ministers and any and all Departments, as well as all
instructions given or memoranda containing instruction given by the Ministers
or Deputy Ministers of Departments to the Royal Canadian Mounted Police
during the years 1924, 1925 and to date in 1926.

Motion agreed to.

Moved by Mr. Doucet:—That the Department of Customs and Excisg,
produce all reports made by Inspector Walter Duncan or by any other investi-
gating officer or by any other perscn having regard to any alleged offences
against the laws of Customs and Excise, and received by any Minister or by
their offices during the past vear (1925) and to date in 1926, and of all recom-
mendations to council having regard to the above matters, together with al
letters, telegrams of instructions issued by the Ministers or by or from the

/
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RE DEPARTMENT OF C‘USTOMS AND EXCISE . vii

offices to any and all Customs,officers or special investigating officers or officers
of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police regarding cases of smuggling or seizure
of goods by Customs under investigation, or suspending the investigation of
any such cases. Also the production of the letter from the Minister of Customs,

" Hon. Jacques Bureau to J. E. A. Bisaillon instructing him to settle Customs

seizure cases according to his own judgment without reference to Chief Preventive
Officer Wilson. : , :
Motion agreed to. G

Moved by Mr. Bell (Hamilton West):—That the Deputy Minister of
Customs and Excise be requested to file forthwith with the Committee a state-
ment for the year 1925, and the month of January, 1926, setting forth the
quantities, value and strength of all classes and forms of spinituous liquors
released from:—

(a) Bonded warehouses, from bond for export.

(b) Bonded warehouses, from distilleries for export.

(¢) Bonded warehouses, from bond for home consumption,
(d) Bonded warehouses, from distilleries for home consumption.

Showing in each case the date of the release from bond, the date of the
application of the release from bond, the amounts of excise duty paid and when
paid, together with copies of all correspondence relating to each case. Also all
applications for release and all orders for release and receipts acknowledging
receiving of the goods out of bond, together with copies of all permits from
Provincial Governments where affected covering the same period showing (a)
the amount of spirits legally in bond in each case at January 1, 1925, and (b)
the amount of spirits legally received into bond in each case during the said
period. ‘
Motion agreed to.

Moved by Mr. Stevens:—That a summons be issued requiring the attendance
on the Committee of Inspector Walter Duncan at the sitting of the Committee
on Thursday, February 18, and from day to day until discharged, and to produce
all papers, documents, evidence, reports, memorandums and correspondence
relating to any question or matter of Customs and Excise smuggling or any
violations of the Narcotic Drug Act, or of the regulations governing bonded
warehouses, liberation of liquor of any form and seized liquor, also all instruc-
tions given him by any Minister of the Crown or Deputy Minister of any
Department relating to the above, also all papers, documents, memorandum
books, diaries, correspondence and records seized or found in the office of
Bisaillon at Montreal either on the files or in the safe in the said office.

Motion agreed to.

Moved by Mr. Stevens:—That a summons be issued requiring the atten-
dance on the Committee of W. Stuart Edwards, Deputy Minister of Justice, at
the sitting of the Committee on Thursday, February 11, 1926, and to produce

&% all papers, documents, evidence, reports, memorandums and correspondence
L%, relating to any question or matter of Customs and Excise smuggling or any
gviolations of the Narcotic Drug Act, or of the regulations governing bonded
“$warehouses, liberation of liquor of any form and seized liquor, also all instrue-

gons given him by any and all Ministers of the Crown or Deputy Ministers of
iy Department relating to the above during the years 1923, 1924, 1925 and to
ite in 1926, also copies of all instructions to any and all barristers, advocates
Solicitors acting on behalf of the Justice Department or any Dep’artment of
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the Government in any and all cases of smuggling or any violations of the
Customs and Excise law or the Narcotic Drug Act, together with the record

- showing the amount paid in each ¢ase to each barrister, advocate or solicitor,
and the number of adjournments or remands in each case.

Motion agreed to. '

Moved by Mr. Kennedy (Peace River) :—That the officials, Mr. Farrow,
Mr. Taylor, Mr. Wilson, Mr. Blair, be summoned to appear before this Com- g
mittee to-morrow, Wednesday, 10th February, instant, to explain the organi-
zation of the said Department of Customs and Excise.

Motion agreed to.

Mr Mercier (St. Henri) having expressed his thanks to the Committee for
the honour conferred upon him in choosing him as chairman,

The Committee adjourned till to-morrow at 10.30 o’clock, a.m. :

WALTER TODD,
Chief Clerk.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

House or CoMMONS,
WepNESDAY, 10th February, 1926.

The Committee met at 10330 o’clock, a.m., Mr. Mercier, the Chairman,
presiding,

Present: Messrs. Bell, Bennett,” Donaghy, Doucet, Elliott, Kennedy,
Mercier, St. Pére and Stevens—9.

Mr. Aime Geoffrion, K.C., counsel for the Department of Customs and
Excise, was in attendance. Hon, Mr. Boivin, Minister of Customs and Excise,
was also present.

The minutes of yesterday’s meeting of the Committee were read and
approved.

On motion of Hon. Mr. Stevens,

Ordered, That 1,000 copies of the day-to-day proceedings and evidence of
the Committee be printed.

On motion of Hon. Mr. Stevens,

Ordered, That a summons be issued requiring the attendance on the Com-
mittee of R. P. Sparks, Esq., Ottawa, at the sitting of the Committee on Tuesday
next, and from day to day until discharged, and to produce all reports to the
Government, on matters relating to the Customs and Excise Department on
smuggling, and copies of all correspondence with any Ministers or officers of
the Crown.

Hon. Mr. Stevens gave notice that at a later date he would move that a
group of business men be called before the Committee.

'On motion of Hon. Mr. Bennett,

Resolved, That the Commercial Protective Association be permitted to be
represented by counsel before the Committee.

Discussion took place as to the order of procedure to be followed in pur-
suing the inquiry. Mr. Donaghy moved that the chief officers of the Department
of Customs and Excise be first heard. Mr. Bell moved in amendment thereto
that Commissioner Starnes and Superintendent Cawdron, both of the Royal
Canadian Mounted Police, be first heard. The Committee divided, yeas 5,
nays 3. Amendment agreed to. Motion, as amended, agreed to.

Commissioner Cortlandt Starnes, Royal Canadian Mounted Police, was
called and sworn. He was examined by Messrs. Bennett, Stevens and Bell.
During his examination, Commissioner Starnes produced a number of reports
and documents, as required by his subpoena,

Ordered, That the said reports and documents be place in the custody of
the Clerk of the Committee, with instructions that the same shduld not be
open to examination by any persons other than members of the Committee, and
that they be not taken out of the clerk’s room or the committee room.

1684013
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

Room 429, House or COMMONS,
WepNEspAY, February 10, 1926.

The Special Committee appointed to investigate the administration of the
Department of Customs and Excise, and charges relating thereto, met at 10.30
a.m., the Chairman, Mr. P. Mercier, presiding.

CommissioNER CoRTLANDT STArNES: called and sworn.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q Mr. Starnes, you are the Commissioner of the Royal Canadian Mounted
Police?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And have been for how long?—A. Since April, 1923.

. Q. Who is your chief departmental officer?—A. The Minister of Justice.

Q. To whom you report?—A. In matters of administration.

Q. Have you had occasion to direct members of your force to make investi-
gations and reports with respect to the conduet of the Department of Customs
and Excise?—A. Not with respect to the conduct of the department. We have
assisted; we have made investigations and inquiries in assistance of the Customs
Department. i

Q. Did you make these investigations in consequence of written instruc-
tions?—A. Sometimes written requests from the Department of Customs, and
sometimes verbal requests.

Q. Will you produce the written requests from the Department of Cus-
tems?—A. In any particular case?

Q. In all the cases from the Customs Department beginning, we will say,
at the first of this year. We will take that first—A. This year. There have
been no written requests that I know of during this year.

Q. What about 1925?—A. In 1925 we did a lot of investigation work for
the Department of Customs and Excise throughout the country from Halifax
to Victoria, sometimes at their verbal request, and sometimes on our own initia-
tive, where we reported, but we took no prosecutions without instructions from
the Department of Customs and Excise.

Q. The Mounted Police have headquarters or inspectors at how many
*points in Canada?—A. They have ten divisional points and a number of detach-
ments.

Q. You have detachments that report to the varipus inspectors at these ten
points?—A. There is a superintendent in command of each district.

Q. Where are the written instructions which you received from the Depart-
ment of Customs and Excise with respect to investigations in 1925?—A. They
would be on each particular file of the case in question.

Q. And you have a record of them?—A. Yes.

Q. Produce it?—A. The files that I have taken here are the de‘tl(UldI‘
files that were mentioned in connection with Mr. Stevens.

Q. I am asking you, for the moment, for all eases in which you had instruc-
tions in writing from the Department of Customs and Excise in 1925. Will you
produce the record?—A. I could produce them, but it would take some little
time. .

[Commissioner Cortlandt Starnes.]
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Q. Not very long; I know the way the records are kept?—A. There would
be quite a number—
Q. How many have you produced with you to-day?

By the Chairman:
Q. How many?—A. Several hundreds, because of a lot of ordinary ﬂllclt

still cases and cases of that kind where we report and get instructions from the

Department of Customs and Excise to go on with prosecutmns

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. How many have vou produced with you to-day?—A. I have produced
perhaps a dozen or twenty files.

Q. Will you just give a record of those files, so that it may be taken down
by the reporter?—A, I have 32 files here.

Q. Would you just read what they are, Qhortly, without going into details?
—A. You do not want anything previous to 1925,

Q. Not at the moment. Mr. Commissioner, if you will just read slowly—
A. All these files, Mr. Bennett, are 1924 and previous. :

Q. You ha,xe not, anythmcr for 1925?—A. 1 have nothing here for 1925.

Q. You will get them for 1925 will you not?—A. Do you want the files—

Q. As long as you bring me a record to which you will pledge your oath,
and the number of the file, that will be sufficient for the moment; what I want
is to see if there is anything for 1925?—A. You want them for the whole
country ?

e Q. Quite so; in 1925, you say you have none with you this morning?—A.
0, sir.

Q. In 1924 —they are the ones you have with you? You might give them
by the name of the case, so we can carry them in our minds. I will tell you,
Mr. Commissioner, in order to save time, read the ones you have brought with
you?—A. I will get the files themselves.

Q. Never mind the files; just read from your list?—A. This (indicating)
is mostly 1923.

Q. We are more modern really, in our requirements?—A. One of them is
called the Spanish Consul Case, Opium and Narcotic Act; that was in 19—

Q. You might give us the name of the place. Montreal?—A. Montreal.

Q. Now, go on, please?—A. There are quite a number of files—different
volumes of this file.

Q. That is narcotic drugs?—A. Yes. -~

Q. Go on?—A. And customs; it was a mixed case.

Q. A mixed tribunal?>—A. Yes. The next is in Montreal, a case called the
Borden case.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

. Borden?—A. Yes.
. What was it?—A. It was a smuggling case.

L0

By 'Hon. Mr. Bennett: J

Q. What is the next one?—A. J. P. Landy, was another case.

Q. Another smuggling case?—A. Yes. ot

Q. What is the next one; Mr. Commissioner>—A. The next one is the Quong
Long Frisco Cafe.

Q. That is a Chinese case?—A. Yes.

Q. Narcotic drugs?—A. Yes.

Q. Where?—A. Montreal.

[Commissioner Cortlandt Starnes.]
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Q. What is the next one, Mr. Starnes?—A. In connection with the appoint-
ment officers at Customs. : :

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. What is that?—A. The appointment of our men as Custom and Excise

officers at Montreal.
Q. You have a file on that?—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:
Q. That was to enable your men to act as preventive Customs officers all
over the country?—A. In different places; they are appointed by name.
Q. Yes, I know; I am familiar with that. What is the next one?—A.
Regarding the Maxe gang, Montreal.

‘By Mr. Bell:
Q. Was that a prosecution, Mr. Commissioner?—A. No, that was a report.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. What is the next one?—A. V. M. Noel, Montreal.

Q. Smuggling?—A. It was reported as smuggling.

Q. Yes, I mean charged with smuggling?—A. Yes.

Q. And the next?—A. There is a different volume on that.

Q. On the same matter?—A. Yes.

Q. That is all you have brought with you?—A. That is all I have brought,
yes.

Q. Now, Mr. Commissioner, I want to make myself very clear to you.
Can you not very readily look up your files and produce for this Committee
the instructions received by you from the Customs Department, asking for
investigations, or whatever it may be?—A. Each separate file would have its
own instructions.

Q. It is initiated or originated with a request from the Customs Depart-
menit?—A. Not always.

Q. Sometimes verbally?—A. Sometimes verbally; as on the prairies, where

_there are a lot of illicit stills, our men on patrol will hear of an illicit still, and

they wiil perhaps make a seizure, and then the matter is repored to the Customs,
the stuff is analyzed, and instructions are then given by the Customs as to
whether prosecution will take place or not.

Q. Now, Mr. Commissioner, you received written instructions asking your
Department to take action, thereupon, your practice would be to instruct your
officers to make investigation?—A. Or prosecution.

Q. Or prosecution?—A. Yes.

Q. And they report back to you?—A. Yes.

Q. And you report to the Department of Customs or Justice—which?—
A. Customs. '

Q. You report direct to the Customs Department?—A. Direct to the Cus-
toms.

Q. You keep copies of your reports?—A. Yes,

Q. T would like a copy of all the reports you have made to the Customs
Department, with respect to alleged infractions of the law during the years
1926, 1925 and 1924?—A. You wish me to have a list made—because it will be
very considerable.

Q. T judged that?—A. It may be up in the thousands.

Q. Not as bad as that?—A. Yes, taking it all through.

[Commissioner Cortlandt Starnes.]
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Q. My learned friend says we want to lay this report before the Com-

mittee. We will not publish them—the ‘reports you made to the Minister?—

S.ﬁiOur reports as regards the Customs Department go to the Chief Preventive
cer. ¥
Q. Who is that?—A. Mr. Wilson. :

. Q. And you have been reporting to him since you took office as commis-
sioner?—A. In 1923—I am not quite sure of the date—we used to report to
the Deputy Minister, but some change was made in their organization and we
were requested to send our reports to the Chief Preventive Officer.

Q. That being Mr. Wilson?—A. That being Mr. Wilson.
Q. And you have since sent your reports to him?—A. Yes.
Q. You have copies of them?—A. Yes. e

Hon. Mr. Ben~err: Will Mr. Wilson produce the originals of those reports?
(To witness) You need not bother about that; I was asking generally.

The Wirness: I might say I do not send the originals; I keep the originals,
and the copies are sent to Mr. Wilson. )

-

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. That is better still. You will produce the originals? You can do that?
—A. I can do that. :

Q. What reports do you make to the Department of Justice with respect
to these matters?—A. None.

Q. Do you make a daily report or a weekly report to the Department of
Justice?—A. No. :

Q. None at all?>——A. No, except on matters of administration, to the Minis-
ter; but whenever we do work for any department, we report direct to that
department, whether it is Health, Post Office, Customs, Secretary of State—all
the departments virtually. :

Q. And they have a right to requisition your services directly?—A. Yes.

Q. And not through the Minister of Justice?—A. No. Whenever a request
is made by one of the departments, unless there is objection to it, we comply;
if we have the men and the facilities, we comply with it.

Q. Now, has your Department made investigations with respect to the
conditions prevailing at Rock Island, Quebec?—A. No, sir.

Q. You were not requested so to do?—A. No; we make no investigation
for any department unless we are requested by that department.

Q. Have you a member of the Police at Rock Island?—A. No.

Q. There is none there?—A. No.

Q. At what border points have you detachments?—A. We have none in
the province of Quebec; we have in Ontario. :

Q. At what points?—A. At Niagara, Windsor, Sarnia and Sault Ste Marie.

Q. Then you proceed west along the boundary line?—A. We have one at
Fort I'rancis, and some along the borders of Saskatchewan and Alberta, and
some 1n British Columbia. i

Q. Do they report direct to you or to their several superintendents or

inspectors?—A. They report to their several officers commanding the districts.

Q. And these reports are transmitted to you?—A. Yes, transmitted to me.

Q. And are on file in your office?—A. On file in my office.

Q. That is the position in respect to that?—A. Yes,

Q. I take it you have these reports?—A. Yes, I have these reports.

Q. What are the duties of these men at these various points—the members
of the Police?—A. Those on the border carry out the Federal laws, and assist
the Customs or Immigration departments, or whatever department—

[Commissioner Cortlandt Starnes.]
i
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Q Are the instructions embodied in a Wfibten memorandum sent to them?

 Have you those in writing?—A. No general instructions, no, because it would

be impossible to give general instructions. The conditions vary too much. =

Q. Dut, generally, it is their duty to see that Federal laws are observed

and kept?—A. Yes. 4

. Q. UGenerally, that is fair, is it?—A. Yes, but they initiate no prosecutions
or investigations for any department unless requested, but that is quite suffi-
cient— 3 b

Q. I want to come to that. Do prosecutions only originate through your
action? That is, have these men at these various border points any power
to initiate prosecutions?—A. No.

(). They report to you?—A. And we report to the department concerned,
and receive instructions from them whether to prosecute or not. -

Q. Then, in the ultimate analysis, prosecutions are initiated only at the
instance of the department concerned?—A. Yes.

Q. And whether or not action is taken upon the reports received by your
men throughout Canada, depends upon the instructions given by the Depart-
ment concerned ?—A. Yes. .

Q. You have no power to initiate-prosecutions?—A. No.

Q. That is the position?—A. Yes. ‘

Q. At any rate, you do not do it? You do not do it?
it. :

Q. Do you keep a record, an index record, showing the instructions received
for prosecution with respect to smuggling and, excise?—A. When a case is
started, a particular case, under its heading, a file is started and every report,
every piece of correspondence regarding that particular case is placed on that
particular file.

Q. From your annual report I observe you refer to the activities of the
force. Would it be possible for you, without much difficulty, to prepare a list
of the instructions received from the Customs and Excize Department, with
respect to prosecutions for violation of the Customs Act and the Narcotic and
Drugs Act?—A. It would be possible, but it would take some time, because
each file would have to be gone into. - ;

Q. I mean, you do not keep an index?—A. A ecard index of each case.

, Q. You do not keep a general index from which you can prepare a report
quickly?—~A. We keep a number of cases on a particular kind of crime or a
particular kind of case; for instance, illicit stills. We could turn up all the
illicit stills on any particular case of that kind.

Q. Could you undertake, without very much trouble, to prepare a list of
prosecutions that have been carried on through instructions from the Customs

A. We d(‘) not do

Department, with respeet to (A) smuggling and (B) the Excise Department?

—A. As T say, we would have to go through each file to see the particular
instructions in that particular case. i i
Q. Well, but you take no proceedings without instructions?—A. No.
I could make a list. *
% Q. I do not want immigration matters. Just Customs and Excise?—A.
es.
Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Does the Committee want these stills?

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I am not interested in them except in this way, if you
would not mind me asking this question because I think it comes in right here;
then it will get on the record. You mention that no prosecutions are instigated
without instructions from the Customs Department. Have you any general
orders not to prosecute unless you get those instructions. :

[Commissioner Cortlandt Starnes.]
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. Wrrness: In matters of stills we have, I am not sure about others; but
it is the general understanding that we would not start any prosecution with-
out reporting., bt ;

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. You are the head of the Mounted Police. The Mounted Police get
evidence of smuggling, infractions of the law. You say you never proceed
without getting specific instructions in each case?—A. That is in prosecutions?

Q. Exactly, you do not proceed with a prosecution unless you get orders -

in each case?—A. Yes. Z

Q. Have you a general order not to proceed except with instructions?—A.
I am not sure, but it has been the custom.

Q. Under whose authority do you refrain from prosecuting?—A. Because
we have no authority by ourselves.

Hon. Mr. BennNerT: He says he does not refrain, he does not initiate,
except on the instructions he had. . ]

Wirness: We are only assisting, and naturally assisting the department,
we take our instructions and we would make ourselves liable to exceeding our
powers if we took some action for another department, of which they did not
approve.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. Do you drop action by orders from the Customs Department?—A. I
do not remember of dropping actions. ;

Q. They always go through once you start?—A. As far as I remember;
I do not know. I cannot remember any case—as a rule, if there is a prosecu-
tion in the Customs or Excise that has been taken up by us on their instructions
some legal assistance is given to us.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Are you through, Mr. Bennett?

Hon. Mr. BexnerT: Go on, you have something in your mind; proceed
with it. &

T

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. I do not understand the point he answered to you. Your officers dis-
cover what they consider infractions of the law, violations of the law; they
gather the evidence, they would report right off?—A. The first thing they
would report. :

Q. To you?—A. To the officer commanding. We send to the Department,
concerned a report of whatever action is taken. There"are continually coming
in reports on that particular case.

Q. Supposing one of your officers discovers on some boundary point a
truck load of silk coming through, which he knows is coming through in viola-
tion of the law, can he, without sending word to you yourself and then from
you to the chief preventive officer, on that get authority to seize and prosecute?
—A. If he is a Customs and Excise officer, as several of our men are, he would
seize at once; he would take action at once. If he is not a Customs and Excise
officer he has no authority to make a seizure. His instructions there are that
ke would have to go to the nearest Customs officer and assist that Customs
officer.

Q. In the meantime the truck might be ten miles away, or fifteen miles

away?—A. I do not know that it has oceurred, but it is only those who have
the powers of Customs and Excise officers that can make a seizure.

Q. You said a moment ago that you made perhaps thousands of reports
in cases in the last two years. I take it that you have made a great many.
How many cases did you prosecute under instructions from the Customs Depari-
ment?—A. I could not say from memory.

[Commissioner Cortlandt Starnes.]
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Q. Have you any idea?—A. It is over a thousand, I would not like to
say the number. It is in the annual report for the last year.

Q. Can you give us that?—A. If T had the annual report I could give it in
a few minutes.

Q. The number of cases reported and the number of cases prosecuted?—
A. Yes. I will take a note.

Q. When you prosecute who acts for you in court?—A. There is generally
a counsel appointed by the department concerned.

Q. By the department concerned? By the Justice Department?—A. T think
they consult the Justice Department, I do not know.

By the Chairman:

Q Do you know that personally?—A. We go to the department concerned.
If it is narcotic drugs, we ask the Customs Branch for counsel. They send us
the name of counsel. Where they get them I do not know.

Q. You do not know who appoints the counsel?—A. No.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Mr. Bennett. asked you about the Rock Island district, have you any
officer in the Rock Island district? Did you ever have any?—A. No.

2 Q. Have you any officers operating in that district at all?—A. Not at Rock
sland.

Q. Or along the boundary?—A. In Quebec?

Q. Yes.—A. No.

Q. None at all?—A. No.

Q. Have you ever received any objection to your officers acting in connec-
tion with smuggling cases during the last two years, we will say?—A. Received
objections?

Q. Objections from -. I had better make it clearer; have you ever
received any objections from any department—well, the Department of Customs,
to the activities of your officers in connectwn with customs?—A. With cases
we started?

Q. Yes—A. No.

Q. Nor in any district?>—A. Not when cases were started.

Q. In any district?—A. As matters of organization, we have been told that
we had to report the case to a certain officer before any action was taken.

Q. You do not know the number of cases you have had, for instance for
the last year, as compared with two years ago, or three years ago?—A. Yes, our
gl?nual report shows that. The table of statistics and the annual report show

at.

Q. Any increase or decrease?—A. The cases generally are on the increase.

Q. Cases prosecuted?—A. Yes, cases prosecuted,

Q. Now, I want to ask you one or two specific questions if I may; do you
report—I may be asking you to strain your memory, but I caught the name a
moment ago. You mentioned a “ Landy,” I think you spelled it. Where was
that?—A. T think that was in Montreal.

Q. What was it?—A. I think it was a case of smuggling liquor off a ship.

Q. Do you know of a case of Lande, in which a certain smuggler at Quebec
was apprehended by one of your officers, I think it was in the spring of 1924;
women’s goods, silk goods, I presume?—A. Yes, I know the case.

i YQ. Was it officer Sergeant Zenith—I think it was that made the seizure?—
. Yes.
Q. Z-e-n-i-t-h?—A. Zanith.
Q. One of your officers?—A. Yes.

[Commissioner Cortlandt Starnes.]
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Q. Will you tell the Committee, if you can, from memeory, just briefly what
the case was?—A. I think it was a case of smuggling of dresses.

The CaarMaN: It might be better if the record was before the Committee.

Mr. GeorrrioN, K.C.: Suppose he makes a mistake?

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I am not afraid of him making a mistake,

Mr. GrorrrioN, K.C.: May I point out, Mr. Stevens—

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I am not going into that in detail.

The CHARMAN: Sometimes the general appearance of everything is worse
than in detail, because the detail corrects the general impression,

Wirness: 1 might point out that in dealing with these records of cases,
sometimes there will be a report on the case that it would be very unjust to
make public in any way, where names might be mentioned, and an officer or a
constable, or a non-commissioned officer in Montreal, Quebeé¢, or anywhere who
is working on the case hears rumours; he gets suspicious; he reports these things
to me, because he knows that it is in a confidential way. If that were made
public it weuld be destructive to police methods afterwards. i

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. T am not asking for anything like that. This was a case of a seizure
made by an officer, whom you say was a reputable officer?—A. Yes.
Q. That case was not proceeded with?
Mr. GrorrrioN, K.C.: What I am suggesting is that we better go on with
that when the record is here. A question may be put and we may contro] them
as they go on.

By Hon. Mry. Stevens:

Q. I just want to put one thing on the record, which I will come to in the
next question. The case was not proceeded with, is that right?—A. No. We had
nothing to do with it after a certain point.

Q. The case was not proceeded with?—A. No.

Q. Have you forgotten?—A. No. The case was settled in some.way or
another, but we had nothing to do with it. c

Q. It was dropped as far as you were concerned?—A. It was dropped.

Q. Upder whose orders?—A. I would not say from memory. It is some time

ago.
. The CuamrMan: I wish to point out that this evidence is not fair and should
not go further before the records are filed and the proceedings are before the
Committee.

Mr. GrorrrioN, K.C.: There is no objection to the question being put when
the record is available, as if the witness makes a mistake we can correct him
immediately; otherwise we cannot correct it for days afterwards.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens: Y N ;
Q. I want an answer to this question. Under whose instructions was the
case dropped?

Mr. GeorrrioN, K.C.: T object to that.

The CaamrMAN: Objection maintained.

By Hon. Mr. Steuens:
Q. Would vou please produce that, file, before this Committee, including
instructions given to drop that particular case? ~ .

The Cuarman: The whole record.
[Commissioner Cortlandt Starnes.]
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WITNESS I can only produce the whoiegf what I have got.
The CuaRMAN: And the record will speak for itself.
Hon. Mr. SteveNns: Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. Have vou got an officer called qta,ﬂ”-sergeam‘, Hall?—A. Not at present.
Q- You did have?—A. Yes.
Q. Was he a good officer?>—A. He was for about fourteen or fifteen years,
‘but I regret to say—
Q. And he slipped a cog?—A. Slipped a cog. We had to get rid of him.
Q. When did vou get rid of him?—A. In 1921, or 1922; 1921, I think.

By the Chairman:
Q. Do you remember the date?—A. No. It is on the file.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. I want to ask a question regarding Staff Sergeant Hall. Do you remem-
ber a report from Staff Sergeant Hall regarding the Lortle-St George cases‘?—
A. I have the whole file, I dare say.

Q. Can vou produce to this Committee—I do not want the Whole file
of the Lortie-St. George cases, but a part of it. Can you produce to the
Committee a report by Staff Sergeant Hall regarding the action of Customs
officer Bisaillon in connection with the original seizure of the two trunks of
drugs that were involved in that case?—A. Yes.

@. You can do that, can you?—A. I can, if it is there.

Q. There is one other matter. You got a summons yesterday, Mr. Commis-
sioner, setting forth certain documents and so forth, that you were to produce;
nave you pmduced them?—A. All I can possibly produce

Q. Will you produce the documents asked for in this memorandum?—A. I
have tried to produce all I can.

Q. Are you producing all that is asked for, or only part of them, and if
not all, why not?—A. I have produced everything I have.

Q. Have you got them here?—A. I have them here, if I understand exactly
what you want. There is no file I am not ready to produce.

Q). The reason I am asking is that objection was taken to my motion
yesterd‘ty on the ground that you would have certain confidential documents.
We are all agreed that where there were confidential documents we would give

- the matter consideration; but speaking personally for myself, I would not like

to have you hold back certain documents on the ground that they are confi-
dential, and not apprise the Committee of them. So I am asking you the
question. Are you producing all documents called for here, or are any held
back?—A. None are held back, no. If anything is not herc, it is because we
have not thought that anything was wanted. Nothing was omitted from what
you asked for.

Q. If there are any confidential documents, - will you advise the Com-
mittee?—A. Certainly 1 will advise the Committee. I said a moment ago-that
there were certain things I would not feel justified in making public.

By Mr. Bell:

Q. How can you explain that in a number of cases you have to get your
instructions before any prosecution is instituted. Does that apply in the
discovery of stills, for instance?—A. Yes. That is, the prosecutions?

Q. Yes?—A. If we have rumours about a still, we do not do much of that
in the east here, because we have not the number of men sufficient, but in the
west, in the provinces of Manitoba, Saskatchewan and Alberta, where there

. [Commissioner Cortlandt Starnes,]
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are much greater distances and spaces and a lot of foreigners, and where there
is no revenue officer to attend to it, whenever our men hear rumours of a still
somewhere, they look for information and go and make a raid or a seizure.
Probably some men on the detachment hold commissions as Customs or Excise
officers, a seizure is made, a report is sent down, an analysis of the mash is
made, the reports are sent to the Customs and Excise Department, and in
due form we get orders to proceed with the prosecution..

Q. Do T understand you to say that after you seize a still Whlch you
know is operated against the law, you still are not able to institute a proceeding
until after your report has been received?—A. Yes, because we are working
for another department

Q. Is it or is it not a fact that some time ago your department—when I
say your department I mean you yourseli—had power to institute prosecutions
without referring to any department at all>—A. Not since I have handled
things.

Q. That was in 1923; is that correct?—A. I thmk S0.

Q. Is it correct to say that the present situation is as I have describe?

Mr. GrorrrioN: The question is ambiguous. Do you mean that he
received instructions in 1923?

Mr. Berr: No, I do not mean that.

By Mr. Bell:

Q. Since 1923, when you came on, there has been no change?—A. No.

Q. Are you in a position to know whether or not the system was changed
not very long before you came on?—A. I could not say from memory.

Q. Have you any information at all that would lead you to know the
truth about that?—A. I would have to look up some files. s

Q. Is there, to your knowledge, a file which contains a record setting out
the change?—A. I am not in a position to say; I would have to look it up.

Q. Can you not tell me that?—A. If there is anything, there would be
a file, and we can find it if it exists.

Q. Can you not tell me whether or not there is such a file?—A. With
instructions as to a change in policy?‘

Q. A file containing a record of what happened, and showing when and
how the change occurred, if there was a change‘?-——A If there was a change,
there would be a file.

Q. Do you know of any, and can you not tell me at this moment Whether
there is such a file?—A. I would not be sure,

Q. Do you know whether or not there is a file in existence which gives
the names of certain persons to whom the question of prosecutions must be
referred?—A. In case of stills?

Q. Yes.—A. There must be a file of some kind.

Q. Is 1t not a fact that there is authority extended to some to authorize
prosecutioris, and withheld from others?—A. No.

Q. What is the file you have; just tell me about the one you say there
must be; bow is it described?—A. General instructions from the Customs.
All these authorities for prosecutions we receive from the Chief Preventive
Officer.

Q. Are you able to tell me, I am speaking now of the file which requires
that certain matters be referred to certain parties who had authority to institute
prosecutions?—A. I know of no such file.

Q. Have you got in your custody any file that contains any history of
authorities given out to prosecute?—A. No. Each case, each authority, is
on its own file.

[Commissioner Cortlandt Stames.] .
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Q. The general instructions file is in whose custody now?—A. It will
be in the records.

Q. In what department?—A. Our own department

Q. Is it in the Customs and Excise?—A. No. If it is on our file, it
will be on our own records. -

Q. Don’t you know?—A. I cannot answer the question directly.

Q. I thought you said you had the original?—A. In the reports, we have
the originals themselves. Each case has its own file, and each case has its
own auuhorny
v Q.’Have you nothing in your list of ﬁles which will tell you where such
a file is?—A. I say each case has its own file. -

Q. I am talking about these gcneral instructions files?—A. We would
have a general instructions file, general correspondence with the Customs.

Q. Where is that?—A. I think I have one here.

Q. You can produce it, an¥l you will; is that so?—A. The one I-have here.

Q. Is there any other that you know of?—A. No. :

Q. The Rock Island matter was mentioned; did you have any reports at
any time calling for you to investigate condltwlﬁ there?—A. No.

Q. Nobody made that suggestion, then?—A. I have no recollection of it
at all.

Q. To what other departments have you been reporting, in addition to the
Department of Customs?—A. To the Department of Health, the Post Office
Department, the Department of the Secretary of State, the Department of
Marine and Fisheries, the Department of Militia and Defence and the Depart-
ment of Agriculture.

Q. Do any of those relate to the matters we are interested in here, in which
you have been called upon te produce documents?—A. There may be correla-
tion with the Department of Health; sometimes the Department of Health
and the Deépartment of Customs would be interested in one case.

Q. Would it be correct to say that the documents in connection with the
Narcotic Drug system would go to the Health Department?—A. They all go
to the Health Department. Any case under the Narcotic Drugs Act is reported
to the Health Department for detail.

Q. You are in a position to hand these files in too, are you?—A. I have
copies of some of them; I have several records of them.

Q. Did you have anytbing to do, as a supervising officer, in any capacity
with prosecutions in Montreal>—A. No Sir.

Q. Who would be the officer who could tell us about that?—A. There are
cases that come to me naturally. Any reports that come to me, the Officer
Commanding in Montreal has the running of them.

Q. Did you have a special staff which attended upon prosecutions there?
—A. In Montreal?

Q. Yes?—A. Yes.

Q. Who is the head of that?—A. Incpector Ph1111p<

Q. Inspector Phillips would be able to tell us what occurred during the
various cases there, after you had reported to the Department?—A. Yes.

Q. He is avallable, is he?—A. Yes,

By Mr. Doucet:

Q. I would like to ask the witness a few 'questions. In compliance with
the summons you received, you are now in a position to produce some of the
files called for by the motlon?——A Yes. I don’t think I understood that I was
to produce great quantities of files; they were just ordinary files. I understand
a list is wanted of them.

Q. You have some you can produce to thé committee now?—A. I have
some files here.

[Commissioner Cortlandt Starnes.]
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Q Are you prepared to leave them with the committee for the information
of the committee, to-day?—A. Well, I would rather be able to call attention to
any confidential matters in them, if that is possible.

Q. They would be marked “conﬁdentlal”?—A Sometimes, one part of a
file is confidential; there might be one report that it would be in the public
interest to keep confidential.

Q. As a matter of faet, I believe all these reports and correspondence will
be kept strictly confidential within the committee. What I want to know is
this: you were called upon by summons yesterday to produce some of this
correspondence and these reports, which are very necessary to the deliberations
of this committee; what you have in your possession now I believe will be ready
before the committee, and will be left with the committee?

Mr. GeorrrioN: May I suggest when the committee examines these files
it will be done in the presence of this witness, and if you come to a document
in the files which he considers conﬁdenﬁa.l ‘you might pass upon the question at
the time.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: He is to produce the file, anyway?

Mr. GrorrrioN: If he claims something is confidential, the committee will
decide whether it is or is not, and how it is to be handled, in view of it being
confidential—if it is confidential, because I do not believe you can withhold
from publication the whole files. "Therefore you have to make what is confiden-
tial as regards publication, even if you exhibit them to yourselves. The point
will have to be decided which is confidential, and then if it is econfidential what
you will do with it, and that point eannot be well decided unless the witness

“1s there.

By Mr. Doucet:

Q. Have you the file of the Lortie-St. George c&e?—A Yes, *I think I
have.

Q. Are you prepared to leave that file with the members of the committee?
—A. If T am instructed to do so, but I would prefer that I be able to point out
to the committee if there is any tlnng confidential in it. I am ready to do what-
ever I am required.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Mr. Chairman, we must have access to these files. If
we are to be denied access to the files the whole thing is a farce. The file ought
to be left in the custody of the committee, so that we could have access to it.

The CuAlRMAN: May I suggest that you will have access to them in the
presence of the witness?

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: I do not care if there are forty witnesses,

Mr. Doucer:  We do not propose to publish these ﬁle»s but we want them
for the benefit of the committee.

The €HAIRMAN: When the witness testifies you will have these files and
may examine them. {

Mr. Doucer: We want to have access to them.

Hon. Mr. BExNErT: All that is intended is that documents on the files
should not be used until such times as they have been speken of by the witness,
but the witness has no objection to the ‘committee using the files as much as
we like so long as we do not publish anything.

The Wrrness: Yes. 1 want to preserve the secrecy of our system for one
thing, and then things that are only rumours and hearsay about this man’s name
bcm(r mentioned, or that man’s name being mentioned, because you sometimes
get a detective or an agent who has a vivid 1magmat10n, and who will start

making statements about everybody.
[Commissioner Cortlandt Starnes.]
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By the C'h(m‘nmn -
Q. I understand the objection is yours, and is that tbe documents may be

ﬁled under resérve of .your own ob]ecmons?——A Yes.

Q. When they are supposed to be kept secret and confidential?—A. The
files are here, and whatever files we have we have nothing to withhold from any
of them from the committee. "'We do not want to hide anything.

By Mr. Bell: g i

Q. How many would there be?—A. I have 32 now, but altogether up to
the present time there would be several thousand.

Q. How many do you figure there are?—A. If T am desired to bring all
these inland revenue cases there are hundreds of those, where John Smith, with
a still, was fined $200 and so on.

Q May I ask you if you have a file showing a list or referring in any way
to prosecutions withheld under instructions?>—A. No. I have no recollectlon of
any prosecutions withheld on instructions.

Q. You could at least give us a file, I take it, of cases in which reports were
made and no prosecution followed?—A. T have a form that would perhaps

~ answer what you are asking. I have a monthly form, about 125 of them, from

every district, that shows every case entered and the results, whether prosecu-
tion or whatever it is. That will perhaps cover what Mr. Bennett wants, too.
That is a monthly form from each district in the whole force.

Q. Is that available immediately?—A. Yes, I could get that this afternoon.

_ ey
By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. For the last two years anyway?—A. For the last two years, 1924, 1925,
and 1926. Those are regular monthly forms with the fines paid, or whatever
action is taken.

By Mr. Bell:

Q. And it contains a resume of what you report to the Department?—
A. No, it just gives each case, the date it occurs, but it gives you the number
of the file so if the file is wanted you could get the number of the file of that
case.

Q. Does it give no indication of the nature of the evidence at your com-
mand when you report?—A. That is on the files.  There is one line for each

- case, and the district reports all cases entered and whether they were prosecuted

and convictions obtained, or what happens.

Q. Do you, having 1egm1 to yvour knowledge of the particular situation,
you are reporting from, recommend prosecutions?—A. If we recommend prose-
cutions?

Q. Yes?—A. We often do.

Q. And that shows on the files themselves?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Elliott:

Q. Mr. Commissioner, have I understood you correctly in this, that you
act under instructions only ?—A. Yes.

Q. That is correct?—A. Yes.

Q. How long have you been connected with this Department?—A. Forty
years at the end of this month.

Q. You started in in what year?—A. The 1st of March, 1886.

Q. And have been connected with the department constantly isinee?—-
A. Ever since.

[Commissioner  Cortlandt Starnes.]
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- Q. Is this what occurs? You have referred to officers obtaining certain
evidence. My friend asked you, if an officer received certain information, he
would report it. That is correct, is t?—A. Yes.

Q. To whom would he report it?>—A. To the officer commanding.
- Q. And if he had reason to believe that this particular suspect had goods
in his possession which should be seized, he would seize if he had authority ?—
A. If he was a Customs and Excise officer. If not, he would report to the
nearest Customs officer. !

Q. If he was not an officer vested with authority to seize, he would im-
mediately report to the nearest officer having authority ?—A. Yes.

Q. Is that correet?—A. Yes, to the regular Customs nearby, by telephone
[

or the quickest way.

Q. Then this evidence would be submitted to whom?—A. The result of his
investigation would be put in the form of what we call a Crime Report.

Q. He would make it in the form of a report?—A. Which would be sent
to the officer commanding the district, and three copies would be sent here, and
we would send it to the department concerned. "

Q. That would reach the department?—A. Yes. :

Q. Then instructions would be issued by the department, after. perusing
that report, as to whether prosecdtion should be taken or not?—A. Yes, unless
there was a Customs officer, a regular Customs collector or preventive officer on
the spot_there, who would take over the case and handle it from his own
department. Very often where there is a regular Customs officer he would ask
for assistance, and we would simply send a man to assist in carrying out what-
ever work he had, then the Customs officer would take the responsibility of
the case.

Q. Then the prosecution would follow on instructions from the particular
department involyed? Is that correct?—A. Yes. {

Q. Then as I understand it you do not make a report to your own depart-
ment, the Department of Justice at all?—A. No.

Q. Your report is to the particular department involved?—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:
Q. Did I understand you to say you had nothing to do personally, or your
department, with that Bisaillon case?—A. Personally?
Q. Your department?—A. We have had reports.
Q. That is what I thought. You had reports with respect to Bisaillon?—

A. Confidential reports.
Q. Of course they will be produced?—A. If the committee says so.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. You will produce them, Mr. Commissioner?>—A. If the committee orders

them.
Hon. Mr. Stevens: They are ordered. That is what I asked for a moment

ago. We want all the reports, that is why I asked the Commissioner very
particularly if there were any reports he wanted to hold in reserve.

. By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. If this is one you had in mind, I want to say frankly that we want that
report, the report regarding Bisaillon. You have got that?—A. Yes:

Q. Is it here?—A. Yes. ; .
Hon. Mr. Stevens: Let it remain in the custody of the Committee.

By Mr. Doucet:
Q. And the Lortie-St. George report as well>—A. Yes, but that is a much
older report. 7

fCominissioner Cortlandt Starnes.]
iy
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. By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. That is 1920?7—A. Yes.
The CHAIRMAN: Has any other member of t,he Committee desire to ques-
tion the witness? :

By Hon. Mr. Bennett: '
Q. In that Lortie-St. George case you have not the entire report—part of
it is in the police court in Montreal?—A. 1 think it 1s not complete, the Health
Department has a lot of it.—
Q. And the police court of Montreal?—A. Yes, the police court of Montreal
has a lot of it.
Hon. Mr. Bowvin: They have the original.

Wirness: We have some of it.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett: '
Q. And the Health Department of Montreal have some?—A. Yes, the

Health Department would have a copy.
Q. But you have not a copy of all they have?—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr.7Stevens:

Q. Before you leave the stand, I would like to ask a question. I stepped
out for a moment and did hot get the point. Did you say that Inspector
Phillips was the officer of the Rox al Canadian Mounted Police who assisted
the court in these prosecutions?—A. He does not necessarily attend court; ke
is in charge of Montreal. v

Q. You have ref)orts from him?—A. Yes, we have reports from him.

Q. Have vou those in your file here?—A. We have some, yes.

Q. All of them?—A. All the particular ﬁle< I have; every file I have here
is complete.

Q. I quite understand that. What I want is all the reports from Inspector
Phillips for the years 1924, 1925, and to date in 1926. The reason I limited that
—I would have limited it to half of 1924 if you like—.—A. Only in connection
with these cases according to your question.

Q. There is no limitation to it?—A. We get daily reports from Mr. Phillips;
we get hundreds of reports from him on routine matters which have no con-
nection at all—

Q. We do not want those, but I do not want important matters buried in
‘routine matters?—A. No; I have picked out what from my subpoena I thought
was of interest to the Committee.

Hon. M. Stevens: I would like to be my own judge as to what is of
interest.

By Mr. Bell:

Q. T think you stated to me, Mr. Commissioner, that Mr. Phillips is avail-
able at any time to come before this Committee?—A. Yes. He is in charge. at
Montreal, and has under him a number of non-commissioned officers. We take
lots of cases into court, but Mr. Phillips himself does not go into court very
-much;, but his officers do.

Mr. Bern: Mr. Chairman, am I right in assuming that Commissioner
Starnes will be here during the balance of “the week, in case we wish to call him
for further information?

The CaarMAN: As you wish; he is at the ‘disposal of the Committee.

The WirNess: A telephone will get me in ten minutes.

[Commissioner Cortlandt Starnes.]
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By Mr. Elliott: TN 4 e R
Q. Mr. Starnes, just one question; have you in your custody all the reports
that have been made for years back?—A. Yes, I think I can say that our
records are very complete. e :
Q. How far back do they go—approximately?—A. Our records go back
to the inception of the force; that is fifty years. ‘

By the Chairman: : .-"1
Q. From fifty years ago?—A. Yes.

—

By Mr. Elliott:

Q. And the records are all kept?—A. Yes. There have been changes in
the organization in the matter of making reports. Before 1904 we did not have
very much criminal work; the force did more soldiering than actual police work
except amongst the Indians, and most of the reports of a criminal nature were |
in the form of letters. About 1902—I am not quite sure of the date—the then
commissioner instituted a system of criminal reports where all this business
of “I have the honour to be” was cut out, and a regular form of criminal reports
was adopted, and has been in force ever since. Then in 1920 with the amalgama-
tion of the Dominion and the Northwest Mounted Police, the heddquarters were
changed from Regina to Ottawa, and other changes were made, in view of the
extension of the work. This Narcotic and Drug Act business was not known of
before we came down here in 1920, and the first years we had to grope to a
certain extent with a new problem, but it has gradually become organized, and
is in better shape, and our records now are in better shape than they were some .
years ago. -

Q. You have the records for 1912?—A. Yes, we have them.

Q. And for the years from then up till the present?—A. Yes.

Q. And such records as were ‘kept prior to 1912 are still in the custody of
the Department?—A. Yes.

Q. And you will be able to produce such as are required?—A. Anything
that is required, yes.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. But, Commissioner, your force was only moved east in 1920?—A. Yes.

Q. Not in 1912?—A. No. I said in 1902 the change was made in the
criminal reports. : |

Q. But you only began the criminal reports in 1902?—A. Yes, in 1918 we
were extended to Mianitoba and British Columbia.

And prior to that time your headquarters were at Regina?—A. Yes.

. And dealt with western matters solely?—A. Yes.

In 1920 you moved east?—A. Yes.

And the headquarters of the Department are now here?—A. Yes.

And such records as you had were moved east with you?-—A. Yes.

In their entirety?—A. Yes, except in regard to local matters at Regima.
. What is the strength of your detachment at Montreal?—A. About
twenty-eight or thirty men. o3

Q. Is there a superintendent there?—A. No; an inspector.

Q. How many non-commissioned officers>—A. Seven or eight.

Q. How many constables?—A. The balance would be constables.

Q. Was there ever a body of Mounted Police on detachment duty on the
border between Quebec and the United States?—A. Yes, f‘or a year or so at
Phillipsburg.

Q. When was it taken off?

[Commissioner Cortlandt Starnes.]
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A. About three years ago.



17

e on that e
ey Q. Will you produce it?—A. Yes. o p

o e 5 RS o) that g0 far as the police force is cuiwerned there is a detachment
of pohce on the border of Ontario, Manitoba, Alberta, Saska,tchewan and Brit-

4 " ish Columbia, but in Quebec it was 1emoved?—-By the order of Whom‘?—A it
~do not know, sir.
% Q. Oh, yes you do. You should know from Whom you got your instrue-
~ tions?—A. I do not think I was in command at that time.
E'z’ Q. I do not think so either— —A. I cannot say—

Q. But you were the assistant?—A. Yes."
§ Q. I would like to know; you remember the time?—A. I do not know the
o reason.
oy - Q. Well, it is since 1921?—A. Oh, yes; it was since then, but I do not know
. the reason for the move.
. Q. That is a matter of high policy ahout which you know nothing?—A.
s

: It rmgi)t have been a question of economy, or it might have been a question of

.+ reques

Q. To what extent has the force been increased on the border along

(e Ontario since that time?—A. They have since then remained about the same.
3 Q. There has been some increase and some additional men put at some

additional points?—A. On the Six Nation Reserve there is an increase there.

Q. The truth was they were not going to have mounted police on the
border in Quebec. That is the story?

Mr. BeLn: The witness says “ves.”

Wirness:  Yes. ‘
£  Hon. Mr. Bexxerr: He and I were old friends. We were together in
. western Canada years ago.

Hon. Mr. Stevens:  We ought to know, and I would suggest that Com-
missioner Starnes get the necessary authority to withdraw the officers from
the Quebec border. You did not do it off your own bat?

 Wirness: There must be some reason for it.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. Never mind the reason, the order. There were an order and instructions
| given to the force. Will you file those instructions?

Hon. Mr. Bennerr:  Give who they were from and to whom they were
given. In order to remove any misapprehension, the fact is that you only have
an inspector at Montreal and at similar points of any importance, you havg a
superintendent,?

Wirness: ® That. would not be necessary on account of—

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. I do not ask if it was necessary, lt was a fact?—A. I mlrrht explain
that there are inspectors now in a place where we might put a supemntendent
b}lllt for the good of the service I would rather have the inspector who is
there.

Q. Although he has.not the rank of superintendent, the inspector is better
fitted for that job for that particular place?—A. Yes, it is a round peg in a
square hole.

By Mr. Elliott:

Q. At how many points on the border of Quebec have you got mounted
pohce?—A Only one, and only one man.

e vl deae

[Commissioner Cortlandt Starne.]

Q Have you the mstmctlons that took _;'oﬁ?——A I can turn up the file
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Q. How long was he there?—A. About a year and a half, I think.

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: Mr. Chairman, before the witness leaves the stand,
we are not elear on the filing of these documents The Commissioner has been
good enough to say he has here certain files and documents, but they are not
placed in the custody of the clerk. I would ask that they now be placed in
the custody of the clerk formally that we may-have them and in order that the
clerk may tabulate them formally in order, as exhibits A, B, etc.

The CuAlrmMAN: No, no.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Let us get them in the custody of the clerk. We do
not, want to wake up tomorrow and find these somewhere else.

The Cuamrman: They will be copied.

Mr. Kexnepy: I presume we can have access to these files any time that
the House is sitting. ‘

The CuamrmaN: Certainly the Clerk will hand you these documents and
you can verify them.

Hon. Mr. BennerT: The proper thing is for the Clerk to give Mr. Starnes
a receipt for.the files. They are not in evidence and not yet filed as exhibits
and such parts of them as may be needed may be used, but they are not open

at the present moment to the Clerk or to anybody else.

: The CumamrmaN: They should not be removed from the hands of the
Clerk. They are open to inspection, but not to the public, and they are not
to be removed.

Hon. Mr. Borvix: They are to be retained in the custody of the Clerk,
and not to be taken out even by a member of the Committee.

The Cuarman: Kept all the time in your custody, Mr. Clerk. Have you
any other questions, Mr. Stevens.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: No.

The Cramrvman: Now, Mr. Starnes and Mr. Cawdron you are released for
the present moment, but you will kindly stay in Ottawa so that if we need
you we can get you at the first opportunity by ’phone.

Witness retired..

The Cuamrman: We will adjourn now until ten thirty to-morrow mornmg
to meet in the Railway Committee room.

The Committee adjourned.
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TaurspAy, 11th February, 1926.

The Committee met at 10.30 a.m., Mr. Mercier, the Chairman, presiding.

* Present: Messrs. Bell (Hamilton West), Bennett, Donaghy, Doucet, Elliott,
Kennedy (Peace River), Mercier (St. Henri), St. Pére, and Stevens, 9.

In attendance: Hon. G. H. Boivin, Minister of Customs and Excise, and
Mr. Gagnon, counsel for Mr. Bisaillon.

The minutes of the last meeting were read and adopted.

The Chairman read a letter Afrorr'l the Merchants’ Protective Association,
Montreal, protesting against Mr. R. P. Sparks’ claim to represent that body
before the Committee, as announced in Montreal Star of 10th February.

Mr. Sparks, who was present, reminded the Committee that he had requested
permission to be heard on behalf of the Commercial Protective Association, not
the Merchants’ Protective Association. (For this letter, etc., see Minutes of
Evidence).

Hon. Mr. Stevens moved,—For the production of all correspondence pass-
ing between the Minister of Customs and the Civil Service Commission or
between the Deputy Minister of Customs and the Civil Service Commission
regarding the appointment and promotion of J. E. Bisaillon, whether such
correspondence is marked “ Private ” or otherwise, and of such other correspon-
dence as may be on the files of the Civil Service Commission, the Minister of
Customs, the Deputy Minister of Customs or of the Prime Minister of Canada
regarding the promotion of the said Bisaillon to the position of Chief Preventive
Officer for the. district of Montreal.

Motion agreed to.

Hon. Mr. Stevens moved,—That the Chief of the Passenger Traffic Depart-
ment of the Canadian Pacific Railway and the Canadian National Railways:
respectivly, be requested to produce statements showing the amount of excess:
baggage handled and the amount collected on excess baggage during the past
five years at Montreal and Toronto.

Motion agreed to.

Commissioner C. Starnes, R.C.M.P., produced some further files, as called
for during his examination on the 10th instant,

Mr. R. R. Farrow, Deputy Minister of Customs and Excise, was called
and sworn, ‘

On motion of Mr. Donaghy, : :
Resolved, That it be a standing order of the Committee that in the absence
of Mr. Geoffrion, counsel for the Department of Customs and Excise, Hon. Mr.
Boivin may act in that capacity.
1590913
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Mr. Farrow was examined by Messrs. Boiviﬁ, Bennett, Elliott, Kennedy,
Bell and Stevens. In the course of the examination, Mr. Farrow filed with the
Committee the following exhibits, viz:—

No. 1 —Chart showing organization of the Department of Customs and

Excise.

No. 1 (a)—Department, of Customs and Excise—Organization for Preventive
Service. RESe

No. 1 (b)—Department of Customs and Excise—Organization for Inspection
Service,

No. 1—(c)—Department of Customs and Excise—Organization for Special -
Branch, Toronto.

No. 2 —Department of Customs and Excise. Memorandum No. 55, to Col-
lectors of Customs and Excise, respecting 1925 amendment to
Customs Act.

Mr. Farrow was asked to provide the Committee at a later date with:—

(a) number of prosecutions where value of goods less than $200;

(b) lihsts of ports in each of the provinces and the outports connected wit
them; #

(¢) Record for 1925 and for 1926 to date of infractions of Customs laws,
showing where they arose, persons concerned, reports of officers thereon,
and final disposition of goods;

(d) copies of Form “K7”;

(e) report of Accountant of Department of Customs and Excise to Mr.
Farrow re Bisaillon depositing pubic funds to his own account;

(f) service record of Mr. R. P. Clerk,

On motion of Mr. Donaghy, the Clerk was directed to obtain a certified
copy of the Record in the case of Rex vs. J. F. Simons et al, tried in the Court
of Sessions, Quebec City, on 13th February, 1925,

The Chairman read two letters received from Mr. Farrow respecting motions
made by the Committee at the instance, respectively, of Mr. Doucet, and Mr. Bell
on the 9th instant in connection with (a) reports made by Inspector Walter
Duncan, and (b) spirituous liquors released. Said letters were filed as Exhibits
Nos. 3 and 5. (See page  of the Evidence).

Also a recommendation to the Governor in Council by the Hon. G. H. Boivin,
Minister of Customs and Excise, dated 11th December, 1925, recommending
that the services of Mr. J. A, E. Bisaillon be dispensed with, which was marked
as Exhibit No. 4. (See Evidence).

The Committee adjourned until to-morrow at 10.30 a.m.

WALTER TODD,
Chief Clerk.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

TuurspAY, February 11, 1926.

The Special Committee appointed to investigate the administration of the
Department of Customs and Excise and charges relating thereto, met at 10.30
A.M.,, the Chairman, Mr. P. Mercier, presiding.

The CuAIRMAN: Now gentlemen of the Committee, before beginning fo
examine witnesses to-day, I wish to say that I have received a communication
from the Merchants Protective Association of Montreal, dated February 10,
addressed to the Chairman of this Committee, which reads as follows:

“Montreal, 10th February, 1926.

8 P.M.
Paun MEercier, Esq., M.P.
Chairman, Customs Investigation Committee,
Ottawa, Ont.

Dear Mr. MERCIER,

Several of our members have called me up regarding a statement
in to-night’s issue of the Montreal Star, Page 1, to the effect that ‘The
Committee decided to hear next week, R. P. Sparks, of the Merchants’
Protective Association.’

\ We have no ‘R. P. Sparks’ and at no time made an appeal on behalf
of our members or any complaint about the Customs officials. So far
as Montreal is concerned, the writer has always found the officials here
honest, and straightforward in their dealings with the public. -

Will you please therefore have deleted from the records our name
as far as Sparks is concerned. Thank you.

Believe me, g

Yours faithfully,

(Sgd.) M. M. CampBeELL, Mgr.”
I will leave this letter on the table for the consideration of this Committee.

Hon. Mr. Bexnerr: Is Mr. Sparks here? What is the proper name of
your Association? ‘

Mr. Sparks: The Commercial Protective Association, incorporated by
letters patent. :

Hon. Mr. BenNerr: How do the minutes read, Mr. Clerk?
The CrLErk: Commercial Protective Association.

Hon. Mr. BenNNErT: Is that correct, Mr. Sparks, Commercial Protective
Association?

Mr. Sparks: Commercial.—
Hon. Mr. Bexnerr: The “Star” will make the necessary change. :

19
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CorTLANDT STARNES, Re-called.

By Mr. Donaghy: :

Q. Colonel Starnes, do you require some further time to search your files
and to produce the documents asked for?—A. Yes. We are working hard at
them. I have some of them with me now, and others will come on from time
to time as we get them ready.

|
Witness retired.

-

RosinsoN RusseLn Farrow called and sworn.

By the Chairman.:

Q. What is your full name, Mr. Farrow?—A. Robinson Russell Farrow.
i Q. What is your occupation?—A. Deputy Minister of Customs and
[oxcise. '

Q. Of Ottawa?—A. Yes, sir. g

The CuAIRMAN: In the absence of Mr. Geoffrion, K.C., who represents
the Department of Customs and Excise, Mr. Geoffrion being engaged before
the Supreme Court, it is moved by Mr. Donaghy that the Hon. Mr. Boivin,
the Minister of Customs should conduct the examination of this witness.

Mr. DoxaeHY: We might have this in a form of a standing order.

(Carried.)

By Hon. Mr. Bowwin:

Q. Mr. Farrow, how long have you been in the service of the Depart-
ment?—A. The Department of Customs, sir?

Q. Yes?—A. Forty-one years. =2 3

Q. What are the different positions you have occupied during those forty-
one years?—A. All the ranges of clerkships, accountant of the department,
assistant commissioner, commissioner of Customs, and Deputy Minister of
Customs and Excise.

Q. If T understand you correctly, the position you now occupy of Deputy
Minister of Customs and Excise is practically the same position as Commissioner
of Customs, with a different title, is it nob?—A. Yes.

Q. You are now Deputy Minister of Customs and Excise?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were previously Commissioner of Customs?—A. Yes.

Q. Will you tell the Committee when the Department of Excise or the
Department, of Inland Revenue was linked up with the Customs Department,
approximately of course?—A. The Department of Inland Revenue was amal-
-gamated with the Department of Customs in the month of May, 1918, but the
actual consolidation of the two Departments was not made until the 1st of
April, 1921. )

Q. So that it is only since the 1st of April, 1921 that the administration
of the Department of Excise has come directly under your control?—A. Yes.

Q. Will you tell the Committee how many years you have been in charge
of the Department of Customs as Deputy head?—A. Since the 1st of July,
1919.

Q. As you have just stated, since the amalgamation you have been in
charge of the other department?—A. Yes.

Q. Previous to the amalgamation, all cases concerning Excise did not come
under your jurisdiction?—A. No, sir. '

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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Q. I do not want to go into too many details, but will you give the Com-

‘mittee some idea of the difference between a Customs seizure and an Excise

seizure, just in two or three words, so that we may get it on the record and
everybody will understand it?—A. A Customs seizure under the provisions of
the Customs Act is dealt with by the Department, and the final decision rend-
ered by the Minister. In Excise seizures, they are indictable offences, and they
go before the Courts.

Q. If I understand it correctly—you will correct me if I am wrong, because
I want to get this on the record—a Customs seizure is a seizure made in con-
nection with goods imported into Canada without the payment of duty?—aA.
Yes. S

Q. Without a report to the Customs and without payment of duty, if the

goods are dutiable?—A. Well, the duty might be partially paid in some cases;

there are questions of undervaluation. I mean without the payment of the
proper duties. ;
Q. Excise seizures are seizures of what?—A. Stills, principally, illegal dis-
tillation, and tobacco. Mr. Taylor will tell you more about that than I can.
Q. Now as to the organization of the Department. As deputy head of the
department, what are your duties?—A. My duties are to administer the affairs
of the department, under the direction of the Minister, and with the assistance

of the Executive Officers.

Q. Will you tell us; without giving the individual names, just by the title
of the office, how many executive officers there are in the department?—A. I
can submit a chart showing the organization of the department, as approved
by the Civil Service Commission and Orders of the House.

Q. I think it would be a good idea to have that?—A. I can give you the
names of the executive officers if you wish to know them, sir. (Filed as exhibits
1, 1a, 1b and Ic.)

The CralrmMaN: Name them.

Hon. Mr. Borvin: I suppose the Minister would like to know something
about his own Department.

By Hon. Mr. Boivin:

Q. Give us the titles of the executive officers?—A. The Minister, the Deputy
Minister, Assistant Deputy Minister, General Executive Assistant, Chief Clerk
of Refunds Branch, Chief Clerk of Correspondence, Dominion Appraiser, Chief
Clerk of the Staff, Chief Clerk of Statistics, Departmental Solicitor, Chief Clerk

. .of Excise Tax Branch, Chief Clerk of Drawbacks, Chief Accountant, Chief of

Records, and Chief of the Supply Branch. Those are in the Department. Then
there are in the Department also, although paid from outside appropriations,
the Chief Inspector of Customs and Excise, and the Chief of the Customs and
Excise Preventive Service.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. I did not hear the name of the Commissioner of Taxation?—A. No. I
did not give that. That work is so apart from mine that I had overlooked it.
That is practically a department by itself.

By Hon. Mr. Boivin:

Q. I would like to ascertain, and I think the Committee would like to
know, how many of the executive officers you have just mentioned have any-
thing to do directly or indirectly, with the payment of Customs duties and the
decisions rendered upon Customs seizures, that is, from the Minister down?—A.
‘The Minister is final; then the Deputy Minister, that is, as far as Customs

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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seizures are concerned; then the General Executive Assistant, the head Law
Clerk and the Chief of the Customs and Excise Preventive Service, outside of
course, and the Collectors outside. : ,

Q. Perhaps the Committee do not understand exactly what you mean. Did
you tell us that the Chief of the Customs and Excise Preventive Service is head
of an outside organization; isn’t his office located in Ottawa, in the Building?—
A. Yes. ' ‘

Q. Is he not directly under your control?—A. Yes.

Q. And through you, under the control of the Minister?—A. Yes.

Q. Is it not his duty to report to you, and through you to the Minister, all
seizures which come to his attention?—A. Yes.

Q. Can you tell us, of course very briefly, because Mr. Wilson I understand
is here, in what way or in what manner the different Customs seizures are
brought to his attention?—A. When an officer on his staff makes a seizure, he
makes a report of the seizure on what is known as Form K-9. That is known
as the seizure report, giving the particulars of the seizure or the circumstances
in connection therewith; he sends it to Mr. Wilson, and Mr. Wilson transmits
it to the Department with a covering letter usually, and it goes to the Seizures
Branch. The head law clerk then prepares the notice of seizure to the party,
which has to go out immediately. That is signed by Mr. Blair, the General
Executive Assistant. All the correspondence in connection with the seizure is
then dealt with by the Head Law Clerk, and Mr. Blair until such time as the
seizure is ready to be reported on for decision. Mr. Blair then prepares the
report to the Deputy Minister, on the evidence submitted; he submits it to me,
and I sign it if I am satisfied it is right; if not I make whatever changes I think
are necessary; I send my report in to the Minister, and the Minister either
signs it or changes it, as he sees fit; he has the final decision.

Q. The first knowledge the Department at Ottawa has of the seizure is by
the report received from the seizing officer to Mr. Wilson?—A. Insofar as the
Preventive Service is concerned, yes, but not Port seizures; they come through
the Collectors, by the same procedure.

Q. When they come to the office in the Parliament Building, do they come
to Mr. Wilson or to some other officer?—A. They come to me in my official
capacity, marked for the Seizure Branch, and are dealt with in the same way.

Q. So that seizures made directly by the Port officers are not reported to
Mr. Wilson at all?—A. No. ;

Q. Does he at any stage have anything to do with these seizures?—A.
Nothing.

Q. Has Mr. Wilson anything to do with a seizure after it has been reported
by him with his covering letter to the Seizures Branch, and if so, what has he
to do with it?—A. Just in what connection?

Q. Well, after a seizure reaches Mr. Wilson, and Mr." Wilson hands that
seizure or sends that seizure with a covering letter to the Seizures Branch—I
think that is what you said he did?—A. Yes.

Q. Does he have anything further to do with the seizure; in other words,
has he any further decision to make, has he ‘anything further to do with it?—
A. No, not until the seizure is decided, unless he discovers some new evidence.

Q. If he discovers new evidence, or if any communications are sent to
him in connection with it, they are passed on to whom the seizure branch?—A.
Yes sir.

Q. That is, up to the moment of decision?—A. Yes sir.

Q. When the matter has been decided, when the decision has bee.n_pre-
pared by the general executive assistant, approved of by the deputy minister,
then it goes into the ministers office for approval?—A. Yes.

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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Q. The approval of the minister is given by signing a printed form at the
bottom of the report, which is already signed by the deputy minister, approving

of that report?—A. Yes. {
Q. And this procedure is followed in all seizures, from the largest to the

smallest—that is, in all customs seizures?—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. Or the minister may change it?—A. Yes.

By Hon Mr. Boivin: 3l !
Q. Of course, the minister in signing the report takes the responsibility
for it?—A. Yes. !
Q. The procedure is somewhat different in connection with excise seizures?
—A. Yes. - |
Q. Would you prefer to tell us about this, or would you rather that this
be left to Mr. Taylor?—A. I would prefer to have Mr. Taylor deal with that;

. he is more familiar with it than I am.

Q. While he is acting as assistant deputy minister, he is also chief of the
excise branch?—A. Yes sir.

Q. In connection with seizures made for undervaluation, are they sub-
mitted to, or do they go through any other chain of procedure than that just
outlined by you?—A. The same procedure.

Q. In a general way what happens to goods -placed under seizure? In
other words, under how many different methods may seized goods be disposed
of, or may seizures be decided under the law; customs seizures, just a general
idea, depending as I understand it upon the merits of the case and the evidence
adduced in reply to the notice?—A. It is very difficult to say.

Q. Perhaps you do not exactly understand the question. I am not asking
for any specific case. In other words, putting the responsibility upon the min-
ister as a last resort, in the decisions rendered by the minister, what are his
rights under the law? Is it correct to say, for instance, that the minjster can,
if he so desires, confiscate the goods and have them sold—that is, if there is
absence of defence or if the defence is not considered to be valid by the min-
ister and the other officials who pass upon it—A. If they are subject to for-
feiture under the law. I might just say here, sir, that since July 1925, or since
the last session of Parliament, the powers of the minister in that regard have
been changed in respect of goods, smuggled goods, of the value of $200 or over,
where the goods are forfeited without power of remission.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. Is that the amendment to section 219?—A. Sections 206 and 219.

By Hon Mr. Boivin: ‘

Q. As I understand it, when sections 206 and 219 were adopted by the
Dominion Parliament, a circular of instructions was issued. Is that right?—
A. T have it here.

Q. Issued by the department. Will you file that as an exhibit?—A. I
will.  (Ezhibit No. 2.)

Hon. Mr. BexxNerr: I would suggest that perhaps Mr. Farrow has an
office consolidation of the Customs and Excise Act.

The Wirness: I have it here.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. Could you supply each member of the committee with a copy of that?
A. I would be very pleased to. I think the amendments are included in the
: [Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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Act, but these instructions to the officers are not. That is a circular, and I
would also like to add that at the same time warning notices on cardboard and
later on on metal were prepared and put up at border points in Canada, on
ferry boats, international bridges and everywhere else, to warn the people.

Hon. Mr. Borvin: You have filed a copy of these instructions. I suppose
there is no objection to that.

Hon. Mr. Bexnerr: Oh no. The clerk had better mark that chain of
responsibility Exhibit, 1, and the circular as Exhibit, 2. There is no necessity
of marking the office consolidation, because that is a statute. If the witness
can supply each member of the committee with a copy of that it will be a
great convenience.

By Hon Mr. Boivin: :

Before this last amendment to the law and at present in connection with
goods of a value of under $200, to go back to my question, seizure can be
disposed of by a forfeiture of the goods, by the imposition of a penalty of the .
duty paid value. Sometimes that is done?—A. Yes sir.

Q. Sometimes a penalty equal to double duty?-—A. Yes.

Q. And sometimes single duty—that is to say, duty and sales tax?—is
accepted by the minister, depending always of course upon the defence. When
1 say by the minister, I mean of course by the officials also who prepare the
decision. Is that right?—A. You are speaking of at the present time or back
a year? :

Q. T am speaking of the general custom which has existed in the depart-
ment say for the last ten years.—A. Yes, releases on payment of duty some-
times. T

Q. Sometimes on payment of duty; sometimes on payment of double duty;
sometimes on payment of duty paid value; sometimes goods are confiscated,
and so on?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Sometimes confiseated and destroyed?—A. Yes sir.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. Sometimes prosecutions?—A. No prosecutions, in my memory, until
the last amendment to the Act.

By Hon. Mr. Boivin:

Q. And no prosecutions since the Act except in cases where the value of
the goods was over $200, in your memory, offhand?—A. Since the Act?

Q. Yes. Have any prosecutions been taken for the importation of goods
under $200 in value since this new amendment to the Act?—A. I think so. -
Mr. Blair will bear me out in that, perhaps. In cases of cigarettes, I think
sometimes where the value is very small, we sometimes prosecute.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. How many prosecutions under section 219 as amended in 1925?7—A. It
is not possible for me to say, but I would think six or seven. Mr. Blair could
tell you better, perhaps.

Q. Under the amended Act?—A. Under the amended Act.

By Hon. Mr. Boivin:

Q. You could give the exact information by referring to the files?—
A. Absolutely.

Q. Would you be willing, Mr. Farrow, to refer to the files and give us that
information when you are again called as a witness?—A. Yes, but I just want
to say one thing in connection with that, that if the members of the committee

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.] '
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“will notice that circular of instructions to all collectors of customs and all

other outside officers dealing with seizures, they are instructed there that where
a seizure of goods is made of the value of $200 or more—and that is duty paid
value of goods—not for personal use,—they are instructed to take prosecution
forthwith without reference to the department.

By Mr. Bell:
Q. Who did you say were instructed to do that?—A. Every officer outside,
in that meaning.

By Hon. Mr. Botvin:
Q. To whom was that memorandum addressed?—A. It was addressed to
¢ollectors of customs throughout Canada.
Q. And a sufficient number of copies sent to them to be passed on to their
subordinate officers?—A. Every one.
Q. So the entire force were made familiar with the terms of that circular?

—A. Absolutely.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. Were they issued to the preventlve officers too?—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Boivin:

Q. Could you tell the committee offhand about how many officers there
are on the regular preventive service staff, and on the special preventive service
staff, constituted in virtue of the vote which was passed in the House of Com-
mons last year?—A. If you could let me ‘see that chart on file, perhaps I can
tell yor. The regular organization for the preventive servwe provides for
104 officers, including the chief of the staff. :

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. In all Canada?—A. In all Canada. The number of special officers
employed—because they are not appointed—as I recollect it, was 67.

By Hon. Mr. Boivin:
Q. Some of whom have since been dismissed?—A. Some of whom have
since been cut out.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Did you bring a list of their names? We asked for that.—A. I think
there is an Order of the House for that.

Hon. Mr. Borvin: The Order of the House for a list of the names has not
yet been passed.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: But the hon. Minister of Customs promised me from his
place in the House to give them to me, without passing it.

Hon. Mr. Bovin: He promised that he would prepare all that could possibly
be prepared. Mr. Stevens will get from the department everything we can
possibly give him. I do not want to argue the point now.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I am just reminding you of your statement.

Hon. Mr. Bowin: I recognize that I made the statement, but it was
pointed out to me that the utility of the preventive service would be completely
destroyed if their names were made public, and insofar as secret officers are
concerned I think the objection was well taken. It is true that there are a

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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number of officers who are recognized as such publicly, and there is no objection
to giving their names; no objection to giving the number, the amount paid and
all possible information of that kind. I will confer with Mr. Stevens.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Why cannot this committee have the names?

Hon. Mr. Borvin: As confidential information I would have no objection,
providing it is not made public. v

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Let the committee determine whether it will remain
confidential.

Mr. DonvagrY: I think the committee can be well trusted with that.

Hon. Mr. Borvin: We have nothing to hide; we will give the information
to the committee and they will use it as they see fit.

By Hon. Mr. Boivin:

Q. Now, Mr. Farrow, as you will note, we have not gone into. any specific
case this morning. Will you undertake to remain in Ottawa at the disposal
of the committee, in order that you may be called by telephone at any time
you may be required?—A. Yes. ‘

Q. Is there anything else you can think of yourself before the other mem-
bers of the committee may ask you a few questions? Is there anything you
can think of yourself in connection with the organization or with the estab-
lishment of the chain of responsibility which you would like to state to the
committee, and which you think the committee should know, before you leave
the stand?—A. No.

Hon. Mr. Bexnerr: I will ask Mr. Farrow a few questions.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett: ,

Q. Now, Mr. Farrow, we have nine provinces in the confederation. Is there
anyone in each particular province who heads the Customs and Excise Depart-
ment?—A. No. i

Q. So the reports from the Customs House officers in the various communi-
ties in the provinces are made direct to Ottawa?—A. Yes.

Q. And there are no intermediate persons through whom reports pass—
they come straight to the office here?

Q. That is clear?—A. Yes.

Q. Perhaps you will prepare a list of the number of ports in each of the
provineces, and the outposts or outports connected with them?—A. We have a
printed list, sir.

Q. You will file that with the Committee, please, because it may be helpful?
—A. Yes. ~

Q. Now, you have Preventive Officers in each of the provinces?—A. Yes.

Q. What are the duties of Preventive Officers of the Customs Department?
—hA. Well, I think the Chief Preventive Officer could give you more details
than I.

i Q. They report to you, as I understand it?—A. No, they report to Mr.
ilson.

Q. But Mr. Wilson is under you, to use the words colloquially?—A. Yes.

Q. Therefore, you should know the duties of your officers, in a general way?
—A. In a general way to prevent smuggling.

Q. You have as assistants to these Preventive Officers, the Mounted Police?
—A. In some cases.

Q. Who have a general power conferred upon them by which they act as
Preventive Officers?—A. No.

[ Mr. R. R. Farmow.]
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Q. Individually: names, of course, being necessary to confer that power?
—A. When they act for us they have a letter assigning them as acting Customs
and Excise Enforcement Officers. ;

Q. And you have done that quite generally during the last two or three
years?—A. Yes. '

Q. In some of the provinces anyway?—A. Yes. :

Q. Particularly in the western provinces?—A. Well, in the western province
we are appointing more regular officers than formerly. :

Q. But you did use the Mounted Police considerably ?—A. Yes.

Q. In order that we will have it more clearly before us, we will assume that
at Calgary someone has violated the Customs law by bringing in goods at an
undervaluation. The Preventive Officer would seize them?—A. Yes.

Q. What would be his next step?—A. He would report to Mr. Wilson and
leave the seized goods— :
bt Q. Mr. Wilson being— —A. The Chief Customs and Excise Preventive

cer.
. Q. The Chief Preventive Officer?—A. Yes.

Q. He would report to him?—A. Yes.

Q. By name?—A. As Chief Preventive Officer.
'Q. Not to you?—A. No. '

Q: What would happen to the goods?—A. They would be released on
deposit if he thought they were perishable, or—

Q. Put in a warehouse and locked up?—A. Yes.

Q. What is the next step?—A. The next step is the procedure which I
indicated in the examination.

Q. Prosecution might take place under the law, if it is desirable?—A. If
the goods were valued at $200 or over, there would be a prosecution, if the
officer carried out his duties.

Q. That prosecution would be initiated under whose instructions?—A. The
usual procedure would be that he would wire Mr. Wilson for the name of the
legal agent to conduct the prosecution. ,

Q. And as I understand it, the name of the legal agent would be obtained
from the Department of Justice?—A. Yes. -

Q. And the local man would confer with the legal agent of the Crown, and
the prosecution would go forward?—A. Yes.

Q. Except it be stopped by the direction of the Department?—A. Yes.

Q. That is the position?——A. Yes. :

Q. That is the prosecution?—A. Yes.

Q. And the goods themselves may be sold at public auction or confiscated
and destroyed?—A. They may be sold by other means than public auction.

Q. They may be sold by private treaty?—A. By tender, or maybe disposed
of as the Minister sees fit.

Q. That is what I am coming to. The goods themselves the subject of the
seizure at Calgary, for instance, may in the ultimate analysis be sold by direction
of the Minister?—A. Yes.

Q. That is clear?—A. Yes.

Q. They are forfeited or destroyed?—A. Yes.

‘Q. Or sold by public'auction or by tender?—A. Yes.

Q. And all that takes place under the direction of your Chief Preventive
Officer, Mr. Wilson?—A. Yes.

Q. And he reports to you?—A. Yes.
Q. But the final decision rests with the Minister himself?—A. Yes.

Q. Your recommendation is supposed to accompany the report, upon which
the Minister acts?—A. There is a printed form for it on the report.

h‘._,,,: ‘ [Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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Q. There is a printed form attached to the report, but the Minister may

exercise his discretion in any way he pleases?—A. Yes, but the law provides
that the Deputy Minister “shall” report. %,

Q. And the Minister decides?—A. Yes. ,

Q. The largest port you have in Canada is the port of Montreal?—A. Yes.

Q. The port of Montreal covers a very considerable territory? No doubt
you know that? It is important because of the goods coming from the sea?—

es.
Q. When did prohibition come into force in the United States?—A. I can-
not say.
Q. But since the passing of the Volstead Act there has been a very con-
siderable increase in smuggling?

Mr. BeLL: That was about the end of 1917 or early in 1918.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. There has been a considerable increase of smuggling? There is no
question about that, is there?—A. Of course, I am not prepared to say from
our records whether we have more cases of smuggling. I suppose we have. It
is pretty generally supposed we have more smuggling.

You have reports in your records that indicate that on the boundary
of Quebec, and the boundary of the province of Ontario, in particular, there
haz b%{gn a very considerable business of moving liquor into the United States?
—A. Yes.

Q. That is clear?—A. Yes. :

Q. And it is also clear that the reports indicate that very considerable
quantities of manufactured goods have been coming into Canada at the same
places—in Ontario and Quebec in particular?—A. You had better ask Mr.
Wilson about that.

Q. You have reports indicating that is so?—A. I have heard it.

Q. Well, put it that way: you have heard it?—A. Yes.

Q. It is a very general subject matter of discussion in your Department?—
A. We have not the time—we have other things to discuss besides that.

Q. It has been brought to the attention of the Department by various
people that there is a very considerable extension of smuggling from the United
States of manufactured goods into Canada during recent years?—A. Yes.

Q. That is clear?—A. That is clear. ?

-Q. What extra precautions have been taken by your Department during
the last two years or three to meet that situation? ~You can deal with the
whole of Canada.—A. Increased the Preventive Service staff.

Q. To what extent?—A.'I cannot say at the present time.

Q. Would Mr. Wilson be able to speak with certainty as to that?—A. He
would.

Q. I suppose you can file with us a record of the goods that have been
forfeited in Canada during the past two years?—A. It would be a pretty big
record.

Q. Of goods seized and forfeited for infraction of the Customs Law?—
A. Particulars of them? »

Q. No— —A. Just -the number of cases?

Q. Yes, with the names?—A. The names of the parties from whom seized?

Q. Yes; “Smith; Calgary; seized; sold or forfeited” or whatever disposition
has been made of them?—A. I can prepare that, but it will take some time
to do it.

Q. Supposing we start, in order to get the matter in more simple form,
with the year 1925, and the first month of this year. That would not be very

[Mr. R. R. Fasrrow.]
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long?—A. I would like you to put it in writing, so that I would know what
I am to get. ‘

Hon. Mr. Bowin: It will appear in the printed evidence.
The Wirness: I have not got the printed evidence yet.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. What I have suggested is not very clear to you?—A. No.

I would like to have a record of the cases that have come to you in
the manner you have indicated, for infractions of the Customs Laws of Canada
since the first of January, 1926, and for the year 1925?—A. Of infractions?

Q. Indicating only the particulars which are necessary to enable me to
understand where they arose, and the persons cencerned. Do you follow
me?—A. Yes, sir.

Hon. Mr. Borvin: And the disposition of the goods, Mr. Bennett?
Hon. Mr. BeENNETT: I am coming to that, yes; thank you.

" By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. The» in the same precis you might indicate what was,—to use the
language sometimes used—the fate of the goods in each case. Could you, at
the same time, indicate the reports made by your Preventive Officers in each
case? You have copies of them, I take it. Could you produce them?—A. We
have not copies of them.

Q. Have you not?—A. No.

Q. There is your report to the Minister in each case?—A. Yes.

Q. On this printed form?—A. Yes.

Q. And you will indicate what your report was and what the action
of the Minister was in each case?—A. Yes.

Q. Can you produce those? I will ask them for the year 1925 and up
to date in 1926?—A. I think we have about 2,500 of them.

Q. As many as that?—A. Yes.

Q. That is a considerable number, but life is all before us, and much
of it 1s behind us. It can be done. It is important, Mr. Farrow. You realize
that?—A. I am here to get whatever is asked for, but you must understand
it will take considerable time to get it.

Q. We will expedite it if you will produce the original files here and leave
them with the 'Clerk, and we will then determine to what extent we will bother
you further with respect to specific cases?—A. I would suggest, Mr. Bennett,
that you speak to our General Executive Assistant, Mr. Blair, about this
matter, and he could indicate to you just about what it means. He is a lawyer,
and he will indicate to you what such a request would mean.

Q. I have not undertaken these duties without realizing what it means
to me. I am going to get at the bottom of this, Mr. Farrow, if it takes the
rest of my life. 1 understand these papers are needed in the Department,
but I cannot help that. We will have them. You might as well understand
that. Let us start fair—A. Sure.

Q. What we want is the records for the year 1925 and since the 1st of
January, 1926 of the cases which have arisen in the Dominion of Canada,
where they arose, and what the ultimate action in each case was; do you follow
that?—A. Yes. :

Q. There is no difficulty in doing that?—A. No, but I understood you
wanted all the files brought here.

Q. I do not want them brought here, except to the extent that I want
that information?—A. I thought you said you wanted all the files—

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]



30 SPECIAL COMMITTEE : &f

Q. I did suggest it, because you said it was so much work. You bring
the files here, and we will do the work, if you are overworked?—A. I did not
say I was overworked.

Q. I admit you have a difficult task; you must keep the machinery going,
because cases are coming in every day. If it is so difficult, we could look
over the files and pick out the ones we want. Do you follow me?—A. Yes, I
understand. ; ‘

Q. Now, we have the report showing what the ultimate actions of the
Minister were?—A. Yes.

Q. And you realize how important this is to us, because we are responsible
to Parliament. You merely make a report to the Minister and the Minister
takes the ultimate action?—A. Yes. | :

Q. That is clear?—A. Yes. :

Q. So we are agreed up to that point?—A. Yes. :

Q. Now, having a record as to what you have said of the knowledge of
smuggling conditions in Canada, do you keep a file upon which complaints are
recorded, or an index of complaints? How do you deal with that in your Depart-
ment?—A. When I receive a complaint that goods are smuggled at a certain
place, or undervalued, I refer it to Mr. Wilson with instructions to investigate.

Q. And I take it you receive a considerable number of anonymous letters
in your Department?—A, Sometimes.

Q. There are also a considerable number of people who figure in actions,
and get part of the fees for informing?—A. Not so much of that. !

Q. You say there are a considerable number?—A. Informers, yes.

Q. So you take the names of ‘the persons who write about the smuggling
that goes on at Rock Island, Que., and at Niagara Falls, Ont. A considerable
number of letters come to you, that is clear, Mr. Farrow?—A. Yes. :

Q. Then there are a class of men who want part of the fines, in qui tam
actions, and then there are some of your officials themselves?—A. Yes.

Q. Do you keep a record of those various communications so that we can
easily inspect them?—A. That would be for those where the seizures are made.

Q. Assuming that no seizures were made, could you produce readily for
the Committee the records with respect to these men?—A. They would all go
in to Mr. Wilson. }

Q. He is the man to talk to?—A. Yes.

Q. If a communication or a letter comes directed to you, as Deputy
Minister of Customs, you pass it on to him?—A. Yes.

Q. All right, I will leave it at that. It is a fact that a very considerable
number of complaints have been made with respect to conditions prevailing at
Niagara Falls, N.Y., and at Niagara Falls, Canada, during the last ten months?
—A. I do not have any before me.

Q. They do not come to you personally?—A. Yes, we have one now.

Q. One?—A. Yes.

Q. And with respect to Rock Island conditions, in Quebec?—A. There have
always been complaints about that.

Q. Always complaints about Rock Island?—A. Yes.

Q. ‘Well, when I said Niagara Falls, I meant Bridgeburg as well. I included
that even in the question?—A. Yes

Q. Considerable complaints about that locality too?—A. Yes.

Q. Those being well-known border points at which difficulties have arisen
for many years in connection with smuggling?—A. Yes.

Q. What would you regard the two most important points—I will take
two as the most important points, from the standpoint of smuggling in Canada,
Rock Island being one, Niagara Falls, and along the district, being two. Is

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.] ' i I IJ’
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the Soo one?—A. As far as Niagara Falls and Bridgeburg and the Soo are con-
cerned, it is clearly what is called petty smuggling because there is a good
opportunity there of examining the people arriving by ferry and by bridge. -

Q. The difficulties of course at Rock Island being intensified by the fact
that it is a land frontier?—A. Yes. :

Q. In the lower province points all the difficulties are in New Brunswick,
Nova Scotia and Prince Edward Island?—A. There is a land frontier in New
Brunswick.

Q. It is all along the Maine border, in the United States?—A. Yes.

Q. There is a bridge there?—A. Yes.

- Q. And in Nova Scotia?—A. Yes. .

Q. And Prince Edward Island the same?—A. Yes,

Q. Coming up into Quebec, the land frontier, you have a particular diffi-
culty at a place called Rock Tsland?—A. That has always been the place of the
mos* difficulty. v :

. It is fair to say it has been a quantitative difficulty for how many
vears?—A. Iiven since I have been in the service.

Q. That is 40 years?—A. Yes.

Q. So for 40 vears that has been a difficult point?—A. Yes.

Q. Because it is land frontier or boundary?—A. Yes.

Q. It has been intensified, you said, by the prohibition act in the United
States?—A. I do not remember saying about that.

Q. At Rock Island, conditions of smuggling have been intensified ?—A. Yes.

Q. In Ontario your principal difficulties are where?—A. At the points I
have mentioned, Windsor and Sarnia.

Q. I was coming to that. That is the next point. Then going further West,
yvou have difficulties at Emerson?—A. Yes.

Q. Therz is a land frontier there?—A. Yes.

Q. And what other points? At Kingsport, Northport, Mission?---A. At:
any of those ports there is difficulty.

Q. You have = point in Saskatchewan, at Northport >—A. North Portal.

Q. In Alberta at Coote?—A. Yes.

Q). And British: Columbia at Kingsgate and at Huntingdon?—A. The Pacific
highway.

Q. Can you, with those points in your mind, give us a record, showing the
cases that have originated there during the past year? You could not give it in
that way?—A. I do not recollect.

Q. You have a record of it that could be referred to in that way?—A. This
record simply gives/where 'the seizure was made.

Q. With reference to’ those points in particular?—A. Yes.

Q. That will give us the names and particulars for that point?—A. To take
the name of the person who seized?

Q. Yes. 1If it is not too much trouble. In the precis you are going to pre-
pare, the character of the goods seized, whether overalls, silk or cotton. Could
you put it in that way?—A. Yes.

Q. That would not be difficult?—A. No.

Q). How long would you think it would be before you could get that informa-
tion for us?—A. If Mr. Blair is going to be under examination, he would be able
to tell you better than I can, because he is dealing with it every day. °

Q. There are a number of questions I would like to ask after that informa-
tion comes. I want to lay the foundation for something and I shall not further
bother you for the moment?—A. All right.

Q. You do not deal with the excise yourself at all, the liberation of alcohol.
Theze are not matters under your activities at all?—A. No. Mr. Taylor deals
with that. Except to put in this blank form I mention. I am responsible

for it.
[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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By Mr. Eiliott:

Q. Just a couple of questions, Mr. Farrow. Mr. Bennett was asking you
with regard to the record at different points. Do you keep your record in that
way. that is the cases that have arisen at Windsor on which money was collected.
- What is the method you adopt?—A. We have two records in the department.
One is for the purpose of recordmg seizures and recording the condition in which
the seizures are received. It is in the Seizure Branch, sending out copies and
_ keeping a record of it. There is a further record in the Accountants Branch, of
seizures at ports by the Preventive Service.

AQY So you have seizures by ports and by preventive service, you say?
—A. Yes.

Q. I took down that there are 104 officers in the Preventive Service now?
—A. Yes.

Q. Sixty-seven special officers?—A. Yes.

Q. And the inecrease has been in the Preventive Service in recent years?
—A. The Principal increase.

Q. Can you give us an idea of the increase in that staff?—A. No, I said
that Mr. Wilson could give you that better than I could. I cannot remember it.

Q. Now, your main activities have been under the Customs Act"——A Yes.

Q. And ‘the amendments to that Act?—A. Yes.

Q. And the excise, you say, you are not so familiar with, did I understand
you?—A. That is right, Sir.

Q. The form “K” that you referred to, do you happen to have one of those
forms with you?—A. No.

Q. I think it would be well if you would let each of the members of the
Committee have cne of those forms?—A. Yes.

Q. That would be quite convenient?—A. Yes.

Q. That contains the first information that you get, practically?—A. Yes.

Q. And is a general summary of the information that is intended to be con- .
veyed to you by the officers who report?—A. Yes.

Q. And that form is supposed to contain all the different kinds of informa-
tion that is required to decide upon what course to take‘?—A No, that has to be
supplemented by evidence.

Q. By evidence?—A. Oh yes.

Q. Does the form include what the evidence is, or what information they
have?—A. Decides whether the seizure was made on mformfxtlon or not.

Q. Nothing more than that?—A. No.

Q. Then the department make a supplementary report—A. As soon as the
party gets the notice of the seizure he is required to file his evidence.

Q. That evidence is not passed on by the assistant law clerk?—A. By the
head law clerk. And then by the general executive assistant.

Q. I suppose the main test he applies is whether or not on the statement
given to him he can reasonably expect to obtain a conviction, that is, whether
the evidence is such as to justify proceeding further. Is that it?—A. No, that
is for prosecutions only.

Q. Yes, in deciding as to prosecutions?—A. In deciding as to prosecutions
the officer has instructions where he is to prosecute forthwith, but as I said
before, I never knew of any procecutmns under the Act until this last amendment
to the Act.

Q. That is the amendment of 1925?—A. July, 1925.

Q. There were no prosecutions at all?—A Very, very rarely.

Q. Up to 19257—A. Yes.

Q. You are to prepare a list of the prouecutlons?—A Yes.

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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Q. Now, in the chart you have furnished—just let me have a look at that
- chart, please. In the chart which you have furnished, you have just given the
officers. You do not attempt here to give the names of the officials?—A. Not in
organization, you never do. -

Q. I suppose those are very readily obtainable?—A. Yes, they are.

Q. Now, did I understand you to say to Mr. Bennett that you had not a
list kept as far as you know of complaints that are received, where they are not
acted upon?—A. Where they are not acted upon, no. I say that they go to the
Chief of the Preventive Service to investigate.

Q.. He will be able to tell us whether or not a record of those has been kept
and whether when a decision has been arrived at they are abandoned?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Kennedy: :

Q. The regular preventive staff is numbered 104, I believe?—A. Yes.

Q. T understood you to say that smuggling difficulties had been intensified
since 1917, since the adoption of the Volstead Act of the United States?—A.
That is what they say. ,

Q. Was there any sharp increase about 1925, or 1924 or 1925? Did it not
call for an increase of the staff by sixty or sixty-seven special officers, in addition
to the regular 104?—A. That was the feeling, yes. '

; Q. We may take it that smuggling is steadily on the increase, apparently,
that is— A. Well, I would not know that I would take it that way. The way I
would take it would be that the staff of the Department was insufficient to cope
with it, not that it was increasing, but that we had not sufficient officers to pro-
tect the revenue.

Q. Where were those sixty-seven officers located? Were they located in one
part of Canada, or on one part of the boundary?=A. The Chief of the Pre-
ventive Service will give you more information on that than I can. No, it is not
part of my duty to look after that. '

Q. Were the original officials appointed by the Civil Service Commission ?—
A. Some of them, and I think the larger number of them since 1919. But there
were some of these men who were there before the Civil Service Commission.

Q. Are there 67 Special Investigators or Preventive Officers, and are they
permanent officials?—A. No.

Q. They are just appointed?—A. Their appointments are revocable at any
time in the discretion of the Minister. That is in the terms of their employ-
ment. They can be dismissed without notice.

- By Mr. Kennedy: * ; :
Q. Who decides upon the necessity for appointing these officials?—A. The
Chief of the Staff makes his recommendations.
Q. I suppose the decision as to the termination of their services would be
made when the special work for which they had been appointed was done?—A.
He would report.

By Mr. Bell:

Q. Mr. Farrow, when Rock Island was a notorious locality, why were no
%reﬁrentive officers stationed there?—A. There were officers there always, Mr.

ell.

Q. Why were none of the Mounted Police sent there?—A. The Mounted
Police are not authorized to act for the Department unless they are given
employment as Customs officers.

Q. I take it that they were charged with the duty of looking after the

border, or some portion of it?—A. The Mounted: Police.
’, [Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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Tsland?—A. We always had a regular staff there.

Q. How many?—A. I could not say.

Q. Are there reports from them?—A. 'i‘here would be some. :

Q. Can you glV‘e me the names of any of them, of the officials you had
‘there?—A. No. It is pretty difficult for me to remember the names of 4,000 AN
or 5,000 employees. :

Q I beg your pardon?———A It is pretty hard for me to recollect the names 1
or the places of 4,000 employees. 5

Q. Have you got available records from Rock Island, from any of the
people you have had there?—A. Whatever records there are. B

Q. Are they among those you are producing?—A. We will produce all the
records we have, Mr. Bell. 3

Q. Are their reports from Rock Island among the ones you are gomg to 5
produce?—A. I will produce what we have. _

Q. Can you not tell at this stage?—A. You cannot expect me to remember
whether an officer at Rock Island made a seizure or not. gl

Q. Are you prepared to say that there are reports from Rock Island?—A.
Not unless I examine the records. -3

Mr. DoxagaY: We are wasting time on this. Let us get along.
Mr. BerL:We will get along when I finish my questions.

By Mr. Bell: 3

; Q. You say that for some forty years of your experience there has been a
practice of making settlement, where goods were brought in with the duty not
propertly paid or not paid at all?—A. I on’t think I used the word “ settle-
ments,” Mr. Bell. -

Q What do you prefer 1n~tead"——-A Decisions of the Minister. . ;

Q. Which resulted in the payment of money twhich ought to have been paid
for duty; is that correct?—A. Yes.
: Q. During that time is it right to say that there was repeated smugglmg

by. people who were known to the Department to make it their business?—A. I
would not say that.

Q. You can tell me whether it is so or not?—A. Mr. Wilson can tell you
better than I can.

Q. I thought the Customs seizures were in your Department?—A. They are.

Q. Can you not tell me whether in cases of seizures, or adjustments if you
~do not like the word settlements, the names of .certain people did not appear "

repeatedly?—A. I have a know ledge of some such.

Q. And that practice in their cases existed week after week, month after
month, and year after year; that is right, is it not?>—A. I would ‘not, say that.

Q At least repeatedlv for a long time; you would say that, would you not?
—A. I would only say what I know.

Q. Is it not the case that the records, as you recall them, will show that
there were people engaged in the business of smuggling who were caught time
and again?—A. T have a knowledge of one case, where a man had three seizures
made against him.

Q. Can you give us any idea within what length of time those three seizures
occurred ?—A. No.

Q. Can you tell us this at any rate; in all these forty years, when there
were people smuggling to a very large extent, I suppose it ran sometimes into
hundreds of thousands of dollars, didn’t it?—A. There is one point, Mr. Bell,
that I want to make clear to you; it is that I had nothing to do with seizures
prior to 1919.

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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‘Q. All right, let us take it from 1919 to 1925; that period you do know
about?—A. Yes. . _ ¢

Q. During that time is it correct to say that there were seizures of amounts
that ran up sometimes into hundreds of thousands of dollars?—A. On goods?

Q. Yes—A. No, I do not remember any seizure like that.

Q. Have you any idea of the largest one you do recollect?—A. No.

Q. You cannot even tell me that?—A. I can tell you that a number of our
seizures are not seizures of goods, but are charges made for having smuggled
Q. That is, on subsequent discovery?—A. No, on investigation. g

Q. As a result of investigations you have found out that people—I am not
talking about petty matters—have repeatedly smuggled large quantities of
goods in for profit?—A. Not repeatedly.

Q. But several times?—A. Not several times.

Q. Do I correctly understand you to say that when the records you are
bringing in are laid before the Committee there will not, as far as you know,
be cases in which people have repeatedly smuggled large quantities of goods
for profit?—A. I said there was one case that I could remember.

Q. One case only?—A. That is all I remember.

Q. You spoke of one man who was caught where there were three cases of
“smuggling goods for profit, three violations of the law?—A. Yes.

Q. Why was he not prosecuted?—A. You will have to ask the Ministers
of the day. : ;

Q. I thought that was in your department?—A. I do not attend on
prosecutions. :

Q. You have no knowledge of why no prosecution was undertaken in that
man’s case?—A. No.

Q. Will you give me the name?—A. The name I remember is The Snag
Proof Overall Company.

Q. And the nature of the goods?—A. Cotton goods.

Q. On each occasion?—A. On each occasion. The first one started I think
in 1912,

Q. And again when?—A. My recollection is not of the next day, I don’t
know that, but I remember that case because we were preparing our statement
for the House; that is how I remember it.

Q. Was there known to you any report made out recommending a prosecu-
tion?—A. No. 4§

Q. Either coming to your office or going from it?—A. No.

Q. By the way, I suppose we can get without any serious delay in this case
copies of the reports made by you to the Minister, of various infractions?—
A. Yes. That is what I understood Mr. Bennett to ask for.

Mr. -DoNagHY: This is all covered by what Mr. Bennett asked him to
produce.

By Mr. Bell:

Q. You can let us have them without delay?—A. I have explained already
how long it will take to copy the documents. :
~ Q. I do not mean copying the list, I mean the actual copy you put on your
files when you returned the original report to the Minister?—A. I never kept
a copy.
\ Q. At no time?—A. No; the thing 4s on the files.
Q. And those files are not available?—A. Yes, they are available.
Q. Will you recall what you said a moment ago about some cases where
seizures were made to the value of over $200?—A. Yes.
Q. Tell me again, please, what you said about the prosecution being left
to outside people?—A. I said that under instructions issued by the Department

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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about the month of July, 1925, when an officer made a seizure of smuggled
goods valued at $200 or over, and the goods were not for personal use, he was

to take proceedings to prosecute forthwith.
; Q. And I think you said there was a general order’ which went to all of
them?—A. That is right.

Q. ;What procedure had been taken, because if you told us this I did not
hear it, for returns by those officers to the Department, of the prosecutions they
had 1nsb1tuted?-——A There are always returns. They ask for the name. I told
the Examiner that they asked for the mame of a legal agent to conduct the
prosecution, which we got from the Justice Department, the prosecution was
proceeded with, and it was all reported to the Department, what the decision
of the Court was.

Q. I did not hear you say it was reported?—A. Yes, I did.

Q. The records you are going to produce since that went into effect, the
reports of the legal agents to whom matters were referred for prosecution; is
that true?—A. Yes, where there was a prosecution.

Q. There will be a return of what was done by the legal agent in eaeh case,
where it was referred to him?—A. Yes.

Q. They would be obtained from time to time?—A. Yes

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. I have a few questions to ask of Mr. Farrow. Having regard to the prac-
tice of control of what you call out ports, you have a number of those?—A. Yes,
out ports or preventive stations.

Q. Gateways, such as Emerson, Rouse’s Point and so on; how do you deal /

with those points? Does the officer at these points report at regular periods to
the Department, or to whom does he report?—A. He makes a weekly report
to Mr. Wilson; he is required to do that, I think.

Q. On certain forms?—A. Yes.

Q. Supplied by the Department?—A. Yes.

Q. On which he should set forth what?—A. What he did during the week.

Q. Including any collections of revenue he might make?—A. As a pre-
ventive officer who collected revenue.

Q. You have officials at these points who do collect revenue, for instance
at Douglas?—A. They report the collections every week that they make.

Q. There is a regular system and regular forms for reports?—A. Yes.

Q. Do you insist upon those reports being made regularly?—A. Yes.

Q. Are they inspected regularly?—A. They are checked by the accountant
every week.

Q. Do you keep close count of the revenues so collected?—A. Yes.

Q. The Inspector I suppose of the district inspects them as well?—A. Once
a year. But the system is, if I may explain it to you, that an outport will make
those collections to the chief port. Take any case you suggest, say Hunting-
don, he will make his collections to the collector at New Westminster every
week or oftener; he is required in the first place before that to deposit his
collections in a bank, when they amount to $25 or over. That is the first thing
he has to do.

Q. Any amount of $25 or over?—A. $25 or over he has to deposit; he has
to deposit it every week or more frequently, as required by the regulations,
and he will report to the Chief Collector at the port and send his report and a
remittance, and from time to time he sends an 1ndependent report to Ottawa.

Q. A dual report‘7—A Yes.

Q. How often is that place checked?—A. Once a year, by an Inspector.

»[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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Q. An officer could go along fraudulently for a year without being dis-
covered?—A. I suppose perhaps he could, if the Inspector did not inspect it
more frequently. X ]

Q. Still if an officer were collecting considerable sums of money at a given
port and did not regularly make his returns, you would discover that by inspect-
ing his weekly reports, would you not?—A. We would ask for it at once.

Q. Do you allow a junior officer—I call them junior officers, because that
is what they are—I think you will agree with that?—A. Yes.

Q. Do you allow a junior officer at an outport to deposit Government
rev§me collected by him or by them, in his or in their own' personal account?—

o. v : :

Q. That is never allowed?—A. No.
Q. How do these officers remit to the Receiver General’s account?—A. The

~ sub-collectors remit, to the chief port by bank draft, and the chief port remits.

Q. What do you mean?—A. By a bank deposit receipt to the Receiver
General, and a draft.

Q. That is, when a junior officer at a port would collect revenue he would
deposit it in the nearest bank, if there was a bank there, I presume?—A. He
would have to deposit it in the bank authorized by the Department.

Q. He would deposit any money that he secured over $25?—A. Daily.

Q. If there was no bank there, he would remit that cash to the general port
to which he would report, to the collector?—A. He would have to deposit it
in some bank authorized by the Department.

Q. To the credit of the Receiver General?—A. No, to his official credit as
a sub-collector of Customs.

Q. In a separate account?—A. Absolutely.

Q. Does the bank receive instructions from the Customs Department or
some senior officer, regarding these matters?—A. No, I don’t think so.

A' YQ. But this junior officer deposits the money to his own credit in a bank?—
. Yes.

Q. But the account is specified as the account of an officer of the Crown?
—A. He has an official bank book.

Q. He has an official bank book?—A. Yes, he has an official bank book.

Q. And he has to make returns every week, one to Ottawa and one to the
local chief port?—A. That is right.

Q. Are these men in these outports under bond?—A. Every one.

Q. What bond?—A. It depends on the revenue collected.

Q. Tt varies in different ports? What is the minimum bond?—A. The
minimum bond now is $1,000. That would not be for sub-collectors, you must
remember; that would be for truck men. All our officers are bonded.

Q. I mean all officers who would collect revenue at an outport.—A. It
would all depend on the revenue, but it would likely be somewhere in the
neighbourhood of $3,000 to $5,000. :

Q. Tf you discovered an officer of the Crown, entrusted with the power of
collecting revenue, handling that money in his own account, what would you
do with such an officer as a matter of departmental procedure?—A. As a matter
of departmental procedure I would report him to the minister for suspension.

Q. Would you consider it a serious infraction of the departmental regula-
tions?—A. I would, if he had not carried out the instructions of the depart-
ment, yes.

Q. Supposing the sum ran into thousands of dollars, what would you
think of him?—A. Deposited in a private bank account?

Q. In his own account.—A. I wouldn’t think it possible.

Q. Would you think such a man was a fair subject for promotion to a
senior position?—A. No.

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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Q. He would not be, would he?—A. No, not if he did that. :

Q. If he did that, and did it repeatedly, he ought to be fired, shouln’t he,
without ceremony?—A. Well, I think you would have to ask the man who
would have the power to fire him. . '

Q. I am asking you, Mr. Farrow, as the most honourable head of this |
department, subject to the minister. I want to say frankly—and I am not
asking these questions to embarrass you—and I do not want to embarrass
you, but I look upon you as an officer of wide experience who knows the business
and procedure of the government, and who has endeavoured to carry it out.
I am only asking your opinion of an officer who would take funds of the govern~
ment, when there was a bank in his own district which would be authorized to
receive it as government deposits, and place these monies in his own name.—
A. T have already said I do not think it would be possible, but if an officer did
that, I would certainly think he should be dismissed. :

Q. He ought to be dismissed?—A. Yes.

Q. Certainly not promoted?—A. No.

Q. Now, you have seen the evidence given in the case of Bisaillon, or in
the case of—I think it is the case of Rex vs. Simons et al, in the courts of
Montreal on February 13th, 1925, the man being Joseph Alfred Edgar
Bisaillon? ’ : it

Hon. Mr. Borvin: Mr. Stevens, I do not want to interrupt you, but was
it not in Quebec?

Hon. Mr. Stevens: If I am not mistaken it was traversed from Montreal,
but it was in Quebec. [ ‘

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

. But you know to what I refer?—A. Yes, I remember.

. You heard of this evidence?—A. Yes.

And you could not get a copy?—A. No.

You had difficulty in getting a copy?—A. Yes.

. You wrote for a copy?—A. I don’t know as I wrote for it myself, but
a copy was asked for. ‘

Q. You endeavoured, as head officer of the department, to get a copy?—
A. Yes:.

Q. And you had great difficulty in getting it, for some months?—A. Yes,
I had some difficulty. {

Q. How did you get the copy eventually?—A. I am not sure whether I
got, it from Mr. Clerk of Montreal, or Mr. Sparks; I am not sure. Someone
presented me with a copy, but T am not sure where I got it. I think I got it
from Mr. Clerk.

Q. From Mr. Clerk or Mr. Sparks, you are not quite sure?—A. I am not
quite sure.

Q. I will not press it. In any case, you did get a copy?—A. Yes.

Q. How were you impressed when you read the evidence regarding Mr.
Bisaillon, or given by Mr. Bisaillon, on examination by Mr. Cannon?—A. How
was 1 impressed?

Q. You were not favourably impressed?—A. No.

Q. Weren’t you shocked?—A. Well, I don’t know just exactly what I
would say to that. Am I supposed to say that I am shocked at anything?

Q. If it did not shock you it is all right, but I am asking you didn't it
shock you?

OOOLHO

By the Chairman:
Q. State your impressions at the moment.—A. My impression was not
favourable. That is what I said. .
[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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By Hon. Mr. Stevens: ‘ gl

Q. You had an unfavourable 1mpres51on?——A Yes.

Q. Let us look at this evidence. This is such a notorious case. Every-
body knows it, so let us get this story out right. This case was tried on the 13th
day of February 1925, the case of Rex vs. J. F. Simons et al, and the examin-
ation is that of Joqeph Alfred Edgar Blaalllon bw Mr. Cannon who at the
time was Prosecuting Attorney.

Mr. DoNvaguy: What was Simons charged with?

Hon. Mr. Stevens: If you will excuse me, I will give you that information
after a moment. This is an examination regardmg certain deposn',s made by
Mr. Bisaillon in his own account.

Mr. Gagnon: Mr. Chairman, may I be a,llowed to object to this question
being put, unless the members of the committee, or myself, representing Mr.
Bisaillon, have a copy of the document upon 'which = Mr. Farrow is being
examined ?

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: The client of Mr. Gagnon is not under examination;
1 am examining Mr. Farrow, and this document is one which is available to
anyone and unquestionably the solicitor for Mr. Bisaillon has at his disposal the
document, if he chooses to get it.

Mr. DoNagHy: Mr. Chairman, there is only one way of getting a proper

- understanding of the proceedings in a Court. My friend Mr. Stevens is taking

the wrong way. The only way to do it is to have the record of the Court

produced here and an exemplified copy of the charge; the names of the parties

and the evidence taken, and the pronouncement or judgment of the Court upon
that evidence. There is no use in putting up a piece of evidence here—

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: I am taking the evidence of Mr. Farrow.

Mr. DoxagHY: —highly coloured. We know in all these matters there is
disputed evidence; we should have it all here. That is why I ask the courtesy
of my hon. friend to give to us shortly an outline of what this case is which
he is cross-examining on. I do not know a thing about it.

Hon. Mr. Srevexs: In the first place, Mr. Chairman, 1 think the objection
raised by Mr. Donaghy is not one which should receive your support. I am
examining Mr. Farrow, who is the chief of the Customs Department, on infor-
mation which he has already admitted he knows of; he has read this evidence;
he has had in his possession the evidence and he has said that that evidence
did not impress him favourably. Why can I not follow that now with some
other questions? If the committee desire the particulars, T have asked for these
particulars and they have not yet been brought down. I am going to ask
again on the floor of the House this afternoon for the privilege: of moving
certain motions. That privilege may not be granted, but I am going to ask
for it in order to see if I cannot get before this committee all the information
I know to be available.

Hon. Mr. Bexnerr: A short way out of that, it seems to me, would be to
have Mr. Farrow produce the evidence he has in his possession.

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: Very good.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Have you ‘it with you?—A. Which is that?
Q. You have not this with you, Mr. Farrow? You have it in your office?
—A. 1 think T have it in my office.

Q. Will you be good enough to produce the copy you have received?—A.
I do not know as it is a court copy which I have.

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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Mr. DoNagHY: Mr. Chairman, did we not make an order the other day
that the Clerk of the Court which heard this case should be required to pro-
duce the record or an exemplification. of it?

The CrARMAN: That is true.

Mr. DonNagay: I think this examination should be postponed until we
have the proper record before us, so we will know what we are acting on. I
want some information as well as Mr. Stevens. I do not know what informa-
tion he has of a fragmentary character, but I.want this whole record before us
so that we will know what we are doing.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I will take care of sthe fragmentary nature of it.

Mr. Donagay: I think this should be left over until the Clerk of that
Court complies with the order of this Committee made the other day.

g The CramMaN: I think there will be no prejudice. The objection is well
taken—

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Just a moment; Mr. Chairman, before you rule I
would like to say a word. I hope you will not rule on this offhand—

The CuamrMAN: It seems very clear, as far as the Evidence Law is con-
cerned. : :
Hon. Mr. Stevens: I am anxious to respect your rulings in all matters,
but really I think it would be a most unfair thing to prevent me from proceed-
ing with the examination of Mr. Farrow at this point. I personally am only too
anxious to have the fullest information before the Committee. I asked for it
leng ago, but I have not as yet received it.

Mr. Donacay: We have made an order.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: But on another point, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. DoxagHY: We had better have an order made on the Clerk of this
Court— :

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Just a moment, Mr. Donaghy, as a matter of faet
you are raising a point which applies more to strict rules of the Court, but if
I am not mistaken, under the rules of evidence, or under the rules of the court,
in cross-examination I am entitled to a very wide latitude in asking questions.

Mr. BerrL: Undoubtedly.

The CHAIRMAN: On what has been mentioned in chief,

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I am mentioning this in chief—very chief.

Mr. Donaguy: Nobody would attempt to restrict the examination; it is
only a question of conducting this cross-examination at the proper time and
when the proper record is here, and no one will be restricted in cross-examina-
tion when the proper time arrives, and the proper documents are here for our
consideration. Mr. Farrow will always be available to us here.

Mr. BeLn: Documents are not being put into evidence at all.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I ask, Mr. Chairman, for the privilege of proceeding.

Hon. Mr. Bexxerr: What was the question?

Hon. Mr. Srevens: Mr. Farrow has already stated he was unfavourably
impressed regarding the perusal of this evidence—

Mr. Donaguy: That is something we have not before us; that is what we
want.

Mr. BeLL: You have Mr. Farrow before you.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Mr. Chairman, if I am to supply the Committee in
advance with all material upon which I base questions, we will never get any-
where.

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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Mr. Dowagry: We are not asking that: the Clerk of the Court should be
required to produce this record, and we should wait in our examination until
it 1s produced, so that we will have an opportunity of examining it.

~ Hon. Mre Stevens: I am not going to wait.

» Mr. . Donagay: I think the Committee should rule that you do. Then
you will not be restricted in any way in an examination of this witness, and we
will be enabled to have a proper view of it.

Hon. Mr. Bexxerr: I think, Mr. Chairman, it is proper to ask the witness
his impression with respect to the evidence, W1tﬂout being required to produce
it, but if he desires to discuss the evidence itself, it should be produced. This
questlon was simply asking the witness what hls impression was after reading
/t.he record that he had obtained from Mr. Clerk, or Mr. Sparks. I think it is
permissible, up to the present, but I do not think we should get into a discussion
on the testimony unless it is produced.

Mr, Erriorr: Mr. Chairman, he has asked that question.

Hon. Mr. Bennerr: He is asking him again.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Mr. Chairman, am- I permitted to go on w1th this
examination?

The CuAmMAN: First, ‘M. Stevens, I must say a word in regard to that
record. You asked about the Symons case, the Quebec Liquor case, which went
on before the Quebec Court of Sessions. There was no formal motlon that this

«record be brought here.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: The Minister promised in the House to bring it.

Mr. DonagHY: I move that an order issue, either by summons or sub-
poena duces tecum to the proper officer of the Quebec Court to produce the
record. .

Mr. BeLL: What is the matter with Mr. Farrow producing what he has in
his office? ; :

Hon. Mr. Borvin: It is not complete.

The Wirxess: It is not a complete file.

Mr. DonagHY: I move accordingly, and then we will have the copy here.
The Clerk can take the usual procedure to provide the copy.

Hon. Mr. Bovin: You remember I brought the matter up and suggested
that an order be made.

Mr. DonagHY: Let us have the motion now,

The CuamrmaN: Does Mr. Donaghy’s motion carry?

Motion agreed to.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. In regard to this case to which reference has been made, when did-you
first hear of this evidence that Mr. Bisaillon had put funds in his own bank
account which really belonged to the revenue of the country ?—A. I saw it in
the press. :

Q. You saw it in the press?—A. Yes.

Q. Were you informed of it by the Minister?>—A. I would not say so.

Q. Did you have any consultation with the Minister about it, the day after
the trial, or a day or two after?>—A. When was the trial?

Q. The trial was on the 13th of February, 1925‘?—A I am not sure.

* Q. You are not sure?—A. No.

Q. Immediately after seeing this in the press—you say you are not sure
of the other—did you make an investigation?—A. Yes.

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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.

Q. What did you ascertain?—A. Well, I have certain documents which I
discovered in connection with it.

Q. What documents?—A. Matters relating to the depasﬂs at Farnham.
Q. What did these documents disclose? .
Mr. Donacgay: What documents are those?

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: Documents which he himself discovered in hls investi-
gation.

The Wirness: What did they disclose?

By Mr, Donaghy:
Q. Have you got, the documents?—A. I have them in my office.
Mr. Donaguy: The proper thing to do is to produce these documents to
show what they disclosed. There is only one way of doing this, and that is to
produce the documents.

Mr. BeLL: There is no reason why the witness should not give his
recollection.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. What did these documents disclose?

Mr. Do~NagHY: No, I object to that. There is only one way to find out
the true contents of a document and that is to produce the document.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I will ask for it in a moment.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens: )

Q. What did the document disclose?

Mr. DonagHY: I object to that. That is not the way to get the evidence.

Mr. BeLn: If it were being put in in chief, yes, but not in cross-examina-
tion. Mr. Chairman, may I just say this: that in every court of law in this
country it is a recognized principle that a witness may be questioned as to the
" contents of a document, without that document being shown, and that the only
occasion for the actual production of a document comes when it is introduced
in chief, and not in cross-examination.

Mr. Donacay: We are only wasting time this way.

The CuAarRMAN: © If a document is not produced in chief, you will await
vour turn and file your exhibit, and then the other party has the right to cross-
examine on the exhibit filed.

Mr. Donaguy: It is a very elementary rule of law.

The CramrMaN: We cannot make this proof before the Commxttee, unless
we make the best proof, and the best proof is the document itself. It must be
brought down and produced before the Committee, and then the questions may
proceed within the limits of the document. The objection is well taken.

By Mr. Stevens:

Q. You say that you investigated this case after seeing this report in the
press?—A. Yes.

Q. Were you instructed to investigage this case by the Minister of Customs?
—A. No, not at that time, I made the investigation myself.

Q. You made the investigation on your own initiative?—A. Yes.

Q. And you discovered certain documents?—A. Well, would you allow me
to make a statement in connection with it?

Q. Certainly, Mr. Farrow.—A. When I saw the evidence in the press as to
the deposits of the money I did not think it could be possible that the men could -

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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debosit the money as stated, and I called upon the accountant to make a report
to me. '
Q. Exactly.. And he made that report?—A. Yes, he made the report.
Q. Can you produce before the Committee the report the accountant made?

—A. Yes.

Q. Will you produce that and the other documents to -which you referred?
—A. Yes. : :
Q. Where are those documents?—A. They are copies of the weekly reports

S and of the bank drafts.

Q. Of whom?—A. Of the sub-collector at Farnham and the collector at
St. Johns. ) 2 ‘
Q. Can you, from your memory tell us what those documents contain?

Mr. Evuiorr: That is the same thing again. Those documents are going
to be produced. Why take up the time of this Committee and the time of the
stenographers and everybody else, conjecturing as to what possibly may be in
the reports that are going to be produced.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: The people who are conjecturing are my hon. friends,
and T see no reason for alarm.

Mr. Euuiorr: Here is a question of regularity.
Hon. Mr. Stevens: It is a question of getting the information that we are

entitled to have.

Mr. DonagHY: I am as anxious as Mr. Stevens to get the information.
We want the reports. I am quite anxious to see them. I do not intend to be

. satisfied with second hand evidence, I want to see them myself.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. The question in this investigation, over what period did you investigate?
—A. During the period of time thdt Mr. Bisaillon was on duty at Farnham.

Q. Before and after this date of this evidence to which we have referred?
Before and after?—A. Before and after the date?

Q: Yes—A. During the whole of the time he was at Farnham.

. Q. During the whole of the time he was at Farnham.—A. Yes.

Q. What was Mr. Bisaillon’s position when he was at Farnham?—A. He
was acting sub-collector.

Q. He was acting sub-collector at Farnham?—A. Yes.

Q. You will produce these documents, and we will have an opportunity of

" examining further?—A. Yes.

Q. Now, I want to turn to another matter, Mr. Farrow if I may. By the
way I would like to ask you—there was a bank at Farnham?—A. Yes.

& YQ. An in that bank the revenue collected is deposited to the account?—
. Yes.

Q. What bank, please?—A. The Bank of Commerce.

Q. Now, you mentioned in the early part of your examination, that Mr.
Busby was Chief Inspector of Customs, I think you said he was outside of
the Department, or outside of the Department’s organizations/ What did you
mean by that?—A. Outside service, as distinguished from inside.

Q. What are his duties?—A. His duties are to direct the inspection of
all Customs and Excise officers.

Q. Is he a first-class officer?—A. Yes.

Q. Highly regarded in the Department?—A. Yes.

Q. Efficient?—A. Yes.

Q. Thoroughly competent inspector?—A. Yes.

't Q. Does he inspect the port of Montreal?—A. His officers are inspecting
it now.

: [Mr. R.-R. Farrow.]
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Q. Does Mr. Busby inspect the port of Montreal?>—A. He has not.

Q. For how long?—A. Since 1921, I think.

Q. Why? Would you rather not say, Mr. Farrow?—A. I have made the
gtatement that he has not inspected it. -

Q. Why, Mr. Farrow? Let me put it a little better: Has he refrained
from inspecting the port of Montreal, and the district of Montreal under your
instructions?—A. What do you mean by that?

Q. I mean, Mr. Farrow, did you instruct Mr. Busby not to inspect the port
of Montreal?

Mr. Donaguy: That is a fair question, I do not see why you should
hesitate in answering it, if they want to know. .

Wirness: I have told him the Minister had decided he was not to inspeet -
the port of Montreal.

By Hon. Mr Stevens:

Q. The Minister decided he was not to inspect the port of Montreal"
A, Yes.

Q. That is right?—A. Yes.

Q. Have you any idea why he was so instructed, not to inspect the port
of Montreal?—A. Well, it was not only Montreal, but all the provmce of
Quebec.

Q. Tell me, is Mr. Busby a good inspector?—A. Yes.

. He is head of the Incpecmon staff?—A. Yes.

Is the district and port of Montreal an important d1V151on as regards
customs work?—A. Yes. -

. Is it the most important in Canada?—A. Our werk?

. The most important district of Customs in Canada?—A. Yes, Montreal.
. Pretty large revenue collections there?—A. Yes.

. And a huge amount of goods enterlng and clearing?—A. Yes.

. Requiring a large staff of customs’ officials?—A. Yes.

. Can you tell me when the instructions were given?—A. Early in 1922.
. Could you supply the Committee with 2 copy of the instructions?—
A Thev were verbal.

Q. They were verbal instructions?—A. Yeés.

Q. Have you received from Mr. Busby during— by the way, Mr Busby
is sick now, is he not?—A. Very ill. _

0 And has been for some little time? How long is it since he was on
duty?—A. I think he has been off duty now for a month or so, a little over
a month.

Q. Is he still very ill?—A. Yes.

Q. Have you received from Mr. Busby during the last> month a report
as to his relations to the port of Montreal?—A. No.

Q. You have received no report from Mr. Busby at all on any subject
during the past month?—A. Not in the lust month. I have received several
reports from Mr. Kennedy.

Who is Mr. Kennedy?—A. Acting Chief-Inspector.

In which, he refers to Mr. Busby at all>—A. I do not think sd.

. And Mr. Clerk?—A. Yes.

‘What are his initials?—A. R. P.

. Was he appointed inspector of Montreal?—A. Yes.

When?—A. I could not say.

. About when?—A. I really could not give that information; I do not
know, I do not recollect, Mr. Stevens.

Q. Three years ago?—A. I should think it was in 1922 or 1923.

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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Q. That will do, I am not particular as to the question of the date. I
cannot expect you to carry it in your mind. Mr, Clerk was in the Depart-
ment for some time?—A. Yes. /

Q. Now, what position did he occupy in 1911 or 1912?—A. He would be
then, I think, perhaps, what we call a locker.

Q. Did not he have a higher position than that?—A. He was chief locker.

Q. He got into some trouble, did he not, and there was an investigation
by Mr. Busby and a report?—A. I saw that reference in your speech.. - .

Q. Never mind my speech. It is a very unreliable.speech, I am told.
You do not remember that?—A. I was not in charge then, Mr. Stevens.

Q. That is quite true. But would you mind refreshing your memory so
that we can speak of that again, and look up Mr. Clerk’s record—A. I will
look it up. ‘

Q. You are not aware of his being investigated by Mr. Busby, and being
promoted?—A. No, it would not come under my observation.

Q. It would not come under your observation?—A. No.

Q. Well, I will not press that point. What qualifications did Mr. Clerk
have for the very high position of inspector of the port of Montreal, and the
district of Montreal?—A. His length of service; experience; through length
of service, I presume. : ‘ :

Q. Did you recommend him to the Civil Service Commission?—A. I think
he was recommended, of the applicants for the position or promotion. ,

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I have put on the order paper a resolution calling for

Jbapers in regard to Mr. Bisaillon himself and I would like the papers in regard
to Clerk as well.

Mr. KennNeEpy: We consent to that being added.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: We will add Clerk’s name, so we will have the evidence
before us regarding him. 4

Wirness: The position would be advertised in the usual way for promo-
tion, and there would be a certain number of applicants. They would be rated
and the man usually thought best qualified of the applicants would be recom-
mended.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Did you recommend Clerk yourself?—A. I cannot remember the details
now. There would be a certain number of applicants. But I do not remember
1Iiow many there were. There may not have been more than one, for all I
~ know. :

Q. From your own knowledge of Clerk, would you consider Clerk a proper
officer to recommend for the high position of inspector for the port of Montreal?
I want you to give me your candid, frank opinion on that, without any question
of what you might have done?—A. I do not think I should be asked to give
any opinion. of that kind.

Q. I am going—A. Yes, I know—well, I do not think I will answer it,
unless it is necessary for me to make a statement regarding every officer.

Q. You would rather not tell me whether in your opinion or not Clerk
was a suitable appointee for that high office?—A. No, Mr. Stevens. There is
Just one thing—you see, in Montreal, we have officers of both languages.
Unfortunately none of the men on our chief staff could speak French at all.
That was unfortunate, and’it was felt, I think, that the men who should be
dealing with it should have a knowledge of French as well as English.

~ Mr. Ewuiorr: I think the witness is @ little diffident about criticizing
his staff. Was he the best man available at that time?

[Me. R. R. Farrow.]
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Wirness: 1 should say, when I remember, that this position was to be
filled by a man of bi-lingual qualification.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Is that the only qualification?—A. No. But he had to possess that
qualification. He was not qualified without it. :

By Mr. Donaghy : ’
Q. Was he the best man available?—A. Of the applicants, yes.

* By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Aside from that qualification did you consider that Clerk was actually
qualified for the position of head inspector for the port of Montreal?—A. I
am not called upon to answer that, for the simple reason that the appointment
was made under qualifications.

Q. You would rather not answer?—A. Yes.

Mr. DoNacHY: He has already answered.

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: Please leave me alone.

Mr. DonagaY: What are we going-to do, leave it vacant?

Wirness: In other words, you want to know from me whether he was
as well qualified for inspection work as Mr. Busby? No, because I do not
think that is reasonable.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. I am asking this, whether you consider Clerk’s qualifications were such
as to warrant his appointment as chief inspector of the port of Montreal, after
Busby had been ordered to leave it alone?—A. I will not make any furt'her
statement than I have made. _

Q. All right, we will proceed to another point; I want to ask you this,
Mr. Farrow, do you recall another report from Mr. Clerk, in which he stated
to you that a bribe had been offered by another officer, if he, Clerk would
appoint this officer to a eertain position in the Customs?—A. It is pretty hard
for me to remember that.

Q. You do not recall it?—A. No.

Q. Probably inasmuch as we will have you before us again, we will let
that go for the moment and come back to it on a second occasion. You are
sure you do not recall it?—A. No. I remember something of him speaking
to me once about a bribe but I do not recall the particulars of it.

Q. I wonder can I help your memory a little; do you recall another report
to you, in the presence of another witness, that Mr. Bisaillon offered this man
a bribe, and I think it was $100 a week to appoint him to that position, or to
secure him the position of chief preventive officer for Montreal?—A. No, I do
not. remember that.

Q. You do not recall it?>—A. I remember something; we had a conversation
about, a bribe or something about getting a hundred dollars a week, but I do
not remember the details, Mr. Stevens. g

Q. Have you ever discussed it with the Minister?—A. No, I never did.

Q. You do not recall it?—A.  No. 5

Q. Do you remember what particular poeltlon that related to?—A. No,
I do not think it was a job at all. I think it was something some person wanted
to do to get a hundred dollars a week.

Q. I wish you would refresh your memory on that. I realize that perhaps
in shooting a question at a witness, without preparation, it is a little difficult,

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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but I think if-you will refresh your memory zﬁd think it over carefully you
will recall the incident, perhaps?—A. No, I think not. My memory, of course,
is not as good as it was years ago. It is fairly good yet. _ i

Q. We won’t press that for 'the moment. Now, regarding Bisaillon:
Bisaillon entered the service in April, 1910. That is correct, is it not?—A. Yes.

Q. He was appointed permanently in 1916?—A. Yes.

Q. That is correct?—A. That is right. R

Q. Then in 1924, T think it was about January, or thereabouts,—mo, in
1924, October, Mr. Bisaillon was promoted to the position of special preventive
officer?—A. Special inspector, I think. %

Q. Special inspector of Customs and Excise?—A. Yes.

Q. A very high position?—A. Yes.

Q. And'a very responsible position?—A. Yes.

Q. Now, at whose instance was Mr. Bisaillon appointed to that position?—
A. He was promoted to it. ; :

Q. He was promoted to it?—A. Yes.

Q. By virtue of his merits wholly?—A. The position was advertised, the
same as all positions to be filled by the Civil Service Commission.

Q. I suppose the correspondence with the Civil Service Commission and
your own will disclose precisely what occurred in that promotion?—A. As far
as that promotion is eoncerned I can say this: It was advertised by the Civil

_Service Commission, it was open to applicants from the port of Montreal. I

do not know if it was open to the Province of Quebec, but the applicant had
to have bilingual qualifications. There were two applicants, Bisaillon and
another gentleman who did not possess bilingual qualifications. The consequence
was that there was nothing to do but to go ahead.

By4Mr. Donaghy :
Q. There was only one who could comply. with the requirements?—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. The other man was John Hough?—A. Yes, Hough.

Q. Was this a new position created?—A. Yes.

Q. It was a new position carved out?—A. Yes.

Q. In the meantime for some time the chief inspector was instructed to
keep out of the port of Montreal?—A. I made my statement in reference to it.

Q. There are one or two other things I wanted to speak about, but it is
one o’clock—A. If it will not take long—I have some work to do this afternoon,
if you do not mind.

Hon Mr. Borvin: May I be allowed to ask one question?

The CaARMAN: Yes. :

By Hon. Mr. Boiwin:

Q. You were asked, Mr. Farrow, if Mr. Busby had been instructed to
refrain from inspecting the port of Montreal and you gave your answer to that
question?—A. Yes.

Q. I would like to ask you if since the present Minister has come in to
office Busby was intructed not to inspect the port of Montreal? Did he make
the inspection?—A. His staff are making it now, and have been for the past
three weeks.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens: ’

3 Q. Mr. Busby has been ill for a month?—A. Yes, but Mr. Kennedy is second
in command. He is in charge and has been there for a month.

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
15909—3 e



Ag B | SPECIAL COMMITTEE

By Mr. Kennedy: L ; ‘ e
Q. I would ask Mr. Farrow whether the dates of the three seizures made in

connection with goods brought in, smuggled by the Snag Proof Overalls people -
are correct?—A. That is subject to correction; it is only from memory.

Hon. Mr. Bovin: I would suggest this to Mr. Bell; he asked a question a
few moments ago concerning the Snag Proof Overall Company. I do not think
- the question was put in this form, but if it would meet the convenience of the
committee, as the minister of the department I am quite willing to see that the
different seizure reports concerning that company are filed at the earliest possible
moment, in advanece of the others. ;
Mr. BeLn: Thank you sir.

The CuAIRMAN: I have received some co-mmun!i‘cations addressed to thisA
committee. One is from Mr. Farrow, the' deputy minister concerning the motion
of Mr. Doucet the other day, and is as follows: ] '

(Ezhibit No. 3) :

“1 beg to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 9th instant, com-
- municating motion of Mr. Doucet quoted therein.

- .I have never received and have not now in my possession or under
my control any reports made by Inspector Walter Duncan, or any other
investigating officer or other person, and received by any minister; of
Customs or by their offices during the period named 1n the motion; nor
have I any letters or telegrams of instructions issued by any minister or
by or from their offices. Copy of only recommendation to Couneil
attached.”

Then I have the communication of Hon. Mr. Boivin, as follows:

“To His Excellency e b
The Governor General in Couneil:

The undersigned, Minister of Customs and Excise, has the honour to
recommend that the services of Mr. Bisaillon, Special Inspector of Cus-
toms and Excise, Preventive Service, be dispensed with as from the 14th
day of December, 1925,

This recommendation is based upon a report to the undersigned by a
Special Investigating Officer for the Department of Finance, dated the
10th instant, disclosing a number of gross irregularities and offences and
neglect of duty on the part of Inspector J. E. Bisaillon and conduct un-
becoming an Officer of Customs and Excise.

Respectfully submitted, X

(Sgd.) Geo: H. Boivin,
Minister of Customs and Excise. '

’

Department of Customs and Excise,
Ottawa, 11th December, 1925.”

Then I have another letter from Mr. Farrow, as follows:

“I beg to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 9th instant, com-
municating motion of the Special Committee appointed to investigate the
administration of the Department of Customs and Excise, requesting me
to file forthwith with the committee a statement regarding liquors released
from bonded warehouses for export or home consumption as detailed in
the motion.

[Mr, R. R. Farrow.] ; X
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AT e nnetl It will be mmpossrble to furnish the requlred information forthwith as
the details are not on record at this department and will require to be
- obtained from the Collectors at the Ports where such warehouses and
distilleries are established.
I sent instructions by nlghtl‘etter on the 10th instant to all such
Collectors and will produ\ce the information as soon as received.
I should point out that the motion as worded will include all lnquors
imported by the various provinces and placed m bonded warehouse and
i all domestic liquors purchased by them in bond.

By Mr. Bell: &

'Q. I suppose, Mr. Farrow, that correspondence will be available this after-
noon?—A. I just wanted to remind the committee that the motion as worded
will include all liquors imported by the various Lgcenqe Boards of the provinces.
I did not know whether that was required or not.

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: Yes.

Mr. Donaguy: Mr. Chairman, in regard to the documents which you just
read, two of them were in the nature of interim reports of what the deputy
! minister is doing, and one is in the nature of a record. That record should go in

the evidence. I noticed in the McGreevy case that letters which were evidence
went right in the evidence. I think vou should probably have the clerk read
that, and the reporter take it down.

Hon. Mr. Stevens:  Why not leave it till we come to it?

Mr. Do~xacry: We have come to it now, and we might as-well finish it.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Just a moment, before this is read into the records. We
are ‘still examining Mr. Farrow; we are not through with his examination, and
this will come in as part of the examination without any doubt. 1 suggest that
the matter be left until Mr. Farrow’s examination is continued and it can be
read in in the proper place. ;

Mr. DoxagrY: The letter should be read in now, the moment it is produced
to the committee. ‘

"Hon. Mr. Stevens: I have no objection, but it is making fish of one and
flesh of the other. )

Mr. DonacHY: * The proper practice is to have the clerk read it out and
the reporter take it down.

; The CuHATRMAN: This will appear in its proper place in the record.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Mr. Chairman, we passed a resolution asking for the
production of the report of Walter Duncan, all reports by him. T would like to
ask the clerk if the order has been complied with, and if we have received the
re}éorgs of Inspector Walter Duncan, and the oLher documents set forth in the
order

The CaAIRMAN: No, but we have a letter from Mr. Farrow which I have
just read, explaining why the report was not sent.

Hon. Mr Bowin: 1T might say this, if you will allow me; I know it will be
of interest to the committee in connection with the reports received from Inspector
Walter Duncan. As T said the other day, the only report which had been
received at the time the motion was made, was the interim report which came
to me on the 10th day of December laQt which really contains nothing of
importance. It contains no specific. charge; it merely enumerates these accusa-
tions which he considers should be levelled against Mr. Bisaillon. The other
report, with the complete report of the evidence, reached me last night. Tt is
my intention) just as soon as I have had time to peruse it, to place that report

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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EXHIBIT No 1A
ORGANIZATION FOR PREVENTIVE SERVICE

3 S B Y - : ~ Number
Chxef Customs Excise Preventive Servwe

R Assnst to Chief, Customs Excise Prevenuve Servxce
e Principal Clerk . : S
B - Clerk, Grade 4. .

Translator. . .. .

- Clerk, Grade 3. .
Clerk Grade 2.. .. .
Stenographer Grade 2. .
“Special Customs Oﬁicer Grade 2. .
Special Customs Ofﬁcer Grade’ 1:.28 :
Assistant Inspector of Customs and Exclse

. Special Exciseman, Grade 2 A
Customs Excise Examiner. .
Customs Excise Enforcement, Officer. .
Senior Transiator. .
Chauffeur. . ; ¥ ' g
‘Custoras Exuse Enforcement Oﬁicer (Seasonal) i
Special Inspector of Customs and Excxse

‘ Stenographer, Grade 3. . rer

Customs ]mmse Clerk. .
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EXHIBIT No. 1B
(ORGANIZATION FOR INSPECTION SERVICE
Class. ‘ Number.

Chief Inspector of Customs and Exeise.. .. .. .. .. .. 1
Dominion Inspector of Excise.. . 1
, Inspector of Customs and Excise. . L 32
> Special Inspector of Customs and Excise. . 7
Assistant Inspector of Customs and Excw» 64
Principal Clerk. . P : 1
Stenographer, Grade 2. . .. 8
Customs Excise Exammer ( Umted Stabeﬂ) 4
“ Customs Excise Clerk. . ; S I
: , 119

. EXHIBIT No. le

ORGANTZATION ¥OR SPECIAL BRANCH.—ToRONTO
Class. : Number.

- Inspector of Customs and Excise.. .. ..
Investigater of Deawback Claims.. .. ..
Special Customs Officer, Grade 24
Stenographer, Grade 3. . it
Special Typist, Grade 3. .

Clerk, Grade 4.. .. .
Spemal Inspector of Cu~tomc and Exmwe
Senior Customs Excise Clerk. . :

W
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) Reply (xf‘any) tobe a.d ,‘ essed
~ “Deputy Minister of Gustoub

and Excise”
i R R. Farrow)
SR AN Refer to File No 126.‘*?94
! ! B/M .‘* E
DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS AND EXCISE
: = - OTTAWA CAMDA llth February, 1926
WALTER TODD Esq., o
Chief Clerk Commltteee _
House of Commons ‘ 5 e

Ottawa.

DeAr Sir:—1I beg to acknowledge recelpt of your letter of the 9th mstantp e
communicating motion of Mr. Doucet quoted therein. -

I have never received and have not now in my possession or under m’y
- control any reports made by Inspector Walter Duncan, or any other investigating
officer or other person, and received by any Minister of Customs or by their
offices during the period named in the motion; nor have I any letters on telegrams Fs
of instructions issued by any Minister or by or from the:r oﬁices Copy of only b

‘recommendation to Council attached. y
“Yours truly, R S s
A mahiteY . FAnnoyv,_
\ : Deputy Minster.
Encl. ‘ :

EXHIBIT No. 4

Copy (L.C.B.) 3 _
3 File 125625
To His Excellency '

The Governor General in Counecil:

. The undersigned, Minister of Customs and Excise, has the honour to
recommend that the services of Mr. J. E. Bisaillon, Special Inspector of Customs
and Excise, Preventive Service, be dispensed with as from the 14th day of
December, 1925.

This recommendation is based upon a report to the undersigned by “a
Special Investigating Officer for the Department of Finance, dated the 10th
instant, disclosing a number of gross irregularities and offences and neglect of *
duty on the part. of Inspector J. E. Bﬁsalllon and conduct unbecoming an Officer
of Customs and Excise.

Respectfully submitted,
(Sgd.) Gro. H. Bowin,
Mmzster of C'ustoms and Excise.

Department of Customs and Excise,
Ottawa, 11th December, 1925,



7 (i any) tobeaddressedto il

Deputy Minister of Customs
- and Excise” ° oy
(R. R. Farrow) i

!

’nm Tonn Es '

W Gh&ef Olverk dommlttees |
‘ House of Commons\; BfTh
(OIS O a0 R

" Drar Sm:—I beg to acknowledge receipt af "eur letter of the 9th instant,

mmunicating motion of the Special Commvgteer appointed to investigate
e admmlstra.tlon of the Department of Customs and Excise, requestmg me to

bonded warehouses for export or home consumptmn as detailed in the motion.
- It will be impossible® to furnish the required information forthwith as the

etails are not on record at this Department and will require to be obtained
~ from the" Collectors at the Ports where sueh wai‘ehouses and distilleries are

established.
I sent mstructlons by mghtletter on the. lﬁth mstant to all such Collectors

and will produce the information as soon as received.
1 should point out that the motion as worded will include all liquors imported ¥

by the various Provinces and placed in bonded Warehouses and all domestic
llquors purchased by . them in bond. \

Yours‘ truly,

R. R. Farrow,
Deputy Minister.

{
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Fripay, 12th February, 1926.

The Committee met at 10.30 a.m., Mr. Mercier, the Chairman, presiding.

Present:—Messrs. Bell, Bennett, Donaghy, Doucet, Elliott, Kennedy,
Mercier, St. Pere and Stevens—9. :

Counsel:—Mr. Geoffrion.

The minutes of yesterday’s meeting being read, Hon. Mr. Stevens pointed
out that the name of Mr. R. P. Clerk should have been included, with that of
Mr. Bisaillon, in the request to the Civil Service Commission made yesterday
for the production of papers re appointment and promotion. An amendment
to the minutes will be made accordingly. The minutes, as so amended, were
approved.

Commissioner Starnes, R.C.M.P., produced further files asked for at a
previous sitting of the Committee. He also produced a statement showing
record of cases investigated and number prosecuted, which was filed as Exhibit
No. 6. -

The Chairman stated that Mr. Edwards, Deputy Minister of Justice, and
Commissioner Starnes and Superintendent Cawdron of the R.C.M.P. were
excused, with the understanding that if required at any time they would be
called by telephone.

Hon. Mr. Boivin handed in the staff record of Mr. J. A. E. Bisaillon and
the staff record of Mr. R. P. Clerk of Montreal, which were filed as Exhibits
Nos. 7 and 8, respectively.

The Civil Service Commission filed with the Committee:—

Exhibit No. 9.—Civil Service Commission papers re promotion of Mr.
Bisaillon.

Exhibit No. 10.—Civil Service Commission file re- Mr. Clerk.
Mr. Farrow’s examination was resumed.

Hon. Mr. Bennett moved that the reading of exhibits filed to-day be
dispensed with, subject to the reading of such portions as may be requested to
be read. Motion carried.

Mr. Farrow filed with the Committee:—

Exhibit No. 11.—Department of Customs and Excise file re Mr. Bisaillon.

Exhibit No. 12.—Department of Customs and Excise correspondence to or
re Mr. Clerk.

Exhibit No. 13.—Report of Chief Accountant of Department of Customs
and Excise respecting collections at Farnham under J. E. Bisaillon.

Exhibit No. 14.—Prosecutions under sections 206 (3) and 219 (3) Customs
Act, from date Act amended in 1925 to date.
15943—13
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

Fripay, February 12, 1926.

The Special Committee appointed to investigate the administration of the
Department of Customs and Excise and charges relating thereto, met at
10.30 a.m., the Chairman, Mr. P. Mercier, presiding.

Commissioner Starnes produced further files, also a statement showing
cases investigated, number prosecuted, ete. (Exhibit No. 6.)

Hon. Mr. Boivin filed the following papers:

Ex-Staff Record of J. A. E. Bisaillon, (Exhibit No. 7), and
Staff Record of R. P. Clerk. (Ezhibit No. 8.)

The following were filed by the Secretary of the Civil Service Commission:

Civil Service Commission file re promotion of J. A. E. Bisaillon. (Exhibit
No. 9.)

Civil Service Commission file re R. P. Clerk. (Ezhibit No. 10.)

R. R. Farrow recalled.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

\Q. Mr. Farrow, have you with you some of the documents that were
required ye:terda,y?—A Yes.

Q. Would you mind -handing these in, please. We had better put these
in as exhibits, whatever they are.

Wrrness: This is a Report on the collections made at Farnham during the
period of Mr. Bisaillon’s regime. (Ezhibit No. 13.) Copy of correspondence
affecting the promotion of Clerk, as far as the appointment is concerned.
(Ezhibit No. 12.)

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. Mr. Farrow, these documents you produce are the ones you promised
yesterday to produce?—A. Yes sir. I have two more to produce, sir. Pro-
secutions under sections 206-3 and 219-3, from the date of the amendments to
the Act in 1925 to this date. (Exhibit No. 14.) Then I have one which I am
not sure that I was asked to.produce. This is a list of the Customs and Excise
officers at Rock Island, Quebec, and Beebe Junction, Quebec. (Ezhibit No. 15.)
Also Form K-9. (Exhibit No. 16.) Now, Mr. Chairman, may I make a state-
ment in regard to my evidence yesterday?

The CuARMAN: Yes, you may.

The Wrrness: Last night about a quarter to eight I was called up over the
long distance telephone at my' home by J. H. Turner of the Snag Proof Overall
Company of Beebe Junction, Quebec, who objected to the evidence I gave before
the committee yesterday, in which I said he had been charged—under pressure,
I was asked if I had known of any person who had been charged more than

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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56 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

once. I said he had been charged three times with smuggling. He denied that
and wanted me to make a denial of my statement this morning. I told him I
was speaking from recollection yesterday as I was pressed for an answer and
wished to consult the record, and he said he wished me to correct it this morning,
and I told him I would look over my records. I did so, and while Mr. Turner
is technically correct, yet he is not correct in this way. He stated to me over
the phone last night that no goods were actually seized from him. That is
technically correct, but he was charged with the smuggling of goods on three
occasions, at least his firm was so charged I wish to make that clear. We
regard these in our department as seizures, just the same as where goods were
actually seized, but we preferred charges. Those goods had gone into con-
sumption. - ‘

7’
s

By Mr. Bell:

Q. May I ask you there, Mr. Farrow: did it happen that he was actually
called upon to make some payment to the department, and did make it?—A.
In two cases, and the other case is "undecided.

Q. Then the minister was good enough to say yesterday that that file
would be available first. ' Can we get it this morning?

Hon. Mr. Bowvin: Those copies are being made this morning, and I can
hand them to the members of the committee this afternoon. I will file them
with the clerk this afternoon.

The WirnNgss: Mr. Turner wanted me to make this statement because he
said it was injuring his business; because it was being reported all over that he
was a smuggler, and he thought it was due him that I should correct my evidence.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Mr. Farrow, at the conclusion of your examination yesterday the
Minister asked- you a question about Chief Inspector Busby—asked you, I
think, if Mr. Busby had not been: instructed to proceed w1th the inspection of
Montreal‘?—-A Yes.

Q. I think you s es.

Q. When was that instruction given to Mr. Busby?—A. I could not give
you the exact date, Mr. Stevens.

Q. Within a week?—A. No, not within a week. I wrote a letter to Mr.
Busby, I should think it was about six weeks ago, if my memory serves me
right.

Q. Since the first of the year?—A. Before that, I think.

Q. Has Mr. Busby personally been inspecting in Montreal?—A. No, because
he is too ill.

Q. Has Mr. Busby inspected the Montreal district at all since 1922?—A.
No.

Q. Has he inspected Rock Island?—A. As I said yesterday, no place in
Quebec.

Q. No pho( in Quebec?—A. That is right.

Q. And he is not at present inspecting there?—A. His staffi—Mr. Kennedy
is Acting C ]uof Inspector; when Mr. Busby was seriously ill with heart trouble
and T found he could mot go, 1 spoke to the Minister about sending Mr.
Kennedy, his first assistadit, and the Minister said, “ Yes, send him at once,”
and T then wrote a letter of instruction to Mr. Kennedy to go to Montreal with
his staff.

Q. But as a matter of fact Mr. Busby has not been in the province of
Quebec since 19227—A. Not for inspection purposes.

{Mr. R. R. Farrow.] ‘
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- Q. Now a word about the dismissal of Mr. Bisaillon. A document was
put in yesterday (Exhibit No. 4), an Order in Council ordering his dismissal.
‘That was dated, I think, December 11, was it not?—A. I could not say; I was
absent at the time he was dismissed. 7 '

Q. It was on December 11, I think?—A. It was around December.

Q. What peculiar event occurred to cause his dismissal then, that was
not. the case prior to that?>—A. T think I said a moment ago that I was absent
through illness during that period, and I don’t know.

Q. I want to ask you a few questions on some other matters, and I want
to say to you very frankly and candidly that the object of my questions is this:
I want to find out—and I think the committee should know, too—if you, as an
officer, are giving certain instructions; whether doing so under instruction from
your Minister, and I shall ask you some questions probably that will be very

direct and I would like an answer quite as direct. Now, in the administration

of the department, seizures are made and reports are made by the officers on
form K-9. TIs that right?—A. Yes.

Q. And form K-9, then, comes up finally to you?—A. Yes.

Q. And you send it to the Minister?—A. Yes.

Q. And the Minister determines what penalty or action shall be taken in
regard to the seizure? He can release a seizure if he so desires. Is that true?—
A. Sure; he has the power, under the Act, to decide.

Q. I want to know if you can produce a letter from Mr. Bisaillon written

to the Minister, and having relation to the case of a man called Ouimet; you

probably recognize that name. You had a case of a man named Liboiron,
against a man called Besner, in which the seizure was settled for the sum of $200,
a voluntary abandonment. That would come through you, would it not, as
deputy minister?—A. Is that an excise seizure or a customs seizure? The words
“ yoluntary abandonment” lead me to believe it would be a cusgoms seizure.
I would know nothing about it. Mr. Taylor would explain that.

Q. Mr. Wilson would?—A. Mr. Wilson or Mr. Taylor.

Q. We will leave that until we come to Mr. Wilson and Mr. Taylor. Now,
you have quite a lot of automobiles, stolen automobiles from the United States,
coming into Canada, and from time to time they are seized by your depart-
ment?—A. Yes.

Q. Quite a traffic in that, is there not?—A. Quite.

Q. You have had some very serious complaints, from Montreal particularly,
and other sections of the country. Montreal being a large place, there have been
a large number there regarding these cars, which are stolen in the United States
and disposed of in Canada?—A. Yes.

Q. Insurance companies and so on?—A, Yes.

Q. Now, would you file with the committee some correspondence you had
with Mr. Calder, of Montreal, who was Crown Prosecutor there—R. L. Calder,
K.C., in relation to this very matter of stolen cars?—A. Yes.

Q. Do you recall a particular case of the claim of the Atlas Insurance
Company, a seizure at Ste. Cesaire? The seizure was made from a garage there;
I have not the name. It was the Atlas Insurance Company involved, and Mr.
Calder.—A. The Atlas Insurance Company would be involved in a number of
claims, because they claim the return of stolen' cars; they have had more claims
than one. I may say in respect of that that the Head law clerk or Mr. Blair,
would remember more about the details of each case, because that is their
particular province.

Q. There was a final ruling given in this ecase by the Minister?>—A. T don’t
know.

Q. I would like to have that produced.—A. Yes, if T could get the date of it.

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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Q. I have here a letter written by the Inspector of Customs
Bisaillon, to the Minister. I will read it, because 1 have no doubt you will

recall it when I read it, and I want to question you in regard to the method

followed by the department. This was written by Bisaillon on May 2, 1925,
to Mr. Bureau ‘

& Ylour Ouellette—"
who is, T understand, an employee of the late Minister—

“—arrived yesterday morning. . I took him to Mr. Dandurand’s office
so that he might examine the automobiles. I bought him a Dodge sedan
which is first class, except that it needs tubes for the tires. I paid that
car $455 plus government tax which amounts to $4.55, making a total of
$459.55. e

“If he is not satisfied, kindly tell me so, for I can sell it again with
a good profit. Moreover, I will remit a difference which will be worth
while. Ouellette went to dinner yesterday and he was to come back and
I did not see him the whole day. I do not understand that guy.

“ Please tell me something on the subject.”

Now, in reply to that, there is a telegram— -

Mr. DoNaguy: What is Mr. Stevens reading from? 'Is it a letter he is
reading? , ‘

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: I am asking the Deputy Minister to produce these.

Mr. DoNagHY: If you want him to produce a letter, you have no right to
read the whole letter, because there may not be such a letter. I do not know
from what you are reading.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: 1 will read the next one. In reply to that—

Mr. DoNaguy: I asked for a ruling on the question of the procedure Mr.
Stevens is adopting. If letters are to be read here, they should be produced.
I am not satisfied to take Mr. Stevens’ version of the letter at all; I want to
see the letter and if Mr. Farrow has the letter in his files, he should bring it
here, and then we will have it read. I want a ruling on this matter.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Do you recall this case—

Mr. Evuiorr: Mr. Chairman, as T understand the situation, Mr. Stevens,
a moment ago, was objecting to certain letters being read, and now he starts
in and reads copies— ;

Mr. Do~xacHY: And we do not even know whether they are true copies
or not. The originals are available; let us have them brought here, and proceed
in a sensible way.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I think these Jetters went out in the nine famous
cabinets. :

Mr. DoNacHaY: I do not think that remark—

Hon. Mr. SteveNns: That is just exactly what I am driving at.

Mr. Erviorr: Mr. Chairman, I objeet to the remark of Mr. Stevens, about
anything going out in the “nine famous cabinets”. That is exactly the object
Mr. Stevens has in mind, to get something into the press, and not facilitate this
inquiry. I object to it most strenuously, and 1 want a ruling. ;

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: Well, you can exclude the press if you don't want it
printed. :

Mr. Erriorr: No, we will exclude you.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Try it on, brother, try it on.
(Mr. R. R. Farrow.]

at Montreal,
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Hon. Mr. Bex~xerr: Mr. Chairman, it is perfectly clear that when docu-
ments are being referred to, they should be filed in the custody of the Com-
mittee, and you should not read copies of them until the originals are produced.
I think we are all agreed about that. But Mr. Farrow may be asked if he has
a file, and then asked to produce the file, and if it is found that certain letters
are not in the file, we will try then to find out where they are.

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: Then I will not read the document, but I will ask Mr.

-Farrow if he will be good enough—

The CuAlRMAN: Do you withdraw your question?

Hon. Mr. Stevens: No, I withdraw no question, but I am not pressing that
point at the present. I will stop reading the documents, and will ask Mr.
Farrow a question. -

By Hon. Mr. Stevens: :
Q. Will you produce a file having to do with the purchase by Bisaillon of a
car for a.man called Ouellette, a Dodge sedan, for which Mr. Bisaillon, I under-

stand, paid $455—

Mr. Doxagry: Just a moment, Mr. Chairman, my learned friend has 1o
right tomake a statement of that kind. This should be made under oath.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. —which car was in his custody and he, being Inspector of Customs
in the port of Montreal, holds in his custody these cars which are under
seizure? Am I right in that, Mr. Farrow?—A. The cars under seizure?

Q. Yes?—A. They would be in the custody of the Collector of Customs
of the port of Montreal, in a garage. :

Q. None of them in the custody of Mr. Bisaillon?—A. You. had better
ask Mr. Wilson. ;

Mr. DonacaY: So that I can correct my friend, and indicate to him the
proper procedure—

Hon. Mr. Stevens: No, you can’t do that. You can correct me if you like,
but you cannot lecture me, or indicate to me any form of procedure—

Mr. DonacHy: I am a member of this Committee, and I have a right to
be heard. Mr. Chairman, I want to indicate- what in my view is the proper
procedure to be followed in calling for. documents. :

Hon. Mr. Stevens: All right; that is all right.

Mr. Donacuy: The person calling for a document should indicate the
date, indicate the man who wrote it and the person to whom it was written—

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: I have already done that. _

Mr. Do~nagHY: —and it is highly improper to give a summary of the
contents of a letter, because the summary may turn out to be erroneous, and
tending to bias the -Committee. I would ask Mr. Stevens to proceed in the
regular way and not endeavour to take any unfair advantage in getting things
on the record which may not be the truth.

Hon. Mr.’Stevens: All right; I will follow the directions :of my worthy,
learned and hon. friend. This letter is dated May 2nd, 1925 from Mr. Bisaillon
to the Minister of Customs and has to do with the purchase of a sedan car
for Cuellette. Surely that is clear enough. T also want the reply from Mr.
Bureau, the then Minister of Customs, to Mr. Bisaillon, dated May 4th, 1925.

v Mr. Evviorr: I suppose that is all on one file?

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I also want a letter replying to this telegram, written

by Mr. Bisaillon, the said inspector of Customs and Excise, to Mr. Bureau,
[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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dated May 4th. T also want Mr. Farrow to examine the records and see 1; y
" a remittance was made to the Department of Customs in regard to the sale
by Bisaillon at that time of a Hudson touring car, the property of the Dommlon i,

of Canada, and in his custody. I will not go any farther with that.
The Wirness: The proceeds of sale?
Hon., Mr. Stevens: Yes.
The CHAIRMAN: Any remittance.

By Hon. Mr. Stevans:

Q This letter indicates “I will remfit the difference which will be worth

while”. Now, I would like to ask a question or two in regard to some

/emplovee< Have you an employee "at Rock Island named Hector Herbert?
—A. There is a list, there.

Hon. Mr, Borvin: There was: a list filed this morning, Mr. Stevens; you~

can refer to the .list.
The CmamMaNn: It is filed, and you can refer to it.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Well, I will not press that; I thought Mr.—
The Wirness: I cannot remember

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Will you look at this (handing Wltness a book) ; T have marked it tq
give you no trouble. Is that gentleman in the employ of thé Department now?
—A. No. :

Q. When were his services dispensed with? That is Mr. C. M. Bolger.—
A. M. C.; this is Montreal? I was thinking of Mr. Bolger in Quebec. There
was a Mr Bolger there. I cannot say about this man.

© Q. Is Mr. Bolger at Quebec now in the employ of the Department‘?-—A
No; he was superannuated.

Q. When were his services dispensed with?—A. The year before last.

Q. By superannuation?—A. Yes. ‘

Q. What were his initials, do you recall>—A. Not the same initials, I
don’t think. What year is this? 1925? No; I do not recall his initials.

Q. Well, that is all in regard to that. Now, just a word in regard to the
appointment of Mr. Clerk. I asked you some questions yesterday in regard to
this matter?—A. Yes. ¥ :

Q. Just to refresh your memory of my question yesterday, it was this;
after the exclusion of Mr. Busby, the Chief Inspector, from the Quebee district
—or, we will say, the province of Quebec,—Mr. Clerk was appointed Inspector
of the port of Montreal, in the district of Montreal, is that r1ght7——A The
port of Montreal.

Q. Now, yesterday you apparently did not care to tell me whether or not.
in your opinion, Mr. Clerk was qualified for the important position of Inspector
for the port of Montreal. Will you tell the Committee to-day, Mr. Farrow,
after thinking the matter over?—A. No. I will say this, Mr. Stevens, that at
the time he was assigned to the duties of Inspector of the port of Montreal.
we placed with him two very qualified officers from Mr. Busby’s staff, Mr.
Barnard, and Mr. Graham, and gave him some staff from the Montreal Customs
to assist him.

Q. In other words, you took some junior members from Mr. Busby's staff—.
—A. To assist him. .

Q). —and assigned them to Mr. Clerk to assist-him in his duties?>—A. Yes.

Q. Will you tell the Committee if Mr. Clerk’s activities as Inspector of
the port of Montreal have been satisfactory since his appointment, in your
opinion?—A. On inspection work?

{Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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Q. His work as Inspector of the port of Montreal?——'\ Not as satisfactory
as those of the Chief Inspector.

Q. Have you had reports of thefts from the examining warehouse in the
port of Montreal, since Mr. Clerk’s appointment?—A. Yes, and before.

Q. I am askmg you about since?—A. Yes.

Mr. DonacaY: You are entitled, witness, to say “before” as well; we want
to know it all.
The Wrrness: Yes.

Mr. Doucer: Now we have the second lecture,

.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens: >

Q. Naturally, there have been thefts before and after, but I am speaking
now about this particular regime?—A. Yes.

- Q. Have you referred those to Mr. Clerk for investigation?—A. Yes.

Q. Do you consider as head of the Department that Mr. Clerk’s investi-
gations of these thefts have been satisfactory?—A. Well, I would have to refresh
my memory by reference to the files; I cannot remember the cases now.

Q. I would like to have vour general impression of the man? You have
already stated his services were not as satisfactory as Mr. Busby’s, but I would
like to know if they are satisfactory?—A. Not as satisfactory an investigator
as Mr. Busby.

Q. Supposing we leave Mr. Busby out of it?—A. I can only give you the
statement by comparison.

Q. How about his reliability as an individual, as compared with Mr.
Busby?—A. I have always found him honest.

Q. But not competent?—A. I have already made ‘a staterhent in regard
to that. v

Q. Have the conditions in: the port of Montreal, district of Montreal I
might say, and other séctions from which Mr. Busby has been excluded since
1922—have the conditions in that area, from the standpoint of evasions and
violations of the law, become worse thqn they were before?—A. Not any
better.

Q. Have you had more complaints from promment business men, or what
we might call the business world, regarding CO']dlthIlS since then than before?—
A. Yes.:

Q. Decidedly more?—A. Yes.

Q. To a degree that you consider it serious?

Mr. Donacry: I take it that all violations of law are serious.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Let the witness answer, please, Mr. Donaghy. I have
the highest regard for your opinion. I may be stupid but I know where I am
getting to.

Mr. DoxagHY: Violations are increasing, but to what degree would be a
matter of statistics.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Somebody said figures lie.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens: \ ,

Q. I asked you this question: Do you consider that complaints from the
business public, reputable business men, regarding the conditions in the area
from which Mr. Busby was withdrawn in 1922 may be considered serious?—A.
What do you mean by complaints?

Q. I mean complaints by business men in Montreal Iogar(hng smuggling,
violations of the Customs Act, and o on and also regarding the reliability of
some of the officials?—A. Yes, regarding the latter.

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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. ’
Q. Your answer is “yes”?—A. Yes.

Q. I am not going to ask Mr. Farrow any more questions now until he '

br‘ings the files”and papers and documents which we will have to deal with at
some other time. I want to thank Mr. Farrow for his very frank answers, as
far as T am concerned

By Mr. Elliott:

Q. Wére those complaints received in writing, Mr. Farrow?—A. Not
always. /

Q. When they were received in writing, have the records of them been
kept?—A. Yes, they would be kept, surely.

Q. And you have in your Department these records, and they will speak
for themselves?—A. Yes.

Q. And they are among the other documents there, among the documents
that were asked for yesterday, and which you are going to produce?>—A. They
might not, be. :

Q. Records of those complaints?—A. They might be in the general corre-
spondence of the Department. They might be on the Preventive Service files.

Q. I see. Did you, in receiving these complaints, usually receive them in
writing, or usually receive them verbally?—A. Well, the principal complaints
I received verbally were from the Commercial Protective Association. /

Q. From the ‘Commercial Protective Association?—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. We got cross-wired yesterday when we said the Merchants?—A No,
the Commercial. !

By Mr. Elliott:

Q. Well, the serious complaints, were they put to you verbally?—A Yes,
the serious ones.

Q. You were to make a record of them ?—A. That would eventuate with
a record by the action which was taken.

Q. If the complaint was serious, in your opinion you would have a record?
—A. Yes.

Q. So, a comparison of the records can be made and I suppose that is the
only way you can compare conditions now with what they were before?—A. Yes.

Q. The Mr. Bushy to whom you have referred as an excellent official, and
I believe that is correct, was he operating generally over the district, over
Canada?—A. Always.

Q. Yes. He was not limited to Montreal?—A. No.

Q. Did he speak the French language?—A. No.

Q. Is it not a fact that the reason why a change was made at Montreal
was because it was considered that it was necessary to have somebody who could
unde-stand the French language looking after the district of Montreal?—A. Yes.

Q. No doubt about that?—A. No doubt about that.

Q. No? That was the'view of the Minister?—A. Yes.

Q. And your view and the.view of the Civil Service Commission?—A. Yes.
It was certainly the view of the Minister and it was important that the man
have bilingual qualifications. g

Q. And then the selection was made of a man to act in Montreal, particu-
larly a man with binlingual qualifications was preferred by the Civil Service
Commission?—A. By the officer of the Department who examined him.

Mr. Erviorr: Thank you, Mr. Farrow.

The CramrMAN: Any other questions.

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. Mr. Farrow, Mr. Busby was an inspector throughout Canada?—A. Yes,
all of Canada.’ ' .

Q. In the beginning of 1922 Quebec was taken out of his jurisdiction. That
is a short way to put it.—A. He did not make any inspections in that province.

Q. The whole province?—A. Yes.

Q. Between the time that he ceased to be permitted to inspect in Quebec
and the appointment of an inspector with bilingual qualifications, how many
months elasped?—A. I do not know exactly, Mr. Bennett. I would have to
look up the record of that.

Q. Was it a year?—A. I am not prepared to make any statement from
memory, after my experience of yesterday.

Q. We can tell it partly from this document, but the whole of it we can-
not?—A. No, I could not. '

Q. Can you tell me how long prior to 1922 he had acted as inspector or
sub-inspector in Montreal?—A. Who, Mr. Busby? '

Q. Mr. Busby, yes?—A. He went to Montreal every vear to make his in-
spection. : ,

Q. How long had he been doing that prior to 1922?—A. I do not know just
when the practice started. In Montreal there was an inspector in charge of the
district.

Q. Can you give us an approximate idea of how long he was engaged in it?
—A. Ten years at least. :

The CuAlIRMAN: Any other questions, gentlemen? You are released, Mr.
Farrow.

By Mr. Bell:

Q. Before Mr. Farrow goes, may I ask, can you give the Committee an idea
of how long it would take to produce the records to the Committee which are
now under way?—A. Do you mean those records of returns to the House of
Commons. ‘

Q. I mean those that were spoken of yesterday, which Mr. Bennett for in-
stance, called for?—A. That is the list or the statement of the seizures?

Q. Yes.—A. They started at that last night, and they worked last night,
and they are working to-day.

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: You can simplify it if you have Mr. Farrow’s evidence
that he gave to me and have the documents called for and that evidence pro-
duced.

Wirness: I have not seen a copy of the evidence. I will have any docu-
ments which you call for brought up. Any of these which I have got will be
presented ; they will be presented through the Clerk.

By Mr. Ellott:

Q. As I recolleet, my hon. friend, Mr. Bennett asked for the records since
the 1st January, 19257—A. A statement of the seizures, I think, showing what
disposition had been made.

Q. You are preparing that statement?—A. T started it yesterday when I
went back to the Department.

Q. I desire a record of seizures back some years prior to that?—A. Yes.

Q. Of course, naturally I expect you to prepare first the record that was
first asked for?—A. Yes.

Q. But I would like you to start somebody working on the record of the
seizures made since the 1st January, 1915. TI'realize it will take some time?—A.
Yes, just in the same form? :

Q. Just in the same form.

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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Mr. BeLn: You need not delay the productlon of the other, I take it.

Mr. Eruiorr: No, I think it is only fair that those which were requxsltlonéd |

first should be presented firet- :

Hon. Mr. BennerT: But before we are through, we will ‘require them
back that far and perhaps farther.

Wirness: It is only a certain man who can work on them. We have
to dictate them from the books.

Mr. BeLL: The suggestion was that it would be slowed up.

Wirness: The suggestion was that we could not prepare two at one time
for the reason that only one man can dlctate the work, and he would have to
dictate to a typewriter.

Hon. Mr. Benxerr: I have a question to ask here, which I think you could
clear up. Letters are some times directed to the Minister. Will the files contain

the letters so directed>—A. No.
Q. Where would those letters go?—A. To the Minister’s office.

Q. From his office, when he has read them, would they not appear on the

official files dealing with the case?—A. Not in all cases; they might not be
placed on the official files.

Q. Who determines where those letters go to; whether they were filed with
respect to the matter dealt with, or placed on some other file?—A. You as a
former Minister could tell better than I could.

Q. I am not in your Department?—A. I do not know about the Depart-
ment, I am not the Minister.

Q You have files, on some of which the Minister’s letters appear, letters

" . to the Minister?>—A. Iknow, but you are askmg me a question about all the

letters going to the Department
Q. I mean letters dealing with the seizures, because Mr. Stevens asked

you a question in which the Minister’s letters appeared‘?——A Well, he asked
me a question about that.

Q. The Minister keeps his own files, as all ministers do?—A. Yes.

Q. Where in those files would letters addressed to him on those seizures
appear?—A. It all depends on whether they are official letters. When the
previous minister left the Department, he took his personal files with him. |

Q. As is usual?—A. I have nothing to do with the office, but.I believe he
did, as every minister does.

Q. As every minister does, except those of us who were there only for a
short time?—A. It must have been a short time indeed if you had nothing to
take away.

Q. Assuming that somebody at Calgary wrote the Minister a letter in
connection with a seizure of horses, and assuming that on the strength of that
letter the Minister gave a direction to you, would that letter appear on the file
of complainants in the Department?—A. If it was officially addressed to the
Minister on a matter of departmental work, it would come in.

Q. It should be there on the file?—A. It would come in in the ordinary
course of business.

Q. There must be some cases, judging from what you have said, in which
personal directions were given to you by the Minister that would not  be
evidenced by correspondence at all?-—A. Yes.

Q. That is clear?—A. Surely.

Q. As has been done by all ministers?—A. All ministers.

Q. Then we come to a matter that is a very simple one: When the Com-
mercial Protective Association came to you to make complaints, were they
made in the presence of others than yourself, or to yourself alone as Deputy
Minister?—A. T cannot say. Sometimes there would be one of the officers
there. Perhaps Mr. Sparks would speak to'me by himself.

[Mr. R. R. Farrow.]
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Ql And the principal reprééentatiye of the‘Association who met you was
Mr. Sparks? R. P. Sparks?—A. Yes, i
Q. Were you present at any meeting where he met a ‘committee of the

‘cabinet?—A. No. -

Q. When you refer to interviews you had with him, you have in mind com-

 plaints that you got as to the administration of the law generally?—A. Yes.

Q. Not reduced to writing in every instanee; sometimes in writing and
sometimes verbally?—A. Yes. : :
Q. Those that were in writing you will produce?—A. They will be on file.
Q. You will produce them among the papers you promised yesterday,

constituting complaints with respect to administration?—A. Yes.

Q. You will remember that there were anonymous complaints, then there
were complaints that were signed; you will get those in the papers you were
to produce yesterday?—A. Yes, sir.

By Mr. Elliott:

Q. Mr. Farrow, you would be able to tell us with regard to the filing of the
letters received by the Minister; is there a Departmental Secretary, or by whom
would they be filed? - Would they-be filed by his personal secretary?  Can you

" tell us that?—A. The ordinary procedure is, the Minister sends this letters out

to the Department, that is, those for departmental work, through his Private
Secretary.

Q. Who is the Private Secretary to the Minister of this Department?—A.
Mr. Ide.

Q. Has he been there for some time?—A. He has been 25 or 30 years in
the service; 30 years or more, I suppose.

Q. He is still in the service?—A. Yes.

Q. He is available if he is wanted, I suppose?—A. Yes, sir.

The CaARMAN: Is that all, Mr. Elliott?

Mr. Erriort: Yes.

The CuAmrMAN:  You are released for the day, Mr. Farrow.

The witness retired. , :

CuARLES P. Brair, called and sworn.,

By the Chairman:

Q What is your name, Mr. Blair?—A. Charles P. Blair.

Q. And your occupation?—A. I am the General Executive Assistant in the
Department of Customs and Excise. :

Q. In Oftawa?—A. In Ottawa.

By Mr. Geoffrion:

Q. Mr. Blair, you have been in the Department how long?—A. Since 1909;
March 1909. -

Q. How long have you occupied your present position?—A. I think since
1922 or 1923; I would not be sure about the date. 1 c¢ame in in the capacity of
Law Clerk first, and was afterwards made General Executive Assistant. I
should think that would be in March of 1923. In March 1923 the Civil Service
Commission classified the position.

Q. I suppose your title gives a fair desecription of your duties; you are
assistant to the Deputy Minister?—A. Yes. The Commission have a classifica-
tion of the duties, if you wish to sge it. It is pretty nearly correct, I think.

Q. Have you got it here?—A. T have it here. -

[Mr. C, P, Blair.]



]

66 i SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Q. Will you read it to the Committee?—A. The definition of the (;lasJS_ is,

“Under direction to assist the 'Commissioner of Customs and Excise, and

Assistant Commissioner of Customs and Excise in administrative matters; as
delegated, to conduct the administration of all Branches of the Department
to assist in the formulation of administrative procedure and the preparation of
regulations, to handle correspondence relating to the external affairs of the
Department, and to perform other related work as required.”

By the Chairman: : \
Q. What is the date of that, Mr. Blair?>—A. The date of the Order in
Council is March 20th, 1923.
Q. Will you file that as an exhibit?—A. Certainly. ‘
Mr. GeorrrioN: © It-is on record now, Mr. Chairman; we do not need it as
an exhibit.

By Mr. Geoffrion: .

Q. Mr. Blair, in that capacity you would have under you the preventive
activities of the Department?—A. Well, no, not the preventive service; the
seizures coming from the preventive service would come under my notice, all
seizures would come under my notiece, but not the direction of the preventive
service.

Q. You have nothing to do with the direction of the preventive service?
—A. Nothing at all.

Q. You say seizures coming from the preventive service, and all seizures—
do'not all seizures come from the preventive service?—A. Yes. The correspon-
dence from the Law Branch all comes under my notice, and goes out under
my signature. ‘

Q. You speak of seizures of the preventive service, and other seizures;
what other seizures are there?—A. That was because you mentioned other
seizures. Seizures are reported from the preventive service and once a seizure
is in the correspondence it comes under my notice.

Q. What about the Excise?—A. I do not touch Excise seizures at all.

Q. You deal with the port seizures, the Customs seizures?—A. Yes, just
in the Customs House.

Q. Will you explain the method of dealing with seizures in the Custom
House that come to you; will you please tell us how it opérates when it comes
to you, a seizure?—A. Well, Form K-9 reporting the seizure comes in in corre-
spondence.

Q. You receive that Form?—A. Tt does not come to me first; it comes into
the Law Branch, to the head clerk of that Branch. He prepares notice of the
seizure, if it is a simple thing he can prepare, but if it is more difficult he refers
it to me and I prepare it. After that is prepared by him or by myself, that
starts the correspondence; evidence is filed, and it is sometimes referred to me,
sometimes not, until the report of the Deputy to the Minister is being prepared.

Q. I missed the last remark.—A. I meant to say that the correspondence
in connection with the seizure might be prepared originally by the head clerk
in the Law Branch, but it comes under my notice before it goes out, and it may
be specially referred to me ‘and the whole thing comes up for review by me when
the matter is being reported upon by the Deputy to the Minister.

Q. All the difficult questions come under your personal examination?—
A. Yes. :

Q. And you make the decision or the recommendation?—A. I either make
it or revise what has been made. :

Q. You either make, revise or confirm the decision on the subject?>—A. Yes,
I am responsible for it.

[Mr. C. P. Blair]
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Q. You are responsible for the subsequent d'evelopmenfbs upon that seizure?
—A. Yes.
Q. In all cases?—A. In all cases.

Q. Your decision of course is signed by the Deputy Minister or the Min-

ister?—A. Oh, yes.
Q. You are the one who makes the declsmn?—A It is done for the Deputy.
Q. Who signs your report?—A. He takes the report and changes it if he
thinks it should be changed.
- Q. Of course he has the power, but for practical purposes you have the
decision?—A. I would not say that, sir; I think the Minister has the decision.
Q. Are decisions very often reversed?—A. Sometimes t.hey are.
Q. You are sometimes reversed?—A. Yes, indeed.
Q. You have not got the final decision, in fact?—A. No.
Q. Your decisions are signed and revised often, you mean?—A. Yes.
Q. The Minister having the last word?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Bell:

Q. I take it, Mr. Blair, that you would not have the decision as to the
institution or the discontinuance of prosecutions ?—A. No.

Q. That would rest with Mr. Wilson?—A. I might write letters under
direction, but I would never decide on anything like that myself.

By Mr. Donaghy ‘

Q. Who did you say that rested with, the decision on prosecutmns?—A I
did not get that.

Q. Who does the deciding on prosecutlons?—A I would not do anything
unless I was directed to do it, and my directions would come from the Deputy
Minister.

Q. Is it he or the chief preventive officer who decides upon prosecutions?
—A. I don’t know about that.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. You say you do not decide about proseou’mons?—A As to whether or
not there should be a prosecution?

Q. Yes.—A. No.

Q. Upon whom does that fall?—A. It very often happens that in my
observation of the evidence in the case I might have some idea as to whether
or not there should be a prosecution.

Q. But who decides it?—A. In that case, I prepare a memorandum, which
goes to the Deputy, and I get my instructions from him. I do not know whether
he decides it eventually, or whether the Minister decides it.

Q. Let us take a concrete case; we have had the Gaunt case; do you know
anything about that?—A. I do, in a general way.

Q. How did that case come before you, if at all?—A. That case came
tfﬁégre me on 8 K-9 report, notice of seizure was sent out, and the evidence was

Q. You being the Law Clerk and a lawyer?—A. Yes.

Q. When Form K-9 comes before you, it indicates with particularity the
goods seized, by whom seized, and for what they were seized?—A. Yes.

Q. It is signed by the proper officer?—A. Yes.

Q. Take a Customs House at any port like Calgary, for instance, one of
your preventive officers, or it may be a Mounted Policeman who occupies a
special preventive position might make it?—A. Yes,

15943—2 [Mr. C. P. Blair.]
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Q. Assume that tha;t has been done, and form K-9 comes to you, What W(mld‘ o
happen would be that you would read it or one of your exrperts?—A- Yea, an’ i
officer would do it.

Q. And the acknowledgment.of it would go out under your name?—A. Yes.

Q. The notice would go out under your name; is that right?>—A. That is
right.
‘ QY Then you ask the person whose goods have been seized for his defence?
—A. Yes.

& QY And that defence may be made by afﬁdawt declaration, or a mere letter? |

Q) And in some instances unfortunately the defence is made in person to
the Minister?—A. Well, I would regard that as a possibility.

Q. You know that 'has been done?—A. They very often see the Minister,

I am satisfied of that.

Q. If, for instance, we will say that John Sxmth’s stuff is seized at Rock
Island by a zealous oﬁicer the matter comes to you, vou advise the owner that
the stuff is seized, and ask him for his defence?—A. Yes.

Q. He may make his defence in writing?—A. Yes.

Q. And send that up to you?—A. Yes.

Q. In which event you would see it?—A. Yes.

Q. But he might get on a train, come up and see the Minister, and you
would not see the proceedings until the case was settled?—A. I don’t know just
what you mean.

Q. I mean the matter is disposed of?—A. A matter of that kind would only
be disposed of by the Minister, on a recommendation such as I suggest.

Mr. DonaguY: He says it would be disposed of upon a recommendation.

Hon. Mr. Bex~xerr: I would like Mr. Donaghy to let me finish before he
interrupts. .

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. I was just asking you how it would be disposed of?—A Will you ask
the question again. :

Q. You said that it would be possible for the man to get on the train and
go up and settle the matter with the Minister—not any particular Minister, of
course; what I am now putting to you is, what would then transpire with regard
to your record of the disposition of the case?—A. Nothing would transpire but
that the matter would come up in the ordinary way for a report. At the expira-
tion of 30 days, if there was no evidence on the file, that would be stated, as
far as I am concerned.

Q. Then what?—A. The recommendation of the Deputy would go to the
Minister in the ordinary course.

Q. What would then happen?—A. It would depend upon the Minister’s
action,

Q. It is not unusual for matters of seizure to be determined in that way? *
—A. I would say that it is extremely unusual.

Q. But it has happened?—A. I would not say that it had ever happened,
that the matter had been settled I think you said that.

Q. I see you are drawing a fine distinction in respect of that; instead of
putting in a written defence, the persons whose goods had been seized have gone
direct to the Minister with their defence and made it verbally? Do you know ‘
of cases in which that has happened?—A. I do not recall any. :

Q. You would not know of them, perhaps, until the matter was disposed
of ?—A. It would not be disposed of until a report was prepared to the Deputy
Minister,

[Mr. C. P. Blair.]
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/ -
Q. And your report would show that no evidence was forthcoming?—A. If
~ the evidence was not forthcoming. ' :
Q. You cannot help me with that; it is only hearsay?—A. It is not even
hearsay now. : = ,

\

By Mr. Donaghy: ‘ :
Q. I want to put a question now. I am sorry I interrupted Mr. Bennett,
but T want to clear up what I had in mind. You spoke of a case where a man
should fail to put in a written defence, and we will say went to see the Minister,
and you spoke of some recommendation eventually being made by some officer
of the department before the case would be closed: I did not quite understand
that—A. That is the recommendation that has been spoken of before. In
all these seizure matters there is a recommendation prepared by the Deputy
Minister to the Minister; that is required by the Customs Act.

Q. That is necessary?—A. Yes, and if the Deputy Minister did not know
of any evidence being filed, it would be so stated. _

Q. So that there is not such a thing, so far as you are aware, of a man
whose goods have been seized in this way, going in to the Minister and settling
his case without regard to the officials of the department?—A. I know of no
other way of settling a case than by a decision of the Minister in that formal
way. I never heard of anything else. 9

- Q. That is what T want to make clear, because I think it was implied in
some of the cases put to you that they might be settled in the absence of the
officials, and without their knowledge, and without the formalities being complied
with. You say that is not the case, to your knowledge?—A. Oh no.

Mr. Ggorrrion: May I ask a question?

The CaHAmMAN: Certainly.

By Mr. Geoffrion:

Q. Since the amendment of last session, or rather before the amendment
of last session, the department instituted prosecutions?—A. I think prosecutions
have been entered. I have no figures on that, but I think prosecutions have
been made from time to time.

Q. Before the Court?—A. There was a new offence created by the amend-
ment of last year, making it an indictable offence to smuggle or have in your
possession smuggled goods over the value of $200. That is entirely a new pro-
vision, and of course there were no prosecutions of that kind before it came
into force. * ;

Q. I understood—I was not here—that Mr. Farrow said that previous to
the amendments there were very few Court prosecutions instituted—A. Yes,
I think he said that, and I think he was correct. T have no figures, but there
have been odd prosecutions always. That would be my impression since I came
into the department.

By Mr. Bennett:

Q. Just one question, Mr. Blair. Have you any original files, or do you
merely transmit that to other files?—A. The original file all comes before me.

Q. Do you initiate the file? Take the ease which was mentioned here,
that of the Snag Proof Overall Company down at Rock Island. - Did you
initiate that file?—A. When the correspondence came in a file would be made
in the Records Office, and the correspondence would come down to me or the
law clerk’s office as a file, with that evidence on it.

15943—23 [Mr. C. P. Blair.}
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Q: The lodgmg place of the ﬁle 18 not your office; it passes on? That is
what I want to get at—A. The files of seizures, whﬂe they are open, are kept
in the law dlerk,’s office. N

Q. That is what I want to know. So it is at your office and not elsewhere
that we would look for the files in connection with selzures?—A As soon as they
are ‘closed ‘thev pass up to the Records. ,

Q. That is a clgsed file, but I mean a live file.—A. A live file would be
found in the office of the law clerk. E

Q. That is under your personal direction?—A. He is under my direction,
but it is not in the same office.

Q. I quite understand that. Take the Gaunt seizure. Ts that file in your
office?—A. I would expect it to be.

Q. Take the Snag Proof Overall Company file; is that in your otﬁce?—A
It should be, if it is not completed. .

Q. Take any seizures at Rock Island, automobiles or matters of that kind
now pending; they are in your office?—A. They are in the office I speak of.
When I speak of them being in my office, they are taken in and out of the
office, but that is the depository until the matter is closed. ;

Q. So it is in your office we will look for these files that deal with current
matters respecting property under seizure for infraction of the Customs law?—
A. Yes, I would look for them in that office. It might be that temporarily it
would not be there.

Q. Who is the record clerk in the office in charge of the files, the filing
clerk?—A. Really, the clerk who is looking after the files—his name s 0F B
Kincaid, and of course the head clerk, Mr, Callbeck—.

Q. He is not one of the Lunenburg Callbecks?—A. Pretty near there; he
comes from Prince Edward Island.

By Mr. Elliott:

Q. What officers are suppplied with form K-9?—A They are requisitioned
by the Courts when they are needed.

Q. I suppose every Customs office is supplied with these forms?—A. Through
the Collector under whom he was acting, he would get them, and through Mr.
Wilson in the Preventive Service.

Q. And this is the form that emanates from the local office?—A. That is
the form the seizing officer signs. The man who makes the seizure signs that
form.

Q. I am not asking you that What office does it emanate from, usua.lly?—
A. Do you mean as a prepared form?

Q. When it first comes.—A. It is printed first and comes intot the Customs
Department. Then it is requisitioned for by Collectors as required for their
officers, and the Collectors are supplied; Mr. Wilson has a supply, and when his
officers need them they are handed to them.

Q. I have not made myself clear. I am not referring to the form as it is
unfilled, but as a completed form. Who are the officers who have authority to
fill in form K-9 and send it in to the department?—A. You will see that part of
the form is made up by the seizing officer, and he hands it to his Collector. On
the form, on the second page, you will find a place for the collector to sign,
and he sends it to the department:

Q. Every Collector or Inspector may fill up and forward form K-9? Is
that correct?—A. Yes. As a matter of fact, our Inspection Service does not
make seizures now. I do not know whether or not they ever did, but they do
not now.

Q. Then suppose a elaim is made for goods, to whom is that claim made
for goods seized?—A. The goods, of course, would be held by the Collector at

[Mr. C. P. Blair.]
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the port. The claim would be made to him and transmitted to the depart-
ment. { #N
Q. To the Minister, or to you, or to the deputy?—A. If the Collector were
writing a letter, I think he would address it to the Deputy Minister of Customs.
Q. Then it would come first to the Deputy Minister, from the local port?—
A. Tt would be addressed to the Deputy Minister; the Deputy Minister might -
not see it. The Records Branch would distribute it to the officer who they °
thought should attend to it. ' :
. Q. This is correct, then. It would be sent to the local officer addressed to
the Deputy Minister of Customs?—A. I would expect that.
Q. And would come into the office and would probably be, in the distribu-
tion, handed to you?—A. Handed to the head law clerk.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:
. Mr. Blair, a dead file might be drawn in ten minutes?>—A. You mean
ten minutes from the time you got to the office?

Q. Yes.—A. I think so. They accumulate, and if you should ask for an
old file, they have a room downstairs where it is a little more difficult to get,
but if it is one within the last few years, it can be found within ten minutes if
it is there. :

Hon. Mr. Bexnxerr: Now, just one question, and then I am through with
you.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q How long do you keep papers in your Department—you are the
Executive Officer?—A. You are speaking now in connection with seizures?

Q. Yes?—A. I do not know as they are ever destroyed.

Q. You have a rule to destroy’'some papers in three years, some in five
years, and some in seven?—A. I think they have a rule about invoices, but
I am not familiar with that.

Q. And, as far as you know, there is no rule that calls for the destruction
of any of these papers dealing with seizures?—A. No.

R By Mr. Elliott:

Q. All those for the last fifteen years should be in the custody of some
Customs official?>—A. Oh, yes, they are.

The CrAIRMAN: Are there any other questions, gentlemen? (To witness)
You are released for to-day; if we need you again, we will call you.

The witness retired.

4
GeoreE WiLsoN Tavior, called and sworn.

By the Chairman:
Q. What is your name?—A. George Wilson Taylor.
Q. What is your occupation?—A. Assistant Deputy Minister of Customs
and Excise.
Q. At Ottawa?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Geoffrion:

Q. Mr, Taylor, what are your duties in the Department?—A. They are
defined by the Customs and Excise Act. Generally speaking, they are to
have control of the administration of the Excise Act.

Q. Of the Excise Act?—A. Of the Excise Act.

[Mr. G. W. Taylor.]
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Q. So, in that respect, you are the head?—A. Under the Deputy Mxmster
yes.
Q. You have control of the Excise seizures?—A. Yes.

Q. Will you please explain to us how that works? Give us the hlsfory ks

of the Excise seizures?—A. The seizures when made by the officers of either the
Preventive Service or the port are furnished to the Department, on Form E-101,
anc come into the records office where they are filed, and from there they go

down to the Law Branch—that is, the Excise portion of the Law Branch. -

Action is taken there by the principal clerk who prepares the letters dealing
with ‘the cases on their merits, and sends them to me for signature, if I approve
them. *

Q. What is sent to you? The ‘report on what? What does he send to
you for signature?—A. The letters dealing with the disposition of the case.

Q. The decision of the case?—A, Yes.

Q. And you sign them?—A. Yes, if I approve them.

Q. Therefore, you have the decision in respect of Excise seizures?—A. Yes.
That is, if the offence iz an indictable offence, the practice is to refer the
matter to the courts; if it is a non-indictable offence, T have been in the habil
of dealing with the case on its merits.

(). What is the difference between the Excise seizures and the Customs‘

seizures?—A. Under the Customs Law a customs seizure may be decided by
the decision of the Minister; under the Excise Law the seizure is determmed
my the Act itself; that is to say, the matter dealing with it.

(). That is exactly what I mean. The Excise seizures are for breaches of
the Inland Revenue?—A. Yes. ;

Q. And the othér for infractions of the Customs Act? Is that a correct
statement? If not, please complete it.—A. There is one section of the Act—
under the Inland Revenue Act—which covers the cases where goods are imported;
for instance, the illegal importation of spirits, or the illegal importation of
tobacco, cigars, or cigarettes, constitute offences under the Excise Act.

Q). So, as a general proposition, the Inland Revenue offences are Excise?—
A. Arc Excise, yes.

Hon. Mr. Ben~erT: Stamps, sales tax, and all that sort of thing come
under his direction—internal revenue.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. Mr. Taylor, you have charge of the aleohol situation, I understand?
—A. Domestic alcohol, yes.

Q. Will you briefly tell the Committee, so we may understand the evidence
that comes hereafter, how alcohol is dealt with, Domestic alcohol?—A. Well,
there are 17 distilleries at the present time licensed in the Dominion.

Q. Any in the lower provinces?—A. None in the lower provinces.

Q. How many in Quebec?—A. Six; three in Vancouver, two-in Manitoba;
and—

Q. Five in Ontario?—A. Five in Ontario, yes.

Q. They all operate under licehse from your Department?—A. Yes.

Q And under that license they are compelled to keep a record of the
quantity of alcohol or spirits they produce?—A. An exceedingly complete
record.

Q. A very careful one?—A. Yes, a very careful one.

Q. And no portion of the spirits thus produced can be released without
your authority? Is that the usual way of putting it?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And in every instance that authority must be the subject of a spe(nal
request? It is not a blanket authority?—A. Oh, no.

[Mr. G. W. Taylor.]
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Q. And the authority just given by you deals with a specific quantity, in
- gallons of spirits?—A. By entry, yes. G ]
Q. Assuming that a distillery in Manitoba desires to sell alcohol, what does
it do? —desires to sell a thousand gallons of aleohol to somebody in St. Paul,
what do they do?—A. In St. Paul the only means, under the present law of
disposing of it, would be to enter it for export, after having entered it for
duty.
" Q. They enter that thousand gallons of aleohol with your Department
for duty?—A. Yes.
) Q. For how much?—A. Nine dollars a proof gallon.

Q. Then what happens?—A. Requisition for a permit is made by the
distiller for the removal of the goods, of the alcohol, as duty paid and the
permit is made out and the distiller is then at liberty to remove it under a
Customs Export entry. '

Q. That is what I was coming at. He must have a Customs Export if it -
is going out of the country?—A. Out of the country. :

Q. Where does he get the Customs Export?—A. He gets it from the col-
lector of Customs at the point at which he is located.

Q. When he gets that he loads it on the cars?—A. Yes.

Q. Supposing a 1,000 cases of Scotch Whiskey are being imported into
Canada, what happens then? I want to put this case to you, being imported
into Canada?—A. You are dealing with a matter which is outside my jurisdic-
tion. 2 L

Q. Tt does not touch you at all?—A. Not the Excise Branch.

Q. Assuming they desire to release 100 cases of Canadian Rye, a distillery
in Ontario, then what happens?—A. For export?

Q. I am going to take the two, for domestic use and for export?—A. For
domestic use that liquor may only be shipped to government vendors and they
may remove it in bond on paid duty.

Q. If the duty is paid the same process goes through that you mentioned
with respect to alcohol, except that they require no Customs Exports?—A. Yes.

Q. If it is shipped to a vendor it can go to him in bond?—A. No.

Q. In such instance you issue a permit through the Department, from the
distillery to the vendor?—A. Yes.

Q. And the customs duty must be paid before it is shipped?—A. Nine
dollars per proof gallon.

o YQ. That is all that your Department has to do with those matters?—
. Yes.

Q. If a:distillery at Montreal desires to release a thousand gallons for
domestic use, what happens?—A. The same thing as in St. Paul becomes applic-
able to the Dominion.

Q. That will be a duty of how many dollars per proof gallon?—A. Nine
dollars per proof gallon. If the alcohol is made from not less than 90 per cent
of raw, or unmalted grain—if it is made from molasses, the duty would be
three cents on the proof gallon. If made entirely from malt, $9.02. The rate
is fixed on the duty applicable. '

Q. There 3 nothing in respect to hospitals?—A. No. That is to say the
duty is collected, but there is a provision in the Act now where ninety-nine
per cent may be made as a drawback. y

Q. Am I right in assuming that you have told me 6f the only method under
the law by which alecohol may be released from distilleries of Canada?—A. I
know pure alcohol may be released from a distillery in the form of denatured
alcohol, as provided by Section 363, that is, beverage alcohol.

: Q. I do not like to use the word “ beverage ” in respect to aleohol, but we
will leave that for the moment. Now, denatured alcohol—how can that be

[Mr. G. W. Taylor.]
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dealt with under the law as far as your Department is concerned?—A. An entry
ex-warehouse, for denaturing purposes; it is passed by the distillery. The
officers learn the quantity of alcohol covered by their entry and under their
supervision it is transferred in the distillery.

Q. Transferred into the denaturing warehouse?—A. Transferred into the

denaturing warehouse under their supervision, and is manufactured into de-
natured alcohol with the officers being present to observe it.

Q. No aleohol is denatured except under the supervision of the law?—
A. No.

Q. When the alcohol has been denatured it is shipped under the super-
vision of the officer?—A. Yes.

Q. Have you a record of the method by which alcohol spirits, dena,bured
alcohol may be released for consumption or use, either domestic or export?—A.
It can only be removed either in bond or duty paid, or for denaturing.

; Q. And denaturing must be done before it leaves the place of manufacture?
—A. Yes, absolutely. :

By Mr. Donaghy :

Q. You say there are three licenses for the provinee of British Columbla
Where are those parties located?—A. The British Columbia Distillery at New

Westminster; the Consolidated Distilleries, Limited, Vancouver; and the United -

Distillery, Limited, at Point Gray, seven miles outside of Vancouver.

Q. What is the general wording of the license? How does it read? Licensed
to what?—A. Licensed to distil or rectify spirits subject to—

Q. T did not hear you?—A. The license is to distil or rectify spirits sub-
ject to the provisions of the Excise Act.

Q. Does your Department issue what are called licenses to export houses?
—A. No sir.

Q. Licenses to houses to hold liquor in storage?—A. No sir, not for export.

Q. I beg your pardon?—A. Not for export.

Q. Have you received any complaints regarding the manner in which any
of those licensees from British Columbia have been observing the law?—A. No.

Q. Around Vancouver?—A. I have not;

Q. You have not heard of any at all?—A. T have not, no.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Mr. Taylor, I think there is something that suggests itself from Mr.
Bennett’s question. Assuming that any one holding spirits, aleohol or any form
of spirits in bond, desired to or makes a sale to a distiller, for what is the term
—Dblending purposes—A. Yes.

Q. What is the procedure of law in this case?—A. Are you referring now
to imported spirits?

Q. No, spirits held in the country, in bond, we will say?—A. The regu-
lations provide for the removal from one distiller to another of spirits in bond
and it might be that the spirits thus removed would be for flavouring or blend-
ing purposes.

Q. For what?—A. Flavouring or blending purposes. :

Q. What other purposes could there be?—A. Well, I do not know that
there could be any other purpose excepting one distiller was shipping a consign-
ment of liquor to a warehouse, to a vendor, but only a part consignment; he
would probably ship his part consignment to the other distiller, to make up a
carload and get the benefit of a carload rate.

Q. Blending purposes swould,be the only purpose for which it was shipped?
—A. That is aleohol. - That is principally 1mported spirits.

[Mr, G. W. Taylor.}
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Q. I am speaking about a transaction in the country. What course do you
pursue to protect the revenue of the country where there is a transaction of that
kind, transferring spirits from one to another in the country?—A. The goods
are always removed from bond under entry. The distiller gives a bond for

_double duty, treble duty. '

Q. The distiller shipping?—A. The distiller shipping gives a bond for
trebel duty, and the goods are then removed from bond on the bill of lading,
made to the order of the collector at the receiving port. >

Q. To the other party?—A. Yes.

Q. In the releasing of spirits by anyone holding it, a distiller or a ware-
house, in bond, what documents or orders are required?—A. Either a duty paid
entry or another entry for removal in bond. Those are the only two conditions.

Q. Would you describe this latter one, for removal in bond. Describe it
please, accurately and carefully?—A. The distilleries require to give a bond
on the form provided by the Department for that purpose. .

Q. Form what?—A. A bond.

Q. What is the name of the form?—A. It is a removal bond.

Q. A removal bond?—A. That is the general term. That bond describes
in detail the character of the goods. Generally it gives the gauges of the barrels,
also it states how much spirits are to be removed. We bind the distiller for
three times the duty.

Q. That is, the vendor?—A. The distiller.

Q. The distiller from which it is being removed, or to whom it is being
sent?—A. The distiller to whom it is being removed; the person shipping, and
the bond is signed by the distillery in order to protect it.

Q. That is what I mean?—A. The person shipping, and the bond is signed
by the distillery company or their attorney and by another party, who is like-
wise jointly and severally obligated under the bond.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett: \
Q. A Surety Company?—A. No, a personal bond.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. What officer of the department authorizes the release or the taking out of
the original bonded warehouse these goods?—A. Well, the officer in charge of
the distillery, if the entry is passed at the distillery.

Q. Your own officer?>—A. The officer in charge of the distillery.

Q. Suppose it is warehoused?—A. We have no bonded waréhouses except
those licensed by the Liquor Commission. .

Q. But who authorizes the release of those goods?—A. I am talking of
cases? at a port office, and you are talking about the removal in bond or duty
paid?

Q. No, removal in bond?—A. You are talking about a bonded warehouse.
If the entry is passed at a port office, the collector, or the officer authorized by
the collector, signs the document with an order for the release, and that is
handed to the officer in charge of the bonded warehouse, who thus has authority
to release.

Q. Then what does he do with the document?—A. He has the document
with his signature, showing that it has been released.

Q. Would you mind filing for me, giving me an extra copy, these documents
required for the removal of goods of that character?—A. Yes, certainly.

Q. Another question; is it according to the Act—I think it is, but you will
correct me if I am wrong—that distilled liquor, whiskey or other liquors must
be kept in bond two years before they are released for consumption?—A.
FExcept when otherwise ordered by Order in Council.

[Mr. G. W. Taylor.]
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Q. That is the Act, anyway, that distilled liquors, whiskey or other liquors
must be kept in bond two years?—A. Except as I have just stated; except when
otherwise ordered by Order in Council.

Q. What is the reason for that?—A. New distilleries starting up.

Q. But the reason for keeping them in bond two years?—A. Well, it has
been generally regarded as improving the quality of the liquor.

Q. For the safeguarding of the public health, or the health of the consumers? =
—A. For the improvement of the quality. ' ; g
Q. I think perhaps we can say generally that raw liquor is not as good for fa{"
consumption as a liquor matured; it is for maturing purposes?—A. To improve v

the quality. y ,
Q. You are an expert in this matter, and I am trying to get your opinion -
about the keeping of this liquor. Maturing is considered a necessary part of the -
manufacture of a good line of goods, is it not?—A. Yes, sir.
Q. Tworyears has been fixed by law for that purpose?—A. As a minimum.
Q. Of course if it is-kept 20 years, so much the better; we do not get very
 much 20-year-old stuff now?—A. No.
Q. I have some copies of Orders in Council before me, and I hope I will not
be prevented from using them, because they were laid on the table of the House i
at my request a few days ago. I have a copy of an Order in Council dated = °
April 17th, 1924, P.C. 641, File 112437. It is unnecessary for me to read it all, ‘
unless the members of the Committee desire it. It states: |
“ The Minister, therefore, recommends, under the provisions of Sec- {
tion 171, Sub-section 4 of the Inland Revenue Act, as amended by 10-11, l
George V, Chapter 52, Section 4, that authority be granted to permit it
Messrs. Gooderham and Worts, Limited, Licensed Distillers, Toronto, to |
manufacture Spirits from the 1st of April o 31st of December, 1924 d
inclusive, and to enter ex-warehouse for consumption any or all of such |
Spirits, manufactured during said period at any date after manufacture.
The Commission concur in the foregoing recommendation and submit
the same for approval.” : /
I want to ask you to explain to the Committee just the meaning of that
Order in Council if you will?~—A. This case of Gooderham and Worts was an
exceptional case. During the war their plant was turned over entirely for the
manufacture of Acetone. They made no spirits whatever during the period of
the war. The result was that after the war they were without a stock of spirits
to carry on business with, and their application to the Department was that
they be permitted to ex-warehouse for purposes of a general character the spirits
manufactured during a period of mine months, in order that they might have
some soleable goods. That seemed to me a very reasonable request, and I
recommended the matter to the Minister accordingly. .
Q. Were those goods released for home consumption, or for export?— 2
A. Either. % {
Q. You do not make any discrimination in favour of home consumption?
—A. No, just for purposes of a general character.
Q. T have another Order in Council here, dated the 14th of September, 1925, %
P.C. 1646, File No. 123175: _ ]
“The Committee of the Privy Council, on the recommendation of
the Acting Minister of Customs and Excise, advise that under the -
provisions of Section 171, Sub-section 4 of the Excise Aet, Chapter 51,
R.S.C. 1906, authority be granted to permit the Distillers’ Corporation,
Limited, Licensed Distillers, Montreal, to enter for consumption, for .
purposes of general character, at any date after the manufacture thereof,
all or any portion of the stock of spirits produced in said distillery during
the first nine calendar months of production of such spirits.”
[Mr. G. W.  Taylor.]
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i This is apparently an Order to permit entering for consumption any spirits

~ as soon as manufactured.—A. Yes. , ; v
Q. What was_the reason behind the granting of that permit?—A. A new
distillery. S

~ Q. All you have to do is to start a new distillery?—A. If the Governor
in Council passes the Order in Council. ' ;

Q. I do not suppose I would be in order if I were to ask your opinion of
the release of the liquor o soon after manufacture; you have had a very long
experience as tlie head of this department; would you mind giving the committee
you opinion upon that question?—A. I prefer not to express it.

Mr. DonagHY: He should not be asked to express an opinion of an action
of the Government which passed the Act.

The WirNess: It is a matter of Government policy. .

Hon. Mr. Stevens: But Mr. Taylor is undoubtedly perhaps the highest
authority on this question in the Dominion of Canada. ‘

Mr. Erviorr: He does not wish to sit in judgment upon some question of
Governmental policy. ,

By Hon. Mr. Stevens: .
Q. In your opinion as an expert, Mr. Taylor, do you consider it advisable
to release liquor as soon as manufactured, for consumption?—A. I would prefer,
if the Committee will permit me, not to answer the question.
& ’

By Mr. Donaghy: -
Q. Is it within the Act to do it, or Order in Council?—A. Yes.
Q. The expression has been used that it is contrary to the Act?—A. I have
the section before me, Section 171.
Mr. DonacrY: That settles it. Parliament made that law.
.. Hon. Mr. Stevenxs: I don’t-think it does settle it.
Mr. DonacgHY: You are above Parliament, then.

. Hon. Mr. Stevens: No, I am not.above Parliament. I think Mr. Donaghy
said the other day that we were here for the purpose of getting at the facts in
any manner we might think desirable. I am taking this matter up with Mr.
Taylor as a leading expert in the Dominion of Canada. If he thinks that this
provision in the Act providing for the release of liquor as soon as it is manu-
factured is conducive to the health of the community.

The Witness: I certainly do not think that it has any prejudicial effect,
so far as the health of the community is concerned.
Mr. Ervior: - He does not drink it, I suppose.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Let me put it this way. Do you think it is wise to release liquor
immediately after it is manufactured?—A. I prefer not to answer the question.

Q. You refuse to give the Committee your opinion as an expert, to guide
the Committee in any amendments to the Act they may wish to recommend?
—A. I do not refuse to give the Committee my opinion, but in view of the fact
that the Act has been passed by Parliament I do not like to give an opinion
reflecting upon any action of Parliament.

Mr. DoNaguy:, I think he is right. He has no right as an official to cast
any reflection upon any action of Parliament. He is quite within his rights in
taking that stand.

[Mr. G. W. Taylor.]
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Hon. Mr. Stevexs: How can we make a recommendation to Parliament i
that that Act should be amended, withdrawing this privilege, without getting .y

§

the -opinion of an expert? i

/ Mr. DoNacay: Parliament has not referred this Act to us to make any 5
recommendations on. That is not part of our duties. .

Hon. Mr. Stevens: That was referred to the other day, not by myself L
but by the Minister, that we were here for the purpose of suggesting amend- 3l
ments whereby we mlght improve the Act, and now we are precluded from
information whlch will help us.

Mr. Erviorr: I think the question has been fairly answered. The sugges-
tion of the questioner a moment ago was that this was being done contrary to
the Act. '

Hon. Mr. Stevens: No, no; if I made that suggestion I gave the wrong
impression, because I know better, and I changed the form of the question.

i
T
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By Hon. Mr. Stevens: Cre "“
Q. You refuse to answer to that question, Mr. Taylor?—A. I prefer not to,

Q. You have apparently some support from the committee. Well, we will |
take the next Order in Council, that of October 20, 1925. . )

“The Committee of the Privy Councﬂ on the recommendatlon 06
the Minister of Customs and Excise, advise that under the provisions o

Section 171, subsection (4) of the . Excise Act, Chapter 51, Revised
Statutes of Canada, 1906, as amended, authority be granted to permit
the Manitoba Refinery Company Limited, licensed distillers, St. Boni-
face, Manitoba, to enter for consumption, for purposes of general
character, at any date after the manufacture thereof, all or any portion
of the stock of spirits produced in said distillery during the first nine
months of actual production operations.”

'k suppése your answer to this will be the same?—A. A similar instance.

Q. Another distillery desiring to start business, getting authority to sell
liquor immediately after its manufacture, under this special provision of the
Act, by Order in Council?—A. Yes sir.

Q. Did you recommend the passing of that amendment to the Act, Mr.
Taylor?—A. No.

Q. Did the Department of Excise? Was the Department of Excise con-
sulted, or was your opinion asked on such an amendment?—A. I can not recall.

Q. You cannot recall any request of that kind?—A. I do not recall any ]
such request.

Q. But they never asked your opinion on it, as head of the Department?—
A. T recall no request having been made to the Excise branch, of that nature.

Q. Now, on the 7th of January, 1926, we have another Order in Couneil
permitting the Consolidated Distilleries of Manitoba, Limited, St. Boniface,
Manitoba, to enter for consumption for purposes of general character, at any
date after the manufacture thereof, all or any portion of the stock of spirits
produced in that distillery during the period from January 15th to September
15th, 1926. Is this a new distillery?—A. Comparatively; it has been in opera-
tion about a year.

Q. And what were the reasons for granting this application?—A. My recol-
lection is that being a new distillery, they made application to be permitted the
same privilege as other new distilleries.

[Mr. G. W. Taylor.]
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By Hon. Mr. Bennett: '

" Q. Shortly put, Mr. Taylor, the effect of these Orders in Council is to repeal
the provision of the statute which says that spirits shall mature for two years
before being sold?>—A. In application, only insofar as these new distilleries are
concerned. B

Q. I say, in practice the effect of the Orders in Council is to repeal, pro
tempo, the provision which says that spirits shall mature for two years before
" being sold?>—A. I would like to qualify that by saying, insofar as new dis-
tilleries are concerned. gy - |
Q. Insofar as the Orders in Ceuncil are concerned?—A. I could conceive
that it would be within the power of the Governor General in Council to give
‘that privilége to other distilleries than new distilleries, but it has not been done.
Q. Then the distilleries which grew up in this country 50 years ago had to
- keep their spirits for two years, but new ones can sell them as fast as they are
made?—A. For a limited period.
Q. All they make for nine months they can sell, and if they sell all that
they do not have any on hand?—A. Quite so.
Q. How long does it take to make the spirits?—A. It is a short process, a
matter of ten days. , ) g
Q. The grain goes in one end, and ten days later they are able to sell raw
spirits—Scotch whidkey, rye whiskey, and so on?—A. They cannot sell Scotch
‘whiskey -made in any distillery in Canada, as such.
Q. Just raw alcohol and any other name they see fit to put on it which
has reference to the material from which it is produced?—A. Yes.
Q. And to that extent it is a breach of the statute?—A. The Act refers to
the whole product of a distillery as “spirits”.
Q. In these néw distilleries there need never be any two years maturing
of spirits at all?>—A. Oh yes, all spirits except as provided in the Orders in
Council for the limited period. Following that they must be matured.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Just a further question, Mr. Taylor. A great deal of the trade in
alcohol in the country during the last couple of years has been for these dis-
tilleries manufacturing this raw liquor, raw spirits?—A. No, the trade in alcohol,
Mr. Stevens, is principally for manufacturing in bond by licensed bonded manu-
facturers, articles of commerce such as pharmaceutical preparations, medicines,
vinegar, and so -on. :

Q. A distillery would not buy alohol for that purpose?—A. They produce
it for that purpose.

Q. What would they buy it for?—A. If they were short in stock of the
particular quality of alcohol—say we call a No. 2 alcohol non-potable—if they
were short in stock of that particular quality, I can understand where they
would desire to purchase to fill the orders of their customers.

Q. Do you remember that alcohol seized on the barge Tremblay?—A. Yes.

Q. What was that? Give the precise technical description of it?—A. In
my judgment that was a potato spirit. ;

Q. Is that some of it which you have there in the bottle?—A. Yes sir.

Q. You came prepared?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You expected some talk on this?—A. I expected there would be some
questions asked about the alcohol.

Q. I am not going into it to-day.—A. One of these spirits is a pure spirit.
(Witness produces two bottles containing samples of alcohol.z

[Mr. G. W. Taylor.]
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By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. The pure spirit is a grain spm’o?—A A grain spirit, and the ot,her 185
what I believe to be a potato spirit. o

By Hon. Mr. Stevens

Q. How can you find out?—A. It is a question of expert oplmon
Q. Not by analysis?—A. No, sir.
Q. What 'do the i mvmces say, the original invoices which were seized?—A. I
did not see them.
Q. Do you know?—A. No.
Q. Do you know how it was descn’beﬁ?—A No.
Q. Where are those invoices?—A. I suppose they are on file in the depart-'
ment,. :
Q. Would you mind producmg them?—A. Yes, sir, 1f they are there.

By Mr. Donaghy : ' o
Q. I want to ask you a question, Mr. Taylor. This provision of the law
which has been criticised, whereby the Governor in Council is given power to
allow distilleries to release alcohol before the two year period expires, when was

that ‘provision of the law enacted by Parliament? What year‘?—A 1 think i £\ "
was in 1922, I am not sure. i

Wil you look in fhis statute and tell me? Look at section six, and see j
if that is the amendment?—A. Yes. :

Q. What year was that law amended?—A. 1920. s
Q. Who was the Minister of Customs at that time, the Minister of Customs
and Excise? ]

Hon. Mr. BExnNerT: Hon. Mr. Wigmore, was it not?
Hon. Mr. Stevens: No, I do not think so.
The Witness: Hon. Mr. Baster was the last Minister under the old regime.
He was there for three months.
1920Hon. Mr. BENNETT: He came in in 1921. I thlnk it was Mr. ngmore T S :
Mr. DonacaY: That is all.
Hon. Mr. Ben~err: I hope my hon. friend does not think it makes it any
the less bad because it was passed in 1920. .

Q. May I ask one question? T under\tood* you to say to Mr. Stevens that
these distilleries were not permitted to make Scoteh?—A. T hey are not permitted :
to make Scotch and make it as such. ]

Q. But it is a fact, is it not, that they are making it notwithstanding that?— J
A. They are making it, but they may not market it under: the name of Scotch
The Department of Health covers that point.

Q. I think you started to give us the distinction between these two samples
of alcohol. Would you complete that, if you have not already done so?—A. I
was simply taking the case of a pure spirit, and comparing it with this aleohol
imported on the barge Tremblay. T have reduced that three to one, or four to
one—at least, T got the analyst to do it, and I think that even an untrained nose
would be able to diseriminate and distinguish between them.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: You had better let me smell it because my nose is
untrained. ! 3

Mr. Donvacry: We must not joke about this,

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I am not joking; I am very serious.

[Mr. G. W. Taylor.] )

By Mr. Bell: ) 1




'RE DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS AND EXCISE : 81

The Wirngss: I do not think a perso'nwneéds to be an expert to distinguish
between the two. :

By Mr. Elliott:

Q. Just a question or two. You were oc'cupying in 1920 the same position
which you now occupy?—A. Yes sir.

Q. And this amendment to the Act Went through the regular stages, I
suppose?—A. So far as I am aware.

Q. You did not receive any prote%ts so far az you were concerned?——A
No.

Q. Mr. Stevens was in the House at that time?

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Mr. Chairman, I don’t care a button about whether
the Conservatives were in power or not; I want the truth and I do not want
. any insinuations. I do not care who was in.

Mr. DoNagHY: I think Mr. Stevens voted for thls amendment, as a matter
of fact.

Hon. Mr. Bex~nerr: I am sure my hon. friend would not like me to ask
whether he would like to have been in the House also. It does not matter
whether Mr. Stevens was in the House or not.

By Mr. Elliott: :

By the way, will you let us have the Aet up to date, the office consolidation
of the Act? What is the Act you have there in your hand?—A. This is the
office consolidation of the Excise Act, but there are one or two further amend-
ments.

Q. Could you conveniently have the amendments attached and supply
each member of the committee with a copy?—A. Yes sir.

Q. What other Acts do you operate under?—A. I am not charged with the
administration of the Special War Revenue Act. There is the Petroleum
Inspection Act—1I think that is all.

Q. And what regulations have you?—<A. We have regulations for each
branch of excise work—tobacco, malt, brewers, distilleries, cigars, and so on.

Q. Will you let us have all the’ regulatlone that are printed?—A. In
respect of this Act?

Q In recpect of this Act, if you please.—-A. Yes sir.

By Hon Mr. Bennett:

Q. And at, the same time, will you get us the first Order in Council which
was passed permitting the release of spirits?—A. Mr. Stevens, in the Order of
the House, got the whole of them.

Q. That-is what I wanted to be clear on. They are all here?—A. Yes.
There were five, if I remember rightly.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. No others were passed?—A. No others were passed.

The committee adjourned until Monday, February 15th, 1926, at 10.30 a.m.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Monpay, 15th February, 1926. |

The Committee met at 10.30 a.m., Mr. Mercier, the Chairman, presiding.

Present: Méssrs. Bell, Donaghy, Doucet, Elliott, Kennedy, Mercier, St.
- Pére and Stevens—S8.

The minutes of the last meeting were read and adopted.

Hon. Mr. Boivin produced for the use of the Committee:—

(a)
()

(c)
(d)

(e)

Evidence taken by Inspector Walter Duncan in inquiry which began
on 1st December, 1925, and concluded on 1st February, 1926;

All correspondence concerning the purchase by the Daminion Distil-
lery Products Co., Limited, of 16,000 gallons of distilled alcohol at
Montreal;

Confidential interim report of Inspector Walter Duncan, 10th Decem-
ber, 1925; A
Copy of all documents on file in Department of Health in connection
with the enforcement of the Narcotic Drug Act, including the evidence,
the testimony, and the judge’s summing up, in the case of Rex wvs.
Lortie-St. George;

Documents from the Department of Health in reference to the case
of Lortie-St. George;

(f) Copy of all correspondence to and from Prime Minister’s office in con-

nection with smuggling.

Hon. G. H. Boivin, Minister of Customs and Excise, was called and sworn,

~ and was examined respecting the investigation conducted by Inspector Walter

Duncan. He undertook to file with the Committee to-morrow the original interim
report and the original of the final report of Inspector Duncan. Witness retired.

Mr.

Donaghy moved,—That all the witnesses examined before Walter

Dunecan in the course of his investigation of the Customs Department on behalf
of any one be summoned to appear before this Committee for examination, and
that they be required to bring with them all reports, files, letters, telegrams,
cheques and documents in any way relating to this inquiry. °

Motion carried.

Mr. Elliott moved,—That Messrs. Stevens, Donaghy! Kennedy, and the
Chairman, be a sub-committee to arrange the order in which the witnesses to be
summoned before this ‘Committee shall be heard, and to group, as far as
possible, the witnesses called in connection with each charge or complaint; and
that the said sub-committee recommend the dates upon which the various
witnesses shall be summoned to appear Before this Committee.

Motion stands over until to-morrow,

Commissioner Starnes, R.C.M.P., undertook to produce files respecting

. smuggling, etc., at Vancouver, Discovery Island,\ B.C., Victoria, and islands

adjacent.
16089—13%



My SPECIAL COMMIT

Hon Mr. Stevens moved,—That A. F. B’olmes, Gnstoms Oﬁm, Ro
- Island, P.Q., be summoned for Wednesday next, February 17, to produce
correspondence with the Department in referenee to smuggling ‘at Rock Islan

- Motion agreed to. \

The question as to whether or not the Committee should sit on Ash Wedr
nesday (17th February) having been brought up, it was decided in the aﬁrma«\-
tive. (Whether the House sits on that day or not).

-
R

tvf

Mr. Doucet moved,—For the production wof the files containing all docu- '
ments, correspondence, telegrams and reports in connection with the seizure of
the schooner Margaret Kennedy for the infraction of Customs and Excise laws e,

in the year 1922, and its subsequent release.
Motion agreed to.

Mr. Doucet moved,—For the production of the files containing the lteport B
of one, Prospere Theriault, and others, employees of the Customs and Excise
Department, Port of Montreal, on investigation held for the said department
on the north shore of the St. Lawrence, for the years 1923, 1924 and 1925.

Motion agreed to.

Mr. Doucet moved,—For the production of the file containing all docu-
ments, correspondence, telegrams and reports in the case of the seizure of an
automobile from one, Eugine Guertin, of Montreal, 1925.

‘Motion agreed to.

Hon. Mr. Stevens moved,—That Mr. Brackin, K.C., be allowed to act as
counsel to Dominion D1~t111er\ Products Co., lexted to Mr. George, and to
Mr. Hushion; and that Mr. Henderson, K.C., be allowed to act as counsel to
Commercial Protective Association.

Motion agreed to.

Mr. Gregory George, Vice-President and General Manager, Dominion
Distillery Products Co., Limited, Montreal, was called and sworn. After being
examined, Mr. George was retired.

Mr. Brackin, K.C., to produce three trunks of records for deposit with the
Clerk of the Committee, two of W. George, Limited, and one of Dominion Dis-
tillery Products Co., Limited.

Mr. William James Hushion of Montreal, Que., was called, sworn, and
examined as to a purchase of alcohol by Dom1mon Distillery Products Co.,
Limited, from the Government. Mr. Hushion produced cancelled bank chequea
and bank books. He will produce to-morrow remainder of productions called
for in his summons. Witness retired. '

Mr. William Foster Wilson, Chief Preventive Service, Department of Cus-
toms and Excise, was called and sworn. He was examined respecting his duties.

The Committee adjourned until to-morrow at 10.30 a.m.

WALTER TODD,
Chief Clerk.

i
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5 ; "MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

Monpay, February 15, 1926.
i

The Special Committee appointed to investigate the administration of the
Department of Customs and Excise, and charges relating thereto, met at 10.30
a.m., the Chairman, Mr. Mercier, presiding.

The Crerk: Hon. Mr. Boivin produced for the information of the Committee
several documents as set forth in the Minutes of Proceedings.

Hon. Georee Henry Borvin, called and sworn.

\ By Mr. Donaghy:

Q. Mr. Boivin, you are the Minister of Customs and Excise?—A. Yes.

Q. When did you assume that office, Mr. Boivin?—A. Speaking from
memory, I was appointed on the 4th day of September, 1925, sworn on the 5th
of September, 1925, and took over the administration of the Department from
the then acting Minister, the Honourable Mr, Cardin, on the 31st day of
October, 1925. g i

Q. It was about the end of October when you assumed active duty?—A.
Yes.

Q. We have had produced by you here a large. volume apparently of
evidence, being the examination of a great number of witnesses on an investi-
gation held by Inspector Duncan?—A. Yes.

. Q. How did Inspector Duncan come to examine those witnesses?—A. Very $
shortly after my arrival at Ottawa on the 31st of October, 1925, I repeated to

the Honourable Mr. Robb, the then Minister 6f Finance, some of the rumours
which had reached my ears in the city of Montreal during the general election
campaign, concerning inefficiency and maladministration on the part of the
preventive service, in the city and district of Montreal. I remember that I
mentioned Mr. Bisaillon’s name, but I cannot remember the other names of the
officers who were complained of in those rumours. Mr. Robb immediately said
that the proper thing to do would be to have an investigation. I told him that

that was my idea too, but that I did not know exactly to whom I could turn to
secure a competent investigating officer. He told me that he had in the employ

of the Department of Finance as Investigation Agent Inspector Walter Duncan,

who had been with them for several years and who had always given them
complete satisfaction. If T remember correctly, he told me that Inspector
Duncan was engaged upon some particular work for the Department of Finance, \
but that he would send him to my office in a day or two, in order that I might *
arrange with him to make this investigation. As near as I can remember, it

was about ten days later.

- Q. Later than what?—A. Later than this conversation, which took place
about two or three days after my arrival at Ottawa, and therefore it would be~*
about the 15th of November when Inspector Duncan came to my office and
spent several hours in consultation with me,

Q. That is the middle of November, you mean?—A. About the 15th of
November. T asked him if he would undertake to investigate the administration
of the preventive service office or staff at Montreal; he said that he would, but

[Hon. G. H. Boivin.]
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: \

Q. You might give us some impressions. Does this report contain damag-
ing evidence against some of the employees of the Customs Department?—A.
Speaking under oath I would say that, apart from Mr. Bisaillon, it does not
contain that kind of evidence upon which I would like to act to dismiss any

officer of the department. It does contain a certain number of clues which may-

lead to serious accusations, or may not. ‘

Mr. Berw: I suppose in any event that is rather anticipating the stand the
Committee might take after perusing it. :
. Wirness: But I want to say in fairness, Mr. Bell, that I think the report
is a very valuable report for the Committee to have, and that it will enable the
Committee to bring here as witnesses everyone who was connected with wrong-
doing in the port of Montreal.

By Mr. Dond.ghy:

Q. I see this report of the evidence contains 319 typewritten pages of
questions and answers?—A. It does. , ]

Q. Apparently the examination of two or three score of witnesses?—A. Yes.

Q. A great many of them being employees of the Department of Customs?—
A. With the exception of three or four I think they are all employees of the
Department of Customs, or were at one time or another. One of them is a
dismissed employee. - .

Q. You will submit the result of the inquiry which you had Inspector
Duncan make, for the use of the Committee, for our assistance?—A. For the
assistance of the Committee.

Q. And I take it that in any other way you possibly can, you are willing
to co-operate with the Committee to ferret out any crime or maladministration,
or irregularity?—A. That is the reason for my presence here.

Mr. Bern: I would like to have an opportunity of asking you a number of
questions, Mr. Boivin, but not this morning, because your being called here
come?s as a surprise to the Committee. I presume you will be available at any
time?

Wrrness: I will be available at any time, and I hope, with the Committee’s
permission, that I may be present all the time. ;

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I was just going to point out that this examination is
taken out of its order, because there are some names that should precede that
of the Minister. I do not want to object, because I do not want the Minister
to think T am always objecting. All T want is to make the statement that we
had no knowledge of Hon. Mr. Boivin going on the stand. We had other
witnesses we were prepared for. We simply reserve the right to cross-examine
or question Hon. Mr, Boivin further.

The CHAIRMAN: But the members of the committee were anxious to have
Mr. Duncan’s report, and now that it has been produced with the necessary
explanation, it will help every member of the committee.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I would like to point out, Mr. Chairman, that the report
of Mr. Duncan which is now before, the interim report, is only a copy and not
the original. T would like to have had the original produced here before the
committee.

The Wrirxess: I can explain that, if you will ‘allow me. This copy was
prepared in answer to the motion made in the House. It was the only document
received during the month of December, and it happened to be on my desk this
morning. The other report is in my office, but I will file it.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Objections have been made time and again to my ask-
ing questions on a copied document, and not having the original. That is the
only reason I mention the fact.

[Hon. G. H. Boivin.]
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The Wrrxess: The original of the final report and the original of this
‘interim report will be filed to-morrow morning, if that will be satisfactory.

By Mr. Bell:

Q. Can we not have the original of the interim report filed this afternoon?—
A. I can file it in five minutes, but I will have to go to the office to get it.

Mr. GaeNoN: Might I be allowed to put a couple of questions to Mr.
~ Boivin? . ;

Mr. Berw: I certdinly would not like to deprive Mr. Gagnon of his oppor-
tunity of examining the witness, but I think it ought to be deferred because of
the unexpected examination of the Minister to-day. We have refrained from
asking the Minister to answer questions on this oceasion, and T think that we
should defer from doing anything that would necessitate the taking of his
evidence piece-meal, s . :

Mr. Gaeyon: I wish to put two questions about Mr. Duncan’s report.
That is all I wish'to ask. 4

Mr. Bern: Not as to the administration?

Mr. GagNoN: No, it is in regard to certain documents.

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: Will you produce those?

Mr. GagNon: Yes, just two questions concerning the report.

The CaamrMAN: You will restrict yourself to those questions?

By Mr. Gagnon:

. Q. It is in reference to Mr. Duncan’s report. When you appointed him to
make the investigation, was it to be a confidential report to you? Was he
under oath? Did he take a special oath beforé taking charge of this investiga-
tion?—A. Not that I know of. Mr. Duncan was under oath as a special police
officer, in the employ of the Department of Finance, and it was under this oath
that he conducted the investigation.

Q. And he was supposed to report confidentially to you on it?—A. He was
supposed to report confidentially on it from time to time. I might say this, that
he did give me one or two verbal reports, but the only written report that I ever
received from Mr. Duncan is a report which I received this morning, and the
final report will be filed to-morrow morning. If the Committee will allow me
just one word of explanation in connection with my former evidence, I stated
that I had been sworn on the 5th September, and that I took over the adminis-
tration of this Department, on or about the 31st October. I do not want the
Committee to misunderstand me. During the period between the 5th of
September and the 81st October, I happened to be in Ottawa, I think, on three
occasions, to attend council meetings, and on those three occasions I went to
the office of the Department to sign some routine reports, which reports Mr.
Cardin had, he remaining as Acting Minister.

The CuamMmaN: Mr. Clerk, will you call the names of the other witnesses

summoned for to-day. Mr. George of the Dominion Distillers?
Hon. Mr. Bowvin: He is here. '
Hon. Mr. Stevens: He is in the room.
The CuAlRMAN: W. George, Limited, are they represented here?
Mr. Brackin, K.C.: I represent Mr. George.
The CrAmrMAN: Mr. W. J. Hushion of Montreal.
Hon. Mr. Stevens: He is here.

Mr. Donagay: I see two counsel here—Mr, Brackin and Mr. Henderson,
and I will be glad—I understand Mr. Henderson represents the Commercial

[Hon. G. H. Boivin.]
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Protective Association and I understand they will ask to be heard when the
occasion arises.

Mr. Brackin: I represent the Dominion Distillers.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: We have no motion that Mr. Brackin be heard, and 1
will make a motion that Mr. Henderson and Mr. Brackin, both K.C’s,, be heard
before the Committee.

Mr. Brackin, K.C.: I understand the motion has already been passed,
authorizing counsel to appear?

Mr. Grecory GrorGE called and sworn.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. What is your position?—A. With whom, sir?

Q. With the Dominion Distillers?—A. I am Vice-President and General
Manager.

Q. Now, in your summons on Saturday you were asked to produce the
original books of entry. I am going to read these-out. I am going to read them
first and we will go into them in detail in a moment. The original books of
entry, receiving books and shipping books; cash books; journals; ledgers; bank
books; bank accounts’ statement; cancelled cheques; for the years 1924 and
1925, invoices of goods inward; invoices of goods outward; waybills; express
and freight shipping receipts; warehouse receipts, original order book; orders
received for goods; shipping instructions; customs entries; customs receipts;
sales tax returns; sales tax receipts; transfer and cartage accounts; all insur-
ance policies of all descriptions, also the particulars of the names of the officérs
+ and directors of your firm. Have you got those records with you?—A. They
are at the Chateau Laurier. I left instructions there to have them brought up
here; three trunks.

Mr, Brackin, K.C.: When we left the hotel the trunks had not arrived,
and we left instructions to have them sent over here. What we are calling Mr.
‘George for is to produce these documents. With regard to some of these cases,
there is a chartered company, the George Import and Export Company in
St. Pierre, and a lot of those export manifests, ete., a lot of those documents are
at St. Pierre; that is, liquor shipped from St. Pierre.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. That was included?—A. Of course, I think you realize that it would
be utterly impossible for us in that time to get all of them from St. Pierre.

Q. Anyhow you will produce to-day what you have on hand?—A. We have
4 couple of these trunks which have been shipped, and whatever we have we
will produce. We will produce all the information covered by the subpoena.

Q. All documents possible to produce up to this time?—A. We will pro-
duce anything different which we have in Montreal, but what we have at the
Island of St. Pierre, necessarily we cannot get in time, unfortunately.

By Mr. Donaghy

Q. When can you get that material from St. Plerre'?—A It will take some
time.

Q. What do you mean by some time?—A. Personally, I do not know how
long it will take.

Mr. Brackin, K.C.: We can telegraph Of course, this is one of the dif-
ferent companies ‘with which Mr. George is connected, but I am not seeking
to hide behind that, although it is not mentioned in the subpoena At the same

[Mr. Gregory George.]
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time even if there is something which Mr. George might have control over,
_ even though it is in the parent company, registered at St. Pierre as a partner-
ship, we would still do everything we can to get it.

Mr. Donacry: We should feel very much obliged if you will just garry
-out thal suggestion and do what is necessary.

The CuamMAN: You will do everything possible to provide the Com-
mittee with everything that is required?

Mr. Brackin, K.C.:Yes. For example, there is a branch of the Bank of
~ Commerce at St. Pierre, the only Canadian bank there. Through that branch
of the Canadian Bank of Commerce we transact business, bills of lading, remit-
tances of money and all that are done through the Bank of Commerce at St.
Pierre, and the company at St. Pierre ships from St. Pierre, a registered partner-
ship, according to the laws of the Island, and while Mr. George is connected
with that company, that is the company that makes the shipments, which I
‘assume are to be investigated by the Committee. Therefore we must get that
information for you. Where there is such a shipment of liquor paid for, he
goull)d pay for it, and we have to get the records of the Bank of Commerce at
t. Pierre.

Mr. Doxacry: Is that the Dominion Distillers?

Mr. Brackin, K.C.: No, that is not the Dominion Distillers. That is the.

George Import and Export Company.
Mr. DonagaY: Do you think the Committee will require—
Mr. Brackix, K.C.: I have not the slightest doubt that the Committee

will say “Here is a particular shipment from St. Pierre, we want to know about
that, and where are the documents respecting it?”

Mr. DonaguY: How long does it take to communicate with St. Pierre?
Wirness: It would depend on the sailings of the boats there.

Mr. DonagHY: A couple of weeks?

Wrirness: 1 should say so, probably. .

The CuARMAN: I think the best thing to do is to open the trunks which
are here, and we can look at those documents. They will be deposited in the
hands of the Clerk of the Committee, and all the members will see them. Mr.
Stevens has made the charges and he can examine the documents.

Wirness: We have all the documents of the Dominion Distillers and the
W. George, Limited.

Mr. DonagaY: We can examine these documents if the Committee sees fit.
Wirness: I have the documents of the W. George, Limited.
Mr. BeLL: Do you know whether these trunks are in town?

Mr. BrackiN, K.C.: They had not arrived when we left. They were
coming from Montreal. :

Mr. DonagHY: How are they coming, by motor truck?

Wrrness: I understand they are coming by express, and that they are at
the station now. '

The CHAIRMAN: That is the shortest route in the winter time. Mr. George
undertakes to produce the contents of these trunks and they will be left with the
Clerk of the Committee; all the records as set forth in this summons.

Mr. DoNnagHY: That trunk had better be brought into this room, the same
as the files have been. ! !

Hon. Mr. SteveNns: As long as they are in charge of the Committee, I do
not, care where they are.

[Mr. Gregory George.]
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and night.
The CHAIRMAN: You are released momentarily, witness. If we need you,
- we will call you. Stay in the room or around here, so as to be within the advice
of your Counsel.

Mr. Brackin, K.C.: You want anythmg in connection thh W. George,
Limited, as a oorporatlon?

By the Chairman:

Q. You are producing at the same time the records of the W. George,

Limited?—A. Yes.

trunk.
By Mr. Donaghy:
Q. How many trunks are there altogether; the Clerk wants to know how

many trunks you are bringing altogether; is it three?>—A. Two trunks of the
W. George, Limited, and one other trunk of the Dominion Distilleries.

Wirriam James HusHION, called and sworn.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

AQY Mr. Hushion, your place of business is at 1195 St. James street, Montreal?
- es, Sir.
| Q. Are you connected with the Dominion Dlstlllen%"—A I am a share-
older. j
Are you an officer of the company?—A. No, sir.
Can you tell me who the officers are?—A. No, sir.
You do not know?—A. No, sir.
You say you do not know who the officers are?—A. Not all of them.
Do you know any of them?—A. Some of them.
. Can you tell the Committee who they are?—A. Mr. George is one.
. Give their names and positions?—A. I gon’t know their positions.
. You do not know?—A. No, sir.
Give us the full names of those you do know, of all you know?—A. Mr.
Gregory George, Lee George and Dickson George.
. What is Mr. Gregory George’s position?—A. I don’t know.
. Nor Mr. Lee Georo'e s?—A. No, sir.
. You do not know his pOQltlon?—A No, sir.
. Do you know the President of the company?—A I do.
. What is his name?—A. Mr. Cooper.
. Those are all you know?—A. That is all I know.
Do you know Mr. Cooper’s first name?—A. James.
Have you with you your own books?—A. I have.
Will you produce them to the Committee?—A. T will.
. Will you produce them now, or where are they?—A. Right here, at the
back of the room (Produces package of books)."

Q. Have you a company called the Dominion Veneer & Varnish Company?
—A. No, sir.
Q. Or a name similar to that—I may be mistaken in the name?—A. No,
sir.

Q. Are you associated with any other companies?—A. No, I am not.

Q. What companies are you associated with—I will put it in that way?
—A. Just my own company, my own personal business, that is all.

[Mr. William James Hushion.] )

LODLOOOLO

OOLODOOLOHD

Mr. DonagHY: 1 understand they have an officer at the door here day f

Q. Are they .contained in the same trunk?—A. No, they are in another
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- Mr. DovacuY: We have not got the name of that company, Mr. Chair-
v man. ) 7 : 1 X

The CuaRMAN: Mr. Stevens will finish, and then you can examine the
witness. 7

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. What is the name of the company?—A. W. J. Hushion & Company.
. Q. What business do you follow?—A. The hay and grain business; that is
my principal businéss. \? WA
Q. Is the office of the Dominion Distilleries at 1185 St. James Street?—A.

It is. -

Q. Yours is 11957—A. Yes, sir. , 2

Q. Do the two offices join?—A. No.

Q. They adjoin?—A. They adjoin.

Q. Do you take out a license in the city of Montreal what is called a
broker’s license or a trader’s license?—A. No. I have-all the license I require
to do business in Montreal.

Q. I am not asking you that. Do you take out a license in the city of
Montreal, to do business?—A. Well, I don’t have to do that; I pay my taxes,
and I think I am entitled to do business.

Q. You are registered in the city of Montreal?—A. I would imagine so;
I am a proprietor in the city of Montreal.

Q. Are you not registered in the City Hall, in Montreal?—A. Yes. :

In connection with the business of W. J. Hushion & Company?—A. Yes,

Q.
)b :

Q. At 1195 St. James street?—A. Yes.

Q. Isn’t the Dominion Distilleries of 1185 St. James street, registered in
your name at the City Hall in Montreal?—A. In my own name?

Q. Yes?—A. No, sir.

Q. Are you positive?—A. T am positive.

Q. In whose name is it registered?—A. I don’t know.

Q. How do you know that it is not registered in yours?—A. I ought to
know my own business, what it is registered for.

Q. Would you be surprised to know it is registered in your own name?—-
A. I would be very much*surprised. :

Q. I think you will find upon inquiry that it is registered in your name,
and that the two offices join?>—A. No, they do not join, they are different.

Q. They are right beside one another?—A. No, there are eight or ten
numbers between; I think there is a space of 100 feet between them.

Q. You declare again that you have no connection with the business oper-
ations of the Dominion Distilleries?—A. No, sir.

Q. You never conduct any business for them?—A. No. I have done some
missionary work, or messages, or something of that kind.

Q. Missionary work sounds good. Would missionary work be directing
the disposal of their products for instance, at one time would that be missionary
work?—A. No, that would not be what I have termed it. ;

Q. What sort of a mission do you run?—A. I don’t run any.

Q. What do you mean by doing missionary work for the Dominion Dis-
' tilleries?—A. I might have been asked to inquire into some particular thing,
and I would naturally go and try to find out what I might be asked to do.

Q. You have no connection with them?—A. No, sir.

Q. Yet you do anything they ask you, as a sort of messenger?—A. I am
a shareholder of the company.

Q. Do you mean that whenever they ask you, you will do anything—you
do not, describe it, but anything they might require you to do?—A. Well, what
would you suppose I would mean?

/ [Mr. William James Hushion.]
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, Q. I could not suppose anything. I asked you what you meant?—A.
I mean, suppose you asked me to get you anything; I dont know just what
I mlght suggest now. What would you like me to answer?

Q. I want you to answer directly and tell us what you do when you act as
a missionary for the Dominion Distilleries and if you do any'thmg they ask you
to do?—A. Well, all I was meaning by that was that the Dominion Distilleries
had received a letter from the Department that they had some alcohol to sell,
and one day one of the members of the company asked me to see if the govern-
ment were ready to sell it, or something like tha gsand I asked the price.

Q. Whom did you ask?—A. After this letter came in, I think I asked
the Minister. I think he was the first man I happened to meet in Montreal
one day, and I happened to say that I heard they had some alcohol to sell.

Q. Which Minister do you mean?—A. The Hon. Mr. Boivin.

Q. This little missionary work you did for them was in ascertaining the
price at which they would sell; you made the approach on behalf of the Dominion
Distilleries to the Minister?—A. Yes.

Q. When was that?—A. Well, I really do not remember now, but it would
be a month or two ago, a few months ago maybe.

Q. Just before New Year’s?—A. No, it was in November 1 think.

Q. How much alcohol was involved ?—A. Well, it was only 9,000 gallons,
I think, or 10,000 gallons.

Q. Do you remember where that was wa,rehoused?—A Well, T know where
it was supposed to be warehoused.

Q. Where was it warehoused?—A. In the Customs House, I understood.

" Q. Whereabouts?—A. In Montreal.

Q. Montreal is a large place; whereabouts in Montreal?—A. I don’t know.

Q. You do not know?—A. No.

Q. You know where the Customs House in Montreal is?—A. I sure do.

Q. You know where the bonded warehouse for spirits is?—A. No.

Q. Did you never have anything to-do with releasing liquor from bond,
from the Customs?—A. No, sir.

Q. Never?—A. No, sir.

Q. When you saw the Minister in regard to that alcohol, what was his
reply?—A. Well, as near as I can recollect he said, when I mentioned that I
understood there was some aleohol for sale, he said “What would your company
pay?” T said I thought about 35 cents a gallon at that time. The answer
was, Well, he would see what the price of alcohol was, and if they had any
alcohol he might sell it.

Mr. DoxagHY: He might point out what 35 cents a gallon means.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. What do you mean by 35 cents a gallon; in referring to alecohol as you
are now, you refer to certain alecohol, what do you mean by that, giving the
technical terms?—A. Well, I don't know that; that is the trouble, sir.

Q. 35 cents a proof walon‘?—A I think so.

Q. ‘That is what you were paying?—A. I was not buying it.

Q. You were acting at the request of the Dominion Distilleries to find
out the cost of about 9000 gallons of alcohol; you asked the Minister what
he would take for that alcohol. What were you paying?———A. I was not really
paying anything at that time, I was simply inquiring whether it was for sale.

Q. As a business man, you did not approach the Minister with regard to
9,000 gallons of alcohol without knowing what you were going to pay for it;
you asked the Minister if they had any alcohol for sale, and you said the price

was about 35 cents a gallon?—A. I asked him what I ha\e already said, if
the Department would sell the alcohol.
* [Mr. Willigm James Hushion.]
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- Q. What aleohol, alcohol for sale in Montreal; where was it advertised?—

A. I don’t know. ; .

Q. Did you see it advertised?—A. No, sir. °

Q. How do you know it was advertised?—A. I know some letters came
in about it, at least I was told so. i

Q. From whom did those letters comé?—A. From the Department.

Q. Can you produce those letters?—A. I cannot. 4

Q. Who has them?—A. The Dominion Distilleries must have them.-

Q. The Dominion Distilleries can produce those letters?—A. Yes.

Mr. DonagaY: The file of all the correspondence was produced for the
-Minister. :

Hon. Mr. Stevens: It is all here.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. This 35 cents a gallon, you do not know what you offered that for?—
A. Well, no, I do not, Sir, to be truthful about it, except that it was for a
gallon of alcohol, a proof gallon. I would imagine that it would be that.

Q. What would that be for, 69 per cent over proof?—A. I don’t know.

Q. You have no idea?—A. No, sir, not the slightest.

Q. Yet you acted as agent to purchase 9,000 gallons of alcohol?—A. I am
no agent.

Q. A missionary, then?—A. No, just a man.

Q. Just doing it for them?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. No commission in it?—A. No commission in it.

Q. I think you are the kind of man a good many business men would like
to have, to do their business for nothing. Did you come to Ottawa and see
the Minister?—A. No, sir.

Q. Now, think—A. You mean on that particular question? No sir.

Q. Where did you see the Minister?—A. If my recollection serves me well,
it was in Montreal.

Q. Where in Montreal?—A. At the office of the government.

By Mr. Donaghy:
Q. Mr. Hushion, did you say you were a shareholder in this company,
the Dominion Distilleries?—A. Yes sir.
Hon. Mr. Stevens: Never mind that. :
Mr. DonagHY: It explains the whole thing. The man is a shareholder.
- Hon. Mr. Stevens: It does not explain the whole thing at all.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
. Where did you see the Minister in Montreal?—A. At the government

O

office. j
What government office?—A. I only know one.
Tell us what it was.—A. It was on St. James Street, the last time I
saw
In the Post Office?—A. Yes, in the office there.
Do you recall when that was?—A. I do not recall the date.
. Do you reecall the day?—A. No, I do not.

Q. Was it Saturday or Friday?—A. I think possibly it might have been
either Saturday or Monday.

Q. But you could not be sure?—A. No.

Q. Can you refresh your memory by any document?—A. No sir.

Q. Kept no memorandum?—A. No sir.

DOLFLOL

[Mr. William James Hushion.)
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, Q. Did you come to Ottawa later and see the Minister in regard to it?—
A. I think I was up in Ottawa on some business, and I might have mentioned
it. I think I might have.

Q. I would like you to be sure on it—A. I cannot be sure, but I presume
I might have done it.

Q. It is not so long ago, Mr. Hushion. —-A It is long enough ago that I
am not sure of it.

Q. Will you declare you did not come to Ottawa and see the Minister in
regard to it?—A. For that thing?

Q. Did you come to Ottawa and converse with the Mlmster about the
purchase of this alcohol for the Dominion Distillers?—A. No, not for that
particular thing.

Q. Did you discuss with the Minister in Ottawa the purchase of this
alcohol .?—A. Yes, probably I did.

Q. After you made this first approach to him in Montreal?—A. I beheve I
did.

' Q. It has taken rather a long time to get to that point. And you offered
on behalf of the Dominion Distillers thirty-five cents a gallon?—A. I only said
it at that first interview, and it was then carried on between the company and
the department, if there was anything then.

Q. Did the Dominion Distillers buy this alcohol?—A. Yes sir.

Q. Do you know how much they bought?—A. No.

Q. How much did they buy?—A. I don’t know.

Q. No idea?—A. No.

Q. Did you know there were 400 gallons more delivered to them than they
bought?—A. No sir.

Q. Did you ever hear of that?—A. No sir.

Q. Never heard of that at all?——A. Never heard of it.

Q. And you have no knowledge of the internal workings of the Dominion
Distillers at all?—A. No sir.

Q. I suppose you know what business they are in?—A. I imagine I do.

Q. Do you produce there all your books and documents, as asked for in
this resolution?—A. Yes sir.

Q. Will you open up your parcels and produce them to the clerk now?
I will read the list off, if you will do so. We asked for original books of entry.
Have you those with you?—A. I have not those with me.

Q. Why haven’t you?—A. Of my own business, you mean?

Q. Yes, W. J. Hushion & Co.—A. I have brought all my bank statements
for the last two years.

Q. If you wouldnt mind, Mr. Hushion, I would like to take them in the
order they are here. Do you produce your original books of entry—and I will
specify——A. No.

Q. You do not?—A. No, not here.

Mr. Brackin: No, not here. ' v
Hon. Mr. Stevens: Just a moment, Mr. Brackin, please.

.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Why don’t you produce, them, Mr. Hushion?—A. I haven’t any reason
for not producing them; I thought I brought all and more than was required.

Q. Mr. Hushion, the summons is very clear—A. I can very easily have
it here on the afternoon train.

Q. I am not anxious to be unreasonable, but I think it very clear.—A. It
was clear, but I brought what I really thought you wanted.

[Mr. William James Hushion.]
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Mr. Brackin: Mr. Hushion had the idea, sir, when I first saw him, that
the hay and grain business had not anything to do with this, and he was not
to bring those. But I told him when I saw him this morning that what he
should have brought was exactly what was called for by the committee, and
that if there was anything relating to his private business the committee would
not touch it, and he need not worry about that. That is our situation.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: You are acting for him? )

Mr. Brackin: For Mr. Hushion and the Dominion Distillers, and for
George.

By Hon. Mr. Stevenss
Q. Do you produce your bank books and cancelled cheques and state-

ments?—A. Yes sir.
Q. Do you produce your invoices for goods inwards and outwards?—A. No,

not here.
Q. Let us produce what you have. You produce all your cheques?—A. Yes.

Mr. Brackin: I do not think he has anything but cancelled cheques and
bank books.

By the Chairman:
Q. Do I understand that you are a hay and grain merchant?—A. Yes sir.
Hon. Mr. Stevens: That is what he tells us.
The CHAIRMAN: Yes, that is what he told us.
Hon. Mr. Stevens: He is also a missionary for the Dominion Distillers.
Mr. Brackin: But he does not take up the collections.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens: ;

Q. You say you only produce your cancelled cheques?

Mr. Brackin: Plus the bank books.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: What I want from you are your original books of
entry, your invoices of goods inwards and invoices of goods outwards.
ke Mr. BrackiN: Do you mean by that hay and grain, and all that sort of

hing ; R

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I want for the years 1924 and 1925 the invoices of
goods he has shipped in connection with his business, including hay and grain,
or alecobol or anything else. / y

Mr. Brackin: We do not ship anything else,

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. T want the way bills.—A. You will get them.

Q. And shipping receipts, and warehouse receipts; original order books;
orders received for goods; shipping instructions, and your customs entries and
customs receipts, insurance policies, and so on.

Mr. BrackiN: You do not want his life insurance policies?

Hon. Mr. Stevens: No, everything pertaining to his business.

Mr. 'Brackin: You will take everything but his life.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: That is not what I mean, Mr. Brackin.

Mr. BrackiN: Mr. Hushion had the idea that it had something to do with
liquor shipments.

[Mr. William James Hushion.]
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By Hon. Mr. Stevens: 1

Q. When will you produce those?—A. To-morrow sometime.

Q. Are you the sole proprietor of your business?>—A. Yes sir. il
Q. It has no officers? You are not incorporated?—A. No sir. '
Q. A private company?—A. Yes sir.

By Mr. Bell:

. Q. There is just one thing I would like to know. You have said, Mr.
Hushion, I think, that you first discussed the matter of the purchase of this
aleohol with the Minister in Montreal, and then afterwards discussed it again
here in Ottawa. That is what you said, is it not?—A. I said 1 thought I had
perhaps discussed it in Ottawa. :

Q. And I think you told Mr. Stevens just now that in the interim the
$atte‘r had been proceeded with by the Dominion Distillers themselves?—A.
Yes sir.

Q. Under what circumstances did it again pass to you?—A. It did not
pass to me again. :

Q. What was there present to your mind, when you came back here to
Ottawa, that induced you to take it up, when you knew it had been turned
over to them?—A. I might have just enquired how it was going, or when they
were going to answer, perhaps, the correspondence that had been going on. I
might ‘have done that. \

Q. Have you no recollection of that?—A. No.

Q. Then you cannot tell us, either, how you knew or how you were again
seized of the matter yourself, or what you said when you came here?—A. You
are asking me a peculiar question. I came to Ottawa and met the Minister;
I naturally might have said, “Have you sold or have you decided to accept
their offer,” or something like that. That is all. *

Q. You might have said that?—A. Sure.

Q). So that your recollection now is that you might have done it and noth-
ing more?—A. That is so.

Q. Do you realize how much farther than that you went in answering the
question by Mr. Stevens? Are you going to tell us now that you did see
the Minister about it in Ottawa, or that you did not?—A. I should say I did
not.

Q. You did not?—A.Yes. T certainly did not come here for that especially.

Q. You know I am not asking you that. Are you now going to say that
vou did not see the Minister, regardless of the purpose for which you came?—
A. Oh, in that case, I would say I did see him.

The CuAaRMAN: That is all just now.

Mr. Brackin: Shall we come back to-morrow morning?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

The witness retired. ’

WirLiam FosteEr WiLson called and sworn.

By the Chairman.:
Q. What is your occupation?—A. Chief, Customs and Excise Preventive
Service.
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Minister, (Hon. Mr. Boivin) if you wish to conduct
the inquiry, it is permissible, there is a standing order to that effect.

' Hon. Mr. Bowvin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I will ask Mr. Wilson a
few questions which will perhaps lead up to cross-examination by members of
the Committee.

[Mr. William Foster Wilson.]
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By Hon. Mr. Boivin:

Q). How long have you been in the Customs service, Mr. Wilson?—A. Since
the 19th of June, 1891.

Q. How long have you occupied your present position as Chief of the Cus-
toms and Excise Preventive Service?—I have been in charge of the Preventive
Service since April, 1909.

" Q. Sinee April, 1909—A. Yes. ,

Q. Mr. Farrow has already stated to this Committee that your staff was

composed of 104 regular employees. Is that correct?—A. The total staff is

367. :

Q. 3677—A. Yes.

Q. How is that made up?—A. There is a Headquarters Staff in Ottawa
Lere, numbering 21; there are outside paid officers—permanent officers—
numbering 53, plus one clerk stenographer, who is under suspension; there are
90 temporary officers who receive salaries. That makes a total of 165 paid
officers. In addition to that there are a number of officers who are appointed
by the Minister, without salaries, totalling 181. 165 plus 181 is 346. Then
there are 21 secret service officers under the special vote passed by Parliament
last year. That makes 367. I should add to that that last year we had fifteen
patrol boats. The full- complement for these boats was 119. They are not
included in the 367, with the exception of possibly one or two paid masters.

Q. Let us take the patrol boats first. You say you have 15 patrol boats?
Are these boats owned by the Department or rented by the Department?—A.
We had 15 patrol boats in operation last year, 11 of them were owned by the
Department and four were chartered.

Q. When a patrol boat is chartered by the Department, does the Depart-
ment pay the salaries of the crew, or are they paid by the owner of the boat?
—A. Well, there have been vessels chartered by the Department where the
owner of the vessel paid for the crew; there are other vessels which have been
chartered which are manned, or have been manned and paid for by the Depart-
ment.

Q. Now, vou say there are 11 of these boats owned by the Department and
four chartered—that is, for the past year?—A. Yes.

Q. Will you tell the Committee on which coast of Canada those vessels
operate?—A. In the St. Lawrence and along the Atlantic coast.

Q. Have we any patrol boats on the Pacific coast?—A. There is one patrol
boat on the Pacific coast, which T have not included in the 15. Although it is
paid for by the Preventive Service, we have nothing to do with it. It is under
the direction of the Collector of Customs and Excise in Vietoria.

Q). For what purpose are these patrol boats operated—1I think that word will
cover both boats owned and chartered—by the Department of Customs?—A. For
the purpose of apprehending smugglers and preventing smuggling.

Q. Especially on the Atlantic coast and in the Gulf of St. Lawrence?—A.
On both coasts, the Atlantic and. Pacific. .

Q. We only have one boat on the Pacific?—A. Yes.

Q. And these boats are for the purpose of preventing smuggling insofar as
it is possible?—A. Quite so.

Q. On the Atlantic coast and in the Gulf of St. Lawrence?—A. Yes.

Q. Could you say for the information of the Committee by what Department
the employees on these boats are paid—or do you not know?—A. Well, on our
own boats—the boats owned by the Department,—the whole crew is paid by the
Departmeent of Customs and Excise. ;

Q. Under special vote passed by Parliament each year?—A. All the Pre-
ventive Service boats and revenue cruisers. £

[Mr. William Foster Wilson.]
16089—2}
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Q. Are all these boats paid for out of the special vote of $350,000 which lﬂ

was passed for last year, or are some of them paid for out of the regular Pre-
‘ventive Service vote, or do you know?—A. T would say they are all paid for out
.of the Preventive Serwce vote. There may be a small boat, which was chartered

at Prince Edward Island. It might possibly have been cha.rged to the special

wvote, I am not sure of that.

Q. In the event of any of the officers on any of these boats making a seizure,
"is that seizure reported to you in the same way as a selzure made by any mem-
ber of your staff?—A. Yes.

Q. Now, coming to the men who are special preventive officers without
salary, how many do you say you have?—A. One hundred a,nd elghty-one

Q. One hundred and eighty-one?—A. Yes.

Q. Can you tell the Committee, in a general way, where these men are
located?—A. Well, they are scattered right across Canada.

Q. Right across Canada?—A. Yes.

Q. You have one hundred and eighty-one men who are special preventlve
officers without pay, scattered across Canada?—A. Yes.

When you say they are preventive service officers without pay, do you
mean that they receive no regular salary?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are they entitled to a portion of what is commonly called a moiety,
although it is not half, of the proceeds of the seizures made by them?—A. Yes.

Q. They are?—A. Yes.

Q. Are any of these 181 men members of the Royal Canadian Mounted
Police?—A. Yes.

Q. Could you tell us about how many?—A. I am sorry to say that I have
not got the number.

Q. You have not got that?—A. Not the exact ﬁg‘ure~

Q. Can you give us an idea?—A. That is hard to say from memory.

Q. Well, could you tell us in what portions of Canada this title or, 1 should
say this privilege, the privilege of acting as a preventive service ofﬁcer, without
pay, is granted to certain numbers of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police? In
what portions of Canada?—A. Nova Scotia, New Brunswick, Ontario, Manitoba,
Saskatchewan, Alberta and I think, in British Columbia. I should add that a
short time ago there was an officer on the force in Montreal, temporarily author-
ized in connection with some particular iny ectlgatlon and when that was com-
pleted his appointment was terminated. g

Q. Will you prepare, Mr. Wilson, for t,he information of the Committee, a
statemeht showing first, how many of these 181 men are stationed in each
province of Canada, and showing also how many men stationed in each province
of Canada are members of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police?—A. Yes, 51r

Q. When could we file that?—A. To-morrow.

Q. Now, the next class of officers that I want to deal with are the officers
appointed within the last nine months, under the special vote passed by Parlia-
ment last year, of $350,000. Can you tell us how many men have been appointed
under that vote?—A. Well, there are at present 65.

Q. There are at present 65?—A. Yes.

Q. Can you tell us how many have been appointed altogether?—A. There
were eleven others appointed, but since dropped or dismissed.

Q. Since dropped or dismissed?—A. Yes.

Q. Will you prepare a statement for the Committee to-morrow, showing
the number of men or the proportion of these 65 men stationed in each one of the
different provinces of Canada?—A. Yes, I have here a statement showing them
all, but they are not divided into provinces.

Q. I would like to have them divided into provinces?—A. Yes

[Mr. William Foster Wilson.}
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Q. Of how many in each province, and how many were appointed in each

province, who had been dismissed?—A. Yes.
: Q. Now, in addition to that. you say that we have, if 1 understood you
correctly, 21 men who are paid out of the special secret preventive service vote,
and I just want to know if I am correct in this. What is the amount of that
vote, do you remember?—A. Well, these men—these 21 men are paid out of the
$350,000 vote of last year.

Q. They are included in the 65?7—A. They are included in the 65.

Q. Will you tell the Committee what difference you make between a special
officer, paid for out of that vete, and the special secret officer paid for out of that
vote?—A. Well, the secret officers are not empowered to make seizures. Their
business is to furnish information. The balance of them are empowered to make
seizures. ”

Q. In other words, if I understand you correctly, the 21 are acting more in
the role of detectives, giving information, and I might use the word, informers,
giving information either to you or to the collectors or to other preventive service
officers. MWould that be correct?—A. Not quite. They are employed, as I said,
for the purpose of furnishing information of frauds on the revenue. They are
to report to me and as such they are special officers, or officers in charge of
districts in their particular localities, but they are not authorized, nor expected
to report to collectors.

Q. In other words, the officers to whom they are to report are indicated by
yvou when they are appointed?—A. Yes.

Q. Now, you have the regular preventive service officers. What is their
special and principal duty?—A. To attend to smuggling, merchandise passed
through customs houses in the country, or what is commonly called, under-
valuation.

Q. They have the double duty of preventing absolute smuggling and pre-
venting, in so far as you can, under-valuation of imports and merchandise?
—A. I think I should add to that that there are special investigations sometimes
ordered by the Department which we incidentally do, but their occupation is
for the protection of the revenue against frauds.

Q. And even the special investigations ordered by the Department have
for their ultimate object the prevention of frauds in the customs revenue of
Canada?—A. Of one kind and another.

Q. Are these men empowered to make both customs seizures and excise
seizures?—A. Yes, at first when the departments were amalgamated, there was a
sort of a line drawn but that has been abolished, and the officers are now all
empowered to make seizures under both the Customs and Excise Acts.

Q. Are the Customs and Excise—I do not think it is necessary to make a
difference between the two, the Committee understands, and will correct me if
I am wrong, that a customs seizure is a seizure made, owing to the fact that
goods have been imported into Canada without the payment of, customs duty?
—A. Or a portion of it.

Q. Or a portion of it?—A. Yes.

Q. An excise seizure is a seizure made for an infraction of the Excise Act
of Canada?—A. Yes.

Q. That is to say either for illicit operations or for failure to pay excise
duty?—A. Yes. Illieit distillation of spirits; tobacco, cigarettes, ear washes.

Q. Will you tell us how a customs seizure is made and how it is reported
to the Department?—A. My officers are in the field. If they have occasion to
make a seizure and do make a seizure, they report the details to me, with a
report. on form K-9, together with a detailed report of further circumstances,
if there be any, that are not covered in the seizure report, and that seizure

[Mr. William Foster Wilson.]
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report is entered in the branch here, in the seizure record book. If it is excise,
it goes into the excise book.

Q. We are talking about the (‘ustomts?—A It goes into the Customs
book, in which odr numbers are entered, then we transfer each seizure to the
Deupty Minister of the Department, w1th the evidence connected therewith.

Q. Transferred to whom?--A. Transferred to the Deputy Minister.

Q. Customs seizures of goods—correct me if 1 am wrong—goods smuggled
into Canada are seized by the officers, goods upon which duty is not fully paid
can be seized by the officers, can they not?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Under the Customs Act, officers as I understand it also have power to
~mz§e( the vehicle in which emuggled goods are transported, have |they not?
\. Yes, sir.

Q. And when these scizures are made, they report accordingly ‘?——A Yes,
SIT:

Q. Giving as much detail as possible?—A. Yes.

Q. The report is transmitted from you to the Deputy Minister?—A. Yes.

Q. Will you tell the Committee when that report, if ever, comes back to
vou?—A. After we sumbit the matter originally to the Deputy Minister, the
only time it may come back to us or has come back to us is for the purpose
of further inquiry, if necessary, that is to say, if some evidence submitted by

those against whom a charge umv be made may requu'e some further investiga-

tion, we give it the necessary attention.

Q. So that it happens frequently that when a defence is filed by a party‘

against whom a seizure is made, your officers are asked for further information
to rébut the evidence he may have filed?—A. T would not say frequently, but
it does arise. !

Q. Perhaps not in the large number of cases you handle every month; you
would not consider that a frequent occurrence?—A. No.

Q. After a seizure has been disposed of, by what I think you ecall a
decizion signed by the Deputy Minister, and approved of by the Minister on
Form K-9—1T think that is the name of the form?—A. Yes.

Q. Does the seizure then go back to you, or does the record then go back
to you?—A. No. After the Minister’s decision is rendered, we receive a notice
of the decision from the Department, usually signed now by the General
Dxecutive Assistant, informing us of the contents concisely of the MlmsteN
decision.

Q. What I am trying to get at, Mr. Wilson, is this: when these decisions
are rendered, sometimes a rlcp0~1t made upon goods is confiscated, sometimes
the party is allowed to get possession of the goods on payment of duty paid
back, sometimes upon the payment of double duty, sometimes upon the payment
of single duty, but it frequently happens, I think you will agree, that the goods
are confiscated to the Department or to the Government?—A. Yes.

Q. What I gvant to gel at is, what part do you take or what part do you
take in the disposal of goods confiscated to the Government by Ministerial
decision? 1In the other cases 1 understand the goods are returned.—A. Yes.

Q. What I am coming at is, where the goods are confiscated and must be
disposed of, how are they disposed of and what part does your Department
take in the disposal of those goods?—A. Under the law, there can be no
disposal until the lapse of 30 days after the Minister’s decision. After that
we endeavour to sell the goods.

Q. How are they sold, by auction, by tender, or by private sale?—A. I
will qualify that by saying that in the case of marcotic drugs, we do not always
sell them, we destroy them,

Q. In the case of narcotic drugs, you destroy them?—A. Not always, but
some times; it depends upon the character of the goods.

[Mr. William Foster Wilson.]
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Q. Does it not sometimes happen also that in the case of liquor seized the
: hquor is destroyed?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Donaghy :
" Q. Witness, you saxd “We” endeavour to sell the goods.—A. My branch
does.
Q. Your branch, you mean.—A. Yes.
By Hon. Mr. Bowin: /
Q. In the case of a liquor seizure in some cases the liquor is destroyed?
A Sometimes, ves.
Q. Is it not a fact, Mr. Wilson—I wanted to be correct, but I think this
is the impression 1 have so far received from my Deputy Minister—that the
. Department does not sell liquor for purposes of consumption unless the price
paid for the liquor is at least equal to the duty which would be paid upon the
came kind of liquor if it was imported into Canada in the ordinary way?—A.
Those are our present instriuctions.
Q. And when liquor cannot be sold at that price, it is generally destroyed?
-—A. Yes, sir.
Q. In the case of narcotic drugs, are there any special instructions as to
when they should be sold and when tlne\ \houl.d be destroyed?—A. Not from
the Department.

Q. Is that a matter for yvour own judgment?—A. Yes, sir. Qur own

judgment, that is to say, sometimes narcotic drugs are seized in we will say
2 ounce bottles, and the bottles may have been opened; we cannot sell those
because manufacturing chemists will not buy any opened packages, but where
they are clearly originally sealed packages our chances for selling are much
better.

Q. Now, we have been speaking about customs seizures. In the case of
excise seizures, 1s exactly the same procedure followed?—A. No. In the case
‘of excise seizurés, the Minister has not the decision of them.

Q. The decision of excise seizures is left to the Courts?—A. So far as
indictable offences are concerned.

Q. And if stills or apparatus are confiscated, they are confiscated by judg-
ment of the Court, as a rule?—A. Yes.

Q. There is a provision in the law for voluntary abandonment?—A. Yes.

Q. Which is sometimes taken advantage of by the accused?—A. Yes, but
not so far as the indictable offences are concerned.

Q. But those are the two ways in which the articles seized in excise seizures
are disposed of?—A. Yes. Those offences which are not indictable, as I
understand it, the assistant deputy minister deals with them himself.

Q. Now, before T let you go, Mr. Wilson,—would you give me the file con-
cerning the Tremblay alcohol, that was filed this morning?—there was a seizure
made in 1924, if T mistake not, of a certain quanht\ of alcohol on a barge called
the T rembla\ ?—A. Yes.

s Q. There was a seizure made. There was quite a quantity of liquor seized
there?—A. Yes sir.

Q. And among that hquor was, roughly speaking, about 16,000 proof
gallons of aleohol, approximatelyi?—A. There were 16,000 odd gallons.

Q. Can you tell us where that alcohol was placed?—A. In a bond room in
the Customs House in Montreal.

Q. Can you tell us, Mr. Wilson, how that alcohol or the major portion of
it, was disposed of 2—A. Tt was sold.

Q. To the Dominion Distilleries, at thirty-six cents per proof gallon. As
I understand it, Mr. Wilson, that sale was made by superior officers in the

[(Mr. William Foster Wilson.]
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department, if I may use the term. I do not mean any reflection upon yom
office.—A. I know that.

Q. But I mean, by other officers i in the department —A. Yes sir.

Q. Without your knowledge?—A. Yes sir.

Q. But before the sale had you, carrying out your duties, wntten to
different parties in an attempt to dlspose of this alcohol?—A. Yes sir.

Q. Among the documents filed this morning, I find a letter which you
addressed to a customs excise enforcement officer at Halifax, enquiring from
him if the Nova Scotia Liquor Commissioners would be interested in purchasing
this liquor. You wrote that letter?—A. Yes sir.

Q. And you received a reply from Mr. Tracey on October 1st to the effect
that they were not interested?

Mr. Evruiorr: Just a moment; have we the originals of those?

Hon. Mr. Bowvin: They are filed.

By Hon Mr. Bowin:

Q. Did you also offer that liquor to the St. Lawrence Vinegar Manufacturing
Company, by letter of September 17?—A. Yes sir.

Q. And have you asletter from the St. Lawrence Vinegar, Manufacturing
Company under date of October 1st, offering you a certain price for that alcohol?
—A. I had, but I think that orlgmal was transferred to the department.

O ET have a copy here, but we will- endeavour to get the original?>—A. Yes
sir,

Q. They made an offer of thirty-five cents per proof gallon?—A. Yes sir.

Q. Did you also receive a letter under date— —A. That is to say, I should
perhaps qualify that.

Q. Yes, make the correction. That was some alcohol, 6,948 proof gallons,
which you had at Quebec?—A. Yes sir, also supposed to be out of the
Tremblay.

Q. Also supposed to be out of the Tremblav‘?—-A Yes sir.

Q. Did you receive, on November 14 or rather did vou receive a letter
dated November 14, from the Dominion Distillers, offering you thirty-five
cents?—A. Yes sir.

Q. That letter was addressed to Mr. Henry McLaughlin, in the Department
of Customs at Montreal?—A. Yes sir.

Q. And forwarded to you by Mr. Bisaillon?—A. Yes sir.

Q. Who was then in the employ of the department?—A. Yes sir.

Q. Do you know personally at what price this alcohol was sold?—A. It
is only hearsay.

Q.- Then you need not state it.—A. I know the \a]ue, the total deposit
made.

Q. You have the total deposit made?—A. T have the total proceeds of the
sale.

Q. What were the total proceeds of the sale?—A. $5,906.91.

Q. Can you tell us from the documents you have before you the exact
number of proof gallons?—A. Sold?

Q. Yes.—A. No sir.

Q. If T remember correctly, when this liquor was Sold, or when this aleohol
was sold by some one else in the department, ypu were not advised?—A. No.

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: I did not catch that question.

By Hon. Mr. Bowvin: -

Q. I say, if I remember correctly, at the time this alecohol was sold by some
other person in the department, you were not immediately advised?—A. I was
not.

[Mr. William Foster Wilson,]
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Q. When the alcohol was first removed from the Customs warehouse in
~ Montreal, did you receive a message from some person in Montreal advising you
that the removal was taking place?—A. Yes sir.
Q. From whom did that xﬁessage come to you?—A, From the officer acting
in charge of the preventive service in Montreal.

Yes. ;

Q. What was his name, please?—A. Mr. Hunter. ;

Q. And if T remember correctly, you gave instructions to have the removal
of this alcohol stopped?—A. I did.

Q. And it was only after that that you learned from the acting deputy
minister and myself that the alcohol had been sold and that the removal was
—1I will use the word—*legal”, insofar as the buyer was concerned?

Mr. BerLn: Mr. Chairman, I do not wish to embarrass the Minister’s
examination, but may I point out that what is now happening is that the Min-
ister is making a statement here and that the witness is saying yes, and yes,
and he is not disclosing to use the course of events as he knows it.

Hon.- Mr. Bowvin: I think I have made it quite clear, Mr. Bell; I do not
want to lead the witness, but I think I have made it quite clear that Mr. Wilson
was not in Montreal.

Mr. Brrn: That is unfortunately what it happening.

Mr. DonacHY: I think the witness is giving his evidence in ‘a very clear
and satisfactory manner.

" Mr. BeLL: Oh, there is no question about that, if he is allowed to give it.

Mr. DonagHY: These legal quibbles never get us anywhere.

Mr. Bern: 1T am glad Mr. Donaghy recognizes that at last.

Hon. Mr. Bowvin: 1T want to assure the Committee that it was not my
intention to lead. One or two questions, Mr. Bell, may have been what would
- be termed in a court of justice as leading. I realize your objection is well

founded in that respect.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Also we will have no time for cross-examination, as it
is after one now.

Hon. Mr. Bowvin: I think Mr. Wilson will be present tomorrow.

By Mr. Donaghy:
Q. You are not going out of town, Mr. Wilson?—A. No, sir.
Hon. Mr. Borvin: He will be here for cross-examination.

Mr. Bern: I do not believe we need to ask him to come until later. Mr.
Sparks is called for tomorrow. 5

Mr. DonNagaY: I don’t know but that we may as well finish this witnéss.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: No, no—

Mr. DoNagHY: You need not make such a hub-bub about it. When the
witness is on the stand, he is usually finished.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: No, your ideas are away out—a long, long way out.

Mr. Doucer: Is this another legal quibble?

Hon. Mr. Bowvin: Speaking on behalf of the Department under investi-
gation, if I may be permitted by the Committee, I would like to say this; we
readily understand that a general cross-examination of  Mr. Wilson would
cover such a variety of subjects that it might possibly take one or two days
of the sittings of this Committee, and for that reason, if I might make the
suggestion, he might be recalled tomorrow morning for cross-examination only
on the facts brought out to-day—

[Mr. William Foster Wilson.]
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The CHAIRMAN: In chief?

Hon. Mr. Bowvin: In chief—and be held available to the Commxtt,ee for
cross-cxamination at any time the Committee wants him.

Mr. DoNacuy: I take it that to-morrow morning’s proceedings will be
ordered to-morrow morning.

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: Exactly.
Mr. DoxagHY: We need not waste any time now.
Hon. Mr. Stevens: But I want to point this out, that Mr. Sparks, repre-

senting the Protective Association, together with a number of prominent business
men who are vitally interested in thls matter, will be in attendance to-morrow.

Mr. BeELL: And are on their way now.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: It is the common practice of these committees to give
right-of-way to people from out of the city—

The CnairMaN: To save expense.
Mzr. DoxacHY: If we find them here tomorrow mornmg, we can deal with
that question. There is no use anticipating.
Hon. Mr. Srevens: If I am permitted, T would hke to ask one question

of Mr. Wilson before he leaves the stand. I wanted file 24 D-64-1-D, which
was here the other day, but I have not been able to obtain it.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Do you recall a letter, Mr. Wilgon, written by yourself to Commissioner
Starnes of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police, dated May-6,-1924, in which
vou gave instructions, by order of the Minister of Customs and Excise, to
Commissioner Starnes that all his officers operating in the district of Montreal
should report to Mr. Bigaillon, the Chief Preventive Officer, in charge at
Montreal? Do you remember that letter?—A. Yes.

Q. Now, I will read this letter to you, so that you may recall its contents '

(Reading) : * Dear Sir,”"—

The Cuamrman: Wait a minute, Mr. Stevens. You are now confronted
with the same objection we had Friday. Your question is “Do you remember
such-and-such a letter,” and give the contents of it; that is perfectly legal.
If the witness says “ Yes ”, then ask him to file the letter, and when it is filed
you can cross-examine him at your will.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: It is on file. 1 saw it the other‘dxay.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. You recall a letter ®f instructions from you to Commissioner Starnes
saying that the Minister of Customs had directed you to say that in the future
all Canadian Mourted Police Officers in the distriet of Montreal should report
to Mr. Bisaillon, and that all reports to you would be received through Mr.
Bisaillon.

Mr. GagyonN: Mr. Chairman, if there is any letter, I object to this ques-
tion being put unless the letter is before the Committee.

The Cuamrman: The objection is well taken.

Hon. Mr. Stevexg: You have no right to make any objection.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Do you recall that letter, Mr. Wilson?—A. Yes; instructions were sent
out, and I have no doubt there was a letter written.
[Mr. Williamn Foster Wilson.] e
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EXHIBITS FILED.

. 17—Letter dated ‘16t}‘1 February, 1926, from Deputy Minister of Cus-

toms and Excise to Clerk of Committee respecting two seized auto-
mobiles. %

. 17a—Memorandum attached to Exhibit No. 17, showing disposition of

‘two seized automobiles.

. 18—Letter dated 23rd June, 1924, from Mr. Sparks to Prime Minister.
. 19—Minutes of Mr. Sparks’ association relative to interview with Cab-

inet in respect to smuggling.

. 20—Telegram, dated Winnipeg, August 5-6, 1924, ‘from Monarch Overall

Manufacturing Co. Ltd., and eight other ﬁrms, to Mr. Sparks re
proposed interview with Prime Minister as to smuggling.

. 21—Petition to Prime Minister and Members of Cabinet from silk and

cotton manufacturers, jobbers and dealers re smuggling.

. 22—Letters patent incorporating Commercial Protective Association.
. 23—Commercial Protective Association, officers and members, with cor-

1

respondence thereof.

. 24—Letter dated 12th December, 1924, from Mr. Sparks to Hon. Mr.

Bureau re assisting the Department of Customs and Excise to
suppress smuggling, also smuggling at Rock Island, Que.

. 25—Letter dated 4th February, 1925, from Mr. Sparks to Prime Min-

ister re smuggling, and suggesting amendment of Customs Act.

. 26—Letter dated 21st February, 1925, from Mr. Sparks to Prime

Minister re acquittal of Mr. Bisaillon by Quebec Courts, and
offering if desired, to make suggestions in regard to administra-
tion to suppress smuggling.

27—Letter dated 26th February, 1925, from Mr. Sparks to Prime Min-
ister, stating that present smuggling could be reduced by half
within a month, and that eventually ninety per cent of smuggling
could be prevented, also re Mr. Bisaillon.

. 28—Letter dated 20th March, 1925, from Mr. Sparks to Prime Min-

ister, re making definite charges against Mr. Bisaillon.

. 20—Letter dated 16th April, 1925, from E.. J. Lemaire, Clerk of the

Privy Council, to Mr. Sparks, acknowledging receipt of letter re
Mr. Bisaillon.

. 30—Letter dated 8th April, 1925, from Mr. Sparks to Prime Minister,

suggesting amendments to Customs Act.

. 31—Letter dated 13th March, 1925, from Mr. Sparks to Prime Minister,

re invitation by Cabinet of concrete suggestions as to amendments
to Customs Act.

. 32—Resolution passed at annual meeting, 11th and 12th March, 1925,

of Garment Manufacturers re suppression of smuggling.

. 33-—Letter dated 17th July, 1925, from Mr. Sparks to Mr. Farrow,

Deputy Minister of Customs and Excise, re trial at Montreal of
Israel and Abraham Lenetsky, and complaining of lack of action
on part of Department.

. 34—Letter dated 24th July, 1925, from Charles P. Blair, Depart-

ment of Customs and Excise to Mr. Sparks, in reply to. letter
filed as Exhibit No. 33.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Turspay, February 16, 1926.

The _Conimittee met at 10.30 a.m., Mr. Mercier, ,tthe.Cha.irman, presiding.
Present: Messrs. Bell, Bennett',/ Donaghy, Doucet, Elliott, Kennedy,

Mercier, St. Pére, and Stevens.—9.

The minutes of yesterday’s meeting having been read, Hon. Mr. Boivin

stated that he would prefer to have the word “produce” rather than the word

“file” used respecting the original interim and final reports of Inspector Duncan.
Minutes of }festerday, as so amended, agreed to. ;

Hon. Mr. Boivin produced, for the use of the Committee, the following

- documents, viz:—

1. Original interim report signed by Walter Duncan on December 10, 1925.

2. Exhibits mentioned in the evidence taken by Inspector Walter Duncan,
and produced yesterday.

3. The official report into the administration of the Department of Customs
and Excise at the Port of Montreal, signed by Walter Duncan, dated February

8, 1926.

4. The enclosures mentioned in the official report of Walter Duncan, dated
February 8, 1926. ' g

5. A copy of the Customs Seizure Report in the matter of Rex vs. Lortie
and St. George. _

6. The original Customs Seizure Report in connection with the Hudson
sedan car seized from Mr. Eugene Guertin of Montreal, July 8, 1925.

7. The original correspondence, a copy of which was produced yesterday,

-exchanged between the Prime Minister’s office and all other parties concerning

the prevention of smuggling.

8. The original correspondence exchanged between Mr. R. P. Sparks and
Mr. Jacques Bureau, former Minister of Customs and Excise, concerning the
prevention of smuggling.

The Chairman read a letter, dated February 16, 1926, from the Deputy
Minister of Customs and Excise to the Clerk of the Committee, submitting a

3 ~memorapdum in respect to the disposition of two seized automobiles, which
. was marked Exhibit No. 17. :

In connection with Mr. Doucet’s motion of yesterday respecting the
schooner Margaret Kennedy, Hon. Mr. Boivin asked for further particulars so
that he could expedite production of the file.

Mr. Elliott, moved,—That Messrs. Bennett, Stevens, Donaghy, Kennedy
and the Chairman be a sub-committee to arrange the order in which the wit-
nesses to be summoned before this Committee shall be heard, and to group, as
far as possible, the witnesses called in connection with each charge or com-
plaint; and that the said sub-committee recommend the dates upon which the
various witnedses shall be summoned to appear before this Committee.

Motion agreed to.

16152—13
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Mr. Bell moved,—That Mr. W. F. O’Connor be retained by this Committee
to act as counsel for it, under the direction of Hon. H. H. Stevens, and that
Messrs. Clarkson & Company be retained by this Committee to act as auditors
before it, under the same direction and that such counsel and auditors be sup-
plied with all necessary clerical and stenographical assistance.

After discussion Mr. Bell agreed to divide his motion into two, one for
employment of counsel, and one for employment of accountants.

Motions stand until to-morrow.

Mr. Doucet moved,—For the production of the file containing all docu-
ments, correspondence, telegrams and reports in connection with the theft of
intoxicating liquors from the Customs offices of Shediac, N.B., and Port Elgin,
N.B,, in October, 1925.

Motion agreed to.

Mr. Doucet m.oved,—For_ the producﬂion of the file containing the Depart-
mental record of one, John Landry, as an employee of the Customs and Excise
Department of the Port of Montreal.

Motion agreed to.

Mr. Roderick P. Sparks, Manufacturer, Ottawa, was called and sworn. He
was examined, by Mr. G. F. Henderson, K.C., counsel for the Commercial Pro-
tective Association, respecting the activities of that body.

During his examination the following exhibits were-filed, viz:—

_ No. 18.—Letter dated 23rd June, 1924, from Mr. Sparks to Prime Minister.

" No. 19—Minutes of Mr. bparks assocnatlon relative to interview with
Cabinet in respect to smuggling.

No. 20.—Telegram, dated Winnipeg August 5-6, 1924, from Monarch Over-
all Manufacturing Co. Ltd. and eight other firms, to Mr. Sparks re proposed
interview with Prime Minister as to smuggling.

No. 21.—Petition to Prime Minister and Members of Cabinet from silk and
cotton manufacturers, jobbers and dealers re smuggling.

No. 22.—Letters Patent incorporating Commercial Protective Association.

No. 23.—Commercial Protective Association, Officers and members, with
correspondence thereof.

No. 24.—Letter dated 12th December, 1924, from Mr. Sparks to Hon. Mr.
Bureau re assisting the Department of Customs and Excise to suppress smug-
gling, also smuggling at Rock Island, Que.

No. 25.—Letter dated 4th Fe*bruary, 1925, from Mr Sparks to Prime
Minister re smuggling, and suggesting amendment of Customs Act.

No. 26—Letter dated 21st February, 1925, from Mr. Sparks to Prime
Minister re acquittal of Mr. Bisaillon by Quebec Courts and offering, if desired,
to make suggestions in regard to administration to suppress smuggling. 4

No. 27 —Letter dated 26th February, 1925, from Mr. Sparks to Prime
Minister, stating that present smuggling could be reduced by half within a month,
and that eventually ninety per cent of smuggling could be prevented, also re Mr.
Bisaillon.

No. 28.—Letter dated 20th March, 1925, from Mr.. Sparks to Prlme Minis-
ter, re making definite charges agamst Mr. Bisaillon.

No. 29.—Letter dated 16th April, 1925, from E. J. Lemaire, Clerk of the
Privy Council, to Mr. Sparks, acknowledgmg receipt of letter re "Mr. Bisaillon.

No. 30.—Letter dated 8th April, 1925, from Mr. Sparks to Prime Minister,
suggesting amendments to Customs ‘Act.

No. 31.—Letter dated 13th Mareh, 1925, from Mr. Sparks to Prime Minister,
re invitation by Cabinet of concrgte suggestlons as to amendments to Customs

Act.
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. No. 32—Resolution passed at annual meeting, 11th and 12th March, 1925,
~ of Garment Manufacturers re suppression of smuggling,

.~ No. 33—Letter dated 17th July, 1925, from Mr. Sparks to Mr. Farrow,
~ Deputy Minister of Customs and Excise, re trial at Montreal of Israel and
| Abraham Lenetsky, and complaining of lack of action on part of Department.
3 No. 34 —Letter dated 24th July, 1925, from Chas. P. Blair, Department of
- Customs and Excise, to Mr. Sparks, in reply to letter filed as Exhibit No. 33.

1 Mr. Bennett moved—‘That a certified copy of the Court Records in the
~ case of Israel and Abraham Lenetsky be obtained, which was agreed to. At
- the request of the Hon. Mr. Boivin, the following words were added to the fare-
going motion,—“ Also a copy of the inscription in appeal which was taken by

~ the Department.”

The Committee adjourned till to-morrow at 10.30 a.m.
F - : " WALTER TODD,
4 Chief Clerk.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

Tusspay, February 16, 1926.

The Special Committee appointed to investigate the administration of the

Department of Customs and Excise, and charges relating thereto, met at 10.30
a.m., the Chairman, Mr. Mercier, presiding.

The CuammaN: I have received the following letter addressed to Mr.
Todd, the Clerk of the Committee.

| EXHIBIT No. 17 -

' Orrawa, February 16, 1926.
Warrer Toop, Esq., :
Chief Clerk, Committee and Private Bills Branech,
Ottawa, Ont.

Dear Sir,—I beg to send you herewith a memorandum submitted to
me on this date by the Head Law Clerk, respecting the alleged purchase
of a seized Dodge Sedan automobile by Special Inspector J. E. Bisaillon
for a Mr. Ouellette.

~ There is no record in the Department of a seized automobile having
been sold to Officer Bisaillon by the Customs Auctioneers in Montreal,
Messrs. Dandurand, Limited.

The Departmental records, however, show the sale of a Dodge Sedan
automobile to Mr. Ouellette on the 1st May, 1925, the net proceeds of the
sale having been duly deposited to the eredit of the Receiver General. °

The memorandum shows the net amount realized from the sale of
the Hudson automobile, the net amount in this case having also been
placed to the credit of the Receiver General.

" ' Yours truly,
(Sgd.) R. R. FARROW,
Deputy Minister.

'

EXHIBIT No. 17a
“Orrawa, February 16th, 1926.

Memorandum for the Deputy Minister: |

Departmental records show that Dodge Sedan Automobile covered
by Preventive Service Seizure No. 4539 was sold at Public Auction by
W. H. Dandurand Ltd., Montreal, Auctioneers, on instruction from the
Department on May 1st, 1925. The car was purchased by J. Ouellette
for $455.00. Disposition was made of the proceeds of sale as follows:

Frpetodn ot Bale. . ... L UEEEUEREN! 4 | $455 00
Auctioneers-Fees. . .. .\ ol GgRel 845750

Advertising Expenses... .. .. .. ... 23 24 68 74
Netproceeds...........‘............. $386 26

A draft covering the net proceeds of the sale was remitted to the
Department by Special Inspector Bisaillon and placed to the credit of
the Receiver General.
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The Hudson Auto was sold at Public Auctlon by Dandurand, L’od
on May 8th to C. Chapleau and was accounted for as follows:

Proceeds ofvSale - nilh S ailan i e i s st ani T SARE 00

Auctioneers Fees. . .. L5 i S UERES ol
AdverBalng. oL 005 o s et O S ST
Polishiggtie . 5o AuSins YRk s et o 75 56 30
Net'Proceeds: .. . 2w clisa s =00 10 et e 04T

A draft covering the net proceeds of the sale was received by the
Department and placed to the credit-of the Receiver General.

The Departmental records do not show the sale of a Dodge Automobile
or any other automobile to Special Inspector J. E. Bisaillon.

Respectfully submitted,

(Sgd.) C. H. CALLBECK,
Head .Law Clerk.”

Roberick Prrcy Sparks called and sworn. |

By the Chairman:

Q. ‘What is your occupation, Mr. Sparks?—A. Manufacturer.
Q. In Ottawa?—A. Ottawa.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Mr. Chairman, I would suggest that the counsel for
the Association should conduct the examination of Mr. Sparks

Mr. DonacHY: No 'objection.
The CuAlrrMmaN: Will you proceed, Mr. Henderson?

By Mr. G. F. Henderson, K.C.: ‘ e

Q. Mr. Sparks, you have said that you are a manufacturer doing business
in Ottawa. Your factory is where?—A. Hull, Quebec,

Q. Your residence being in Ottawa?—A. Yes.

Q. And going back to the years 1923 and ithe early part of 1924, you had
an official position in an organization of manufacturers, I think. What was
that organization?—A. I was president of the Canadian Association of Garment
Manufacturers.

Q. The Canadian Association of Garment Manufacturers?—A. Yes.

Q. And not to take up too much time in detail, you had in that capacity
taken an interest in the question of smuggling, had you not?—A. Yes.

Q. And had you—I do not want to go into the detail of it—prior to the month
of August, 1924, been .in touch with the Minister of Customs and Excise in that
regard?—A. Very frequently.

Q. As well as with officers of, his department?—A. Yes.

Q. And in pursuance of your activities am I right in understanding that
on the sixth day of August, 1924, a deputation appeared before the Prime Minis-
ter and certain members of the Cabinet?—A. Yes.

Mr. Hexperson: I may say, Mr. Chairman, that I want to trace chrono-
logically and connect up, so as to make the, correspondence which is already
before the committee, understandable.

By Mr. Henderson.:

Q. Have you in a concise form a record of what took place when that
deputation was heard?—A. Yes,
[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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4 §
g Mr. HenpersoN: I would suggest, Mr. Chairman, if the committee is
- willing, that a report which Mr. Sparks then made to his own organization, of
. that deputation, might be put in as a convenient synopsis of what occurred,
and then we will just mention it. Thergis nothing controversial about it.
Hon. Mr. BExNETT: And he will say it is true? Pl

Mr. HEnDERSON:  Yes.

By Mr. Henderson: 4
Q. Have you before you, Mr. Sparks, a copy of a report which you made,
of which I have a copy here, under date of August 9, to your own organization?

—A. Yes.
Q. Would you be good enough to produce it and hand it in?

i . Mr. DonagHY: If you don’t mind, will you have the witness swear posi-
- tively that it is-true in every detail?

E. . Mr. HexpersoN: You understand, Mr. Donaghy, as a lawyer—

} Mr. DonagHY: You are filing it as an exhibit before proving it.

: Mr. Evuiorr: Is it merely produced, or is it filed?

Mr. HenpErsON: It is merely produced for the moment.

' By Mr. Henderson:

Q. In fact, Mr. Sparks, are the facts as set out in the report to your organi-
¢ zation all true in substance and in fact?—A. Yes.

E - Q. Then you will be good enough to produce it?—A. I might say, Mr.
~  Chairman, that preceding this I have a letter written to 'the Prime Minister
- asking for the appointment, and setting out in a general way the objects of the
deputation. ;

By the Chairman:
Q. What is the date of that letter?—A. That is July. 24th, 1924. The
letter is of a very general character.

X By Mr. Henderson: ;

Q. And that letter is already— —A. Produced. The first letter.

v Mr. Bern: Mr. Chairman, if it does not interrupt Mr. Henderson too
} much in his examination, I would like to hear that letter read.

Mr. HexbersoN: Yes, I will read it. You will find on the file, Mr. Chair-
man, a letter dated June 23, 1924, addressed by Mr. Sparks in his capacity as
president of the Canadian Association of Garment Manufacturers, to the Prime
Minister. d
; ‘Hon. Mr. BenxgerT: These letters are not in evidence; they are only
B produced, and as you use them you should put them in evidence. It is therefore
¢ important that you should indicate the file they come from.

Mr. HenbersoN: This is on the file of correspondence with the Prime
Minister.

Mr. Evniorr: Is that in the file produced? :

Mr. Henberson: It is in that file. I have checked it, and I understand
the original has been produced this morning. Am I right in that, Mr. Boivin?

, Hon. Mr. Bovin: Yes. 0
By Mr. Henderson:

Q. You wrote this letter to the Prime Minister?—A. Yes.
[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Mr. HenpersoN: This letter is dated June 23, 1924, and is as follows;
. EXHIBIT No. 18

“ Dear Sir,—Confirming th ¢ writer’s conversation with your secretary, ¥

Mr. McGregor, we would respectfully ask the opportunity for a delega-
tion representing this Association to lay before the government certain
matters in connection with the wholesale smuggling of various class:s
‘of goods into Canada.

We think it would be desirable, should you grant this request, that
the Minister of Finance, the Minister of Customs and the Minister of
Justice might.be present, as the matters which we wish to lay before you
affect these three departments.”

Mr. Eruiorr: Will you pardon me a moment. I have here the file which,

I take it, is the original file, because it seems to contain originals, some sagned ;

by Mr. Sparks and some by the Minister’s secretary, and I do not see any
letter of the date you mention.

Mr. HeNpersoN: There were copies handed in yesterday, Mr. E-lhott the
Chairman has the file under his hand, I think.

The CrAlRMAN: Can you show it to me? I am looking through the file and
I do not find it. I would like to follow it.

Mr. HenDERSON: It was marked, in the list furmshed to me, as among those
on the file.

Mr. Bern: On the file being handed in vesterday, Mr. Doucet checked it. ;

Perhaps he might find it.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Read the letter, and Mr. Sparks will declare if it is a
letter he wrote, and let us get along.

Mr. HenbersoN: Very well. .(Reads):—

EXHIBIT 18—Con.

“We believe the Minister of Finance would be interested in the
statement, of our opinion that the loss of revenue will exceed $10,000,000
per annum.

As the prevention of smuggling comes under the Customs Depart-
ment, certain very important facts which we propose to put before the
govomment in reference to the ineffectual methods now adopted by the
Customs Department. will be of interest.

We shall also call attention to the faect that conditions in the ports,
particularly in Montreal, are such that smugglers are practically immune
from punishment. i

The whole question of smuggling has become a national problem.
It is seriously affecting business, and, as pointed out, causing a tremendous
loss of revenue. This Association for more than a year has studied this
problem, and we would like to lay before your government a comprehensive
statement, covering the matter.

We would re\pe(tful]y suggest that, if you are able to fix a date, ib

should be at least a week or ten days forward as representatives from"

various parts of the country will require to be notified of the date set.
Trusting you will see your way clear to meet this delegation, and
awaiting your early reply, we remain,
Yours recpec’ofulh
Canadian Association of Garment Manufacturers,

per (Signed) R. P. SPARKS, -
' President.”
[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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By Mr. Henderson: ;
Q. Then it was pursuant to that letter, which I understand was in the file—

‘at all events you wrote that letter, did you?—A. Yes.

Q. To the Prime Minister?—A. Yes. ‘

Q. Then I will ask to put in a copy of that letter in the meantime. It
merely initiates the proceedings. Then the deputation appeared on the 6th of
August, 1924, What Ministers were present?—A. Right Hon. Mackenzie King;
Hon. Jacques Bureau; Hon. Mr. Lapointe; Hon. Mr. Macdonald; Hon. Mr.
Graham; and Hon. J. H. King.

Q. And who were present representing, first of all, your Association?—A.
Representing our Association were:— i

P. S. Hardy, Alphonse Racine Ltd., Montreal.

Geo. Nagley, American Waist & Dress Co., Montreal.

E. Jones, The Hampton Manfg. Co., Montreal.

Joseph Moss, The Greenberg Smith Co., Montreal.

F. W. Schwartz, Queen Dress & Waist. Ltd., Montreal.
W. H. Creamer, Semi-ready, Limited, Montreal.

Jack Wegler, Wegler Skirt Co., Montreal.

J. Seligman, S. & G. Dress Co., Montreal.

S. Greenberg, Textile Skirt & Dress Mfg. Co., Montreal.
E. H. Near, Larned, Carter & Co., Ltd., Toronto.

Thos. E. Knowlton, Children’s Wear, Ltd., Toronto.

J. F. Kitchen, The Kitchen Overall & Shirt Co., Brantford.
R. P. Sparks, Sparks-Harrison, Ltd., Hull.

By Mr. Henderson.: : ;
Q. That is your own organization. Now, give us the others.—A. (reading) :—

Cotton Mulls
E. A. Robertson, Montreal Cottons Ltd., Montreal.
H. C. Brodie, Dominion Textile Co., Ltd., Montreal.

Representing the silk mills: Sol Bruck, of the Premier Silk Mills, Limited,
and C. A. Reynolds of the Belding Corticelli Limited; representing the silk
jobbers, J. Fowley, Silks Limited; H. S. T. Piper of the J. O. Bourcier Limited;
M. Vineberg, Vinebtrg Goodman & Company; representing the Wholesale Dry
Goods Association of Canada, Mr. N, Paulet; representing the Retail Merchants
Association of Canada, Mr. E. N. Trowern, and Mr. J. R. Dixon; represcnting
the Canadian Manufacturers’ Association, Mr. E. Blake Robertson, and Mr. C.
Willis George.

Now, if the Committee would like, T will read a report which was sub-
sequently sent to each of these gentlemen, setting out the facts as they took place
at the Conference.

Mr. HenpeErsON: As having already stated that these facts—

The CuamMmaN: I do not think that is necessary, it is filed as a report.

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: I would like to hear it, Mr. Chairman.

The CaAamrMAN: If it is desired, of course we will have it read.

By Mr. Henderson:

Q. Just say what happened, Mr. Sparks.

Mr. Ezuiorr: Perhaps Mr. Sparks can, by looking at the letter, tell us what
toolsllfplace at that Conference in a concise way, better than by reading the letter
itself.

Mr. Hexpersox: Mr. Elliott, my idea is that by reading this report the
Committee will be in a better position to understand what took place at this

Conference, ,
[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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_ Hon. Mr. Bovin: And apart from that, it will be printed then, and I think
it should be read. There was an understanding the other day that whatever was
read would be printed. ; ; ' T

Mr. Hexberson: Yes, I think that ;s so, Mr. Boivin. Proceed, Mr. Sparks.

EXHIBIT No. 19
The Wrrxess’: (Reading) :— \

“At a meeting held before the interview with the Cabinet, the whole
matter was thorougly discussed. It was first intended that representatives
of the various interests should deal with the different phases of this
question, but it was finally decided that the President of this Association
should present the whole case, and if it seemed necessary to call on any
others, they would be prepared to take up the matter requiring their
statements. 3

The interview lasted for about an hour, and, after the presentation
of the general statement, resolved into a discussion between various
members of the Cabinet and of the delegation.

The principal points called to the attention of the Cabinet were that
legitimate business is being seriously and injuriously affected by the
operation of this illegitimate trade, and that, in some branches of the
industry, honest traders are actually being driven into bankruptey owing
fo the operation of smugglers throughout Canada.

It was pointed out that, even when these criminals are caught, they
are not adequately -punished, and that particularly in the administration
ofi justice in the city of Montreal the condition in the eourts is scandalous.

These general statements were supported -by concrete facts with
detailed particulars of the names and cases, and a summary of evidence
which has been accumulated during the past year’s investigation by this
Association.

The statement also dealt with the situation existing at certain border
points between Quebec and the United States, centering at Rock Island.
Conclusive evidence was presented that wholesale smuggling of cotton
piece goods and garments is being carried on, and has been for years, and
that no adequate means were being. taken to prevent it. In regard to
this situation, concrete evidence weas presented which established the
correctness of the statements made beyond the shadow of a doubt.

Attention was drawn to the belief that large quantities of prison-
made garments from the United States were being dumped into Canada.

Telegrams were presented from various interests who could not
attend, including a strong statement of the situation in Winnipeg signed
by every manufacturer of overalls and work-clothing there. Messages
from individual firms at other points were also presented, and the Prime
Minister had already received telegrams from larger departmental stores
in Toronto and Montreal supporting the representations being made. A
signed petition from about fifty dress manufacturers in Montreal was
also submitted. :

The Government were again strongly pressed to amend the Customs
Act in accordance with the suggestions put forward by this Association
months ago after consultation with the Department of Justice, the
Department of Customs and Excise, and the Attorney General of the
province of Quebec. This suggestion was that the following clause be
added to the Customs Act:—

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.] »
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Provided that in any case where the value of such goods
(smuggled) exceeds $500, such person shall, in addition to any other
penalty to which he is subject for any such offence, be liable to
1mpr1sonment for a term not exceeding two years and not les> than
six months”.

The CuamrMAN: Did I understand you to say $5007

The Wirness: Yes. (Reading):

“Concrete proposals were made as to the methods which should be
adopted to prevent this illegal traffic. These included the suggestions of
the establishment of a bureau to be supported by the various interests
affected as a clearing house for information, co-operating with the
Government, but under the direction of an Advisory Board of business
men, and that the head of this Bureau would be vested with police powers
and governmental authority.

The Minister of Customs very naturally defended his administration,
but agreed that this traffic had assumed very large proportlons and that
more Tigid preventive measures were necessary.

The Prime Minister promised consideration to all our suggestions,
and assured the Delegation that the Government would leave nothing
undone to stop this traffic.

At a meeting held after the interview, steps were taken to immediately
establish the Central Bureau above referred to, and we have reason to
believe that other suggestions put forward were once taken up by the
Department. It was the general consensus of opinion‘of those who were
present, that much had been accomplished, and that very soon this
situation would be well in hand”.

By the Chairman: ,

Q. Was that signed by you?—A. Yes. If the Committee wishes I would
like to read two documents which were read to the Cabinet. Oral presentation
of the case was made, but two documents were read, which I would like to
convey to the Committee. One was a telegram from Winnipeg, addressed to
R. P. Sparks, Room 209 Hope Building, Ottawa, Ontario, and reads as follows:

EXHIBIT No. 20

“We understand you are to meet the Prime Minister on the question
of smuggling going on in Border towns province of Quebec. Would
appreciate conveying the Minister on our behalf the fact that the entire
Winnipeg industry of overalls and work-clothing manufacturing is
seriously menaced by the unfair competition of border manufacturers
who apparently sell their products at least twenty per cent below our
legitimate quotations. If this situation is not remedied at once, the
entire Winnipeg industry here consisting of nine factories and employing
from six to seven hundred people, 1s threatened with extinction. Without
taking any side on the tariff question our opinion is that only immediate
and rigid enforcement of the Customs Tariff Regulation can remedy
existing conditions. Kindly wire result of interview with Minister. If
necessary that a deputation of Winnipeg Overall Manufacturers  be
present there, advise telegraphically.”

That was signed by the Monarch Overall Manufacturing Company, Limited,
Western Kind Manufacturing Company Limited, the Northern Shirt Company
Limited, the Henderson Manufacturing Company, Murray’s Limited, Western
Shirt and Overall Manufacturing Company Limited, Love and Mortoh Limited,
the K.B.B. Manufacturing Company Limited, and the Canadian Shirt and

Overall Company Limited.
[Mr. R. P, Sparks.]



R Y R

114 X ; SPECIAL COMMITTEE

™

In addition to that, there was a petition— y

By the Chairman: :
- Q. Just a moment; do you know these people?—A. Yes, sir. I am a
manufacturer of the same class. i
* Q. A manufacturer of overalls?—A. Yes. :

Mr. Evrviorr: Just a minute, Mr. Chairman, while the witness is stopping
for a moment; there would be no objection to all correspondence relating to
this matter in the possession of the witness being produced for the Committee?

Mr. HexpErsON: Absolutely not, of course. As a matter of fact, my
difficulty would be not to burden the Committee with too much, and anything
the Committee wants is, of course, available.

Mr. Ervtorr: If he will produce the correspondence—it need not be filed,
but produced as other files have been—the Committee will have the opportunity
of going through it.

Mr. HexpersoN: As I say, it is my intention to make this story as short
as possible. ¥

Mr. Ervuiorr: I understand, Mr. Henderson. 15

Mr. HexpersoN: But anything that rises inecidentally—

Hon. Mr. BeEx~NerT: I understand you to say it is your desire to proceed
chronologically. i
! 1The CuamrMAN: You certainly will not be blamed if it should prove to

e long.

Mr. Bern: In the meantime, I would like the other documents to which
Mr. Sparks refers read.

The Wirness: That was a petition signed by fifty manufacturers along
the same general lines, and it applied to women’s wear. We will put the two
documents in. They were the only two; the rest of the proceedings were oral.

By Mr. Bell:
Q. To whom was this petition addressed?—A. To the Prime Minister and
the five members of his Cabinet who were present. ;

By the Chairman.:

Q. Is this last petition a copy or an original?—A. It is an original.

Q. It was never filed?—A. No.

Q. Never handed to the Minister of Customs or anybody?—A. Yes; a
copy of each was left with them.

Q. You have the original?

Mr. HenpErsON: I am now handing in the original telegram and the original
petition (XExhibit No. 21, not printed) as received, both of which were read
for the deputation by the witness.

The CramMman: What was the date of this deputation?

Mr. Eruiorr: The 6th day of August, 1924, as I have it.

Mr. HenxpersON: The 6th day of August, 1924, was the date when the
deputation was heard.

By Mr. Henderson:

Q. I see you state there, Mr. Sparks, that it was suggested in the course
of the Conference that the manufacturers represented on that deputation should
be in some way organized for the purpose of following up that investigation.
To whom was that suggestion made?—A. We asked the Government, through

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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'~ the Prime Minister, if they were desirous of our co-operating with them and
we offered our services, if they could be of any use; the reason being that much
~ information reached us through ordinary trade channels. Our members, whether
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manufacturers, retailers or wholesalers, did not feel disposed to bring evidence

to the Government and take the position of informers— i
Q. As individuals?—A. As individuals; but they said they would be willing

to supply information of a detailed character to a Bureau—a clearing bureau.

~ The government, through the Minister, thought the idea an excellent one—

By Mr. Elliott: ! ; ' ‘
' Q. What Ministers?—A. Through the Prime Minister and the Minister of

Customs;—and urged us strongly to form such an Association.

By Mr. Henderson:
Q. The idea being that a central organization would be in a better posi-

" tion to furnish information than private individuals in the district?—A. Yes.

Q. And was that association formed?—A. Yes; it was incorporated by
letters patent issued by the Secretary of State, and the particular powers set
out. (Ezhibit No. 22, not printed.)

“(A) To establish and operate a Central Bureau for the clearing of
information in reference to smuggling and t8e establishment of branches
of the same in other places throughout the Dominion of Canada, through
the medium of agencies or otherwise.” = }

., Mr. HexpersoN: This (indicating), Mr. Chairman, is the letters patent
incorporating the Commercial Protective Association—my client here—of which’
Mr. Sparks is Chairman of the Executive Committee. This was issued on the
19th of January, 1925 under the hand and the Great Seal of the Secretary of
State. I will put that in.

- The CaamrmaN: This will be received as an exhibit, as will also the petition
handed in a moment, ago.

Mr. Erviorr: Just a minute. What was the name of that Association?

Mr. Hexperson: The Commercial Protective Association.

The Wirness: Might I say this, Mr. Chairman? You might ask why
there was a delay from January. We had at first suggested using the name
“Dominion Smuggling Preventative Association”, but the Minister objected
to that, and I think properly so, so we withdrew our application and filed a new
one. That accounts for the delay.

The CuarmAN: Yes, I understand.

By Mr. Henderson:

Q. That detailed, Mr. Sparks—without going into it in detail now—all
the correspondence between yourself and the Minister of Customs which, I
understand to be now before the Committee?

Hon. Mr. Bowvin: Filed this morning,

Mr. HenpersoN: Yes, filed this morning. Eventually this name was
agreed upon, and incorporation was taken under this name.

By Mr. Henderson:
Q. What has been your position, as an individual, in that organization?—
A. I would be glad, if permitted,—
Q. Just answer my question?—A. I am President.
Q. You are the President of that organization?—A. Yes.
Q. And you are one of the incorporators?—A. Yes.
[Mr. R, P. Sparks.]
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Q. Then I want to know, for the information of the Committee, as to those
who are effective members of the organization. The company obwously required
money ?—A. Yes.

Q. And those who are effectively contnbu’omg to the work of your organiza-
tion?—A. The association is operated by individuals and associations. = The
following associations are associated in some offieial way; some by the con-
tribution of money, and some by the appointment of delegates on our com-
mittee. The following associations are in one way or another affiliated with our
office, the Commercial Protective Association—

Q. I propose to facilitate the work of the Committee and simply read the
names and hand the Committee the original of the documents which indicate
the associations or individuals associated with your association, the Commercial
Protective Association. It is an organization?—A. Those are the different firms
and associations, organizations, and so on, trade orgamizations:—

/

EXHIBIT No. 23.

Retail Merchants Association of Canada.

Canadian Jewellers’ Association.

The Wholesale Dry Goods Association of Canada.

The Canadian Associatian of Garment Manufacturers.

The Canadian Manufacturers Association ‘ S
Merchants Association of Montreal.

Manufacturers’ Credit Bureau, Limited.

Board of Trade of the City of Montreal.

Board of Trade of the City of Toronto.

Board of Trade of the City of St. John, N.B.

Board of Trade of the city of Halifax.

Board of Trade of the City of Quebee.

Board of Trade of the City of Ottawa.

Board of Trade of the City of London.

Chamber of Commerce of the City of Hamilton.

Border Chamber of Commerce, Windsor.

Board of Trade of the City of Winnipeg,

Board of Trade of the City of Calgary.

Board of Trade of the City of Edmonton.

Board of Trade of the City of Vancouver.

Board of Trade of the City of Victoria.

The Executive committee composed of the following:—

Chairman: R. P. Sparks, Sparks-Harrison, Ltd., Hull, Que.
Secretary: F. D. Tolchard, Secretary, Toronto Board of Trade, Toronto.
Walter J. Barr, The Goldsmiths’ Co. of Canada, Limited, Toronto.
C. L. Burton, The Robert Simpson Co. Ltd., Toronto.

W. 8. Campbell, The Canadian General Electric Co. Limited, Toronto.
A. J. Doherty, Doherty Manufacturing Co. Ltd., Toronto.

J. Powley, Silks Limited, Toronto.

A. T. Reid, A. T. Reid Co., Limited, Toronto.

W. B. Woods, Gordon Mackay & Co., Ltd., Toronto.

Sol. Bruck, Bruck Silk Mills, Ltd., Montreal, Que.

5 Lafoley, Mark Fisher, Sons & Co Montreal Que.

Hector Racine, Alphonse Racme lelted Montreal Que.

C. A. Reynolds, Belding, Corticelli, Limited, Montreal, Que.

E. A. Robertson, The Montreal Cottons, Limited, Montreal, Que.

Q. Just as a matter of interest, I understand that a number of these gentle-
men are here this morning?—A. Yes.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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_ Mr. Henperson, K.C.: I will attach these together, and hand them in, Mr.
Chairman, including the original documents, bearing out what Mr. Sparks says
as to the support given by these different concerns, to his organization.

Mr. Erurorr: Just a moment, Mr. Henderson. I suppose he would like to
file them. (Ezhibit No. 23.) y

Mr. HenpersoN, K.C.: Yes.

'By Mr. Elliott:

i Q. These different organizations as I understand it, were working through
this incorporated company, called the Commercial Protective Association?—
A. Yes. ]
: Q. And with the government’s assistance, for the purpose of getting—
Mr. Hexperson, K.C.: It will be developed that this organization worked
in very close harmony with the government for quite a period of time. :

By Mr. Elliott: :

Q. Yes. Then you were, do I understand you, the central part of the
organization?—A. Yes.

Q. Did they have an office?—A. We had offices in Ottawa, Toronto
and Montreal. _ .

Q. There would be correspondence back and forth with these various organ-
izations?—A. Yes. i ¥ | :

Q. Did you dictate most of the correspondence?—A. Yes.

Q. So that you will have the correspondence within your control, relating
to the operations of this concern with the various other concerns that it is
operating with?—A. Yes. g

Q. And that will all be produced for the inspection of the Committee?—
A. Yes.

‘Mr. Hexperson: Absolutely. T might say, as you readily understand,
correspondence with those organizations is mostly of an advisory character,
. advising them from time to time as to what was being done.
"WirnEess: Receiving suggestions.
Mr. HexpersoN : Receiving suggestions, receiving information, telling what
progress was being made. As the Committee will learn, it was a very expensive
~ process, carrying on this work.

By Mr. Henderson, K.C.:

Q. Now, having organized in that way, what did you next do, to make your
work effective, in the way of obtaining information or adding to first, what you
already had? What subject matters did you take up?—A. We notified the trade,
various branches of the trade of the fact that we had offices prepared to receive
information; a flood of information reached us. We decided that before passing
on this mass we should make some preliminary investigation, and we decided to
employ the best criminal investigator that could be obtained.

Q. Now, during that period of time, were you still remaining in touch with
the Minister, and the officers of the Department from time to time?—A. Yes, I
have been in touch from the very start.

; Q. And with other members of the Cabinet?—A. And with other members
“of the Cabinet.

Q. Am I right in understanding that you were obtaining their sympathetic
support?—A. Positively.

Q. From whom and through whom did you arrange for the organization of
\your criminal investigation staff, if I may call it that?—A. We made inquiries
as to who might be regarded as the best investigator, and the name of Mr.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Walter Duncan was put before us. We ledrned he was emplo i
by the Department of Finance. DR g i v :

Q. What was his record without going into it? Who had he been previously ?
—A. He had been, I understand for about thirty years, inspector of detectives
in the city of Toronto.

Q. A man of high standing?—A. Yes.

Q. He was then employed by the Department of Finance?—A. Yes.

Q. Did you approach the Minister of Finance with regard to him?—A. Yes.

G Q. With what result?—A. The Minister of Finance loaned him to this asso-

ciation.

Q. He loaned him to your association? Under whose pay was he to be?—
A. T asked the Minister of Finance if we could pay him something in addition
to what he received. The Minister said he did not want to know anything about
that. As a matter of fact we did pay him in addition to his salary with the
~ Minister. ;

Q. Yes. Mr. Walter Duncan became your Chief of Staff?—A. Yes.

Q. By the way, is that the same Mr. Walter Duncan who was referred to
yesterday 7—A. Yes. ;

Q. And he was, in fact, in your opinion, the best man available in Canada?
—A. Yes.

Q. Precisely. So he became your Chief of Staff. Were others engaged under

 him?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Ellott:
Q. When?

By Mr. Henderson, K.C.:

Q. When was that, Mr. Elliott asks properly?—A. I think he began active
operations about the 1st October, 1924.

Q. Did he have assistants?—A. Yes. ' :

Q. How many?—A. Well, I think our staff would be about ten at the highest
point. It varied.

Q. Who made the choice of the staff?>—A. Mr. Duncan selected the in- '
investigators. _

Q. I am talking about the investigators. Mr. Duncan selected the men
whom he deemed competent?—A. Yes. ‘

Q. In whose pay were they?—A. In our pay.

By the Chairman:
Q. Mr. Duncan was in your pay also?—A. Yes.
Q. Would you have any objection to file a list of the amounts paid to Mr.
Duncan?—A. No, I would be very glad to. :
Q. And the dates and everything?—A. I would be very glad to do that.
Q. During all the time he was in your employ?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Henderson, K.C.:

Q. And the other men also?—A. Yes.

Q. Would you give the names of some of the men, who are of important?—
A. We had four principal investigators, James Knox, George Sloan, C. A.
Alexander and Mr. Duncan. ‘

Q. They were the chief ones, in addition to Mr. Duncan?—A. Yes.

Q. And they pursued their investigations, and were reports made from time
to time?—A. Yes.

Q. You have those reports, I presume?—A. Yes. i

Q. Were the contents of these reports from time to time communicated to
the Department, the substance of them?—A. S’(es, they were. They were

officials of the Customs Department.
[Mr. R. P. Sparks]
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Q. I am coming to that in a moment. I think I had better go into that "
now. What steps did you take to make their work more effective, as to their
having official status?—A. We found very early that we could not do effective
work unless these men were granted the powers of Preventive officers, giving

them the status of Customs officers. s
Q. Having found that, what did you do?—A. We applied to the Minister
of Customs. .

By the Chairman:

Q. When do you remember the date about?—A. Well, I have some corres-
pondence in reference to the matter.

Mr. Evuiorr: Perhaps he had better read that.

The Wirness: Most of the dealings with the Minister of Customs were had
verbally. I had comparatively little correspondence, but I saw him,—well, I
suppose half a dozen times before he left Ottawa. :

By Mr. Henderson: !

Q. You are asked to, as nearly as you can, give the time when you first
made application?—A. Yes. It was under discussion, but it came to a head on
December 12th.

By the Chairman:
Q. Of what year?—A: 1924.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Is that set forth in that letter?—A. It is set forth in that letter of
December 12th. ! ' -

Q. Will you read it? I assume it is on the file, Mr. Chairman; the letter
whjch(you wrote to the Minister of Customs and Excise. You have the date.
—A. (reads):

EXHIBIT No. 24.

DOMINION SMUGGLING PREVENTATIVE ASSOCIATION.
Orrawa, December 12, 1924.

Hon. Jacques Bureav,
Minister of Customs and Excise,
Ottawa.

“Dear Sir,—As previously advised, a meeting was held yesterday of
the members of a small committee interested in smuggling. We had been
hopeful of being able to meet you, but, in your absence, we had an in-
terview with Mr. Farrow.”

By Mr. Henderson:
Q. That is the Deputy?—A. Yes (reading.)

“The chief object of our interview was to again urge that the in-
vestigators whom we have employed to assist your Department in the
apprehension and conviction of smugglers should be granted the powers
of preventive officers. We wish to again point out that the sole object of
our organization is to assist your Department, and that our efforts cannot
be effective unless these officers have the powers above referred to. We
trust that we may be able to obtain your co-operation in this regard.”

I deal with another matter in the same letter, if you wish me to read it.
Q. You might finish reading that letter, because it will indicate what went
on.

7~

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Mr. Evviorr: That should go in.
Mr. Hexpersox: I am going to ask to put it in because it will be read.

Wirness: (Reading).

“ Another matter to which reference was made was the situation at
Rock Island, Quebec. It is generally known in the trade that vigorous
action was taken by your Department, and tliat your officers found
evidence of smuggling on a large secale. It is further well known that
the smugglers who were detected came to Ottawa, interviewed members
of the Government, with the result that no prosecution was made. The
information to this effect has come direct from Rock Island. These
people have always claimed to have influence at Ottawa, and, in the

i minds of those who are affected by this illegal traffic, the events of the
past few weeks demonstrate the truth of their boasts. It was strongly
urged at the meeting yesterday that we should press for a prosecution
in these cases.

It was pointed out by those who are familiar with the situation
that you were dealing with the smuggling problem in an energetic manner
and that we should accept your decision not to prosecute, as you may
have had reasons for believing that the ends of justice would be met with-
out prosecution. It was further pointed out that you were co-operating
heartily with this Association in our efforts to protect our interests, and
I might say that nothing would support this position more fully than the
prompt and immediate a-ppointment of these investigators as preventive
officers.

Our experience, based on the few weeks during which we have been
organized, has more than ever convinced us that we can be of great
assistance to your Department, but the effectiveness of our organization
is entirely dependent upon the granting of the powers to our ofﬁcers, to
be used in emergencies.

Trusting that this matter will have your immediate and favourable

consideration, I remain,
Yours truly,

R. P.. SPARKS,
President.”

By the Chairman:
Q. That is signed by you?—A. R. P. Sparks, President, Commercial Pro-

tective Association.

By Mr. Henderson:

Q. At that time you were using the use of the name of the Dominion
Smuggling Preventative Association?—A. Yes, possibly so.

Q. Did you succeed at once in having them appointed?—A. Yes.

Q. After that?—A. Yes.

Q. Were they given any other status, for instance, mounted police?—A.
We applied to Col. Starnes of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police, and had
certain of them sworn in as Dominion Police officers, with powers to make
arrests.

Q. In that way their work was made more effective?—A. Yes.

Q Then you have told me that from time to time they were kept in touch,
that is, that the Department was kept in touch with the result?—A. Yes.

Q. What was your experience as to the prosecutions in that regard?—
A. Well, we found that it was not the practice of the Department to prosecute
in smugghng cases. We were very firmly of the opinion that the true solution of
this national problem was in the public prosecution of the criminals and that

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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that was a matter which should be undertaken by the Department or by the
Government. ;
Q. Without going into details at this stage, at least it was not the custom
i to prosecute?—A. No.

Q. To pass that for the moment, and coming on to the month of Febru-
ary, 1925, under date of the 4th of February, 1925, you addressed another
letter, which I think is next in order, to the Prime Minister?—A. Yes. Do you
wish me to read it? :

Q. Yes. You did in fact, did you not, address that letter?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is on file?—A.: Yes.

EXHIBIT No. 25.

~ “Orrawa, February 4, 1925.
Rt. Hon. W. L. Mackenzie King,
Prime Minister of Canada,

Ottawa.

Dear Sir:—Some months ago a large representative deputation
waited upon you and members of your Cabinet pointing out that smug-
gling and under-valuation for duty purposes were causing an immense
loss of revenue and seriously interfering with the business of legitimate
traders and manufacturers.

Subsequent to that time this Association was:organized for the

- purpose of assisting the Department of Customs and Excise in the preven-

‘ tion of smuggling and under-valuation and to make certain investigations

of their own into this problem. In this regard we are pleased to say

that both the Minister and Deputy Minister of Customs have welcomed

our co-operation and have facilitated in every possible way the investi-

gations we have made into the smuggling problem. These investigations

have even more strongly impressed the business men who have given

il close attention to this work with the magnitude of this traffic and the
necessity of prompt end drastic action.

Under the present law smuggling is not an indictable offence,
although the Minister has the right to take cases of smuggling into the
civil courts. It has, however, been the practice ever since Confedera-
tion to settle departmentally practically all seizures for smuggling or
under-valuation.. We believe that this practice has had the general
affect of what might not be improperly deseribed as contempt for the
law in this regard. :

We respectfully submit that, in order to maintain respect for the
Iaw and to correct the abuse of its infraction, all cases of fraud whether
by way of smuggling or under-valuation under the Customs Act should
be dealt with by the civil courts, and, in the case of what might be
described as commercial smuggling, that is smuggling of goods for
resale of a substantial value, say $100 or over, the offence should be
made punishable by imprisonment without the option of a fine. The
. various penalties as set out in the Act at present are entirely inadequate.
The preventive service as at present constituted is quite unable to cope
with the situation, hadicapped as they are by existing laws and regu-

_ lations which interfere with effective preventive work.

To illustrate the difficulties of the present situation we have prepared
maps taking a particular section of the Quebec border, showing approx-
imately sixty roads crossing the border, within one hundred and
twenty-eight miles. In this section there are at present nine Customs
Houses. According to the Act these Customs Houses remain open from
sunrise to sunset and, so far as we are aware, after the sun has set the

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]




122

SPECIAL COMMITTEE

border is to all intents and purposes wide open. It would be obviously -

impossible to demand a twenty-four hour service at even all of these
sixty roads, let alone the whole four thousand miles of border. We
believe the only solution of the problem will be found in drastie punish-
ment, for smugglers when caught.. In this regard we might refer you to
the provisions in reference to the entering into Canada of immigrants
under Section 33, sub-section 7 of the Immigration Act. The general
conditions as in this section might be applied to smugglers entering
Canada on roads other than those on which Customs Houses are located.

The law relating to under-valuation involves complicated and long
drawn out investigations which practically nullify their effect. We
believe these particular features could be simplified and made more
effective.

The appraisal system is unsatisfactory, chiefly owing to the fact that
in Canada there are 522 ports of entry, and it is obvious that it would
be impossible to keep proper appraisers at all these ports. We might
point out, in so far as ports of entry are concerned in Canada in com-
parison with the United States, that there is one port of entry in Canada
for every 17,241 people, whereas in the United States there are only 314
ports of entry, or one to every 372,611 people. We are prepared to make
practical .suggestions in this regaed.

It is respectfully submitted that the conditions herein set forth are
sufficiently well known to the Government and to its- departmental
officers and the requested forms of relief so necessary and reasonable as
to justify the Government to take immediate action by instituting the
required departmental changes and submitting to Parliament bills pro-
viding for necessary legislative enactment, or, if the Government is not
satisfied as to the necessity of action and the action which should be
taken, it is respectfully submitted that a Parliamentary committee should
be -appointed immediately to inquire into the necessity of departmental
and legislative changes. -

I might mention incidentally that this Association has been endorsed
and is being supported by the following organizations:—

The Canadian Manufacturers Association,

Canadian Jewellers’ Association,

Canadian Wholesale Dry Goods Association,

Canadian Association of Garment Manufacturers,

Retail Merchants’ Association of Ontario,

Montreal Board of Trade,

Toronto Board of Trade, . )
and the boards of trade in a number of the other of the larger cities in
Canada.

Yours truly,

(Sgd.) R. P. SPARKS,
Chairman Executive Commaittee.”

Q. You say on the first page of this letter:— y

“The preventive service as at present constituted is quite unable to
cope with the situation, —"

May I ask you this; during the whole course of your activities, Mr. Sparks,

had you any fault to find with the officers of the Customs Department?—A. Not
the officers at the head office. A ,

Q. I am speaking of at the head office?—A. No.
[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Q. I understand you found them entirely sympathetic, and anxious that
the service should be effective?—A. That is right.

Q. But your experience and your conversations with-them satisfied you
that the law was defective?—A. Yes.

Q. As indicated in that letter?—A. Yes.

Q. You desired changes in the law which would enable them to do more
effective work, that is your position?—A. Well, we desired more than changes
in the law.

Q. But going as far as that?—A. Yes.

Q. That was not all you desired?—A. No.

Q. You desired changes in the Act to make the Act more effective?—A.
Yes.

i A Were these matters dealt with in general conversations with the Min-
ister, as well as by this correspondence?—A. Yes.

Q I notice on the second page of the letter that you suggest a Parlia-
mentary Committee to investigate the situation?—A. Yes.

Q. Had that been suggested in personal conversatlons as well?—A. It had
been urged very stronglv on the Prime Minister, six months earlier.

Q. So that what is now happening is in line Wlth the suggestion you made
then?—A. Yes. )

Q. What followed that next in order of time, as to representations made
by you; your work was going on of course in the meantime?—A. Yes.

Q. In the month of February had you come into touch with the activities
of the gentleman whom we now know as Mr. Bisaillon?—A. Yes. We had

very early come in contact with his activities.

Q. What was the general situation, as you found it there?—A. Very, very
unsatisfactory.

Q. Just explain that to the committee, without too much detail?—A. Our
investigators got many rumors of corrupt aets.

Mr. Gagyon: If Mr. Sparks is getting to the proof, as I understand, I
will ask that he be allowed to just mention the facts which he knows person-
ally. Rumors and hearea} cannot make proof, and I wish to object strongly
to Mr. Sparks giving, so’ far as my eclient is concerned, anything he does not
know personally.

The Cuamman: Your objection is well taken, Mr. Gagnon.

Mr. Hexperson: 1 do not want Mr, Sparks to speak of anything which
was not communicated to the Minister or to some other member of the Gov-
ernment, because I take it that what we want to illustrate is the manner in
which he was kept in touch with the parties in the course of his work. Mr.
Sparks will understand that I do not want him to speak of anything which was
not communicated to the Minister, and I am going to follow immediately with
a letter of the 21st of February, 1925, written by Mr. Sparks to the Prime
Minister. 0.4 :

Mr. Gagyon: I do mot want to interfere, but I think my objection is right,
in taking the attitude that Mr. Sparks must have had some information, but that
lt;e may have had information which he gave to the Minister WhLCh mlght not

e true.

Mr. DonagHY: It is not proof against him that it is true, but that he com-
municated it to the Minister.

The CaarMAN: If Counsel for Mr. Bisaillon objects, we will deal with that
when it arises.

[Mr. R. P. Bparks.]
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By Mr. Henderson:

Q. Mr. Sparks, just sketch the situation that existed; what was going on in
February?—A. I addressed the following letter to the Prime Minister. Might
I say, Mr. Chairman, at this stage, that the Prime Minister asked me to keep
him advised of all our activities, and all of these letters were written at the
so}i-eitation of the Prime Minister. I wrote him on February the 21st, 1925, as
follows:— :

"EXHIBIT No. 26.

Ottfiw,a, February 21, 1925.
Rt. Hon. W. L. Mackenzie King,

Prime Minister of Canada,
Ottawa. 4

Dear Sir:—The acquittal by the Quebec courts of J. E. A. Bisaillon,
the Chief Preventive Officer at Montreal, who was charged with con-
spiracy, creates a new situation in reference to the prevention of smug-
gling. I think you should be in possession ‘of certain information which
we have in reference to this matter, as he is the key to the whole smug-
gling situation.

We have other information of the most important character which I
would like to convey to you, and also make some definite suggestions for
the prevention of this traffic. If you wish to discuss this matter, I will
be glad to make an appointment at any time which suits your convenience.
I would suggest that it might be desirable to have the Hon. Mr. Robb
also present, and I have some information which I think would be of a
good deal of interest to the Hon. Mr. Graham.

Might“I again repeat what I think I have said to you before that,
from the standpoint of loss of revenue, I think the smuggling business is
second only to the loss occasioned from the operation of the Canadian
National Railway. )

If you desire, I will be glad to make some definite suggestions in
regard to administration, which I believe will be immediately effective.

Awaiting a reply, I remain,

Yours respectfully,

(Sgd.) R. P. SPARKsS,
Chairman, Ezecutive Commattee.”

Mr. Hexperson: I will file this letter, which is already in.
By Mr. Henderson:
Q. Had there been an incffective prosecution of Mr. Bisaillon?—A. There
had been a prosecution.
Q. And he had been acquitted?—A. I know he was still the chief preventive
officer. 4 ‘
By the Chairman:
Q. He was still in office?—A. Yes.

, By Mr. Henderson: '
Q. Had you at that time seen certain of the evidence which had been given
at that inquiry?—A. Yes.
Q. You desired to communicate that to the Prime Minister?—A. That and
other facts.
Q. As stated there?—A. Yes.
Q. Will you tell me if I am right in understanding that you wrote another

letter under date of the 26th of February?—A. Yes.
[Mr. R. P. Sparkg.]
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; . Q. That is, five days later?—A. Yes.
e Q. To the Prime Mimister?—A. Yes. -
Q. Will you-be good enough to read that letter?—A. This l-etter reads as

follows:—
EXHIBIT No. 27

“Ortawa, February 26, 1925.

Rt. Hon W. L. MACKENZIE King,
Prime Minister of Canada,
Ottawa.

DEear Sir:—I topk the liberty of writing you on Saturday last sug-
gesting an appointment at which I could lay before you certain information
in reference to J. E. A. Bisaillon and other matters in connection with
smuggling in which I thought you would be interested. However, if the
statement of the Minister of Customs in the House of Commons on Tues-
day last is to be accepted as an indication of the Government’s policy, I
think, perhaps, there is no use taking up your time if this regard.

A Canadian Press dispatch reads as follows: ‘In speaking of smug-
gling Mr. Bureau said: I don’t believe any human power can stop it,’
although his department had done a great deal to decrease smuggling

. at the border.

Might I take the opportunity of stating that, after four months
investigation by a staff of trained criminal mvestigators, we are con-
vinced that at least half of the smuggling now going on could be prevented
within a month by an energetic policy on behalf of the Department, and
further that, with necessary amendments to the Aect, ninety per cent of

A the smuggling could ultimately .be prevented. Might I further express
4 the opinion that smuggling is increasing at an alarming rate, rather than
decreasing, as the Minister states.

I would also like to call your attention to the fact that yesterday I
took up with the Minister of Customs the question of the continuation
of Mr. Bisaillon as chief preventive officer at Montreal. I pointed out
that the business community had lost confidence in Mr. Bisaillon. I had
with me at that time a ‘number of reports on this man, one of which I
read to the Minister, which contained the following paragraph amongst
other statements made by a reputable officer who had formerly been
engaged in preventive work—"

That I think might properly be omitted. I submitted to the Prime Minister
for what it was worth the report of one of our officers.

Q. Is it that it appeared in your report?—A. It was contained in the letter.
Mr. DonacaY: Read it.

Wrrness: He is an employee of the Government.

“I had with me at that time a number of reports on this man, one af
which I read to the Minister, which contained the following paragraph
amongst other statements made by a reputable officer who had formerly
been engaged in preventive work,— ‘Later on, in this first interview
Bisaillon went and got a bottle of Séotch and a pitcher of icewater from
one of the C. 8. Line’s boats. When this bottle was empty he offered me
to have some more at his flat on Berri street where we went, being driven
by him in his new Hudson Six Limousine. There we had champagne,
two large cases partly open were in the front room.’ ”

That was one of our officers, Macdonald by name.
[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Mr. GaegNon: ' It is what one of the officers reported.
Mr. BeLL: It is evidence of what he said to the Government.

Wirness: May I make a brief statement? I want to establish m); position
in regard to Mr. Bisaillon. I had no interest in him at any time or of any kind.

The CralRMAN: You may be cross- exa;mmed upon that. "Let us go on
with your examination in chief. When you say “we,” were you present?—A. No.

Mr. Bern: He did not get it at the time.
By the Chairman: '
Q. Were you present?—A. Oh, no.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. This is a report of one of your ofﬁcers"—A 'One of our officers, to me;
Macdonald is his name. (Readmg)

“It was not long before he showed us ‘ his hand’ and told us to go
slow with the seizure that there were higher up officials interested in

same, that we might burn our fingers if working too hard, that we should

read between the lines, and that we could make much money if we were
wise giving us as exqmple his own ways, owning a nice Auto, a Summer

Resort place in the Laurentians and that his salary was not more than -

ours.’
That is the end of the quotation. The letter goes on:

“The Minister inquired as to whether this incident had oocurred
previous to the promotion of Mr. Bisaillon to the position of Chief
Preventive Officer. When I informed that it had occurred during his
employment as a regular Customs officer, he stated that this had ne
bearing on the case whatever, and that he would only consider matters
which had occurred since Bisaillon was appointed to the preventive
service. 1 was quite unable to follow the logic of this statement, as a
promotion would not appear to.increase a man’s honesty; in fact, the
greater opportunity which he enjoyed would be liable to have the Ofpspomte
effect, if he were not an honest officer.

I had several statements to lay before him of a most mxportant
character, but it was apparent that he did not want to hear them. .

Might I say that we had hoped for some statement in the Speech
from the Throne to the effect that the government proposed to deal with
this important problem. When no such statement appeared, we had again
hoped that, on the introduction of the estimates of the Customs Depart-
ment, some statement of policy would be enunciated. If the statement
of the Minister as quoted above is to be regarded, as I believe it will be
regarded by those interested, as a statement of the govermment’s attitude,
we would be glad to know it at an early date.

I am well aware that the government have many matters on their
hands to deal with, but I do not feel that a request for an early statement
in regard to smuggling is without complete justification.

I might point out that last August a large representative deputation
put the whole matter of smuggling before yourself and members of your
Cabinet. It has been kept constanty before the government since that
time, and the statement made by the Minister of Customs in the House
on Tuesday is the first public statement of any character as to the govern-
ment’s attitude.

I am obliged to make a full report on the matters above referred.to
to the members of this Association who are keenly interested in this
problem. If, therefore, we have made an error in assuming that no

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]

s




~ RE DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS AND EXCISE 127

further action will be taken, we would appreciate greatly some intimation
to this effect. ;

If you desire to make an appointment to discuss this matter either
with myself personally or with the members of the Executive Committee
of this Association, we are at your service at any time.

) Yours respectfully,

(Sgd.) R. P. SPARKS,
Chairman, Ezecutive Commaittee.”

By Mr. Elliott: ]
Q. Have you the letter of which you put in that paragraph?—A. Yes, I
have just given it.
. Mr. Hexperson: Do you want it produced?
* Mr. Erutorr: I think it should be with the file.
The Wirness: I gave it in. |

By Mr. Henderson:
Q. The letter from MacDonald to you; is that here?—A. No, that is not
here.

Mr. HexbersoN: We will have that here, then.

By the Chairman: #
Q. The date of that letter is February 26th, 1925?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Henderson:

Q. Now, in that letter of February 26th, you make certain statements with
reference to an interview you had with the Minister of Customs and Excise, I -
think the day before or thereabouts. Are the facts correctly stated in your
letter as to that?—A. Briefly, yes.

Mr. Evvuiorr: Just a moment, then. Are you referring now to the first
paragraph of that letter, Mr. Henderson?

Mr. Hexberson: I was referring to the second paragraph; the second page
more particularly is what I have in mind, where he speaks of the Minister.

Mr. Eruiorr: That is a report, I take it, rather than an interview, if I am
not misunderstanding what you are referring to. “If the statement of the
Minister of Customs in the House on Tuesday last is to be accepted—".

Mr. HexoersoN: No, I do not mean that. Further on the letter says, “I
would like to ecall your attention to the fact that yesterday I took up with the
Minister of Customs the question of the continuation of Mr. Bisaillon as Chief
Preventive Officer at Montreal,” and then he speaks of having read this Mac-
Donald report to the Minister, and that the Minister asked as to whether or
not this-incident had occurred before or after, and then he says, “I had several
statements to lay before him”— which means the Minister, of course?

The WiTNEss: Yes.
Hon. Mr. Stevens: The Minister of what?
Mr. HexpersoN: The Minister of Customs and Excise.

By Mr. Henderson:

Q. No doubt you mean Mr. Bureau?—A. Yes.

Q. (Reading) “—of a most important character, but it was apparent that
he did not want to hear them.” I gather from that that your interview at that
time with the Minister was not of a satisfactory character?>—A. Very un-
satisfactory. Y

[Mr. R P. Sparks.]
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Q. Can you recollect the details of that interview now?—A. Well, I have
a distinct recollection of telling the Minister that the Montreal trade were very
very insistent that Mr. Bisaillon be taken out of that division. I recall at that
interview suggesting to the Minister that he might find some occupation for
Mr. Bisaillon investigating conditions in Russia or Poland or some place else.
We had no desire to prosecute him; we asked only that he be relieved of the

vesponsible position of Chief Preventive Officer at the principal ports of Canada."

We had no animosity towards him or anybody else, but our business was
jeopardized. This is the general tone of our interview, that our business was
jeopardized by dishonesty and inefficiency on the part of Mr. Bisaillon, and
that we believed we had a right to ask that he be removed from that position.

Q. Did you get any assurance of any kind from the Minister?—A. Absolutely
none.

Q. What was his attitude?—A. His attitude was that Mr. Bisaillon was
very satisfactory to him, and he would not believe anything against him.

Q. Then you followed up, I see, with a letter on the 13th of March, to
the Prime Minister. Have you that letter?—A. Yes.

Q. And that letter encloses a number of suggested amendments which you
thought would make the Act more effective?—A. Yes.

Q. It is hardly necessary to read that letter in full. It encloses a copy
of a resolution of your Association?—A. Yes.

Q. And a large number of amendments, all of which are on the file, Mr.
Chairman. Had you discussed these amendments, might I ask, with the
responsible officers of the department?—A. Yes.

Q. And quite obviously they were not in a position to pass any definite
eomment upon them, but you say somewhere in your correspondence that they
saw no objection to them Was that the attitude?—A. That is in a later letter.

Q. In a later letter, yes—A. Might I explain, Mr. Henderson, that the
Prime Minister suggested a conference with a committee of” the Cabinet in
respect to the amendments. This letter deals with the suggestion of a con-
ference. Subsequently the Prime Minister asked me to submit by way of
memorandum our suggestions, but nothing came out of this letter of March 13th.

Q. I was wrong; this is not the letter which contains the amendments. That
was the stage of affairs at the 13th of March?—A. Yes.

Q. In-the meantime, during the months of February and March, were
you also having personal conversations with the Prime Minister?—A. Yes. I
think the Prime Minister telephoned to me during February and March perhaps
half a dozen times, to come to his office and report such facts as would be of
interest in this matter.

Q. And did you do so?—A. I did so.

Q. And did you discuss the Bisaillon matter?—A. Yes.

Q. And gave him the information you had?—A. Yes, I supplied the Prime
Minister with a confidential memorandum which is not filed here.

Q. And you were then keeping generally in touch?—A. Yes.

Q. And then come on now to the next letter, of March 20, 1925, which I
think is important. Will you tell me about that, please?—=A. It came out of a
conference with the Prime Minister, the substance of which is set out here.

Q. It starts out by saying: “In reference to my conversation with you on
Monday last”— you had had a conversation?—A. I had had a conversation. °

[Mr. R. P. Sparks]
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(Reading) :— \ ‘
\ EXHIBIT No. 28

“ OrrawA, March 20th, 1925.

Right Hon. W. L. Mackenzie King, \
Prime Minister of Canada,
Ottawa, Ontario.

~ Dear Sir,—
re J. E. A. Bisaillon

In reference to my conversation with you on Monday last my under-
standing was:-

That, if this Association or any individual was prepared to make
definite charges against the above Customs Officer, you would appoint a
Royal Commission to investigate such charges.

My further understanding was that lacking such definite charges no
action would be taken.

Before making any decision in this regard, I would respectfully call
your attention to the fact that there are six or seven other officers
of the Customs Department whom we have reasons for believing are
trafficking with smugglers and in reference to whose illegal operations
we are able to furish some evidence. Are we to understand that, in each
of these cases and in such other instances as may come to our attention
it will be necessary for us to apply for Royal Commissions in each
separate case, and to appear with proof of illegal acts committed by those
under suspicion?

Might we point out that much of the information which we have
obtained in reference to these men has been obtained in confidence, and
if those who have furnished the information are compelled to appear
publicly, their usefulness in assisting the Department in the prevention
of this traffic is done. @ No action would more successfully destroy the
effectiveness of this organization than the necessity of appearing before
a Royal Commisgion in this case.

In reference to the case of Bisaillon, there are certain facts, some
of which are set_out below which form a part of the public records and
which, if they are not already known to the Minister of Customs and
Excise, confirmation of them can easily be obtained. In our opinion
these faets of themselves furnish sufficient evidence to warrant the
immediate dismissal of Bisaillon.

(1) The case of Rex vs. Lortier, This was a case in which the
Department of Health took action in reference to the smuggling of a large
quantity of narcotics and in which Bisaillon appeared as a witness.”

The CuAIRMAN: Is that the Lortie case, now before us?
Hon. Mr. SteveEns: Yes.
The WiTNESs: (Reading) :—

“We believe the Court records will show that the presiding Judge
expressed his opinion from the Bench to the effect that Bisaillon had
deliberately committed perjury and had concealed facts within his knowl-
edge, thereby weakening the case of the Crown. We submit that the
facts in this case would alone justify his dismissal from the public service.

(2) In the case of the arrest of certain parties in connection with
the seizure of the “ Tremblay Barge”, the preliminary hearing in con-
nection with which was recently held in the Courts of Quebec before
Judge Choquette, evidence was given under oath to the effect that

[Mr. R. P. Sparks,]
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Bisaillon had made deposits in certain banks in Montreal of about,
$69,000.00. When confronted with this fact Bisaillon stated, under oath,
that the monies so deposited were the property of the Receiver General

" of Canada, which he had deposited in his own name. When asked by

the Crown Counsel for evidence of the fact that he had remitted these
amounts to the Receiver General, he was unable to furnish this. We
have reason to believe that a thorough inquiry into the matter of these
deposits would be of interest. =~ We submit that in depositing these
amounts to his own personal credit, he was acting in direct contravention
of the law, and that this action in doing so is in itself sufficient cause
for his immediate dismissal.

(3) In connection with the above case, it was further substantiated,
under oath, that when the “ Tremblay Barge” had - been seized by
Provincial Officers, there were on board two persons who had been placed
under arrest. Evidence was given under oath to the effect that when
these prisoners were handed over to Bisaillon he stated that he would
deal with them from a Federal standpoint. These two men were allowed
to escape. We submit that, in allowing these two men to escape, he
betrayed his trust as a public officer, and his action in this regard would
in itself justify his immediate dismissal.

(4) It is already known to officers of the Department of Customs
and Excise that Bisaillon is a registered owner of certain property
adjoining the border between Canada and the United States, and that
he is also the owner of property in the United States adjoining his
Canadian property. There are certain buildings on these properties
which are known by the police to be frequented by smugglers. We sub-
mit that the mere fact that this man is the owner of these properties
arouses a suspicion which in itself would justify his dismissal.

(5) We have reasons to believe thiat many reports have been made
by the Royal Canadian Mounted Police as to improper conduct on behalf
of Bisaillon in dealings with smugglers and other offenders against the
law. These reports are no doubt at your disposal, and we would submit
that before asking private individuals to appear as public prosecutors, you
should have these reports before you.

The above facts, all of which can be verified from public documents,
would appear to us to justify the Government taking action of their own
motion.

When this Association was organized to assist the Department, it
was understood that information which we were able to furnish would
be treated as confidential.- It was not at any time suggested that it
would be necessary for us to appear before courts of Royal Commissions
in bringing either smugglers or corrupt Customs Officers. before courts
constituted to deal with such offences. We are unable to find any
precedent for the Government asking private individuals to institute
proceedings against suspected officers of the Crown. F

We would respectfully submit that the facts as above set out, together
with information conveyed to you in a confidential memorandum, are
sufficient of themselves to call for this man’s dismissal, and, over and
above all this, is the fact that this man has lost the confidence of the
business community of Montreal and, as a consequence, his usefulness is
at an end.

If, after reading the above, the Government are still of the opinion
that it is our duty as citizens, to lay charges against public officers

[Mr. R, P. Sparks.]
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' suspected of improper conduct, and if you will so advise me, I will put
the matter before the Executlve Committee ot this Association for their
decision.”

Yours respectfully,

R. P. SPARKsS,
Chairman Ex. Committee.

Mr. Chairman, may I say that this is a matter of a great deal of importance—
Mr. Eruiorr: What is the date’of that?
Mr. HexbersoN: The 20th of March, 1925.

The WirnEss: I want to make a statement in regard to that letter. When
the Prime Minister suggested a Royal Commission—

Mr. HenpErsoN: First of all, before you make that statement, I want to
call the attention of the Chairman to the fact that he will find on the files a
letter which I also desire to put in, from the Clerk of the Privy Council,
acknowledging receipt of this letter. v

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: A copy of it is here. Just read it into the record.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Read it into the record now.

Hon. Mr. HenpersoN: (Reading) :—

EXHIBIT No. 29 .

“16th April, 1925.
R. P. Searks, Esq.,
Chairman, Executive Committee,
Commercial Protective Association,
P. O. Box 645, Ottawa.

DEar Sir—1I am, by direction of the Right Hon. the Prime Minister,
to acknowledge your letter of the 20th inst., with reference to Mr. J. A. E.
Bisaillon, and to say that the same will receive due consideration.”

Hon. Mr. Stevens: That is signed by whom?

Mr. HenpersoN: E. J. Lemaire, Clerk of the Privy Council. That letter is
on file. .

The WirNgse: In reference to that letber, Mr. Chairman, I would like to
put this fact on record: When the Prime Minister suggested to me, in a personal
mterview, the appointment of a Royal Commission, it was a matter which 1 felt
I could not deal with personally, and I immediately called a meeting of the
Executive Committee, whose names have been put in, to be held in the city of
Montreal. I submitted a draft reply which was gone over and very substantially
altered by the Committee, and that letter, which is of great importance, was
not the product of myself, but was, a product of a Conference of some of the
leading business men in Canada, and was written on their authority and by
their direction. I mean, I do not want to get the personal element into this; I
was simply an officer of the Association, writing by direction of the Business
Commititee.

By Mr. Henderson.:
Q. Then, following that letter, your next communication—

Mr. Evuiorr: Mr. Henderson, pardon me; did you file the letter of March
13th? .

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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; Mr. HenpersoN: I filed the letter of March 20th, and the acknowledgment
of it. : ' A ]

By Mr. Henderson:
Q. Your next communication from the Prime Minister from the file of the
. 8thof April, 1925, (Exhibit No. 30, not printed), brings us to the letter containing
a large number of suggested amendments?—A. Do you want me to read that
letter?

The CramMaN: No, we can dispense with it.

Mr. HenbersoN: That letter may be taken as read.

By Mr. Elliott:

Q. Was the letter of the 13th March, 1925, read into the record?—A. No,
it was not read in.

Q. Would it not be well to have it read in at this juncture?

Mr. Henperson: Mr. Elliott asks that the letter of the 13th March, 1925,
be read into the record. Will you be good enough to read it.

Mr. Erviorr: Could not that be read in, as if read before the letter of
the 20th.

Mr. HEnbpersoN: I would be very pleased, Mr. Elliott, I referred to’ it,
you will remember, but it did not appear to me at the moment to be of
sufficient importance to take the time, but I will read it now. (Reading):—

EXHIBIT No. 31. ~

“Ottawa, March 13, 1925,
Rt. Hon. W. L. Mackexzie Kixng,
Prime Minister of Canada,
Ottawa.

Dear Sir,—In further reference to your suggestion that we should
put before the Committee of the Cabinet concrete suggestions as to the
amendments to the Customs Act dealing with the matter of smuggling,
I beg to say that we are now prepared to do this at any time that suits
your convenience. :

If agreeable to you, T would be glad to have Mr. H. D. MeCormick
accompany me as a technical adviser. Mr. McCormick, I might say,
is now employed by the Canadian Manufacturers Association. He was
for many years in the Customs Department, the greater part of that
time in the Preventive Service, and I believe has as complete a knowledge
of the Customs Act as almost anyone in Canada. I would be glad to
have one or two of the members of the Executive Committee of this
Association who have been giving very close study to this matter also

resent.
2 Of course, if you prefer that I should present certain facts alone,
I will be glad to do so, but if you are agreeable to others being present,
I would be glad to have one day’s notice, so that I could notify Mr.
McCormick, who would have to come from Toronto.

I am taking the liberty of enclosing a copy of a resolution passed
at the Annual Meeting of the Canadian Association of Garment Manu-
facturers, which you will note expressess appreciation of the efforts
already made by the Government to prevent this traffic and urges
further action. ;

Yours truly, :
(Sgd.) R. P. SPARKS,
President.”
[Mr. R. P. Sparks]
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~ You will notice that that resolution is on the file. It is generally now
produced. (Ezhwbit No. 32). )

By Mr. Elliott:

- Q. Were your verbal communications still continued with the members of
the government?—A. Yes, I was closely in touch at all times with the Minister
of Customs and the Acting Minister and the Prime Minister.

Q. Which Acting Minister now, so that there will be no doubt as to the
identity ?—A. I imagine by this time Mr. Cardin was Acting Minister. I am
not sure about the date.

Q. But you had conferences Wlth Mr. Cardin and with other Mlmsters?——
_A. With Mr. Robb and Mr. Lapointe. I had a number of conferences with
Mr. Lapointe in reference to the Act fixing an arbitrary sentence in case of
conviction for smuggling.

Q. Did you correspond with the Prime Minister also?—A. Yes, I have
some corespondence on that, and with Mr. Lapointe; with the Prime Minister
of Quebec, Mr. Taschereau, and other members of the government.

Q. And as the Committee will see, Mr. Taschereau recommended some-
thmg to the Minister of Customs?—A. Yes.

Q. You were taking up that point of view as well as the actual facts that
were referred to?—A. Yes.

Q. 1 take it that you thought Bisaillon was blocking everything?—A. So
far as the port of Montreal was concerned.

Q. So far as the port of Montreal was concerned. That was the key
you followed fhere? Nothing could be done as long as he was there?—A. We
felt that way about it.

Q. That is why ‘you were pressing it?—A. That is why we were pressing it.

Q. Were there specific cases that led you to believe that?—A. Yes.

Q. Were they discussed in detail with the Minister of Customs?—A. I
think they were discussed more with the Deputy Minister, along that- line,
although Bisaillon was discussed many times with everybody connected with
the government.

Q. Will you tell the Committee, for instance, without making too long a
story of it, of what experience you had in connectlon with DI‘OSEClltIOIlS for
smuggling, just as an illustration of what was going on?—A. I think we con-
vinced the government that prosecution for smugglers was the proper course,
at least the government agreed that in such cases as we should discover, a
prosecution was quite the proper procedure. The first case which we took up
was the case of Israel and Abraham Lenetsky.

cte% What were they?—A. They were silk smugglers, subsequently con-
vi

Mr. Ervtorr: Pardon me for interrupting, Mr. Henderson. Has the resolu-
tion referred to in the letter of the 13th of March been filed? Before we get away
from that letter, will it not be as well to read into the record the resolution. It -
would keep it in more chronological order.

Mr. HENDERSON: At a meeting held by the Garment Manufacturers’ Asso-
ciation, of which Mr. Sparks was also president, on the 11th and 12th March,
1925 at the Chateau Laurier, this resolution was passed:—

EXHIBIT No. 32

“ResoruTioN passed at the Annual Meeting of the Canadian Asso-
ciation of Garment Manufacturers, held at the Chateau Laurier, Ottawa,
. on March 11, and 12, 1925.
[Mr, R. P. Sparks]
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Waereas the smuggling of commodities, amongst the chief of which
are silks, cottons, woollens, and ready-to-wear clothing of various kinds,
has assumed alarming proportions, and \

WHEREAS the under-valuation for duty purposes of gbods imported
_ into Canada has become a common practice. e

It 1s Tuererore ResoLvep that the Canadian Association of Gar-
ment, Manufacturers, in Convention assembled, strongly urge the Gov-
ernment to take such steps in the amendment of the Customs Act and in
the strengthening of the administration as will discourage and prevent
these illegal practices, which are having such a serious effect on the
business of legitimate manufacturers and traders.

This Association further desires to put on record its opinion that the
only satisfactory method by which this illegal traffic can be lessened and
prevented is such changes in the Customs Act as will increase the penal-
ties against those convicted of smuggling or under-valuation, and that,
in the case of wholesale smuggling of merchandise for resale, the penalty
should be a sentence to jail without the option of a fine.

This Association desires to go on record as expressing appreciation
of such action as has already been taken by the Federal Government to .
lessen this evil, and endorses the suggestion made to the Government by
the Commercial Protective Association for further action in reference to .
amendments to the Customs Act and strengthening of the preventive
service.”

That was the resolution. -

By Mr. Henderson:

Q. Now while we are at that, Mr. Sparks, up to that time or very close to
that time, at least, apart from the Minister of Customs and Excise, you had been
received most delightfully by the different members of the Cabinet to whom you
had made representations. You were by this time commencing to feel that the
wheels were not moving, but you had been welcomed?—A. Personally, but our
glggestions had not been always favourably received by the Government, Mr.

ureau—

Q. I say, apart from Mr. Bureau?—A. Well, Mr. Lapointe was rather
opposed, on purely legal grounds, to our idea of what should be done, not in any
sense of protecting smugglers, but' he objected to an arbitrary jail sentence, and
we had no more conferences about it.

Q. There was room for discussion?—A. Yes. :

Q. Mr. Lapointe suggested to you for instance, very properly, that if ladies
brought in an article worth so much more, they might have to go to jail, with-
out the option of a fine?—A. Yes. :

Q. But generally speaking, the attitude towards you was friendly, although
. you were not getting results?—A. That is about the situation.

Q. Had you any reason to suspect that your efforts were not entirely wel-
come by the government?—A. Not the slightest idea.

Q. Rather the other way about?—A. Positively.

Q. You were still having the investigation by Mr. Duncan?—A. Yes.

Q. And you were still working in harmony with the officers of the depart-
ment?—A. Positively, and are yet.

By Mr. Kennedy: f
Q. I think Mr. Sparks said, apart from Mr. Bureau. What was the feeling
in regard to Mr. Bureau?—A. My personal feeling to Mr. Bureau was very
friendly; officially, not friendly. I was never satisfied with Mr. Bureau, as

administrator. I must give evidence as a personal witness, but I am testifying
[Mr. R. P. Sparks]
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for the general opinion of the trade throughout Canada, that Mr. Bureau as an ©
‘administrator— SEdh T '

The CHARMAN: Speak for yourself. You can give the general information.
Speak as far as you are concerned yourself. : ]

Wirness: That was my view. T

The CuamMAN: Leave the views of other people alone. If they wish to
testify they can. ,

Mr. HexpersoN: I may say, Mr. Chairman, that I want to avoid certain
~ things that I think are unnecessary to a broad aspect of the case, but which,
if they were pressed, might force in minor details which we had better leave
alone for the moment. i ’

By Mr. Henderson: :

Q. What I was taking up with you, Mr. Sparks, was the Lenetsky case.
That was a specific instance which to your mind showed the difficulty of
getting anywhere with a smuggling case?—A. Yes. e

Q. I have here a memorandum or letter which you wrote to Mr. R. R.
Farrow the Deputy Minister of Customs and Excise, Ottawa, under date of
July 17, 1925, containing a rather interesting historical summary of that case.
How many appearances were there in Court altogether?—A. Twenty-three
I think. ;

Q. Twenty-three appearances in Court you say?—A. It is still before the
Courts I may say.

Q. And getting nowhere?—A. No.

Q. When you did finally get before the Court you found that the indict-
ment had been mysteriously changed so as to destroy all the facts?—A. Yes.

Mr. Hexperson: Might I suggest, Mr. Chairman, that this go in as just
illustrating what goes on occasionally?”

The CuAlRMAN: You might let the witness tell us the incident.

Mr. HenbersonN: This is in regard to the Lenetsky case, a prosecution
brought about as a result of the activities of this organization, showing that
with conditions as they existed in the port of Montreal it was impossible to
get anywhere with a prosecution.

Mr. Donagay: Mr. Henderson, can you tell us what Court and Judge
it. was before?

Mr. HenpersoN: There were so many involved that it is hard to say.

Mr. DoNagHY: It did not get to the Privy Council, in any event?

Mr. HenpersoN:, No, it did not. It was in different courts, but somebody
would be sick or somebody would be away.

Hon. Mr. Bowvin: I would like to inquire who is giving evidence here,
the lawyer or the witness.
 Mr. Henperson: I was for the moment.

D éVIr. Bern: I thought Mr. Henderson was answering a question he was
asked.

Mr. DonNagHY: I have not learned yet what Court this case started in.

Mr. HenpErsoN: It started by an information being laid, and appearing
before what is equivalent to our Police Court, and coming before Judge
Enright. They speak of them as Judges there, in the first instance.

Hon. Mr. Bovin: 1 do not like to object, but if I am to be allowed to
represent, the Department, of Customs, I think the evidence should be given
by the witness who is under oath, and not by an attorney.

iMr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Mr. HenpersoN: It is here, Mr. Boivin.

Hon. Mr. Bovin: But it is written.

Mr. HexpersoN: Yes, it is written and I propose to put it in. I am
informing the Committee as to the nature of a document I w'lsh to put in.

- The CuamrMAN: You will have to explain it.

{ The Wrrness: Will you let me make a statement?

The CuamrmaN: Mr. Henderson can tell us the channel through . whlc‘h
the procedure will pass. There is a preliminary hearing, a voluntary state-
menty to be followed by Judges, who will be obliged to dispose of everything.
But the Judges are changing every week. That is not a matter of delay, it
is a matter of organization.

Mr. HenbersoN: There is no suggestion that the Judges were a party
to anything,

The CuarMAN: They change each week. They have four Judges for
the Court of Sessions of the Peace in Montreal, and they change every week.

Mr. HenpersoN: I think the members of the Bar composing this Com-
mittee will be able easily to read between the lines. If they will do that, they
will find no reflections upon the Judges.

The CuARMAN: The best knowledge is that of the man who has prepared
this memorandum; he should produce and file it.

Mr. BeLL: Mr. Henderson, will you be kind enough to have the w1tness
tell us what the specific bharge wag, and the date upon which he was first
arraigned?

Mr. HenpersoN: I will put this in for the inspection of the Committee,
and let Mr. Sparks make his statement. This letter to Mr. Farrow contains
a resume of the history of this casé. The date of the letter is July 17, 1925.

Mr. Bern: If it is not inconvenient, I would like to be informed upon
two points as to which I have just asked. The first is, what was the charge?

By Mr. Henderson:

Q. Mr. Sparks, will you make the statement as Mr. Bell asks for it?
—_A. Mr. Ghairman the reason I brought this' statement with me was that I
selected this case as typifying and exhibiting all the difficulties in the way of
the prevention of smuggling. I thought it was better that I should come here
with something concrete rather than .make general statements I could take
fifty cases if I liked, but I have selected one. :

The CuHAmRMAN: Take this one as a typical case. You will have to
put it correctly. ’ : ;

Mr. BeLn: What was it about?

By Mr. Henderson:
Q. What were they charged w1th Mr. Sparks?—A. I will read this letter:

“Commercial Protective Association
Incorporated

Orrawa, July 17, 1925.

Mr. R. R. Farrow,
Deputy Minister of Customs and Excise,
Ottawa.

Dear Smr:—I was in Montreal yesterday when the trial of Israel

and Abraham Lenetsky took place. The Court proceedings were simply

a farce, the chief reason being that there was no counsel present to
[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]

‘.,
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represent the Department. There was a lawyer named Angers present
representing the Aftorney-General of Quebec. He stated that he knew
nothing about the Customs Act and would not proceed with the case,

" although the Judge was anxious to dispose of it. It was adjourned
until August 27th.” s

Mr. DonagHY: I assume that this is going on the record. Would you be
good enough to read it so that we can understand it readily? S

The CHAIRMAN: The best thing to do is to get a true copy of the record
from Montreal. '

The Wirness: There is no copy of the record. This is my own copy.

The CHAIRMAN: But there is a record in the Court itself, surely. When
a charge is preferred, there is a preliminary hearing, and there is a ruling of the
- Court upon it. I would like to have the record of the Court and the Judg-
ments of the Judges, even if there were twenty Judges who attended upon
the case from time to time, from eight days to eight days. A report by anybody
like this is only hearsay. .

Mr. Henxperson: Mr. Chairman, I assume that the committee will be
interested in knowing the effect which is had upon the business mind of Canada
as to the way in which things are done, and if there are any weaknesses in
the system which may be taken advantage of by, let us even say unscrupulous
counsel, the committee would be interested in knowing of it, and it would be
open to the committee to send for the Court records. I assume that I am
putting this in now. &

Mr. Donaguy: You are producing it?

Mr. HexbersoN: I am producing it. I am offering it now as showing the
way in which this particular case was dealt with, as it impressed the business
men whom Mr. Sparks represents. :

Hon. Mr. Bex~err: This is a case where the witness has knowledge of
the conditions of which he speaks.

Mr. HenpersoN: The letter says that he was i Montreal at the trial,
at the winding up of it. :

The CmamMman: We want to be fair to everybody. It may be that the
business men of the country would rightly be impressed in such a way; but if
you had the record, and if you so stated, it might be that this Committee
would come to a different conclusion from the one expressed in the report or the
memorandum; therefore I suggest that copies of the record in Montreal be
obtained and brought before this Committee.

Hon. Mr. SteveNns: Let the witness make his statement. He has had an
intimate acquaintance with this case and a score of others, and he is trying
to show the committee, if he is allowed to do so, the difficulties his association
has been faced with in trying to help the Government in these smuggling
matters. 1 suggest that the witness be allowed to make his own statement.

Mr. HexpersoN: The Court records will not show at all the matter from
the standpoint of the business man. I quite appreciate the difficulty that has
been pointed out as to the admissibility of it as evidence. I am not offering
it as evidence; I want to show what the mind of the business man is as to the
dlilfﬁtxlties in prosecuting these cases, by reason of the present condition of
the Act.

- Hon. Mr. Bennerr: Were these facts which Mr. Sparks is about to speak
of communicated to the Minister or the Deputy Minister?

The WrrNess: Yes.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Hon. Mr. Bewwerr: I thmk it is competent for him to communicate

that, and in that way help the comm1ttee to decide whether these allegatlons are
true or untrue later on.

Mr. HenpersoN: I asked him to commence by readmg the let.’oer he wrote
to the Deputy Minister under date of the 17th of July, 1925 and in that way
only I take it to be compebent evidence. i

Mr. Evuiorr; There is another point which occurs to me, if T may
interrupt for one moment. I see on the file here a letter of the 8th of April,
which seems to me to be a letter very vital to the inquiry. It is addressed
to the Rt. Hon. Wm. Lyon Mackenzie King. I thought it would be better to
take the letters in April before the July letters. That is my suggestion.

Mr. Henperson: I am trying to give it chronologically, and I am giving
this as an illustration of what was going on in the meantime, and in the line
in which these several letters were written.

. Mr. Evuiorr: But you are not going on chronologically. Better takee the
letter of April before the letter of July.

Mr. HexpersoN: This matter started on the 2nd of March, and it is along

this line that the letter of the 8th of April was written. That is the point I am

trying to make.

Mr. Eruiorr: ' T may be entirely wrong about this, but my view is that
the committee will be able to understand better what was taking place back-
ward and forward between the Department and Mr. Sparks or the association
he represented, if you would follow the correspondence along chronologically,
as nearly as possible.

; Mr. Bern: After reading this letter to the Minister.

Mr. HexbersoN: The letter to the Minister,

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Why not let counsel conduct his ease as he wants to?
We have wasted half an hour now in interruptions.

The CuamMmAN: I have a great respect for Mr. Henderson, but counsel
must not conduct his case as he likes, but according to the law of evidence.

Mr. HenbersonN: ‘Counsel is unfortunately well aware of that fact.
Mr. BeLL: I think Mr. Henderson has been requested to read the letter.

Mr. Henperson: All I am requesting to do now is to put in a letter
" addressed to the Deputy Minister,of Customs and Excise.

By Mr. Henderson:

Q. Will you be good enough, Mr. Sparks, to read that letter of July 17,
19252—A. (reading):

EXHIBIT No. 33

“Mr. R. R.‘Farrow,
Deputy Minister of Customs and Excise,
Ottawa.

Dear Sir,—I was in Montreal yesterday when the trial of Israel

and Abraham Lenetsky took place. The court proceedings were simply

a farce, the chief reason being that there was no counsel present to

represent the Department. There was a lawyer named Angers present

representing the Attorney General of Quebec. He stated that he knew

nothing about the Customs Act and would not proceed with the case,

although the Judge was anxious to dispose of it. It was adjourned until
August 27th.
[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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It would appear that there has been a complete failure on behalf of
somebody, presumably your Preventive Service, to deal with this case
in a business like way. It would appear to be the duty of someone on
behalf of the Crown to see that competent counsel was present to con-
duct this case. These men, as you know, are professional crooks of the
‘worst type. Three of our investigators, Mr. Duncan, Mr. Knox, and Mr.
Sloan, worked for nearly three months on this case. You can understand,
therefore, our disappointment at seeing no apparent interest being taken
in it by the officers of your Department, who, it would appear, should
have been prepared to press the prosecution vigorously. I might men-
tion that Mr. Duncan came all the ‘way from Toronto specially to appear
as a witness. He came knowing when the trial would take place, but
was not subpoenaed by anyone. No notice was received from your
Department instructing him to be on hand, leaving the impression that
the prosecution of these people was a matter of no importance. The'
Collector at Montreal took absolutely no interest in the matter. -~

I am creditably informed that the defence in this case are working
on a plan which they hope will result in Lenetskys’ release: They are
not asleep if the Crown is. :

In reference to prosecution of J. Wesley at Windsor, Ont., the con-
ditions seem somewhat similar. Four or five adjournments have been
granted, the excuse of the defence being that their counsel was in Ottawa
endeavouring to arrange a compromise with the Department. I am
informed that the lawyer acting for the Crown has never received any
intimation from Ottawa as to whether the Department were arranging
a compromise and whether they were agreeable to these adjournments.
I understand further that Mr. Alexander has both written and wired
for instructions in this regard, but has never received any reply. We are
under the impression that Wesley is obtaining these adjournments for
the purpose of endeavouring to get affidavits from what he describes as
“carpet baggers,” whom he says sold his goods in Detroit. These affi-
davits will, no doubt, be used to show that these goods did not enter
Canada. We are under the impression that, if the Department had
pressed this case at the time that Wesley pleaded guilty, he might have
been severely dealt with; the continued delay is certainly in his favour.

I am writing you at this length because I think that it is well that
you should know that the lack of energy and intelligent direction by
your Preventive Service is creating a very bad impression among the
business people who are watching these cases. As you are well aware,
so far as I personally am concerned, I have at all times tried to keep the
Department, in so far as administration is concerned, in the best possible
light. After all that has happened it would have been reasonable to
expect to find vigorous action in these and other cases now pending, but
certainly that is not the condition which exists, and I felt that the whole
situation should be clearly set before you.

We are very hopeful that the Gaunt case will not be handled in the
same slipshod manner, knowing that you personally are informed as to
the general facts.

Yours truly,

R. P. SpARKsS,
Chairman.”
To which I received a reply.

Mr. HexpersoN: I ask to put in that letter.
[Mr. R. P, Sparks.]
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The Wirness: I would like to read the reply, because it is only fair to
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the Department.
Mr. HenDERSON: The reply is da.ted July 24th.

By Mr. Elliott: ' :

Q. Just a moment. I take it that the letter which you are reading is
copy, is it not?—A. Yes. :

Q. I have here the departmental file, and the letter does not appear. You
mailed this letter, did you?—A. I presume so.

Q.
Q.

To Mr. Farrow?—A. Yes.
Have you a reply referring to that letter?—A Yes.

By Mr. Henderson.:

Q. Just go on and read the reply. The reply comes from Mr. Blair, the
General Executive Assistant.—A. (Reading):—

[Mr.

EXHIBIT No. 34

“ Ortawa, July 24th, 1925.

Dear Sir,—In the absence of the Deputy Minister of Customs and
Excise I beg to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 17th instant
relating to two matters, namely, the prosecution of Israel and Abraham
Lenetsky at Montreal, and the prosecution of J. Wesley at Windsor.

It is, of course, to be regretted that this Court proceeding in Montreal
has not been handled more vigorously. As you are aware, Mr. Calder was
appointed as Counsel for the Crown in this case, and this was with your
approval after some discussion at this Department, it being thought that
he was the best possible Agent to employ. The first adjournment of this
case was due to the fact that the Crown was not ready to proceed owing,
I believe, to the absence of Mr. Duncan. The second adjournment, the
one to which you refer in your letter, was partially due to the application
on behalf of the defendants, but this application would possibly not have
prevailed had Mr. Calder been there to press the case himself. Instead
of that Mr. Angers, his partner, appeared, not, as I understand i,
representing the Attorney General of Quebec, but representing Mr.
Calder. In view of Mr. Angers’ attitude, I think it was fortunate that
the case was not proceeded with at that time. The adjourniment is now
to the 27th of August, and we will endeavour to see that no further
adjournments take place if they can possibly be prevented by the Crown.
The Deputy Minister and Mr, Wilson are both absent from the City at
the present time, but will be back about the end of next week, and pos-
sibly you would like to see the Deputy Minister then and discuss the
matter further with him.

With reference to the prosecution of J. Wesley at Windsor, the
adjournments which took place in that case were not due at all to any
action of this Department. Mr. Fleming, the Solicitor for the defence,
had written this Department, and had local agents interview the Depart-
ment, asking that leniency be extended to Mr. Wesley under the circum-
stances, but instructions were sent to Mr. Racine, acting for the Crown,
to argue the case fully before the Magistrate and press for the extreme
penalties provided by the Aet. He did so with the result that the
Magistrate imposed the full fine of $200, but refused to give a jail sen-
tence in addition. This was due no doubt to the fact that the offence of
smuggling was committed some time ago, and it could be shown that no
R. P. Sparks.]

-
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irregularities had oceurred since that time. Mr. Racine in reporting the
matter to the Department states that Mr. Alexander was quite satisfied
with the result of the prosecution.” > SN

To R. P. Sparks, ete. 2

~ Now, Mr. Chairman, the only reason I wished to deal with the Lenetsky
case at all was that it was the first case we handled, and it is still in the Courts.

By Mr. Bell:

Q. What was he charged with?—A. With the smuggling of approximately
$5,000 worth of silks. ]

S

By the Chairman:

Q. Wesley?—A. No, Wesley was charged with smuggling radio supplies.
In the Lenetsky case, if I might be permitted to say so, there were adjourn-
ments from time to time; frequently no Crown prosecutor was present; the
evidence was stolen out of the King’s warehouse in Montreal—that is, the
physical silk, which we had to produce in Court, a part of it was stolen when .
we finally got before a Court of Sessions Judge.

Q. Do you not realize now that it will be very useful to get that record?
There has been no judgment passed yet, no sentence given?—A. Yes, there was
a judgment given.

Q. We do not doubt your word, but how can we check your statements
without the record in the case?—A. I am in the hands of the committee. I
have no desire to say—

By Mr. Bell:

, Q. When was the judgment given?—A. Nine days before Christmas, but
I think the Department have appealed.

Mr. HenpErsON: December 15th, 1925.
Mr. Berr: It started on the 2nd March, 1925?

Mr. HEnpERsON: Yes, and was finally disposed of by Judge Decarie on the
15th of December, and it is now in appeal.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. What did he get in the sentence?—A. Nine days.
Mr. HenpErsoN: Nine days, plus a fine of $200.
Mr. Bern: And he appealed from that?
Mr. HENDERSON: Yes.

By the Chairman:

Q. How would it be for you to get a copy of these documents and come
here with a well-prepared case?—A. I came here with a simple record, which
I thought might be interesting. 1 thouglit it was an interesting question.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: We are interested.

The CrammaNn: It is interesting, but we must have all the documents
before us, to see how they are going to impress us.

Mr, HenpersoN: Mr. Chairman, may I suggest to you that the Court
record will not, under any circumstances, show the points which interest the
business community; they will not point out the delays, or read between the
lines as to the causes of the délays, or show the fact that the real evidence
disappeared during the course of the trial, and the very interesting facts about
a change in the indictment, and then a subsequent change back again.

Hon. Mr. Bovin: ‘Just a moment; I must object to the Attorney giving
this statement. I do not think it is fair to the Committee; I do not think it

[Mr. R. P, Sparks.]
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is fair to the press; I do not think it is fair to anyone to have an attorney
who was not, present at any one of these adjournments relate the facts to this
Committee, when he is not even a witness.

Mr. Erutorr: I think the Clerk should be instructed to obtain a copy of
that record. :

Hon. Mr. Stevens: It must be understood that Mr. Sparks has been
trying to give this evidence for the last three-quarters of an hour.

Mr. HenbersoN: As far as we are concerned, we simply wish to mention
this as an incident, and a characteristic incident.

Hon. Mr. Borvin: Was Mr. Sparks present at any of these adjournments?
The Wrrness: No.

Mr. HEnDERSON: Of course not.

The Crmaieman: We ought to see the record.

The Committee adjourned until Wednesday, February 17, 1926, at 10.30
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WepNESDAY, 178h February, 1926.

\’I;he Committee met at 10.30 a.m., Mr. Mercier, the Chairman, presiding.

Present: Messrs. Bell, Bennett, Donaghy, Doucet Elliott, Kennedy, Mercier,
St. Pére and Stevens—9.

~ The minutes of yesterday’s meeting were read and approved

. The Clerk filed a letter dated 16th February, 1926, from Mr. R. R. Farrow,
Deputy Minister of Customs and Excise, with onglnal files in connection with
charges against the J. W. Gaunt (ompany of Montreal, for alleged under-
_ valuation of imported goods, also invoices respecting same.

: Hon. Mr. Stevens moved —That W. L. Hickling of the Customs Office,
- Montreal, be summoned to appear before this Committee on Friday next, and
{rom day to day until discharged, and that he be required to produce at that
time all correspondence from the office of the former Chief Preventive Officer
of the Port of Montreal, Bisaillon, and more particularly the following:—

1. Letter signed by Jacques Bureau addressed to the said Bisaillon, dated
September 16, 1924.

2. Letter from said Bisaillon to the Hon, Mr Bureau, Minister of Cus-
toms, dated September 18, 1924,
: 3. Letter from said "Bisaillon to G e McNamee dated September 17,
1924,

4. Letter from the said Bisaillon to W. F. Wilson, dated May 19, 1925.

5. Letter from W. F. Wilson to Bisaillon, dated March 2:°1925"

6. Letter from Bisaillon to Hon. Mr. Bureau Minister of Customs, dated
March 5, 1925,

7. Letter from W. F. Wilson to Bisaillon, dated October 6, 1925.

8. Letter from Bisaillon te W. F. Wllbon dated October 8 1925.

9. Letter from Wilson to Bisaillon, dated October 10, 1925.

. 10. Letter from Bisaillon to Hon. Mr. Bureau, Mmlster of Customs, Three

Rivers, dated May 2, 1925,

11. Telegram from Jacques Bureau to Bisaillon from Three Rivers, dated
May 4, 1925.

12. Letter from Bisaillon to Hon. Mr. Bureau; Minister of Customs, Three
Rivers, dated May 4, 1925.

13. Letter from Blealllon to Hon. Mr. Bureau, Minister of Customs, dated
November 30, 1923.

14. Letter from Bisaillon to R. R. I‘arrow dated November 30, 1923.

15. Receipt signed by W. Churchman issued to Inspector R. P Clerk,
dated November 30, 1923.

16. Receipt elgned by Sergeant E. Birk or (Bird), dated November 30, 1923.

17. Sworn statement by L. T. Pariseau, dated November 27, 1923, sworn
to before Mr. Bernier, Inspector.of Customs.

18. Report mgned by J. J. Berry, Customs Clerk, to R. P. Clerk, Chief
Inspector of Customs, Montreal,. dated November 28, 1923.

19. Leétter SIgned by W. Brossard to Bisaillon, dated August 19, 1924,

16217—13
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20. Letter from Blsaﬂlon to Mr. Edgar Clement, Rock Island Que dated
May-11, 1925. o

2k Letter to Bisaillon from Mr. Edgar Clement, dated May<— 1925 Zaki)
. 22, Letter signed by Jacques Bureau to Blsalllon dated October 6, 1924 1
regarding a matter presented to the Mmlster by Deputy Oulmet =

Motion agreed to. N

Mr. Bell moved,—That Messrs. Clarkson & Company be retained by this
Committee to act as auditors for the Committee, and that they proceed forth-
with to audit and examine the books and records of:— ,

Dominion Distillers Products Coy., e o
- The Jenkins Overall Company, ¥ cuf s
© Peerless Overall Company,
% Snag Proof Overall Company, s ¥ 1o
"~ G. Scherer, Ford, Ont., ; ¢
- J. W. Gaunt Company, Ltd., '
W. George, Ltd.,
W. J. Hushion.

Motion agreed to. : o

Mr.. Doucet moved,—For the production of all files contammg correspon-
dence, statements of 1nvest1gatlon court proceedings, reports, documents and o
other papers in the possession of the Department of Customs and Excise and the ,
Department of Justice relating to alleged violation of Law.in regard to intoxi-
cating liquors in or upon any bonded warehouse at Halifax, Nova Scotia, which /
the Franco-Canadian Import Company is permitted to establish and conduct,
or by any person interested or engaged in the business of said Import Company.

-

Motion agreed to.

Mr. Doucet moved,—For the production of the files containing all docu-
ments, correspondence, telegrams and reports in the case of a seizure of a quantity
of aleohol at Edmundston, N.B., in the years 1924 and 1925.

Motion agreed to.
Mr. Doucet moved,—For the production of the files containing all docu-

ments, correspondence, telegrams, and reports in the case of one Miller or
Mllhue of Montreal for infraction of the Narcotic Drug Act in the years 1924

and 1925.
Motion agreed to.

Mr. Doucet moved,—For the files containing the departmental record of
one F. F. Mader, collector of customs, Mahone Bay, N.S.

Motion agreed to.

Mr. Doucet moved,—For the production of the files containing all docu-
ments, ‘correspondence, telegrams and reports in the case of the seizure of the
schooner Annie at or near Yarmouth, Nova Scotia, in 1925.

Motion agreed to.

Mr. Kennedy moved,—That Meacrs Bell, Bennett, Doucet ‘and Stevens,
be given power to select counsel to assist them in the work of the committee:
that Messrs. Donaghy, Elliott, Mercier and St. Pére be-given the like power,
and that Mr. Kennedy be also granted the same power.

Motion stands. :
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A lon Mr Bowm produced the followmg ongmal ﬁles respectmg Customs
~ seizures made at Rock Island, Que., viz:— s
o No:™ R ol

| 17508 J. H. Turner, Beebe, Que.

- 18331 -Beebe Overall Co., Beebe Que; iy :
‘ 18332 The Snag Proof Overall Co Beebe, Que ;
18333 The Beebe Glove & Mitt Co. Beebe, Que. -
18334 Peerless Overall Co., Rock Island Que.
18335 The Telford Bros. Garment Co. Rock Island, Que.
18336 Telford and Chapman Mfg.*Co., Rock Island Que.
18337 J. B. Goodhue, Rock Island, Que ;
18338 The Globe Suepender Co.; “Rock Island, Que
18339 Butterfield & Co., Rock Island Que.
18340 Monarch Shirt Co Rock Ieland Que.
18341 The Rock-Island Overall €0.; Rock Island, Que. 4
18342 Crown Mfg. Co., Rock Island Que. > 1
18343 Wm. M. Pike & Son Rock Island Que. .
18344 James A. Gilmore, Rock Island, Que. %
18345 R. and G. Mfg. Co., Rock Island, Que.
18346 The Lay Whip Co., Rock Island, Que.
21726 Snag Proof, Limited, Beebe, Que. =
31719 Snag Proof, Limited, Beebe, Que.
35138 The Peerless Overall Co., Rock Island, Que.
35139 Globe Suspender Co., Rock Island, Que J
35140 The Reliable Garment Company, Ltd Rock Island Que.
35141 The Rock Island Overall Co., Rock Island Que.
- 35143 The Telford Bros.~Garment Co Rock Island Que.
35144 Mlgsrs Wm. Pike & Son, Rock Ieland Que.
35145 Telford and Chapman, Rock Island, Que
35425 J. Gilmore, Rock Island, Que.
35433 R. and G. Mfg. Co., Rock Island, Que.
35137 The Jenkins Overall Co., Rock Island, Que.
35142 The Stanstead Mfg. Co., Stanstead, Que. "
35511 B. B. Glove Company, Beebe, Que. !
35531 The Perfecto Overall Co., Beebe, Que.
also
80110 and 80110B correspondence concerning the above seizures.

The Chairman read a letter from Mzr. Bissonnet, Peerless Overall Com-
pany, Rock Island, Que., asking that his attendance as a witness before the
+ Committee to-day be deferred until a_later date, on account of his being a
member of the Quebec Legislature, which is now in session.

Hon. Mr. Stevens moved,—That the Clerk be instructed to reply to the
letter of Mr. Bissonnet requesting that an officer of the Peerless Company pro-
duce the books before the Committee, and testify that they are the books of
said company.

Motion agreed to.

‘Mr. G. Scherer of Ford, Ontario, called as a witness to-day, did not attend.
The Clerk was instructed to ascertain if Mr. Scherer was served with a sum-
mons and to report at the next sitting.of the Committee.

Charles R. Jenkins, Jenkins Overalls, Limited, Rock Island, Que., was
called and sworn. He was examined by Hon. Mr. Stevens as to production of
papers called for in his summons. Witness released, subject to recall by tele-

gram.
X
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Jay Howard Turner, Snag Proof, Limited, Rock Island, Que ‘was called
and sworn. He was examined by Hon, Mr. Stevens as to prod’uctlon of papers
called for in his summons. Witness released, subject to recall by telegram. 4_‘,

John William Gaunt, John W. Gaunt Company, Limited, Montreal, Que.,
was called and sworn.  He was examined. ‘by Hon. Mr. Stevens as to productlon‘ /
of papers called for in his summons. Witness released; subject to recall by -
_ telegram.

Mr. Brackin, K.C., on behalf of Mr George and Mr. Hushlon, asked that
these witnesses be released subject, to recall by telegram, which request was
acceded to.

Mr. R. P. Sparks’ examination was continued. He produced the papers
and documents called for at yesterday’s meetmg During the course of his
examination, the following exhibits were filed,, viz:—

Exhibit No. 35.—Letter dated May 6, 1925, from Mr Sparks to Prime
Minister, re suggested changes in Customs ‘Act. i

Exhibit No. 36.—Letter dated September 1, 1925, from Mr Sparks to Hon.
P. J. Cardin, Acting Minister of Customs and Exmse, re orgamzatmn of pre-
ventive service. .

Exhibit No. 37. ——Clrcular letter dated August 25, 1925, from Mr Sparks
to members of the Commercial Protective Association, for purpose of determin-
ing whether said organization should be continued.

Exhibit No. 38 —Letter dated May 380, 1925, from Mr. Sparks to Prime
Minister re Bisaillon, enclosing extracts of ev1dence by Bisaillon in the case
of Rex v8. J. F. Simons et al.

Exhibit No. 39.—Extracts from evidence, Bisaillon, Montreal February 13;
1925, in Rex vs. Simons. |

Exhibit No. 40.—Letter dated November 18, 1924, from M. Sparks to
Hon. Jacques Bureau, Minister of Customs and Execise, re smuggling of prison-
made goods. v

Exhibit No. 41.—Letter dated November 19, 1924, reply to Exhlblt No. 40.

Exhibit No. 42.—FEnclosure to letter dated November 18, 1924 (Exhibit No.
40) list of prison contractors in United States of America.

Exhibit No. 43.—Prison-made shirt imported from United States of
America. g

Witness retired.

4

Mr. William Foster Wilson was recalled, and produced Preventive Service
File No. 8043, viz., Auditor’s Report of the investigation of the Gaunt case.

Witness retired.
The Committee adjourned until to-morrow at 10.30 a.m.

WALTER TODD,
Chief Clerk.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

PR 3 : , WEDNESDAY February 17, 1926.

‘The Special Committee appointed to mvestlgate ’ohe administration of the
Department of Customs and Excise, and charges relatmg thereto, met at 10.30
~am, the Chalrman, Mr. Mercier, pre=1d1ng

CuarLes R. Jenkins, called and sworn.

By the Chairman: :
Q. What is your name?—A. Clmrles R. Jenkins.
Q. What is your occupation?—A. Manufacturer.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. Mr. Jenkins, you were summoned to-day for the purpose of producing
for the use of thiz committee certain books and documents; have you got them’

~ with you?—A. Yes, sir.

Q I will read the names; all original hooks of entry, receiving books?—A.
I have all the books here that T have.

, Q. All the books you have?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. I will enumerate them as they are set forth, so that we can find out
what you appear not to have; all original books of entry is the first item.—A.
What do you mean by that, Mr. qtevens?

Q. I mean all original books of entry; that is a general term. I think you
{)villkunderstand what is required?—A. I don’t understand it. I have no such

00ks.
o 1?? Have you any receiving books?—A. What do you mean by Receiving
ooks

Q. Books in which, you record the goods you receive—A. We do not keep
any such books; we keep the invoices.

Q. You keep no record of the invoices, separate from the invoices them-
selves?—A. No, sir.

Q. You have proper files of invoices?—A. They are here.

: kC?z. Have you any shipping books?—A. What do you mean by a shipping
ook ?

Q. The same thing, only the reverse of a receiving book?—A. T do not keep
any. I have the bills of lading and bills for freight and express.

. Any cash books?—A. I do not keep any cash books.

. You run a great business. Have you any Journals?—A. No Journals.
Have you any books at all?—A. All T can keep myself.

. You say you keep no Cash Book?—A. No, sir.

No Journals?—A. No, sir.

. Do you keep any ledgers?—A. Yes.

I am surprised at that.” Do you produce your Ledgers?—A. Yes.

. How about Bank Books and Bank Account Statements?—A. I have a
statement but no books.

Q. You have a pass book?—A. No, sir. ;

Q. You get the regular monthly statement?—A. No, sir, we work under
Section 88 and get a statement every day.

OOOLOOLOOL

[Mr, Charles R. Jenkins.]
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. You will have those?—A. Yes. = | AT D
Do you produce them?—A. Yes. : : : |
Do you produce the Ledgers?—A. Yes. A A e 23 SO
You produce oheques‘?—A Yes. , VG
And vouchers?—A. Yes. Sola
You produce those?—A. Yes.
These are from the commencement of your business?—A. Most of them
are. I have only been in business a short time, you know.. 5%
. Three years?—A. Not quite three years. y
Just as a matter of record, when did you commence business in “this
firm?—A. When I got my charter, or when I first got it out?

Q. The very  commencement of your business?—A. I got my charter in
- the fall of 1922, and started my business in Matrch of 1923.

Q. But from the time you opened up vour books?—A. It would be around
February 1923; I could not tell you the exact date.

Q. You have produced the ones I have named from February of 1923?
—A. Yes, I have,

Q. You were asked to produce for the years 1924 and 1925 all invoices
of goods inwards?—A. Yes.

Q. Do you produce those?—A. Yes sir. s -~

Q. All invoices of goods outwards?—A. Yes sir.

Q. Way-bills; that is, express and freight?—A. Yes.

Q. Shipping receipts?—A. What is the difference?

Q. There is not very much difference—A. I have the bills of lading; I have
the waybills.

LOOLOOO

TOO

-

Q. You have those?—A. Yes sir.

Q. Warchouse receipts?—A. No. e
[ Q. You have no warehouse receipts?——A. No sir; don’t have any ware- .
ouse.

Q. How about section 88?—A. We have no' special warehouse.

Q. You have no warehouse receipts at all?—A. No sir.

Q. Never use any?—A. No.

Q. Keep any goods in bond?—A. No sir. '

Q. Original order books?—A. Just what do you mean by that?

Q. I mean this. You send a traveller out and he takes an order, sends

one copy in and keeps a copy of the order—A. I have not those; I have the
orders he sends in.

Q. What about the order books?—A. There would not be anythlng left
in the order books but the stubs.

Q. Don’t your salesmen keep a copy of the orders they send in?—A. I
don’t know about that. Some do and some don’t, I guess. - They are made
in duplicate, and he gives the customer one and sends us the other one. =

Q. They never keep a copy?—A. I don’t think the half of them do.

Q. Let us have the half that do.—A. I think most of them keep them in &
small book, and copy them in this book and send one copy to us and give
one to the customer.

Q. I want the original-—A. You have what I have right here.

Q. Orders received for goods?-—A. Those are what 1 have here;

Q Yes, but I want the order books in which the traveller takes the order,
as A. There would be nothing left but the end of the stub. If I had an
order here I could show you very quickly.

Q. You usually keep a copy?—A. No we don’t, sir.

Q. Shipping instructions. Have you a record of those?—A. What would
they be?

[Mr. Charles R. Jenkins.]
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e Q Instructlons ~where to chlp, whether you shlp in three months and via
C. N. R. or C. P. R. and so on-—A. That would be on the orders. )

Q. Then customs entries—A. They are here.

Q: Are the customs entries for the whole penod of your business here?—
A. They are all here.

Q. From the commencement cof your bus;ness?—A Yes.

Q. Customs receipts?—A. What’s the difference? I have those here; I
suppose it is the same thing. : !

Q. Not necessarily; I want both of them, customs entries and recelpts——
A. I don’t know the difference between the two.

Q. Sales tax returns?—A. Yes sir.

Q. You put in all of those?—A. Yes sir. ]

Q. And sales tax receipts?—A. We never have any. We keep a copy of
~ the one we file, and that is here.

Q. Nothing to show that you have pald your sales tax?—A. No sir, they
do not give us anything.

Q. Transfer and cartage accounts?—A. Don’t ha.ve any.
- Q. Have you no transfer or cartage at all>—A. No sir, don’t have any
transfer. :

Q. How do you handle your goods?—A. Pay a man for drawing them up. .

Q. That is what I want.—A. We don’t keep any account of it. “He brings
in his account and we pay him.

Q. You keep no cash book, and no account of the cartage and transfer?—
A. You must understand that T am only a small concern and have been in
business only a little while. I run all my own businses, and outside of my
cutter I do all the work. - :

By the Chairman: . :
Q. A one-man factory?—A. Yes sir.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens: b

- Q. You have receipts for those, then?—A. No sir, he brings in his bill at
the end of the week or the end of the month, and I pay him.

Q. How about those bills?—A. I never keep them; it is just so many trips
and so much.

Q. This is rather important.—A. I haven’t got it.

Q. You have no record of your cartage accounts?>—A. No sir.

Q. Can you give us the name of your cartage concern, the one that does
your business?—A No concern; it is a man by the name of Seguin.
Q. Give us his full name-—A. I think it is Edward O.
Q. How do you spell it?—A. S-e-g-u-i-n.
Q. Where does he live?—A. Rock Island.
Q. And you keep no record of your transactions with him?—A. None what-
Q.

Do you have any insurance policies?—A. Yes sir. :
Q. Have you those W1th you?—A. The bank wouldn’t give them to me.
They are pledged.
Q. Have you a record of them?—A! No sir. The bank will furnish a record
of those, or I will, if you need it.
Q. Furnish 1t then, Particulars of the names of your firms?—A. I am
the manager and secretary treasurer. It is a stock company.
Q. Who is president?-—A. Henry Tompkins.
Q. Who is the secretary-treasurer?>—A. I am; I“am manager and secretary-
treasurer. ,
Q. Any other directors?—A. And vice-president, H. M. Rickard.

[Mr, Charles R. Jenkins.]
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Q Where “does he live?—A. Derby Line, Vermont.

Q. Where does Tompkins live?—A. Beebe, Quebec.

Q. Any other directors?—A. That is the whole board.
Q. Any other shareholders?—A No sir. . &
Q. What is the capital stock?—A. $75,000, $50,000 paid up. )

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I think that is all, so far as I am concerned.‘
By Mr. Elliott: ¢ ' :

Q. When were you mcorporated‘?——A In the fall of 1922, * I dld not’ bnng'

- my incorporation papers, I am sorry, but it was in the fall.

Q. And what was the incorporation name?—A. Jenkins Overalls anbed b

‘This subpoena was issued to Jenkins ‘Overall Company, which is wrong.
Q. Are _you connected with the Snag Proof Company?—A No sir; the
Snag Proof is in Beebe, Quebec,

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. What chartered banks are there?—A. The Roya,l Bank and the Bank
of Commerce. I bank with the Royal Bank.

Mr. Laverty: Might T make a request, Mr. Chan_'man? As T understand :

it, the books of Mr. Jenkins, and these other companies are:to be submitted
to the Clarkson Company for examination. In 1923, when there was an in-
vestigation by a committee of this House into agmcultural conditions, auditors
were named to look into the sugar question, and the presidents of five of the
large refineries in Canada were examined by the committee. A request was
~ then made and granted that the prices and figures and other details of their
business submitted by those gentlemen should be kept confidential and not
published. Last year in the Petersen committee a similar request was made,

when Mr. Gordon Scott was appointed auditor, as to transportation companies. -

These different companies did not want other competitors to know their losses
and profits and other things.. That request was granted. Might I request, so

far as my client is concerned,—and I presume the rule would apply to other .

. companies whose books may be examined—that instructions be given to the
' auditors to keep these details confidential and only publish ‘what is absolutely
necessary in the public interest. 1 suggest that that is only an equitable rule
to apply. Now, Mr. Jenkins has his books here. There are certaln’f)ooks such
as his current ledger and his file'of current invoices, which he absolutely ‘heeds
for his business. If he could be allowed to take his ledger and his current
invoices away, and to bring them back here or send them up for a day or so
for examination by the auditors as required, it would prevent his business from
being stopped.

The CuARMAN: Granted.

Mr. Laverty: Thank you, sir, & § ;

The Wirness: - Is that all?

By Hon. Mr. Stmens
Q. When you say ‘“current mvmcos,” ho“ far back would you go?—A. Just
recently, a month or two. Anything that has not been paid, the draft would
be mmmg in on those and I would have no way of checking them. because I do
not keep any invoice book. If T had an invoice book I would not need them.

The CramRMAN: You are released, sub,]ect to being reecalled by telegram.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

How long does it take to get here?™ —A. If T got the telegram in the day-
time I could leave at night -and be here the next morning! As I understand it,
I am going to be allowed to take these ledgers and inv oices?

[Mr. Charles R. Jenkins.]

/
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oy The CHAIBMAN Yes, the cLerL w111 nge them to you

Witness retlred ' BT LAY ,

' A e i

Jay Howarp TURNER, called and sworn, ~ -

By ‘the Chairman:
Q. What is your name?—A. Jay Howard Tumer
Q. What is your occupation?—A. Manufacturer
Q. At Rock Island, Quebec?—A. Yes.

By Hon My, Stevens:

Q. Our main object, Mr. Turner, is just What we have gone over with Mr.
Jenkins, the production of your books and recordvs Do you produce those
books?—A. Yes sir.

QI will run over the same list. Orlgmal bOoks of entry?—A. Which
means ledgers, I s:uppose'? !

Q. A ledger is not an original book of entry Journals and cash book?—
A. Those I have complete. !

Q. You keep a cash book?-—A. Yes.

Q. Good. Journals, cash bock, and ledgers?—A. Yes.

Q. Bank books or 'statements?—A. Bank books.

Q. Cancelled . cheques?—A. Yes.

Q. How far back do yvou go?—A. 1924 and 1925.

Q. There was no limit placed on the period, but if we want others I sup-

- pose we can get them?—A. Yes sir, I think I have them.

Q. Then for the years 1924 and 1925, invoices of goods inwards and out-
wards?—A. Yes sir.

Q. Waybills, freight and exprec‘:‘?—A Yes sir. \

Q. Shipping receipts?-+A. Those Wou]d be freight bills?

Q: Yes—A. Yes

Q. Warehouse recelp’os‘?—-A Yes. ;

Q. Do you do any bonding?—A. Not for the last’ year, we haven't. We
have a bonded Warehouee, though.

Q. Will you produce those receipts and statements?—A. Yes sir.

Q. Original order books?—A. The orders the travellers take?

Q. Yes—A. Yes.

Q. The traveller does not keep any copv"—A Yes, he has a book.

. Will you produce that book?—A. I have produced the copies he sends
us. I could get, the books of the travellers.

Q. We asked for the original order books.—A. It is a book lllxé‘ this, and
he writes the order and tears it off to send to us, and keeps a copy. I have
brought, the ones he sends us.

Q. You do not produce the originals?—A. T haven’t them; I think I can
get them, but they will be an exact copy.

Q. If we want others you will produce them?—A. I will; most of them.
I don’t know whether they are all in existence or not, but I think they are.

Q. Then shipping instructions; will they be included in your orders?—
A. The shipping instructions are, 1 think, without fail, on the copy of the
invoice. -

Q. Do you éver have shipping instructions separate from the invoices or

<O

. from the orders?—A. No record of it. Sometimes we get special instructions

from the freight men to have goods shipped over their roads.
Q. Could you produce those?—A. No, T don’t think I have them.
Q. You could if requlred‘?—A Yes, 1 thmk Ieould. I know I can.

[Mr. Jay Howard Turner,] *
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Q. Customs entries a?nd customs recenpt,s?——A Yes. RETAR S Rt
Q. Sales tax returns?—A. Yes sir. ALARL G s : e
Q. Sales tax receipts?—A. Yes.
Q. Do you ‘get receipts?—A. Yes.
Q. You produce those?—A. Yes. i |
Q. Transfer and cartage accounts?—A. We have no ca,rtage account; we 4
run a truck of our own. Everything 13 shipped by Boston & Maijne, from one -
station. 3
Q. You have no cartage arrangement in or out?—A. l\o sir. Tt is all done
by our own truck. :
Q. All done by your own trucks?—A. Yes, sir.
Q. Insurance pollcleﬂ‘?—A Yes, sir. ;
5 Q. Now, name the officers and directors ef your firm. W111 you give us
~ the names? By the way, state first when your firm was organized —A. 1914,
: Q. What is the full name of the Company?—A. Excuse me; it was the -
15th December, 1913, it was mcorporated The proper name is Snag Proof

Limited.
.. Now, give the present officers and dlrec’oors.—A. o H. Turner, Pr%l-
dent; I. B. Corey, Secretary; R. R. Woodward, Director and Treasurer.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett: >
Q. Perhaps you would not mind stating where they hve‘?—A Beebe.
Q. All in Beebe, Quebec?—A. Allin Beebe. H. G. Ku'wm, a bank manager
of Beebe, a Director. Sk

Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. That is all?>~~A. That is all: :
Q. That is all of vour officers and directors?—A. Yes sir. There (indicat-
“ing) are the letters patent and supplementary letters pfttent ,
. What is your bank—A. The Canadian Bank of Commerce.
Q. In Beebe?—A. Beebe, Quebec. » :
Q. That is your only bank?—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:
Q. What is your capital stock?—A. $20,000 up to two months ago, when
it was increased to $49,000.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. Paid up?—A. Yes, sir.
The CHAIRMAN: You are released, sir, subject to recall by telegraph.
Leave your books here.

The Wrrxess: I am perfectly willing to have the results published, if
you desire. I am not asking for any secrecy. May I say that I have my current
ledger here, and it is very important to me to take it home with me?

The CrAtRMAN:  You will be granted the same privilege as the others, but
you will return the book if needed? :
The WiTNess: Yes.

By Mr. Elliott: \

Q. Just one question, Mr. Turner. Do I understand that you were incor-

porated on the: 15th of December, 1913?—A. I neticed the date on this

(indicating letters patent) which shows it was recorded on the 13th of December,
1913.

Q. What business were you in prior to that?—A. T was on a farm up to

just a few years before that, when I kept a general store.

[Mr. Jay Howard Turner.]

s
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Q. This is the first of the Snag Proof Limited?—A. Yes, sir.
Q. On the 15th of December, 1913?—A. The 13th of December, yes, sir.
+ Q. You did not take over the business of anybody else or any other com-
pany?—A. The Snag Proof took over the business from me; I started it.
Q. Under what name was the business run prior to that?—A. The Snag
Proof Overall Company. . 3
; Q. When was it incorporated?—A. Tt was not inedrporated; it was my own
. company, and the Snag Proof Limited took it over. ¢ _ :
Q. Who were the partners in that?—A. The Snag Proof Overall Company?
~ Q. Yes?—A. No one; just myself. fo.
Q. Just yourself>—A. Yes, just myself. :
- Q. How long had it been in business?—A. Since 1910—October, 1910.
- Q. Was that the beginning of your business career?—A. In the overall
| business, yes, sir; before that, I kept a country store near there.
Q. Where did you keep the store?=A. North Hatley, Quebec.
Q. The books you are producing relate to what years?—A. 1924 and 1925.
Q. Have you preserved the books of the Snag Proof Overall Company ?—
A. That was prior to 1913? 4 ‘
Q. Yes?—A. It is very doubtful if I have them complete.

" _ Q. Where would they be?—A. What I have got would be at home.

Q. Will you produce them?—A. I will, what I have. I do not think they will
_ be very complete. They will be thirteen years old. :
. Q. How far back do the books which you have take you?—A. I beg your
pardon?
Q. What books have you since 1913? Have you all the books relating to
*  the Snag Proof Limited since it was incorperated?—A. I do not know until I
get home and make a search, whether I have or not.
Q. Will you ascertain, and if you have them, produce them?—A. I will,
what I have of them. .
The CuARMAN: That is all.

The witness retired.

Joun Wmiiam Gaunt called and sworn:

By the Chairman:

Q. What is your full name?—A. John William Gaunt.

Q. What is your occupation?—A. Importer.

Q. You are the President of the John W. Gaunt Company Limited?—A.
Of the John Gaunt Company, Limited.

Q. Formerly the John—A. John Gaunt Company.

Q. Give us briefly the date of the organization of the John Gaunt Company.
—A. T organized the John Gaunt Company in 1921 in Montreal.

Q. Who was in that firm besides yourself?—A. Nobody.

Q. You were the sole proprietor?—A. Yes, sir. ;

Q. When was the John Gaunt Company, Limited organized?—A. In 1923.
It took-over the business of the John Gaunt Company on January 1, 1924.

Q. On January 1, 1924 it took over the John Gaunt Company’s business?
~—A._Yes,.gir.

Q. And you carry on business as an importer?—A. Yes, sir.

~ Q. We have asked you to produce certain books and documents?—A. Yes,

T i

Q. What do you praduce?—A. Well, all the books pertaining to the years
‘1921, 1922 and 1923; everything you asked for.

Q. That is, of the John Gaunt Company?—A. Yes, sir.

§ [Mr. John William Gaunt.]}



‘ Q. You produce all of those?f-——A All of , '
of the invoices and ledger which is held by ﬁhe Cusboms Dep&rtmenb i
i Q. The invoices of the John Gaunt Oemp,any from 1921 to. 1924 are in
hands of the Customs De'partment?-——-A To the end of 1923—@hey are m t
hands of the Customs Department. SR IR TR
: Q. All of them?—A. The incoming 1nvorces K et L

Q. All of the incoming invoices?—A. Yes. , ‘ ' b
Q. THey are all in the hands of the Customs Department?——A Yes 2

“~ 85y

Q. Retained by them?—A. Yes. , QR
Q. In connection with an 1nvest1gatlon?——A‘ Yes, sir. gl SRR 6
Q. Also your ledgers?—A. Just the one ledger. R
Q. A general ledger?—A. Yes, a general ledger. E A
Q. How about your other books for that penod?«—A I have them all

Wlth me. i £
Q. You produce all those books‘?—A Yes, sir. “ R
Q. Including all the shipping receipts, Warehouse recelpts and Wayballsi’ B
—A. Yes, sir; all of them. A
Q. Customs entries?’—A. The customs entrles are in the hands of the
Customs Department—most of them. g
5 Q. In connection with these invoices whmh the Customs have, it includes
all of the invoices—the original invoices—as well as certain obher invoices
which caused the investigation?—A. No; I do ‘not know what you are referring
to. o :
Q. Where are the original mvomea?—A In the hands of the Customs.
Q. Just follow me now; all of the original invoices which you received

~ and the invoices which are alleged to have been' transcnbed are all’in the hands =+
_ of the Customs?—A. No invoices were transeribed. - :

Q. There were none?—A. No. 36T /

Q. Then we will not go into that now. I simply wanted to make sure
that you produce all of your invoices.—A. They are in the hands of the %
Customs. b

By Homn. Mr. Bennett:

Q. You mean they were in the hands of the Customs originally or taken
since?—A. They were taken since this thing started—Ilast year. «

-
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By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. And retained by them?—A. Yes. °

Q. Mr. Bennett thinks perhaps you mean that when you cleared your
goods yow put your invoices in their hands. You do not mean that? You
mean the Customs Department seized all your invoices for the years 1921 1922
and 1923?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And they still retain them?—A. Yes

Q. In connection with a customs 1nvest1gat10n‘?——~A Yes. !

Q. What about 1924 and 19257—A. They are in Montreal. -

Q. You do not produce them to-day?—A. No; I thought I only had to
produce them for 1924. -

Q. The order does not so state. Can you produce them for us?—A! Yes, )
1 can produce anything you want, sir. e
* Q. Now, if we require the invoices since the John Gaunt Company, :
Limited has been organized, you will produce them?—A. Absolutely, sir; any
invoices you like. :

Q. Do you produce all of your cancelled cheques and bank account !
statements for 1921, 1922 and 1923?7—<A. Yes, they are all here.

Hon: Mr. Stevexs: That is all T desire.

[Mr. John William Gaunt.] . f
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’Phe CHAIRMAN You are released texnporamly, subject to recall by tele-

The Wirness: Where shall T dehver the documents?
~ Hon. Mr. Stevens: To the Clerk of t,he,Qommlttee

By Mr. Donaghy:

Q. Mr. Gaunt, what business were you in before you started this company?
—A. T came out to Canada in 1919. I was a censor in London before that.

Q. Into what business did you go?—A. T, travelled in Western Canada;
1 represented an American firm in Western Canada. i
. Q. Up until what time?—A. Up until 1920. -

' 1Q. Then what did you go at?—A. I went to Europe then to see about thls

importing business.

The Crarman: You are released, subject to being recalled by telegram.
Wirness: Thank you.
The Caarman: Make your application, Mr Brackin. '

Mr, Brackin: I want to ask with regard to the order given to the other
witnesses, that it apply to Mr. Hushion and Mr. George, S0 that we can come

- when we are wired for. i

Hon. Mr. Bexnerr: Go in peace and sin no more.

Mr. BrackeN: 1 might go in peace, but I would not: like to carry out the
latter part of the injunction. Now, in regard to Mr. Hushion’s ‘current ledger—

The CuarrRMAN: It is subject to the same conditions, to be produced at
the demand of the Committee.

R. P. Sparks: Examination continued:

Mr. Hexperson, K.C.: Mr. Chairman, the books and documents which
Mz, Sparks was ordered to produce ryesterday are now in the custody of the

- Clerk of the Committee, but he desired me to eall your attention to the fact

that, of necessity, a very large portion of his correspondence is of a very highly
confidential nature, and the disclosure of it would materially interfere with the
subsequent, efficient working of the officials of the Department It has occurred
to me to suggest, sir, that one or two of the Committee might be deputed to go
over that’ correspondence with Mr. Sparks, we feeling satisfied that a great deal
of it would be returned to him, he bemg ‘subject to be recalled at any time
by the Committee; but we feel that it would be most unfortunate if that
particular class of correqpon(lenoe became in ‘any sense public. We want to
be absolutely in the hands of the Committee, you will understand. !

Hon. Mr. Bex~erer: 1 think, Mr. Henderson, the correspondence is ‘very
muchlike the correspondence that Mr. Donaghy ecalled for. It will be treated
in the same way. :

Mr. Hexperson: If the Committee will order that no one but the Com-
mittee will have access to those documents and correspondence, I think it would
be better.

Hon. Mr. Bexxerr: They are only produced.

Mr. HenoersoN: I was informed last might that someone wanted to
inspect these. * 1 understood some of the counsel wanted to inspect these.
That would be rather unfortunate, as a portlon of this correspondence is highly

. confidential.

The CHAIRMAN: If any one wants to examine the correspondence, any
one on the Committee, it can be examined.

Mr. Hexperson: They are in custody of the Clerk now.
[Mr. R. 'P. Sparks.]
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Duncan.

Mr. Hexperson: They are all in the custody of the Clerk, with the
exception of some minutes, somewhat scanty, I understand, which Mr. Sparks

: -

Wrrness: I was asked to produce a Vr;adord of the pa?xﬁepts_'mﬁde to Walter S

overlooked. They are in the possession of Mr. Tolchard, Secretary of the Board

of’ Trade of Toronto, who is the Secretary of this organization: I told Mr.
Elliott that we would, this afternoon, telegraph Mr. Tolchard, asking him to
forward those. With that exception, everything is here, and I understand that
it is satisfactory to the Committee. May I continue with Mr. Sparks’ examin-
. ation. f : ;

The CmamrMan: I beg pardon? /

Mr. HenpersoN: May I continue with Mr. Sparks’ examination?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes. X

By Mr. Henderson: b2 :
Q. In the sequence of correspondence with which we were dealing yester-
day, I am not sure whether I asked you to take up the letter of the 6th of
May, 1925, which you addressed to the Prime Minister. As the Clerk, Mr.,

Sparks, handed in the complete file of correspondence yesterday, and this letter

and one other had not been gone into, you may take my copy for the moment.

Look at this letter of the 6th of May. Did you send that letter to the Prime

Minister?—A. Yes; sir.
Hon. Mr. Stevens: Read it. &
Mr. HexpersoN: You read it; I was going to read it for you.
Wirness: (reading): : :

EXHIBIT No. 35 ~
“OrTawa, May 6, 1925.

_ Rt. Hon. W. L. Mackenzie KiNg,
Prime Minister of Canada,
Ottawa, Ont.

Dear Sir,—On April 8h I sent you a memorandum of suggested
changes in the Customs Act, based on the experience of this organization
in studying this problem.

If the Government propose to bring down legislation embodying
changes such as suggested, we would be glad to organize support for
this legislation. We are in'close touch with commercial organizations
throughout Canada, and could obtain resolutions and letters urging the
Government to enact such legislation from boards of trade and whole-
sale and retail associations in various branches of trade and industry.
If you desire such support I would be glad to have advice by return,
in order that we may take the matter up with the various organizations
interested. ;

A number of things have lIrappened within the past few weeks which
have demonstrated beyond a doubt the need of some such legislation,
If you, or the Committee of the Cabinet dealing with this matter, wish
to hear a report as to the general facts which have come to our knowl-
edge in reference to Customs alministration we would be glad to present
these at any time which would suit your convenience. -

Yours truly,

(Sgd.) R. P. Sparks,

Chairman, Executive Commattee.”
[Mr." R. P. Sparks.]

Holrs
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. By Mr. Henderson: Fo R e :

Q. Now, before you pass from that letter, proposed legislation, proposed

 amendments had been submitted in a previous letter. My understanding is,

.~ Mr. Sparks, that one of these suggestions only was adopted, was acted upon.

- I am right in that fact, am I not?—A. Yes. ,

S Mr. Eruiorr: May I interrupt, for a moment, Mr. Henderson, if you will
{pardon me. This letter, if I understand, refers to an interview on the 8th of
April. ‘ , N ,

Mr. HenpersoN: Yes, Mr. Elliott. It refers to a letter sent on the 8th of
April. That is the letter containing a large number of suggestions.

Mr. Eruiorr: Would it not be of assistance to the Committee to have that
letter read into the record. g

Mr. HenbErsON: It has been. | ,

Mr. Eruiorr: Not read. ' :

Mr. HenpersoN: . I asked that it be filed. All that I am going to do at the
moment, is to explain that, owing to the character of the session, it was not
th\eught advisable to'press the large number of amendments there, and I am
merely going to suggest that, later, when this Committee is more fully seized
of the whole situation, it might be thought advisable to take up with Mr. Sparks
the other suggestions which were left over, and were not brought before the
legislature at the last session. This is merely a start, not in any sense con-
troversial.

- Mr. Erutorr: The point I have in mind—I might be quite wrong about
it—but my recollection is that 1 suggested yesterday, before you read the letter
of the 28th July that you read the letter of the 8th of April. I think you men-
tioned it, but it has not been read into the record.

Mr. HeEnbeErsoN: I formally ask now that, together with the large number
of amendments suggested, it be filed, so that it will be before the Committee,

Mr. Ecriorr: 1 would suggest, for the benefit of the Committee, in order
that we may have in mind the contents of the letter of the 8th of April, that
you read it new, so that it will go into the record.

Mr. HenpersoN: Even at the risk of duplication. -

- Mr. Eruorr:  What put this apprehension into your mind was because I
suggested reading it, and you thought you read it.

Mr. HenpErsON: I want these suggestions to remain before the Committee,
if you will be good enough to read it.

Wirness (Reads):

X\

EXHIBIT No. 30
(See page 132 of the evidence)

“Orrawa, April 8, 1925,
Rt. Hon. W. L. Mackenzie King,
Prime Minister of Canada,
Ottawa.

Dear Sir,—I beg to enclose herewith a memorandum covering pro-
posed amendments to the Customs Act, as recently discussed with you.

These suggested amendments have been submitted to the officers of
the Department, and, while they do not feel it their duty to express an
opinion as to their desirability, they do state that they present no admin-
istrative difficulties. The object of nearly all of these amendments is to
increase the penalties against those proven guilty of infractions of the
Customs Act.

[Mr, R. P. Sparks.]
16217—2:
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- Attached to each suggested amendment is a nn_te ngg E)neﬂy\}he"

reasons for each change. If given opportunity, I would be very glad to

present. a more extended explanation to the committee of t'he Cabinet
dealing with this matter.\ =
The principal amendment, is that to Sec’mon 206, which we propose
should make smuggling of goods to a value of over $100 an indictable
offence punishable by a jail sentence without the option of a fine. Most
of the other amendments are simply bringing other clauses of the Act
into conformity with this proposal. Several other amendments deal with

_offences for which the Act provides that persons committing such offences

“shall incur a penalty.” No provision, however, is made for the collection
of this penalty except a suit in a civil court. We propose that certain
of these offences shall be made indictable and penalties provided for in
the Act. A .
While these suggested amendments may appear drastic, I would like
to point out that legislators have never before been called upon to deal
with such a situation. The condition exhibited by the United States, a
nation with about sixteen thousand miles of border or coast line, along
practically all of which smugglers (commonly called bootleggers) by the
hundreds of thousands are endeavouring to evade the laws of the country,
creates a situation entirely unprecedented in-the history of the world. -
Smuggling on this continent has become a huge industry. Along the
international border between Canada and the United States thousands
of men are making their living by illicit trade. - The step between
smuggling from Canada into the United States and from the United
States into Canada is a short one, and a large part of the smuggling of
commodities into Canada is directly due to the fact that smuggling has
become a profession in which there are many adepts.
After months of investigation by trained. investigators we have no

‘hesitation in saying that this traffic constitutes a national problem of

the very first importance. Our investigations have proved to our com-
plete satisfaction that the only successful way in which this traffic can
be discouraged is by the imposition of the most severe penalties. Along
a border of nearly four thousand miles the physieal act of bringing goods
from the United States into Canada will never be difficult. To-day it
is neither difficult nor dangerous, owing to the insufficiency of the
penalties. We believe that no legislation will add much to the difficulties,
but the legislation which we propose certainly will make it dangerous
for those who are caught.

We believe there are certain matters of administration in the matter
of enforcement which could be greatlywimproved. However, until the
Act is amended along the lines suggested the department ofﬁcxalb, no
matter how efﬁc1ent will be unable to cope with the situation.

I might say that 1 have discussed the probability of some legisla-
tion beilg brought down later in the session to deal with this problem
with the Hon. Mr. Meighen and Mr. Robert Forke. They both took
what we believe to be the proper view that this is not a political matter
and expressed the opinion that they would be prepared to support legis-
lation the purpose of which was to prevent this traffic.

If, after consideration, your Government decides to accept the-
suggestions here put forw ard or in any other way proposes to strengthen
the Customs Act, I can assure you on behalf of the whole business com-
munity that we will leave no stone unturned to assist the Government
in getting such legislation through Parliament. .

Yours respectfully,
(Sgd.) R. P. SPARKS,

[Mr. R. P. Sparks] i Chairman, Ezecutive Committee.”

e
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* Mr. Henprrson: T would ask to forma;lly file that letter, together with a

rge number of suggested amendments which were with it, in order that these

may remain before the Committee. ~

. Hon. Mr. Benxerr: It seems to me very"unimport.ant, in view of the fact

. that, ultimately legislation was passed. .

Mr. Henperson: They will become very important, because only one
item of these became law, in a changed form; the others being left for subse-
quent consideration, and we think that the time fer subsequent consideration

~ has now come. My suggestion is that later, when the Committee is more fully

seized of the whole situation, Mr. Sparks might be recalled, and others with
him might be recalled, to discuss the importance of those suggested amendments.

By Mr. Henderson: ‘

Q. Have 1 stated the situation, without going into it more fully?—A. I
believe the situation was this: I took up these changes, the matter with respect
to these changes with Mr. Farrow particularly. He believed there would be
a good deal of difficulty in getting all those amendments through parliament,
and I agreed that if we could get the main amendment as to Section 206 at
this session, we would be satisfied, reserving the right to press for the other
amendments at the forthcoming session. g :

The CHAIRMAN: What was the date on which the legislation was passed?

Hon. Mr. Stevens: In June, of the last Parliament.

Mr. DoNacHY: It was assented to on the 27th June.

Mr. HexbeErsoN: May I say at this stage that the suggestion in reference
to 206 which was made, was I think, improved upon-by the appointment of

“officials. -

Hon. Mr. BexNerT: You agreed on two.

Mr. HexpersoN: That was a matter of negotiation. We agreed together
on two. ]

Mr. Donagay: Mr. Henderson, do you file that letter you are referring to?
Mr. HexpersoN: I am asking to be allowed to do so.

Hon. Mr. Bexxerr: We have the Prime Minister’s file.

Mr. HexprrsoN: I am asking formally now that it be filed. .

By Mr. Henderson:

Q. While we are on the question of legislation; Mr. Sparks, I understand
there was a special vote of $350,000 that has been referred to; would you be
good enough to just tell the committee what your suggestions—I do not like to

~ say criticisms—were, and what followed from them, as to the way in which you

thought the situation could be improved?—A. Subsequent to the passing of the
vote, I had a number of conferences with the Hon. Mr. Cardin, who was then
the Acting Minister; I urged Hon. Mr. Cardin: very very,strongly to exercise
great care in the selection of officers for preventive purposes.

Q. I want you to explain particularly just what you mean by that?—A. I
called the Hon. Mr. Cardin’s attention to the fact that after three years’ experi-
ence we were absolutely convinced that the solution of the smuggling problem
would be found in the employment of sufficient trained investkigato'rs, and I
urged very strongly that no politics be allowed to enter into the situation, and I
expressed the opinfon that the Government would find some difficulty in ’getting
even ten men in the whole of Canada who were thoroughly competent, of the
type of men required. ; )

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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By Mr. Elliott: : ‘ P el i

A Q. Of course you could only get nine perfect men?—A. We had in mind a

number of men suitable for that service, trained criminal investigators, and we

urged very strongly that that should be the type‘of man, and I recall this

statement, which is clear in my mind and which I would like to give expression
to here again, that if the Department would select ten men of the proper quali+

ﬁca_,tion_s, back them to the limit, support them in every way under the present
legislation, functioning in Ontario and Quebec, that the revenues of the Domin-

ion of Canada could be increased at least $10,000,000 a year by the operation

of ten properly qualified and properly supported men. That seemed a broad

statement, but it was my view, whether correct or incorrect. Hon. Mr. Cardin
was very non-committal on the subject, and I subsequently wrote a letter to
Mr. Cardin, a copy of which I have here, SR

Q. What is the date of it?—A. September 1st, 1925.

Q. Will you read it, please?—A. This letter reads as follows:—

EXHIBIT No. 36

i, OT'fAWA, September 1, 1925.
Hon. P. J. A. CarpIN, '

Acting Minister of Customs and Excise, .
Ottawa.

DEear Mr. Carpin:—We have called a meeting of the business inter-
ests who have been supporting this organization in its efforts to prevent
smuggling for Tuesday, September 8th. I am enclosing herewith a copy
of the notice sent to those interested.” )

Mr. Evviort: Just a moment; have you a file there of the Department?

Hon, Mr. Borvin: If I might interject a word here, I do not think the letter
to Hon. Mr. Cardin has been filed. We filed the correspondence with the Prime
Minister and the correspondence with Mr, Farrow. That correspondence is on
file, and will be available.

Wirness: (Continues reading letter)

“You will observe that reference is made to the reorganization of the
Preventive Service. If any steps have been taken in this regard I would
appreciate it greatly if you will advise me, in order that I may so report
to the members of this Association, who are very much interested in this
matter. I trust that there will be no objection to informing the business
interests as to what it is propesed to do with the amount which Parlianient
voted. :
I might say that we have a great deal of information to the effect

that the amendments to the Act as passed at the last session of Parlia- °

ment have had splendid effect, but there is a general opinion that more
effective steps should be taken to see that the law is vigorously enforced.

Yours truly,

(Sgd.) R. P. Sparks,~
Chairman, "Ezecutive Committee.”

I refer in that letter to a copy of a notice to business men, which was sent

throughout Canada, and it might be as well for me to read the notice, so that ’f,he

gituation may be made clear. -

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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eSS Mr. Biliote: P !
~ Q. You sent a copy of that notice to Mr. Cardln?——A Yes, sir. This is

copy of a cmcular letter. It 1s'dated Augubt 25th, 1925, and reads as follows:—

* EXHIBIT No. 875 & -/ A
“Orrawa, August 25, 1925.

Dear Sir—The Commercial Protective Association was organized
just about one year ago. It was definitely understood that the organiza-
tion was to be of a temporary nature, and operations were planned for
one year only. The Association has two definite objects in view:—

(1) To obtain a change in the Customs Aect making more severe
penalties for wholesale smuggling;
(2) To obtain an improved Preventlve Service to see that the law
was put into operation.

The first of these objects has been attained. In reference to the
second, a vote of $350,000 specially designated for the prevention of *
- smugglmg, was passed by Parliament, but so far no active steps have
been thken to reorganize the Preventwe Service, although it is beheved
[ that such a reorganization is contemplated by the Government.

: For the purpose of determining whether the organization shall be

Ty s
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e continued, and if so, in- what form and for what particular purpose, a
, meeting has been called by the Executive Committee, to be held at
o Ottawa on the afternoon of Tuesday, September the 8th at 2.30 at the

Chateau Laurier.

It is desirable that there should be a large attendance of those inter-
ested in this matter, in order that the views of as many as possible regard-

ing the future pohcy may be obtained. Your attendance is urgently
requested.

Yours truly,

(Sgd.) R. P. Sparks,
Chairman, Ezecutive Committee.”

R I e

By Mr. Kennedy:

Q. T think you stated yesterday, Mr. Sparks, that Inspector Duncan had

ten mvestlgators working with him for a while?—A. We had as many as ten;
we had three in addition to Inspector Duncan, authorized preventive service
officers, without pay. In addition we had a clerical staff, and at times we

employed ‘what I might call perhaps informers, and other part1es whom we felt
would be of value to us.

Q. This might be going off the track for a moment, but will you file a
statement showing the amount you have already paid?

Mr. HenpersoN: It might be filed. The information produced shows how
the amounts were disbursed.

By Mr. Henderson:

Q. How much money did you spend, of the*business men?—A. Approxi-
mately $20,000.

By Mr. Kennedy:

Q. This applies to Inspector Duncan?—<A. Yes, only.

3 You can show thé others?—A. Yes. I will be glad to provide a state-
men

I 162173 i | [Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Q. One other question. You were of the opinion apparently that the
appointment of ten good investigators would be sufficient to clean thmgs up in
Ontario and Quebec?—A. Yes. ’

Q. Appointed without regard to pohtlcs‘?-—A Yes.

Q. How would you do that? How would you’ have them gppomted?—&
I suggested a course. I suggested Walter Duncan, the most experienced police
officer in Canada, who is already attached to the Finance Department, should '
have the recommendation and selection of these officers.

Q.- You would hand the business of the whole organization over to Walter
Duncan?—A. The selection of them. I also mentioned the name of Sir Percy
Sherwood. I did not discuss it with him, but I thought he was a competent
police officer, and, if I may say so to the committee, that is my viéw as a result
of my experience in this matter, that he was fitted to deal with this problem,
he having what might be called the police mind rather than the departmental
mind, because the departmental mind runs to the making of reports, while the
pohce mind runs towards putting criminals behind the bars.

By Mr. Henderson:

Q. I do not want to go into faets or mention na.mes, but did you have
particular incidents or particular instances which bore you out in your opinion,
and which you told the Minister?—A. Many instances.

Q. Where what I might call your police officers under Inspector Duncan
actually accomplished financial results?—A. We believed so.

Q. In substantial amounts? I think that would be better dealt with at a
later stage of the committee’s investigation. ' Not to go into detalls, Mr. Chair-
man, I can assure you that that runs into real money.

. By Mr. Kennedy:

Q. You were not satisfied with the appointment of six or seven officials?—-
A. No. i ‘
Q. T am speaking of Ontario and Quebee?—A. They were quite useless.

By Mr. Henderson.:

Q. You did express your opinion as to what was actually done?—A.
Emphatically.

Q. You wanted men actually trained, of the police type?—A. Yes.

Q. I think I am getting nearer the close of my examination, the committee
will be glad to hear, but there was one further letter produced and filed by the
Prime Minister, ior rather a letter to the Prime Minister of the 30th of May,
1925, written b{r you. Have you that letter, Mr. Sparks?—A. Yes. Shall I '
read it?

Q. Before you start to read this letter, did you furnish copies of it, or send
copies of it to any other members of the Cabinet?—A. I sent a copy to the
Deputy Minister of Finance, to the Deputy Minister of Customs, to the M1ms-
ter of Finance, and to the Prime Minister.

Q. Will you read that letter, please?—A. It is dated May 30th, 1925, and

reads as follows: .
" EXHIBIT No. 38

] ; . “Orrawa, May 30, 1925.
Rt. Hon. W. L. Mackenzie Kixg,
Prime Minister of Canada,
Ottawa.

Dear Sir:—In reference to the matter of J. A. E. Bisaillon, about
whose activities certain information has been given you, I beg to enclose
herewith extracts from evidence given by this man, under oath, in the case
of Rex vs. J. F. Simons, et al. ;

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Although the matter has been hefore the Government for some months,
they appear not to have received an official copy of this evidence, but we
have now delivered to the Deputy Minister of Customs a copy of
Bisaillon’s evidence, together. with a copy of the evidence of a number
of other witnesses. For your personal information I am enclosing here-

. with copies of some extracts which show what appears to us to be a

3 remarkable condition. This evidence has to do with certain deposits

amounting to $69,000 made by Bisaillon. In his evidence he swears

that this was in part moneys which he had collected when he opened

a Custom House at Farnham and deposited to his private account and

at his convenience remitted to Ottawa. ' It seems incredible that public

business should be carried on in this way, and it appears altogether
likely that Bisaillon was perjuring himself.

His explaination of certain deposits of $14,000, as shown on the
last page, is certainly amusing. He states that he sold a car for $1,500
and purchased one for $2,000. This he shows as a total of $4,000, and
that a car was put at his dlsposal by the Government worth $2,000. He
makes all these statements to justify a deposit, whereas he has simply
added together sales and purchases of automobiles, which could in no
way account for bank deposits. In this transaction, as in the others
referred to, he was evidently committing perjury.

Under ordlnary circumstances one would expect that a public servant
who gave evidence of this character would not remain a single hour in
the Government employ; however, he hag remained for months as Chief
of the preventive service for the Province of Quebec.

Now that the evidence is before the Minister no doubt action will
be taken, but I thought well to forward you these few extracts, and will
be glad to submit the whole file of evidence given, should you desire to

see it.
Yours truly,
(Sgd.) R. P. Sparks,
Chairman, Executive Committee.
Q. Enclosed with that there were certain extracts; will you read those
please?—A. They are very lengthy.

The CuamMmAN: As far as the evidence is concerned, this is evidence
taken before a Court in Montreal. You will produce for this committee a

‘true copy of the notes of the stenographer who took this evidence.

Hon. Mr. Bex~erT: In this case, all that has been ‘done is to show that

' what are purported to be extracts were sent to the Prime Minister. It is not

proving their authenticity, only that they were sent to him. That is a very
important matter, and what extracts were sent to him we should have upon the
record. '

Mr. Hexperson: In addition to what has been stated, these are extracts
made by the writer, copied from an actual certified copy which had been
furnished by the writer in this letter to the Deputy Minister of Customs.

The Caamman: I do not think that will be legal, if you do not file the
whole of the testimony. You cannot take one part of teqtlmony and file it;
you have to file it as a whole. -

Mr. HexpersoN: I understand you have the whole record here, trans-
mitted from the Customs Department. I think that is before the committee.

Hon. Mr. Bex~err: I think the Chairman is confusing two things; it is
not a case of proving what the testimony was, but what in fact this witness
sent to the Prime Minister. If he sent him a piece out of a newspaper, it

would be in exactly-the same position.
[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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The WITNESS Mr Cha.n'ma.n, mlghrb I just make a brlef s’j;afbémem. m ‘
reference to this matter? The Montreal business interests were constantly

pressing upon my attention this matter of Mr. Bisaillon. I was here at Ottawa,
and they could not understand why he was not d_tsmlssed so I went to the
Deputy Minister.

By Mr. Donaghy:

Q. Did you write any letters about it?—A. I imagine I have some m this
parcel.

Q. You do not recollect that?—A. Well, I was in Montreal every Week and
was hearing from the Boards of Trade and all that sort of thing. The Board of
Trade was pressing the matter upon me.

Q. Who on the Board of Trade were pressmg it?—A. The president, Mr.
H. O. Dawson, many times mentioned it; the vice- -president, Mr. Lafoley. I
went to the deputy minister and sugge<ted that he get copies of the orlgmal
evidence from Quebec.

s

By Mr. Henderson:

Q. That is the Deputy Minister of Customs?-—A. That is the Depvuty
Minister of Customs. I went in some weeks later, and asked if he had obtained
copies. He had not, but said that he had written. I went in perhaps a month
later and again asked if he had obtained the copies. I think I called three
or four times, and finally when the department had not obtained certified
copies, I went to Montreal and I got certified copies which cost me $60, and
I sent certified copies to the Deputy Minister and® at the same time wrote to
Mr. Robb and the Prime Minister, both of whom had asked me to keep them
informed as to the whole situation.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. They were full copies?
Mr. HenbErsoN: Full copies had gone to Mr. Farrow.
The Wirness: A full certified copy of the evidence of seven witnesses was
sent to the deputy; extracts taken were sent to the Minister of Finance and
the Prime Minister, at their request. The extract of evidence which I wished

to read is as follows:
EXHIBIT No. 39

“ExTtract from evidence given by Joseph Alfred Edgar Bisaillon, of
Montreal, under oath on the 13th day of February, 1925, in the case
of Rex vs. J. F. Simons, et al.

Q. You tell us that you opened the Farnham Ofﬁce and that you
deposited the moneys of your Customs Office at the Bank?—A. Yes—
1922 and 1923.

Q. Did you send the.money to the Receiver General every day or
every week?—A. Generally every week, sometimes every two weeks
That depended on how the affairs were settled.

Q. I find that you had considerable balances at the ends of the
month.—A. Naturally I could quite likely have a cheque on the 28th
and deposit on the 29th.

Q. In 1923.—A. In 1923 and 1924.

Q. Now do you assert that for years the Farnham Office has been
conducted in this manner?—A. No, it was opened in 1920 and in April,
1923—from the month of April. I do not exactly remember the dates.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.] (
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. y | o . :
. Now Mr. Bisaillon with regard to your cheques, you have told us
that your Bank Account was above all comiposed of amounts deposited
for the Customs and transmitted to the Receiver General?—A. I have
told you that the larger number were for the Customs Department but

" I have my salary and I do commission business you know which comes

to a considerable amount, and there are also bits of business I do myself.
Q. Will you examine all the cheques and show the Judge the cheques

you passed to the Receiver General for those years?—A. I do not see

any here. These are all personal cheques. $124. $200. These are all
personal cheques—=$60. $110. ;

Q. The explanation that you give re your account at the Provineial
Bank is that you deposited amounts belonging to the Government for
the most part, and that you reimbursed these amounts by cheques after-
wards.—A. No, not by cheques, by a remittance, a draft which cannot

Q. So now you say it was by remittances?—A. Yes; I had cheques

fo different people—the cheques which I gave—I see that they are for

things—are personal cheques.

Q. So there are no cheques to the Receiver General?—A. No, I
have received some payable to the Receiver which have been deposited.

Q. How did you buy your remittances? What procedure did you
follow?—A. Taking the money in my bank book. ™

Q. So it was not in ready money, how did you pay at the bank?
—A. I made deposits, and then when I had need of an amount, for
example I owed the Government three hundred, two hundred or four
hundred dollars—I bought a remittance—or semetimes I found myself
at the other end of the town and had to buy another remittance, I made
a cheque payable to me and bought a remittanee for the amount. |

Q. Don’t vou think that if there had been remittances of this kind
payable to the Receiver General there would be the figures among the
‘cheques given at the end of the month?—A. No because the receipts in
question were generally kept at the office as receipts for our drawings.

Q. I am speaking of the Bank.—A. No, sir.

Q. When you received at the end of the month the cheques you

~ had drawn or the remittances, were there no figures which showed the

amount, drawn from your account?—A. Yes, in part.

Q. Will you show me the figures or something which will show the
payments made to the Receiver General?—A. They have perhaps omitted
to send them. It is perhaps an omission on the part of the Bank.

Q. Naturally T do not want to take you by surprise but you have
given, an explanation and among all the documents here I do not see
any for the Receiver—A. No that is not absolutely necessary. The
cheques could have been drawn to my order and they have been bought
—these are all personal cheques, my butcher, grocer, taxes on my
property. °

Q. This then will be for 1922 and 1923? T understand that in 1924
you deposited 14,000 dollars?>—A. Yes I can explain that to you. In
April, 1924, T sold a machine to Colonel Archambault, a car for $2,000; T
deposited $2,000; later I bought one in May which I paid $1,500—for I
had to draw money from the bank where it was deposited.  There is a
total of $4,000. I resold it. The Government put at my disposal a
machine—that made $6,000. For the remainder there is my salary and
bank discounts—I borrowed $2,000 from one of my friends who you
know very well is a director of the Bank of Hochelaga and which I have
not yet repaid him. I am still in debt to the Provincial Bank for seven

: [Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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or eight hundred dollars. I have ’ohree or four thousand dollars of

discounts to-day. I am broken and my credit is smashed The witness
made no further statement.”

The CuamrMAN: Now, would you allow me a question?
The Wirnrss: Yes. : ity

By the Chairman: ~

Q. Is this evidence taken in French or in Enghsh?—A It was taken m
French, and I had a translator. '

Q. Translated by whom?—A. He was a translator that we got from the

police court; I don’t know the name, but I can ascertain it. He was an official

translator—that is, a man who is used in the Courts for translation purposes.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. Did you get an ofﬁmal copy of this for your $60?—A. I got a copy from

the clerk of the Court. ' I presume it was official.
Q. This was-an extract from it?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Henderson:
Q. And it was that copy which you gave to Mr. Farrow?—A. Yes.

Mr. Georrrion: While that might be a good translation, it could not be a
certified copy. -

By the Chairman: .

Q. Did you file a copy in full with Mr. Farrow?—A. I filed a copy in full
with Mr. Farrow.

Q. Of all his evidence?—A. Yes.

Q. Translated?—A. No, in French.

Mr. HenpErsoN: Mr. Geoffrion calls attention to the fact that that
certified copy must necessarily have been in whatever language it was taken.
It could not be certified otherwise.

Mr. GeorrrioN: This may be a good translatlon, but it is not official at
all. ;

Mr. HexoersoN: That is obvious.

The CaamMAN: As for that, I would like to say before this committee—
Mr. Gaenon: There is another very important question. Is it the whole

of the evidence of Mr. Bisaillon, including cross-examination by his counsel?
Mr. HexbersoN: No, it is not.

By Mr. Bell:

Q. I take it, Mr. Sparks, that what you refer to there was written in English,
accompanying the letter?—A.. Yes.

By the Chairman: y

Q. Drawing it to the attention of the Prime Minister?—A. Yes, that is
all. J
Mr. Hexperson: The point of it is this; each of the gentlemen to whom
the letter was written was informed that the evidence in full was available in
the Customs Department, but for their convenience this extract was made, and
anyone could easily check it with the original.

Mr. Gaenon: Yes, but there might be something in the evidence, some
explanation, which would be brought out in cross-examination, and if Mr.
Sparks elected to put before the Prime Minister just a certain part, which

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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he calls ilcriminatidg’ to my client, without explanation from my client, or
any explanatory remarks, it would not be fair. ’

Mr. Eruiorr: Mr. Chairman, I was just going to say that it may have
been absolutely unfair to Mr. Bisaillon—I think it could not be fair
to any man to take extracts of evidence given against him and submit them as
evidence against him, without putting in the whole record. But I take it,
Mr. Gagnon, that the objeet my learned friend, Mr. Henderson, has in mind,
and which the witness has in mind, is to establish that certain information was

given to the Department—
Hon. Mr. Bex~nerr: To the Prime Minister.

Mr. Erutorr: —to the Prime Minister and one of the other Ministers.
Now, I do not believe at this stage of the proceedings we are.concerned with
the question of whether that evidence was true, whether it was fair to Mr.

- Bisaillon or absolutely unfair, or anything else connected with it. I assume that
what we are establishing now is the question of what evidence was produced. It
may be that that evidence, when produced, if examined by a lawyer and found
to be only extracts might—and it undoubtedly would—not have the same weight

- as it would if ‘the whole record were there, but we are taking it as evidence of

what was presented to these various departments, for what it was worth.

Mr. Gaenon: I agree with that.

Mr. Erviort: I have no doubt that when that evidence came in some
investigation was made which indicated—although as far as I am able to see
it does not indicate—whether this man was short in his accounts with the
Receiver General or not. It may be that the very fact that it was not disclosed
by investigation by the Department, and it was found he was correct on the
books of the Department, will nullify the effect of that evidence with the
Department, and I do not think it is wise to interrupt the proceedings by
objecting on behalf of anybody who may be properly represented, or may be
improperly misrepresented. That is the way it strikes me. 4

The Wirness:  Mr. Elliott, my wholé€ object was to get an investigation.
That is all I wanted. ,

By Mr. Donaghy: ‘
Q. Mr. Sparks, was this matter of his books and bank account ever investi-
gated to your knowledge, right after this?—A. No, not to my knowledge. .

Q. Do you not know about that? We have it on file. We have it -

that it was investigated and it was found that his accounts were kept in proper

shape, and every nickel of money was transmitted to the Department with great

precision. We have it on our files here, and I am surprised you do not know
. 1t?—A. That was my information from the Deputy Minister.

( Mr. HexpersoN: I think you are wrong, Mr. Donaghy. I think it will
_ turn out that either you are wrong, or the Deputy Minister is very wrong.

Mr. DonacuY: The file is here, that will show.

By Mr. Bell:

Q. Mr. Sparks, having written this letter to the Prime Minister, and having
quoted extracts from Mr. Bisaillon’s evidenece, did the Prime Minister in reply
ask you for the full record or any comments on the fragmentary nature of the
evidence you had?—A. I had no reply.

Mr. Hexperson: I will ask you to :pu'o in thaf, letter and its enclosure,
Mr. Chairman, and let it be filed as part of the record.

IMr, R. P, Sparks.]

'
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By Mr Henderson - e L2 % ol e
Q. Now, Mr. Sparks, there is Just one other matber\whlch I want to take’ '
up with you. There was one particular type of smuggling, I think, with which =

you were particularly concerned. Have you a letter of the 18th of November, %

11924, to the Hon. Mr. Bureau?—A, Yes.

Mr. HexpersoN: I think that will be on the ﬁles, Mr. Chan'man, the
letter of the 18th of November, 1924, from the witness, as President of the
Organization then known as the Do-mlmon Smuggling Preventative Association,
to the Hon. Mr. Bureau. ;

By Mr. Henderson:

Q. Will you be good enough to read that letter? May 1 say this: that I
am sure all the> members of the Committee are aware of the fact that the
importation of prison-made goods into Canada is a*bsolutely prohlblted‘?-—

A. (Readmg) :
EXHIBIT No. 40 X N

“ DOMINION SMUGGLING PREVENTATIVE ASSOCIATION

. OTTAWA, November 18, 1924.
Hon. Jacques BurrAv, : ' :

Minister of Customs and Excise,
Ottawa.

Dear Sir,—In connection with the investigation which you are
making at Rock Island, Quebec, we have some reason to believe that
prison-made garments are being smuggled into Canada, the Jabels changed
and these goods then distributed under the Canadlan manufacturer’s
brand.

3 I have obtained a complete list of the prison contmctors in the
United States together with the brands under which their goods are sold,
a copy of which I enclose. *The Relianee Manufacturing Company is
very much the largest and represents what is known as the prison trust.

If, in any of your inquiries, you come across any goods with these
brands, this will indicate that they are of prison -manufacture.

The principal products of prison labour- are work shirts, women’s
house dresses, children’s play suits, overalls and work pants. Mlght we
make the further suggestion that examination might be made of any large
importation of these lines coming from the United States, with the object
of finding out if they are of prison manufacture. The labels will indicate
their origin, but, even apart from their labels, which might be changed,
shipments from any of the firms mentioned in the attached llst, will
probably be prison made. :

The particular reason why we are calling this matter to your atten-
tion is that a‘very comprehensive campaign is being carried on in the
United States to prevent the sale of prison-made goods and it is getting
very difficult to sell these goods there, and we have reason to believe that
contractors who are tied up on long term contracts are turning to Canada
as a market for their produects.

Perhaps some investigation might be made of the Reliance Manufac-
turing Company, who are the largest shippers, with the idea of finding out
if they are doing any Canadian business. ¢

Yours truly,

R. P. SpPARKsS,
Preszdent X

:

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Ay On the 20th of November, I received the following I‘GPIY’

L e T EXHIBIT No. 41 3

s _ E s OTTAWA, November 19th, 1924.

R. P. Searks, Esq., Pres,, 5 ]
. Dominion Smuggling Preventative Ass’n., 3 4
'.' "~ P.O. Box 645, Ottawa, Ont. ;

My Drar Sparks,—I beg to aeknowledge receipt of your letter of the
18th of November with reference to the organization of an association
having reference to the smuggling of goods into Canada.

I expect to ledve to-day or to-morrow and to be away at the begin-
ning of next week. As soon as I am back, Mr. Ide will get in touch with

] ~you and tell you when we ean meet your Montreal and Toronto people.
. I will be glad to meet them and I will co-operate with you.

L Yours truly,”

By Mr. Henderson:

\ Q. In your letter of November 18th you -enclose a long list of compames
and particulars of the companies?

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. For prison-made garments?—A. Contractorb for prison-made gar-
ments.
Mr. HexDpERsON: I am coming to that. I would ask that that letter, its
enclosure, and the reply be made part of the record.
Hon., Mr. Bex~err: You had better put it on the record, for it is very
useful.
By Mr. Henderson:

Q. I am afraid I am testing Mr. Sparks’ elocutlonary powers too greatly.
I will read it, or will you read it.

Hon. Mr. BexNerT: In order that there may be no confusion, you are now
reading from a copy of what was enclosed in a letter to Mr. Bureau on the

“18th of November, 1924.

Wirness: 1 am willing to read anything, but there is a lot of superfluous
stuff here. If you will let me indicate the character of it, I would like to read
the names comprised in the prison trust.

Mr. Donaguy: If you are going to read it, you had better read it in
full. i

WirNEess: . (reading) : '

EXHIBIT No. 42 °* X

“ PrisoN CONTRACTORS IN.THE UNITED STATES
(GARMENTS

Reliance Manufacturing Co., 212 West Monroe St., Chicago, Ill.;
£ Milton F. Goodman, President; M. Monheimer, First Vice-Pres.; Maurice
: ’ Schultze, Second Vice-Pres.; R. R. Rader, Treaqurer J. A. Benjamin,

Secretary, E. R. Parker, Asst. Secy. and Treas. : Herman Waldeck,
Vice-Pres. Continental & Commer01al National Bank Chieago, Director;
Ralph Hubbard, Vice-Pres. of John Burnham & Co., Bond Brokers,
Chicago, Director; Ward H. Watson, former Judge Indiana Appellate
Court, Director; Eh H. Brown, Jr., Attorney, Louisville, Ky., Legislative

Agent
[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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‘Big Yank’ Shirts. o R STy iy

" That is the lmportant feature. s PERRIAT, |
‘ Black Beauty ’ shirts. Ak !
¢ Milton F. Goodman ’ shirts. ' : : : :

‘ Honor Bright’ boys’ blouses.
‘Captain Khaki’ shirts. SN &

Contracts:—

State Prison, Montgomery, Alabama. i

State Penitentiary, Wethersfield, Conn.

State Penitentiary, Boise, Idaho. Shirts 421 cents to 45% cents
per dozen.

State Prison, Mlchlgan City, Ind. Oral contract. %

State Reformatory, Pendleton, Ind. ; v

State Prison, Eddyville, Ky. ey

State Reformatory, Frankfort, Ky.

State Reformatery, Granite, Oklahoma.

State Reformatory, Green Bay, Wisconsin.

State Penitentiary, Rawlings, Wyoming. |

State Penitentiary, Huntsville, Texas. Not operating. ‘

Sterling Manufacturing Co. 212 West Monroe St., Chicago, Il
(Subsidiary of Reliance Manufacturing Co.) Wm Taradash,
President; Milton F. Goodman, Vice-Pres.; Lytle W. Garney,
Secretary.

Brands:—
‘ Happy Home’ house dresses. !

Contracts :—

State Reformatory, Ananosa Towa.

State Prison, Nashville, Tennessee.

Gordon Shirt Company, Chicago, Ill. (Subsidiary of Reliance
Manufacturing Co.) Isadore Gordon, Wheeling, W. Va.
President; E. R. Parker, Chicago, Ill., Vice-Pres.; A. E.
Brett, Secretary-Treasurer; H. G. Meyer of Mayer, Meyer,
Austrian and Platt, Lawyers, Chicago, Director; Frank
O’Brien, Lawyer, Chicago, Director. '

Contracts:—
State Penitentiary, Moundsville, W. Va. 72 cents per man per |
day. |
" Oppenheim & Company, New York City. g
Contracts :— i I

Newcastle Cp.,- Workhouse, Wilmington, Del. : ;

Kleeson Manufacturing Co., New York City. J. A. Boyd,
President, formerly chairman of Board of Control of W.
Va. State Penitentiary.

- Contracts:— :
State Penitentiary, Moundsville, W. Va. Labour, 70 cents to 4
$1.00 per day. .4
Litewear Manufacturing Co., Chicago, Ill. (Subsidiary of 1
Reliance Manufacturing Co.)
Athletic Underwear,

Contracts:—
Women’s State Prison, Wetumpka, Alabama.
Bear Brand Hosiery Co.
[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Contracts:— X
State Penitentiary, Waupun, Wisconsin.
Hartford Hosiery Mills, Nashville, Tennessee

Contracts:—

State Pemtentlary, Nashville, Tenn.

Cherokee Manufacturing Co., Chicago, Ill. Organized in 1924
by Chicago people, 1ncorporated in Oklahoma. Took over
Oklahoma contract when the Reliance Mfg. ‘Co. contract
was cancelled Supposed to be a Reliance concern.

Contracts:—
State Penitentiary, McAlester, Oklahoma
Commonwealth Manufacturing Co. Purchasing and distribut-
ing goods ‘made under ‘Public Account System’.
Workman’s Clothing Co. (State of Missourl operating under
this name).
Contracts:— ' :
State Penitentiary, Jefferson City, Mo. St ey
Missouri Shirt Manufacturing Co. (State of Missouri operating
under this name).

Contracts:—
State Penitentiary, Jefferson. City, Mo.
(Cotton and flannel shirts, overalls, jackets, auto suits, coats,
and khaki, cotton and heavy fall pants).
Wort(ily Manufacturing Co., Chicago, Ill. Max Cowan, Presi-
ent.
Brands:— Y
‘Worthy’ shirts.
‘Roomy Richard’ shirts.
Contracts:—
State Reformatory, Pendleton; Ind.
State Penitentiary, Eddyville, Ky.
D. M. Oberman Co., Jefferson City, Mo.
Brands:—
‘Country Gentlemen’ shirts.
¢ Sampson ’ shirts.
‘Stronghold’ shirts.
¢ Gusher’ shirts.
and many jobbers’ labels.

Contracts:—
State Penitentiary, Lancaster, Nebraska. (Also large purchas-
ing contractor for ‘ Public Account’ 1nst1tutlons)
Keegan-Grace Co., Baltimore, Maryland.

Brands:— |
‘ Kee-Gee’
Contracts:—
State Penitentiary, Richmond, Virginia.:
Salant & Salant, New York City.
Special Brands as specified by Wholeeale distributors.

Contracts:—
State Penitentiary, Howard, R.L
State Penitentiary, Ft. Madison, Iowa.
State Penitentiary, near Little Rock, Ark.
j shirts 60c. to 72c. per dozen.
State Penitentiary, Ralford, Florida.

- Standard Overall Co., Baltimore, Maryland.
[Mr. R. P. Sparks)]



Brands:—

¢ Standard ’

‘ Union Made’
‘Contracts :— ! ¥

State Penitentiary, Baltimore, Md. ¥

Baltimore Shirt Co Baltlmore, Maryland. \
Contracts.:.— j

House of Correction, Jessup, Md.
Monarch Manufacturing Co., Baltimore, Md.

Brands :— "o
¢ Monarch’

Contracts:—
‘State Penitentiary, Baltimore, Md.

By Mr. Henderson:

. s

Q. That is the list that was sent to the Minister and- acknowledged by 7

him?=—A. Yes.
Q. As a result of your inquiry, have you any reason to believe that prison-
made garments are brought into Canada?

Mr. Donagay: For the 'information of the Commlttee I want to repeat
the statement that I made some time ago. I have looked up this file, and I
find that I am quite correct, notwithstanding what was said in this Commlttee
On February 15, 1925 the Deputv Minister wrote to the Collector of Customs
and Exeise, St. Johm Que., a letter which reads as follows:—

Hon. Mr. Bex~NErT: Do you not think that we should go on?
Mr. DonagHY: I think I should clear this up. :
Hon. Mr. BeEN~NerT: It is getting on to one o’clock.

Mr. DoNaeHY: I have the file before me here. It shows that the Deputy
Minister on February 15th, 1925, instructed the Collector to make a return
of all monies that had been collected; so we will have the proper record of
what duties had been collected there. That was done. It shows returned
cheques as well, and those through which this money was forwarded to the
Department at Ottawa. Those are all Goverment cheques which are not
placed in Bisaillon’s account at all. They are signed by Bisaillon, on account
of the Department of Customs and Exeise, officially; so this shows that govern-
ment collections were put in the official account, and not in his private account, -
and issued accordingly. Furthermore, it shows that the Deputy Minister,
Mr. Farrow, requested the Chief Accountant to investigate this thing, and, by
a report on file, dated March 2nd, 1925, the accountant reports that he has
investigated thls and that all monies collected were put into the official bank
account, of the govcrnment _and transmitted by official government cheques,
signed by Bisaillon, and every cent collected was accounted for. That clears
that up. It is quite clear to my mind that Bisaillon was careful not to get into
the toils of the law in handling government money. In the other case it was
certainly not government money, according to this official report. These docu-
ments are here, if the Committee wants them. The cheques are here as well.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I want to add this one thing, that this file discloses
money he honestly reported, but does not show anyt,hmﬂ in regard to money
he dishonestly retained for himself, or was perjuring himself in stating that he
got it. e :
Mr. BeiL: I am personally very grateful to my friend Mr. Donaghy.
[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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By Mr. Henderson:

Q. I was asking you, Mr. Sparks, have you any reason to suppose that these
prison-made goods are in Canada?—A. Yes. It has been cne of the most serious
phases of the whole smuggling situation, the importation of prison-made goods
into this country. Just this week I went into a store in Ottawa and purchased
in the ordinary way a prison-made shirt, with the name of Milton F. Goodwin,
the President of the Reliance Manufacturing Company, which controls the pro-

‘duction of fourteen State Penitentiaries, which we believe we know are shipping

goods into this country. The best evidence of that is that you can buy them
in the stores (the witness produces the shirt mentioned above and handed the
same to the committee).- (Marked as Exhibit No. 43.)

If the committee are interested in this phase of it, I may say that I have a
good deal of information in regard to Milton F. Goodwin of the Reliance Manu-
facturing Company. »

Hon. Mr. Benxerr: Might it be possible that this shirt came in with an
invoice, and that the duty was paid upon it in the regzlar_ way?

The Wirngss: It should not have that label on it.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. But under the existing law, would these people be able to bring it in
here in the ordinary way, with the name of Milton F. Goodwin, of the Reliance
Manufacturing Company upon it?—A. I had intimated to the Department
that any shirts bearing the name of Milton F. Goodwin were prison-made.

By Mr. Donaghy:

Q. What we are interested in, Mr. Sparks, is whether the goods were
smuggled?—A. If they are prison-made they are smuggled, because they could
not enter Qttawa even if the duty was paid.

Mr. HENDERSON: It appears on its face that it is prison-made, because it
has the label of the Reliance Manufacturing Company and the name Goodwin,
which is the brand of a prison-made article. That is what the letter calls
attention to.

Mr. DoNAGHY: _It would not indicate.that to me.

By the Chairman:

Q. Will you file the document, Mr. Sparks?—A. Yes, certainly.

Mr. HexpersoN: If this does not affect the Customs administration, T can
only regret personally that it does not. We know that it should, and we believe
that it will. '

. The Caamman: The best evidence is, to have the officer of the department
bring them here, and he will give us the regulations, unless we can get them in
the Customs Act. This is no proof in itself.

' The Wrirness: I filed with the Department a list which I believed to be
correct of all prison contractors in the United States, and asked the Department

“ to take good care to see that these goods were not coming into Canada, and I

named the point at which I suspected they were coming in. I had no actual
proof that they were coming into Canada. T have reason to believe that goods
came in at the point I indicated. :

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. The point is, did you buy this shirt in Ottawa?—A. Yes, T did.

Q. From whom?—A. I would rather not mention the name of the store-
keeper, because T believe he was perfectly innocent, but I will furnish the name
to the committee, also who he got it from, and perhaps the committee can find
out whether it is a prison-made article.

: [Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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By Mr. Elliott: : Wt . R
Q. I understand you will give the name to the commxt,tee or some member
of the committee, say the Chairman, the name of the store you bought it in, the
name of the man from whom he sald he purchased it, and we will endeavour
. to ascertain if possible whether duty has been paid upon this particular shirt
or not.—A. That is correct.
The CuAlRMAN: The best way is to. brmg the man into the Wltne,ss box,

and let us examine him,
/

By Mr. Kennedy ' ;
Q. Mr. Sparks, is it your contention that this brand is the brand of prison-
made goods?—A. That is my contention.

By Mr. Donaghy:

Q. Do you know that of your own knowledge or are you just giving that
as your opinion; do you know it of your own knowledge?—A. I don’t know how
I could know it of my own knowledge. /

Q. I do not know, either.—A. I know this—

Q. Did you learn it from any official source, that is, a Government oﬂiclal
source in the United States?—A. Yes.

Q. By correspondence, or by word of mouth?—A. I have it in a prmted
publication.

Q. Printed by whom?—A. A publication published in the United States,
opposing the sale of these goods.

Q. Is it an official document?—A. No.

Q. It would be easy to get it officially, if you were doing your duty, from
the Government of the United States. That is what I should have expected
you to produce here?—A. I got it through the International Association of
Garment Manufacturers, of which I am a member, an international body
properly incorporated in the United States. They sent me a list of the con-
tractors. That is as far as I can go.

Mr. HenbersoN: We are not here proving anything against anybody. If
this is not interesting evidence to the committee, 1t is.interesting to the publie.
It is based upon the kind of information, and the very best kmd of information
a business man could be supposed to have

Mr. Donagay: I just wanted to find out what kind of mforma.tlon this
was.

Mr. HenbersoN: We will give it to you in detail, but do not ask us to
furnish it from a Government, which would be an impossibility.

Mr. DonagHY: It would be the easiest thing in the world.

Mr. HenpersoN: I cannot agree with you, Mr. Donaghy, when you say
it would be the easiest thing in the world.

The Wrrness: I asked the Customs Department. I supplied them with
a great deal of information and asked them to make inquiries, and the Minister
in a letter said he would make a full investigation,

Mr. DoxagrY: I presume they did; they made a full investigation
immediately, which apparently you are 1gnorant of. ,

Mr. HenpeErsoN: I am desirous of assisting this committee with informa-
tion given fairly. I have been endeavouring to discuss matter historically by
this witness, and to file the correspondence, which cannot be controversial, and
that is all. If anyone challenges the details, he does so at his own risk, and I
will say to any member of the committee or to anyone else that we could stay

.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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here for two weeks telling things, but T suggest that that would be inadvisable,
and I would also suggest that this manner of criticizing the witness is most

~ inadvisable. ‘

Mr. DoxagaY: I do not agree with you; Mr. Henderson. :
Mr. Henperson: All right, I am sorry for that. We will agree to dis-
agree. : Taziaia
Mr. Donagay: After all, we have to find out the foundation upon which

_the witness’s opinions are based.

Hon. Mrs Bexnerr: All Mr. Sparks is deposing to is the fact, as to what
he did, and what he sent to the Government. It may be that the information
upon which he acted did not have the same foundation one would ‘expect in a
Court of Law. But that is not the question at all.

Mr. Henperson: It is near the close of his examination, and I would like

~ to ask Mr. Sparks this question:

Q. Mr. Sparks, if this is so, I want you to emphasize that you have not any

_complaint to make against Mr. Farrow or Mr. Wilson, whom you deem to be
_highly efficient officials. Is that right?—A. That is correct. |

Mr. Henoerson: That may be taken, Mr. Chairman, in the broadest way.
We are discussing the systém which makeés their work comparatively inefficient,

- and makes it impossible for them to function as they would like to function.

Mr. Erutorr:  As I understand it, this is directed against the system, not

'~ the officials?

Mr. HenpersoN: That is it. 'We called him to contribute the evidence we
desired to bring before the committee.

Hon. Mr. Bexnerr: It seems to me that Mr. Sparks’ view is that his
associates had given the Government enough information to get to the bottom
of the facts, and not put it upon the publie.

Mr. HenpersoN: A Royal Commission was suggested, and Mr. Sparks
gaid we should not be called upon to act as prosecutors.

Mr. Evriorr: It is too early to attempt to put this politically, because
Mr. Sparks has not been cross-examined.

. Mr. BeLn: He has been very minutely cross-examined, and quite of
order.

Mr. Eruiorr: This is all quite out of order. Let us have no argument
about it. When a point arises during the examination, it seems to me best to
follow the usual practice and clear it up as soon as we can. I think we will
facilitate the inquiry by doing that, without threshing out the point of ‘whether
or not it is a strictly regular way of cross-examining,

Mr. Bern: We might have done that the other day, but we refrained,
when the Minister was called as well as other officers of the Department.
Hon. Mr. Bovin: - If you had, the Minister would not have complained
about it. §
28 Mr. Berr: I am not saying that you would have. I am speaking to Mr.
Clliott. ;
_ Mr. HenpersoN:  Mr. Sparks has no desire to be controversial. His object
is, to show what his activities were, and to show what he communicated to the
Government, and in the last five minutes he has tried to do so.

By Mr. Henderson:

Q. It may be proper to say that it has been suggested, Mr. Sparks, and I
will ask that you be given an opportunity of explaining your position, that you

{ [Mr. R. P. Sparks.]

| %
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in some way or another started what has been callad the Stevens Investlgatmn'
just tell me about that, will you?—A I think it is very- desu'able tha.t that be
cleared up.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Before we adjourn, Mr Chairman, can I ask Mr. .
Wilson, who is present, if he will produce the auditor’s report of the Gaunt
case? 1 think we were to have it produced some days ago. I simply Want to
have it produced so that we can have it before us.

WiLiam Foster Winson recalled.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:  °
Q. Have you the auditor’s report of the investigation of the Gaunt case,
Mr. Wilson?—A. Yes.

-Q. Will you produce it?—A. I have it here. I produce Preventive Service
file No. 8043. ,

-

Witness retired.

The committee adjourned until 10.30 a.m. Thursday, February 18, 1926.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

TaurspAy, February 18, 1926,

The Committee met at 10.30 a.m., Mr. Mercier, the Chairman, presiding.

' Present: Messrs. Bell, Bennett, Donaghy, Doucet Elliott, Kennedy, Mercier,
St. Peére, and Stevens. gy

The minutes of yesterday’s meeting were read and approved.

The Clerk read memo re Mr. G. Scherer of Ford, Ontario, for which see
evidence.’

}I-Ion Mr. Stevens moved,—That Mr. Gregory George of the Dominion
Distillers Company Limited, be required to attend upon this Committee on
Friday, the 19th instant, for further questioning in regard to the production of
books, and produce before this Committee certificate of incorporation, stock
books stock register and certificate stubs, and all transferred and cancelled
. stock ‘certificates of the Dominion Distillers Products Company Limited since
its incorporation.
Motion agreed to.

‘Mr. Kennedy moved,—That the Committee recommend to the House that
leave be granted to engage the services of counsel to assist them in the matters
now under investigation, and that the Chairman méke the motion for concur-
rence in the House to-day.

Motion agreed to.

Mr. Doucet moved,—For the production of files containing the Depart-
mental record of one, Mortimer Reinhardt, Collector of Customs at Lahave, N.S.
Motion agreed to.

Mr. Doucet moved,—For the production of the files containing all docu-
ments, correspondence, telegrams and reports in the case of the seizure of intoxi-
cating liquors at or near Yarmouth, N.S., in the month of October, 1925, and
/known as Seizures Nos. 6269 and 6270.

Motion agreed to.

Hon. Mr. Boivin, produced, for the use of the Committee, Customs and -
Excise Department files *Nos. 13335, dated April 4, 1925, and 13214, dated
March 4, 1925, respecting Prospere Theriault and others, employees of the
Department at the Port, of Montreal, asked for by Mr. Doucet’s motion of the
15th instant.

Hon. Mr. Boivin filed with the Committee the original of the letter written
on September 1, 1925, from Mr. R. P. Sparks to Hon. Mr. Cardin (Exhibit 36) ;
also copy of a letter dated August 25, 1925, from Mr. Sparks to the different
members of the Commercial Protective Association. (Exhibit 37). :
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Mr. R. P. Sparks’ examination was continued. He produced for the use ;

of the Committee:—
(1) Statement of expenditures of the Commercml Protective Association
from its inauguration to February 18, 1926.

(2) A pamphlet issued by the International Association’ of Garment Manu-
facturers.

(3) Copy of a publication called “The American Vanguard”.

(4) Copies of the correspondence between Mr. Sparks and Mr. Farrow, :

Deputy Minister of Customs and Excise.

Mr. Sparks filed with the Committee:—

Exhibit No. 44.—Letter dated December 2, 1925, from Mr. Sparks to Mr.
Tolchard, Secretary, Board of Trade, Toronto, respecting “Stevens” resolution
on Order Paper of House of Commons

In the course of the examination of Mr. Sparks, the following exhlbxts were
filed, viz:—

No. 45.—Letter dated February 19, 1925, from Deputy Minister of Customs
to Collector of Customs and Excise, St. Johns, P.Q., stating that report required
from him showing manner in whlch collections were remitted to h1m by the
Acting Sub-Collector from April 1, 1922, to July 31, 1922.

No. 46.—Letter dated February 24, 1925, from Mr. J. C. Latour, Collector
of Customs and Excise, St. Johns,, PQ to Deputy Minister of Customs and
Excise, being a reply to Exhibit No. 45.

No. 47—Memo dated March 2, 1925, from Chief Account-ant, Department
of Customs and Excise, to Deputy Minister of Customs and Excise re depositing
remittances of collections at the outport of Farnham by Mr. Bisaillon.

No. 48.—Letter dated December 23, 1924, from Mr. Sparks to Hon. Jacques
Bureau re changing name of association from “Dominion Smuggling Preventive
Association” to “Commercial Protective Association”.

No. 49.—Letter dated March 25, 1925, from Mr. Tolchard, Secretary,
Board of Trade, Toronto, to Prime Minister enclosing copy of letter to Hon.
Jacques Bureau regarding prevention of smuggling.

No. 50.—Letter dated March 25, 1925, from Mr. Tolchard, Secretary, Board
of Trade, Toronto, to Hon. Jacques Bureau, expressing appreciation of state-
ment of Minister in House that more stringent legislation for the prevention of
smuggling was proposed.

Examination in chief of Mr. Sparks was concluded, and he was cross-
examined in part.

The Chairman announced that Mr. Farrow had produced the evidence of

Mr. Bisaillon, referred to by Mr. Sparks and handed by Mr. Sparks to the

Department of Customs and Excise.

The Committee adjourned until to-morrow at 10.30 p.m.

Y
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

TaurspAY, February 18, 1926.
The Special Committee appointed to investigate the administration of the
Department, of Customs and Excise and charges relating thereto, met at 10.30
A M., the Chairman, Mr. Mercier, presiding.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Todd, will you eall Mr. Scherer? See if he is in the
room.
The Crerk: (Calling) “ Mr. G. Scherer, Ford Ont.”

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Have you the summons there? I would like to ask,
Mr. Chairman, if the Clerk has been able to secure service of this summons.

The Crerk: This is a memorandum with regard to G. Scherer. (Reads):

“ Memo re G. Scherer:.

On February 9th he was ordered to attend before the Committee duces
tecum on Wednesday, February 17th.

On February 9th a summons duces tecum was sent by registered
mail addressed to G. Scherer, Ford, Ontario.

- February 17th on name of G. Scherer being called he did not respond.
on the same morning the following telegram was sent to the Postmaster
at Ford, Ont:—

‘Please wire me immediately whether registered letter from House of
Commons, Ottawa, February ninth addressed to G. Scherer (stop) Ford,
Ontario, was received and who signed for same.

Warter Topp, Secretary
Customs Investigation Committee’

At 2 o’clock of the same day the following reply was received there-
to by telegram, viz:—

‘ Registered letter for G. Scherer, Ford still in Walkerville Post office. -
Address cannot be located by letter carriers. Name not in'city directory.

P. R. SmitH, Clerk in Charge.’”

Hon. Mr. Stevens: There appear to be three addresses at, which this man
may be found. One is, Ford, Ont., the other is Walkerville, Ont., and the other
is Sandwich, Ont., and T suggest that the necessary steps be taken to have the
sheriff of these three places endeavour to locate this witness and to serve ‘the
summons forthwith. Tt is all under one sheriff, I am told. Advise him that
these three addresses had been given.

Mr. Donacuy: Before we start the evidence this morning, I propose to
read certain reports from the files of the Customs Department, made by Cus-
toms officials, and correspondence relating to them. I want to have these
documents now filed, and I wish to read them.

Mr. BeLL: What are the documents, Mr. Donaghy, please?

Mr. DoxagHY: They relate to the question of the man Bisaillon placing

in his private account moneys collected as Customs duties while he was located
at Farnham, Que.
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Mr. Brui: T should think that their introduction at the present sﬁage is . ol

hardly in order, until the witness has finished his evidence in chief.
After discussion the reading of these documents was postponed.

‘Mr. Henperson, K.C.: T was about to say, Mr. Chairman, before this dis-
cussion arose, that we were ordered by the committee yesterday to produce a
statement showing in detail the expenditures of the Commercial Protective Asso-
ciation other than set out in a statement which had already been filed. I now pro-
duce that statement, and of course Mr. Sparks will give any explanations desired.
I may also say that I think it was Mr. Donaghy—I speak with some temerity
on this—who yesterday asked the witness as to the source of his information
concerning the identity of the prison contractors in the United States. I have
here a pamphlet issued by the International Association of Garment Manufac-
turers, and another publication containing information in that regard. I realize,
of course, that they are open to objection as evidence, but I want to say that
they are here and available if any member of the committee wishes to see them,
or if the committee wishes to use them.

Hon. Mr. Bowvixn: Mr. Chairman, on behalf of the department, if I may
speak in the absence of our attorney, I would ask that any documents that are
submitted for the consideration of the committee be at least produced. I do
not ask that they be filed, but I think they should be produced and kept in
the custody of the committee so that all the members may see them.

Mr. Henxperson, K.C.: 1T am going to have Mr. Sparks say now that this
is the source of his information, and I am going to ask the privilege of producing
them. g @

Roberick Percy SPArRks examination continued.

By Mr. Henderson, K.C.: ;

Q. Mr. Sparks, you heard what I said just now. Before we adjourned
yesterday reference was made to the source of your information as ‘to the
identity of the contractors for prison-made goods in the United States. I have
handed to the Chairman a pamphlet issued by the International Association
of Garment Manufacturers, and a publication called The American Vanguard.
Am I right in understanding that this is the source of your information?—
A. Yes.

Mr. Henxperson, K.C.: Then I ask to produce these.

The Cuamrman: Produced only for our information.

By Myr. Henderson, K.C.:

Q. A member of the Committee asks that you tell the committee something
about these.—A. This Association, of which I was a member, is an international
body, and conducted an exhaustive investigation into the prison labour situ-
ation. They issued a pamphlet called Prison Labour Competition versus Free
Industry. I attended conferences at Chicago, another at St. Louis and another
at New York, in reference to this situation. I had a comprehensive knowledge
of the whole campaign, and I have had that confirmed by a report made by
the International Association issued from their offices at. 395 Broadway. The
other publication, if I might say so, is the publication of an association who
are fighting prison labour. If the committee wish to have further information,
there are one or two passages I would be glad to read.

Q. Contract labour in prisons?—A. Yes.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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By the Chairman: ) |

Q. This pamphlet is called the American Vanguard, published monthly.
This copy is for September, 1924, No. 46.—A. Yes.

‘Mr. HexpersoN, K.C.: Mr. Sparks and I have conferred as- to these
matters. We understand that the committee is about to appoint counsel to
represent the committee, and there is a large mass of material here which I
do not think should be opened up until counsel for the committee has had an
opportunity of looking it over. Mr. Sparks will be available, because a great
deal of explanation must be given concerning it. So I would like to stop there;
I do not want to be accused of going too far in anything, but please have it
understood that Mr. Sparks will be at all times available to counsel for: the
committee. He has a great deal of information which is not, technically
" speaking admissible as evidence.

By Mr. Henderson, K.C.:

Q. Very well, Mr. Sparks. Passing from that, you have talked about
the operations of your organization, and it might be understood that your
operations were confined to the district that we call the Montreal district. Is
that right?—A. No.

Q. Did your operations extend elsewhere? I do not want to go into
details.—A. From Windsor to Quebec.

Q. Your operations extended from Windsor, that is in Ontario, to Quebec
city, do you mean?—A. To Quebec city. In addition we had correspondents
appointed officially by thirteen Boards of Trade, who officially corresponded
from the outlying parts of Canada. ’

Q. But your active operations, if I might so call them, through the instru-
mentality of your paid men, ran from Windsor to Quebec city?—A. Yes.

Q. And then other information came to you by correspondence?—A. Yes.

Q. And will be found in the files which are here?—A. Yes.

Q. Then the only other question I want to ask you about now is as to
what connection, if any, you had with Mr. Stevens, a Member of Parliament?
—A. T can answer ithat better, Mr. Henderson, if I could read a letter which
very briefly sets out my relationship to Mr. Stevens.

Q. Are the contents of that letter true in substance and in fact?—A. Yes.

Q. And you propose to read a letter written to whom?—A. To Mr. F. D.
Tolchard, Secretary, Toronto Board of Trade, Royal Bank Building, Toronto.

Q. He is the Secretary of your organization?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. I think that is a convenient way of putting it in. Read it please?—A.
(Reading) :

EXHIBIT No 44.

“OrTawa, December 2, 1925.
Mr. F. D. ToLcHARD,
Secretary,
Toronto Board of Trade,
Royal Bank Building,
Toronto, Ont.

Dear Mr. Torcrarp,—You have probably noticed in the newspapers
that the Hon. H. H. Stevens has put a resolution on the order paper
asking for a committee of Parliament to inquire into the administration
of the Customs Department. I am enclosing herewith a copy of the
resolution as it appeared in the newspapers, in case you have not seen it.

In view of this action it seems desirable that we should have a
meeting of our committee at a very early, date.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Mr. Stevens spéke to me in reference to this matter. I told him
that so far as this Association was concerned I could take no action
in regard to furnishing him with information without consulting the
executive committee. He already had considerable information, particu-
larly in reference to the activities of Bisaillon. I felt ]ustlﬁed in
confirming the information which he had, and told him something of
what we already knew in reference to thls officer. Apart from this I
took the position that the committee would have to be consulted before
I could co-operate with him in any way. It seems probable that we
may be called upon to give evidence, and we ought to decide just how
far we will go.

There are a number of other matters in reference to the admini-
stration of the Department of recent date in reference to which I think
the committee should be informed.

I will be in Toronto some day next week, and will write you in a
day or two as to what day. I am also writing to Mr. Robertson, and I
think we might get the local committees together and discuss the matter.
If, meeting separately, we find there is agreement as to what we should
do, it might not be necessary to have a general meeting, but if there
appears to be any serious difference of opinion it would probably be
better to try and get the full committee together to decide on what course
we should take, in view of this,inquiry. I do not think I can get to
Toronto until Thursday or Friday of next week, but will write you a
few days in advance so that we may endeavour to get the committee
together for an hour or so and discuss the matter.

Yours truly,
R. P. Sparks.”

Q. That was your position on the second day of December, 1925?—A. Yes.

Q. What followed after that? Did your Committee meet, or did you have
the informal meetings you suggested in ‘that letter ?—A. Our Toronto and
Montreal committees met separately.

Q. And gave you instructions?—A. And gave me instructions.

Q. In the meantime, did you communicate what was going on to anyone
in authority here?—A. No. On the day of the Montreal meeting I met Hon.
Mr. Boivin in the Windsor Hotel and I discussed with him the whole situation
for, I should say, two or three hours.

Q. Did you inform him that Mr. Stevens was taking action?—A. I informed
him I had had a conference with Mr. Stevens, and I further informed him that
my two committees had unanimously approved the idea of the appointment of
a parliamentary committee, and had authorized me to confer with Mr. Stevens
with a view to giving him a general outline of the conditions in Canada as
affected by the administration of Customs. I told Mr. Boivin that was our
intention, and I think Mr. Boivin—if I may say so—found no fault with it.

Q. This conversation lasted, as you say, over two hours?—A. Yes.

Q. Just one other thing, and one other thing only, I hope, Mr. Sparks—
Am I right, Mr. Chairman, in assuming that the correspondence between the
witness and the Deputy Minister of Customs and Excise has been already pro-
duced?

Mr. Eruiorr: There is some correspondence.

Mr. Henperson, K.C.: I was going to suggest this; there is a bulky cor-
respondence between the witness and the Deputy Mlmqter a very great deal of
which should not be disclosed at the present time, for, i think, very obvious
reasons— '

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Hon. Mr. Bowvin: Oh no.

Mr. Henperson, K.C.: I think the Minister will agree with me, and I was
going to suggest that the ,correspondence be produced and inspected by counsel
for the Committee, Mr. Sparks being available to counsel for the Committee to
explain anything contained in those letters, and that counsel for the Committee
recommend how much of that correspondence should be brought out.

Hon. Mr. Bowvin: Oh, no. If I might make a suggestion—

Mr, Hexperson, K.C.: I am quite willing to have any suggestion the
Minister may wish to make.

Hon. Mr. Bowvin: Then my suggestion is this; the Department has filed
all of the documents which have been asked for which we have found—

Hon. Mr. Bexnerr: Not all.

Hon. Mr. Boivin: Not quite everything, no, but what we have found, and
the search is being continued, and I feel sure we can produce everything
requested. This Committee has taken the stand from the outset that every-
thing should be placed in confidence before the Committee and be available to
all members of the Committee, and I think everything produced should be
treated in a like manner. '

Mr. Henoerson, K.C.: Did I use the word “Filed”? I meant produced.

Hon. Mr. Borvin: My learned friend said “produced” but he also said that
the documents would only be inspected by counsel for the Committee in the pres-
ence of Mr. Sparks.

Mr. Bernn: No, he did not say that.

The Caammax: He said Mr. Sparks would be available.

Mr. Hexperson, K.C.: I said Mr. Sparks would be available if counsel
so desired. ;

Hon. Mr. Borvin: He said this file would be inspected by counsel for the
Committee. If he is limiting the inspection to counsel, I object, but if it is for
the use of the entire Committee, of course, I make no objection.

Mr. HexpersoN, K.C.: My understanding, Mr. Chairman, is that this
Committee finds itself faced with a bulk of documentary material which it
would be impossible for any human being to undertake to analyze without
assistance, and they propose to appoint counsel, who I presume will have some
assistants, and that counsel will digest this material for the Committee,

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Produce this, Mr. Henderson.

Mr. Hexperson, K.C.: I am suggesting it be merely produced now, and
that for obvious reasons no questions be asked concerning it. The Committee
may have it to do with as they will, but I do not think it is wise to go into it
now, unless some member of the Committee wishes so to do.

Mr. DoNnagaY: Mr. Chairman, we have just been handed up this pamphlet
by my friend Mr. Henderson. Unfortunately it has not been read, and it is
probably too long to read, but if my colleagues have no objection, I want to
read something I have just seen in it. You notice it says here “The Reliance
Manufacturing Company”—that is the concern that made this black shirt—
“made an agreement with the I.A.G.M.”—that is the International Association
of Garment Manufacturers—‘in September, 1923, to take no further contracts
and to give up existing contracts as rapidly as the States-use plan of the Associ-
ates for Government Services Incorporated can be developed and put into
operation; also agreed to co-operate in working out the Associate plan.” That
is Séptember, 1923. I read that for what it is worth.

Mr. HexpersoN, K.C.: Yes, but, Mr. Donaghy, you understand that many
agreements are made and not lived up to. |

3 [Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Mr. Do~Nagry: This is your own official document, and it does not say it
was not lived up to.

Mr. Henperson, K.C.: Not ours at all.

The WiITNESS: I think, Mr. Chairman—

Mr. HenpersoN, K.C.: Do not get into this controversy, Mr. Sparks

The CrarmAN: I think to avoid discussion and to continue the examination,
Mr. Donaghy should put the question “Did you notice in your pamphlet such-
and-such a thing?”

Mr. Henberson, K.C.: All Mr. Sparks wants to say is that the article in
the Vanguard—if Mr. Donaghy will read it—

The CuammaN: The pamphlet speaks for itself. Mr. Donaghy can ask
Mr. Sparks “Did you notice in the pamphlet such-and-such a thing?”.

Mr. Hexperson, K.C.: No good purpose can be served by discussing it now.

Hon. Mr. Borvin: Mr. Henderson, a purpose which can be served will be
to show that the shirt which was produced here yesterday was bought in 1925,
when they hadceased contracts with prison labour in 1923. i

Mr. Hexperson, K.C.: May I suggest to the Minister, as was suggested
yesterday, that if the Minister will be good enough to set his machinery in
motion the identity of that shirt can be traced from Wellington Street to a
certain other point and from that point backward to a certain manufacturer.

Mr. DonacrY: We decided yesterday to try and trace that shirt.

Mr. Henperson, K.C.: I think— (

The Wirness: Mr. Chairman, contrary to advice of counsel, and in spite
of my counsel’s advice, I will make an observation in reference to Mr. Donaghy’s
point. I was present when the controversy as to these contracts and as to the
agreement with the I.A.G.M. was had. I was opposed to it, and I, in another
document, which I also filed, answered the statement read by Mr. Donaghy,
choking the dog with butter, as it were. I think if one is read, the other might
very properly also be read.

Mr. DoNacHY: Apparently your organizations were fighting among them-
selves?

The Wrrness: Yes. I resigned on account of the position of the I.A.G.M.
I think the Reliance Company have six contracts still running.

Mr. DonacuY: You are an advocate of one side, and the other organizations
are fighting you?

Hon. Mr. BExNETT: I thought the black shirt was produced as one which
might be used by those who march upon the Capital, viewing the necessities of
Italy, and having regard to the fact that Mussolini may arrive, and the black
shirt will be necessary.

The CuarRMAN: Now, gentlemen of the Committee; the examination of
M. Sparks, in chief, is finished. If any member of the Committee wishes to
cross-examine Mr. Sparks on any document produced or filed, you are now
permitted so to do. Or, if you have any document to complete the evidence
given by Mr. Sparks in chief, now is the time for that. Your way is clear now,
Mr. Donaghy.

By Mr. Donaghy: | '

Q. Now, it is in reference to the-evidence given at that trial of Bisaillon,
which took' place February 13, 1925. These dates appear to be important;
February 13th was the trial.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Now, before us we have here the official file from the Customs Department
which shows that exactly six days after that trial, namely, on February 19,
1925, this letter was written by the Deputy Minister of Customs. I will read
it. (Reading.) ol "

, y EXHIBIT No. 45 {

“February 19, 1925.
To Collector of Customs and Excise, - !
St. Johns, »
\ Province of Quebec.

~ Sir—During the period April 1, 1922, to July 31, 1922, revenue
collected at the outport of Farnham in your survey was reported to the
Department of Revenue on Revenue Return K-10, Numbers 9, 14, 18, 24,
33, 39, 43, 52, 56, 61, 69, 75, 94, 95, 96 and 99. A report is required from
you showing the manner in which these collections were remitted to you
by the acting sub-collector during that period. Were they covered by
cheques? If so, were the cheques marked ‘Department of Customs and
Excise Official’? Or were they personal cheques? On what bank were
they drawn or to be presented for payment? Also state if you have
information as to where these collections were on depdsit up until the
time the cheques covering them were presented. A reply is requested as
early as possible. . i
i Deputy Minister Customs and Excise.”

Hon. Mr. Bexxerr: What is the question? ,
Mr. DonacayY: I intend asking the witness a question on these letters.
The CuairmaN: He is just putting preliminaries to his question.

By Mr. Donaghy:
Q. The next letter of February 24th,' 1925, is from J. C. Latour, Collector
of Customs and Excise, at the port of St. Johns, Que., addressed to the Deputy
Minister, being a reply to the last letter. (Reads):

EXHIBIT No. 46
“ Customs AND Excise, CANADA

» Port or St. Jouxns, Qun., February 24, 1925.
R. R. Farrow, Esq.,
Deputy Minister,
Customs and Excise,
Ottawa.

Sir,—In reference to your letter of the 19th inst. asking to report
to the Department on revenue returns K-10, Nos. 9-14-18-24-33-39-43-
52-56-61-69-75-94-95-96- and 99, in which were included the revenues
collected at the outport of Farnham; Que. during the period April 1st,

. 1922 to July 3lst, 1922.

In reply I have the honour to report that yesterday afternoon the 23rd,
I went to Farnham; there I found the cheques that were issued to remit the
collections made at that outport to the chief port of St. Johns, P.Q.
during said period; the cheques are all properly marked “Department of
Customs and Excise—Official” and are all drawn on the Canadian Bank
of Commerce, Farnham, where the various collections are deposited, and
same are all signed by J. E. Bisaillon, with the exception of the two first
ones dated 5th and 12th of April, 1922, that were signed by officer J. L.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]



—

180 : SPECIAL COMMITTEE

LA

Sevigny, as Officer in Charge. I brought the cheques with me, in order
to enable me to submit them to your examination; a receipt for same was
given by me to the said collector. ;
The following is a list of said cheques enclosed herewith: April 8th,
1922, $935.44; April 15th, 1922, $1,533.85; April 22nd, 1922, $1,676.26;
April 29th, 1922, $1,146.98; May 8th, 1922, $3,565.60; May 15th, 1922,
$988.63; May 22nd, 1922, $2,232.32; May 31st, 1922, $2,951.18; June 8th,
1922, $1,676.82; June 15th, 1922, $1,747.10; June 22nd, 1922, $2,146.39;
June 30th, 1922, $1,650.48; July 8th, 1922, $1,363.01; July 15th, 1922,
$1,874.45; July 22nd, 1922, $1,898.85; July 31st, 1922, $2,076.61.

I have the honour to be, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

J. C. LATOUR,
Collector of Customs and Ezcise.”

The cheques are here. ,(See Ezhibit 13, page 55.) The first is dated April
8th, 1922, drawn on the Canadian Bank of Commerce at Farnham, “Pay to the
Order of Customs and Excise at St. Johns, or order, $935.44; it is signed
“Department, of Customs and Excise Official, J. L. Sevigny, Officer in Charge.

I will read another sample. (Reads): (See Exhibit 13, page 55.)
“FarnHAM, May 15th, 1922

Canadian Bank of Commerce, Pay Collector of Customs and Exeise,
St. Johns, or order $988.63; signed Department of Customs and Execise
Official, J. E. A. Bisaillon, Deputy sub-collector.”

Then the last letter, dated March 2nd, 1925—and this date is important—
from the chief accountant of Customs and Excise, to the Deputy Minister of
Customs, reads as follows:

EXHIBIT No. 47

(Part of Exhibit 13, page 65)
“ Orrawa, March 2nd, 1925.

Memorandum for the Deputy Minister.

Referring to the attached newspaper eclipping, and to your request
for information pertaining to the manner of depofiting and remitting
collections at the outport of Farnham, during the period for which auditor
J. E. Bisaillon, acted as sub-collector there.”

This newspaper clipping by the way, is an account of the examination of
Bisaillon in the case of Rex vs. Simons. (Reads):

“I find that under date of October 28th, 1921 (File 95809) the
Department of Finance approved use of the Canadian Bank of Commerce
at that point; for the purpose of making deposits of collections, that the
collections taken at that outport appear to have been deposited in the
Canadian Bank of Commerce at Farnham, as the regular sub-collector,
as well as officer Bisaillon during his period on relief duty, have remitted
their collections by cheques on the Farnham. Branch of the Canadian
Bank of Commerce. These in turn were deposited by the Collector at
the chief port of St. Johns paid at Farnham, and the amount included
in the collector’s draft and deposit receipts covering remittance for each
period concerned. The collections thus deposited and remitted by officer
Bigaillon during the -period he served at Farnham total $29,463.97. I

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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attach hereto the returns K-10A from the outport, the covering K-10's
received from the chief port, the relative deposit receipts from the chief
port, and cheques from the outport. Will you kindly return those to me
when they have served your purpose, in order that they may be redistri-
s buted to their respective files. Celoy .
(Sgd.) F. A. RORkE,

Chief Accountant of Customs
Encls. ' ; and Excise.”

Now, the newspaper item referred to, and which is attached here, is a long
voluminous document, containing the cross-examination of Bisaillon in reference
to all deposits and accounts. That apparently, on March 2nd, was before the
Department. Let me see the letter which the witness referred to, to the Premier.

Mr. Eruiorr: What date?

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I think about the end of May.

Mr. DonagEY: In which he enclosed copies of this cross-examination.
This date also appears to be important. I think, maybe, Mr. Sparks can file
the letter. I am going to ask something about it.

Hon. Mr. BenNerr: I am going to object to this form of examination,
which consists of reading documents, about which the witness knows nothing.

Mr. DonacHY: Please do not suggest to the witness that he knows nothing
about this document.

- By Mr. Donaghy:

Q. Now, witness, I find in your letter, which you wrote to the Prime
Minister, on May 30th, 1925 (See Exhibit 38, p. 158), being precisely two
months after all this matter had been investigated by the Department, you
say, “In reference to the matter of J. A. E. Bisaillon, about whose activities
certain information has been given you, I beg to enclose herewith extracts from
evidence, given by this man under oath in the case of Rex vs. Simons.” Were
you aware two months after, that the Department had the information, were
you aware that the Department already had this for two months, and had
nvestigated the matter?—A. No, sir.

Mr, DoxagHY: Thank you.

By Mr. Elliott:

Q. Mr. Sparks, may I just ask a question or two. I understand about the
first interview you had with any representative of the government, with regard
to investigations which you proposed to make, took place about the 6th of
August, 1924?—A. That was a deputation.

Q. That you met the whole of the government on the 6th of August. Am
I correct in assuming that that was about the beginning of communications
'g?.ck and forth between you and the government, regarding this matter?—A.

0. '

Q. What was the beginning?—A. I should say about the beginning of 1921,
sometime.

Q. 1921 some time?—A. Yes.

Q. Then, as far as the records go, your correspondence did not commence
until about the meeting on the 6th of August, 1924. Am I correct in that?—A.
No. You are correct.

Q. At that time, a suggestion was made by you, representing the organiza-
tion which you did represent, to the whole Cabinet, was it?—A. Six members
of the Cabinet.

Q. Six members of the Cabinet?—A. Yes.

/ [Mr. ' R. P. Sparks.]
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By Mr. Henderson, K.C.:
Q. The suggestlon was made to the Prime Mlmster for the Cabmeb You
used the word “suggestion.” The suggestion was made to the Prime Minister
that the deputation should be heard?

By Mr. Elliott:
Q. Yes. You made suggestions to the Minister before, and that was
followed up by a meeting with the Cabinet, consisting of six members?—A.

Yes.
Q. And that meeting took place on August 7th?—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. 1924?—A. 1924.

By Mr. Elliott: e

Q. And you sent in to your different officers, or the persons who were
engaged in a similar way to yourself; you sent a report of that meeting, did
you not, Mr. Sparks?—A. Yes.

Q. You have a circular copy of that report?—A. I read it into the evidence.

Q. That was sent on the 9th of August?—A. Yes.

Q. And it has already been read in?—A. Yes.

Q. And now, your Associations, that were connected with this matter
were all named in your report, were they not?—A. No. r

Q. Well, a number were?—A. Yes »

Q. And they included the members of the garment manufacturers?—A.
Yes.

Q. The members of the cotton mills people, silk mills, and silk jobbers; the
Wholesale Drygoods Association, the Retail Merchants Association, and the
Canadian Manufacturers Association.—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Those were chiefly the Associations which you represented at that
time?—A. Yes.

Q. At that time?—A. Yes.

Q. Now, as I recollect your evidence, and you will correct me if I have not
obtained the correct, impression, you then suggeqted co- operatlon between your
organizations, and the government, with regard to the putting down of the
smuggling and other evils that you found yourselvea contending with?—A.
Yes.

Q. And you then were the spokebman for all those- organizations at the
meetings to which I have referred ?—A. Yes.

Q. And you placed before the members of the Cabinet who were there,
your views on the matter, as to the extent to which these things had gone on,
and also your views as to the best method of ‘remedying the evils that were
existing?—A. Yes.

Q. That was what you had in mind?—A. Yes.

Q. To get a remedy, and I take it that that is still your objeet, Mr. Sparks?
—A. Wholly.

Q. At that time, what was the outstanding difficulty that presented itself
to your organization?—A. The weakness of the law was one.

Q. The weakness of the law?—A. Yes.

Q. Will you just follow that up, and tell us in what way the weakness of the
law as it existed at that time was or was not your outstanding difficulty ?—
A. Under the law it was permissible for the Minister to settle all cases wx'thout
taking them into a Civil Court. That was one.

Q. First the Minister could settle all civil cases without takmg them 1nto
a court?—A. All cases.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Q All cases, without ta,klng them into the civil courts? i

Mr. HENDERSON, K.C.: Most of those cases would have a civil as well as
a criminal beanng ‘ =

By Mr Elliott:

Q. That simply means that it was a departmental rather than a-judicial
tribunal, that settled these troubles?—A. Yes.

Q. Is that correct?—A. Yes.

Q. That was one defect in the law which you thought should be remedied?
—A. Yes.

Q. What was the next?—A. Even when a prosecutlon was made, the
penalties were very light.-

Q. Just explain that, what were the penalties, as you recollect them?—
A. As I recollect them, there was a maximum fine of $200. May I continue?

Q. Please—A. There were many offences for which mo penalty was pro-

. vided, which we felt should be made offences.

Q Just dealing with the first one now, there was a maximum fine of $200,
and that was the maximum penalty that could be imposed as the law stood at
that time, for violations of the Customs Act?—A No, a jail sentence could be

- imposed by a Judge.

Q. You say a jail sentence could be imposed by a Judge?—A. Yes.

Q. They were not indictable offences, I understand?—A. No.’

Q. I see you urged at that time that the great difficulty was that those
offences were not then indictable offences, and 1 think in your correspondence
you indicated something to this effect, readmg irom a letter—I am not in my
right order in reading this, but I think that in some respects it indicates better
what you had in mind than is to be found anywhere else,—in your letter of
May 28th, which was sent out to each of your associates you have this para-

“graph:

“In our memorandum to the Government we suggested a number
of other changes, but as probably 95 per cent of all charges of offences
- against the Customs Act are laid under either Section 206 or 219, we feel
entirely satisfied with the amendments introduced.”

That is a correct expression of how you felt then?—A. Absolutely.

Q. On the 28th of May, 19257—A. Yes. -

Q. You felt that the amendments that were introduced by the Government
under Bill 145 would almost—may I just read this other paragraph in. that
letter? You also say:

“We are enclosing herewith a copy of Bill No. 145, introduced by
the Minister of Customs, amending the Customs Act. These amend-
ments almost fully meet the requests made to the Government by this
Association, in making the smuggling of goods of a value of more than
$200 an indictable offence, carrying a penalty of a jail sentence in addition
to any fine or other penalty.”

That was your view, after all the consideration you had given to it, at that time?
—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is the cincular letter?—A. Yes.

Q. Now, just to follow along the interviews which took place with the
Government or the heads of the various departments, or the deputies, I take
it that your interviews with those Cabinet Ministers on the 6th of August
were merely suggestions for amendments to the Act and the tightening up of
the prosecutions?—A. Yes.

Q. Of course naturally, as this was a Customs and Excise matter, most of
your negotiations would be with the head of that department?—A. Yes sir.

8 -
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Q. The head of that department would have charge, of course, of the 'Exéise: A

as well as the Customs, at that time?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You wrote to your different people or associates suggesting that this

clause be put in; perhaps I should read that:

“The Government were again strohgiy pressed to amend tlie Cus-

toms Act in accordance with the suggestions put forward by this associa-
tion months ago, after consultation with the Department of Justice, the
Department of Customs. and Excise, and the Attorney-General of the
- Province of Quebec.” :

Those were the Departments primarily Wit‘h whom you had your nego’oi'ations?

—A. Yes, sir. : .
A QY Customs, Justice, and the Attorney-General of the Province of Quebec?
—A. Yes, sir. 3 / :

Q. I will read further:—
“The suggestion was made that the following clause be added to the
Customs Act; Provided that in any case where the value of such goods”—

that is, smuggled goods—

“exceeds $500, such person shall in addition to the penalty to which he :

is subject for any such offence, be liable to imprisonment for a term not
exceeding two years and not less than six months.”

Then you say further in that letter:—
_ “The Minister of Customs very naturally defended his administra-
tion, but agreed that this traffic had assumed very large proportions, and
that more rigid preventive measures were necessary.” ~

That was quite apparent, and was admitted by everybody; there was no
denying that fact?—A. That is right.

Q. By the Minister of Customs or anybody else?—A. No.

Q. I believe the negotiations looking to this amendment followed on dur-
ing the autumn of 1924?—A. Yes, sir. -

Q. You had various meetings, mainly with the Minister of Customs I
take 1t?—A. Yes. g

Q. After the meeting in August, 1924?—A. I should say that I met the
Prime Minister oftener than the Minister of Customs. N

Q. You do not seem, I may say, to have had any correspondence with the
Prime Minister in 1924, Am I reasonably correct about that?—A. Yes. I
don’t think there/was any correspondence.

Q. So that whatever interviews you had with him in 1924 were personal
interviews?—A. They were personal interviews.

Q. And from the correspondence I take it that they were few in number?—
A. Yes, sir, perhaps two or three.

Q. And in every case, I gather from the correspondence that what he said
to you was something to this effect, that, “Of course this is a matter under the
control of the Department, but I have made the representations to the Depart-
ment which you have made to me, and we are considering the amendments
which you have suggested.” Is that about right?—A. Yes. .

Q. Are you in a position to say whether or not, from the time the Customs
regulations were first made and we first had a Customs Act in Canada, that
there ever was, up to the time you obtained them, the amendments you sug-
gested.—A. I did not get that question clear, Mr. Elliott.

Q. Had the law in Canada ever been, as far as you know, what you were
suggesting to the Government at that time?—A. No. I think it had been since
Confederation substantially the same,

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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ptir Q. Since Confederation the law had remained practically the same?—A.
~ Yes, 1 think so. ;

Q. Your idea at first, in order to get at some remedy, was to get what you
have described as these drastic amendments to the Act?—A. Yes.
Q. Now we come along to the 12th of December, 1924, and I find that on that

 date you wrote to the Department, (See Exhibit No. 24, page 119), and suggested

ihat the investigators who had been employed be granted the power of protective
officers, and you also said something to the effect that nothing would support
the proper administration of justice like the amendments you proposed, and the

- giving to investigators police powers, or something to that effect?—A. Yes.

Q. Those were the two outstanding things at that time that were required
and that could be done by the department, in order to aid the condition of
affairs?—A. Yes. ' "

Q. That is correct?—A. Yes, sir..

Q. Then you went on, and on the 23rd of December, 1924, you wrote to
the then Minister of Customs. Have you your file of correspondence with the
Department, Mr. Sparks?—A. With which Minister?

Q. With the Minister of Customs on December 23, 1924, the Hon. Mr.
Bureau, I think?—A. I havé the letter, Mr. Elliott. |

Q. I intended that you should have it, so that we might understand one

‘another as we go along. I do not remember whether that letter of December

23, 1924, has been read into the record already or not?
~ Mr. Hexpersox, KiC.: T think it has been, Mr. Elliott.

By Mr. Elliott: L ;
Q. However, at the risk of repetition, I want to read part of it. This
letter is addressed to the Hon. Jacques Bureau, Minister of Customs and Excise,

Ottawa:
EXHIBIT No. 48 4 /

“DeAar SIR,—In accordance with your suggestion the business inter-
ests who have organized for the purpose of eo-operating with your Depart-
ment in the prevention of smuggling, have changed the name of the
Association from The Dominion Smuggling Preventative Association to
The Commercial Protective Association.”

Apparently some objection was taken by the Department to this name The
Dominion Smuggling Preventative Association?—A. Yes.

Q. And you agreed with them that it would be quite in order to change it
to the Commercial Protective Association?—A. That is correct.

Q. And that was arrived at as a result of various conferences you had
with the Government, and was thought to be in the interest of ewerybody con-
cerned?—A. Yes.

Q. In that letter you also add this paragraph:

_ “I have been instructed by the Executive Committee of this Associ-
ation to express their appreciation of your having empowered certain
investigators whom you have employed, with the authority of preventive
officers, and we trust that the assistance which they will afford your
department will fully justify your action in this regard.”

A. That is correct.

Q. There is no doubt about this, that in your reports t i
associates at that time you were telling what Wa§ happelr)ling frgmygg; Xc(? rcli(;l}lfs
vand you were correct in the statement made in this letter, that they were ex-
pressing appreciation of the sympathetic consideration that the head of the

. department was giving at that time?—A. Yes.

16292—2% [Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Q. There is no doubt about that?—A. No. s -
Q. That brings us to the 23rd of December, 1924. The then Minister was

up to that time in his office, and it was before he was taken ill, I understand?

=A. Yes; ¢

Q. And very shortly before that?—A. Yes. . That is my recollection of
it. : ' ’
- Q. Because I see in one of your letters that some time in January, I would

not say just the date in January 1925, you in reporting to some of your associates

referred to the fact that the Minister was ill and was away from his office,
and was not able to attend to affairs just at that time?—A. Yes, exactly.

Q. Then let us follow that. How long did the illness of the Minister con-
tinue? How long did his absence from active charge of the affairs of the
dgpartment continue?—A. My recollection is that I saw very little of him after
that. :

Q. I think that is a fair statement, Mr. Sparks, of what one can gather
from the correspondence. He was not administering the departmént very much
after that, and your letter of the 23rd of December, 1924, expressing your
appreciation of his efforts up to that time, is about the last official correspondence
that you had with him personally?—A. Yes sir.. |

# Q/Then follows the session, and the efforts put forth by everybody to get
the amendments to the Act?—A. Yes sir. A

Q. Amendments which were by some considered very drastic amendments?
—A. Yes. NS

Q. And that were a complete change in policy and penalty from anything
we had ever had before?—A. Yes. ’ \ j

Q. And T see that on the 4th of February, 1925, in the letter addressed
to the Prime Minister, you say—this letter is already on the record, my
colleague reminds me, and 1 just want to refer to a part of it. In the second
paragraph you say: (See Exzhibit 25, page 121.)

“ Subsequent to that time this Association was organized for the
purpose of assisting the Department of Customs and Excise—"

that is what it was organized for?—A. Yes.
Q. And I take it that that is still your desire?—A. Yes sir.
Q. (Reading):

“in the prevention of smuggling and undervaluation, and to make
certain investigations of their own into this problem. In this regard we
are pleased to say that both the Minister -and Deputy Minister of Cus-
toms have welcomeéd our co-operation and have facilitated in every
possible way the investigation we have made into the smuggling prob-
lem.”

That is a correct statement of your feeling at that time?—A. Yes, substantially
correct. : ‘

Q. And that brings us down to February 4th, 1925?—A. Yes.

Q. Then you refer to the fact, '

“Under the present law smuggling is not an indictable offence,
"although the Minister has the right to take cases of smuggling into the
civil Courts. It has however, been the practice—"

This is what you have already referred to.

“__ever since Confederation, to settle departmentally practically
all seizures for smuggling or undervaluation. = We believe that this
practice has had the general effect of what might be not improperly
described as contempt for the law in this regard. We respectfully sub-
mit that in order to maintain respect for the law and to correct the
abuses of its infraction, all cases of fraud, whether by ‘'way of smuggling

{Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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~ or undervaluation under the Customs Act, should be dealt with by the
-¢ivil Courts, and in the case of what might be described as commercial

smuggling—that is, smuggling of goods for resale, of a substantial value.
say $100 or over—the offence should be made punishable by imprison-

; ment, without the option of a fine.” 2

Then to go ahead and deal with that while we are on this subject, some change
was made in the amount of the fine, or in the amount of the value of goods?—

“A. That was a matter of negotiation with the officials of the department.

Q. And that was made $2007—A. Yes.
* Q. My colleague calls attention to the fact that they started with $500, and
arrived at $200. Is that correct?—A. We started with $100 here, prepared to
go up as high as necessary, but we settled finally at $200, and we were well
leased. :
P Q. And I take it from the correspondence that%hen you started in at $100
you did not expect to stop; that was just a basis for negotiations, and you did
not expect to have it made punishable by imprisonment, for the smuggling of

. goods of that value?—A. No.

Q. And that you were very well satisfied with the result that you finally
arrived at in regard to that?—A. Yes. _
Q. Then that brings us along to later on in February, and I find that on

; February 17th you wrote a letter—. No, that letter is not yours, but I think

perhaps it might, if everyone on the committee thinks it advisable, be read in at

. the present time, just to show what was going on, and if any one thinks it should

not, I will not read it. It is a letter from the secretary of the Prime Minister
to J. E. Walsh referring to this same matter, and the negotiations that were
going on.

Mr. HexpersoN, K.C.: There was contemporaneous correspondence with
Mr. Walsh, manager of the Canadian Manufacturers’ Association,

Mr. Evruiorr: He was manager of the Canadian Manufacturers’ Associa-
tion.

Mr. Henperson, K.C.: His association was supporting Mr. Sparks’ asso-
ciation, and I see in the-letter nothing that is not harmonious.

Mr. Ervutorr: Thank you.

By Mr. Elliott:

That is February 17th, 1925. 1 beg your pardon, I am evidently wrong
about the date of that letter, it is January 20th. This letter is sent by Mr.
Walsh, and T take it that it voices the views of the Canadian Manufacturers’
Association at that time, and they were one of the associations for whom you
¥ere acting, and for whom you were general spokesman—and correspondent?-—A.

es.

Q. This has not been read in, as I recollect it.

Mr. Hexbperson, K.C.: T think the witness would say, if you asked him,
that he was aware of the fact that others were making representations.

Mr. Erviorr: Yes.

By Mr.-Elliott; ' ?
Q. This letter was sent to the Right Hon. W. L. Mackenzie King, Prime
Minister. :
“Dpar SRS
Re Suppression of smuggling

The executive council of the Canadian Manufacturers’ Association
at a general meeting held in Hamilton on January 15, 1925, unanimously
approved a recommendation of the association’s tariff committee, that the

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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government should be asked that officers of the preventive éervié’e‘, D art-
ment of Customs and Excise, should be selected, appointed by the Minister

on his responsibility, and independent of the Civil Service Commission.” "

Then later on in the letter he said: “ The appointment of additional capable
preventive officers who could be taken on or released from the service on the
Minister’s own responsibility, would undoubtedly help materially to decrease
smuggling 7. That was the view of all concerned at that time?—A. No.

Q. In that did the Canadian Manufacturers’ Association differ from some
of your.other associations?—A. They differed with me personally.

Q. They differed with you personally ?—A. Yes.

Q. I see. Then perhaps, if that did not express your views at that time—
0 :

Q. —I do not want to refer to them further here. I think perhaps it would
be interesting to the committee to know just what the differences were at that
time between the Canadian Manufacturers’ and other associations represented
by yourself, giving both your views as representing the other associations, and
those of the Canadian Manufacturers’>—A. Suggestions came to me that the
Government desired support for a movement to take the appointment of pre-
ventive officers from under the Civil Service Commission. I took the position
at that time that we were vigorously complaining about the retention in the
service of men unfit to be in it, and we could not stultify our own position by
suggesting that the Minister be authorized to appoint further preventive officers.
We assumed a neutral position. ;

Q. These men were appointed by the Civil Service Commission, I believe?—
A. Which men?

Q. Of the Preventive Service?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Bell:
Q. And promoted how?—A. I do not know.
Mr. Bern: All right.

By Mr. Elliott:
Q. Now, I see that you wrote—
Mr. Hexperson, K.C.: On the 21st, I think.
Mr. Evviorr: No; the 27th of February.
Mr. HenpersoN, K.C.: The 21st and 26th, Mr. Elliott, is it not?

Mr. Erviorr: These have all been referred to, and I do not feel they are
very materal to the point I am trying to make.

By Mr. Elliott:

Q. On the 27th of February—will you refer to your letter to the Prime
Minister?

Mr. HexnoersoN, K.C.: T do not, seem to have that here, Mr. Elliott. Will
you be good enough to read it?

Mr. Erurorr: It contains this clause: “With the necessary amendment to
the Act, 90 per cent of the smuggling could be \preven’oed”.

Hon. Mr. Boivin: That was read yesterday.

Mr. HenpersoN, K.C.: Probably our copy has gotten out of our hands.

By Mr. Elliott:
Q. That was your view at that time?—A. Yes.
Q. Then you followed it along, and I see in your letters that you refer to
the facts, in writing to Mr. Tolchard—
[Mr, R. P. Sparks.] :
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Mr. Hexperson, K.C.: That quotation is in the letter we have of the 26th

~ of February.

Mr. Gacxon: Exhibit 27. B
Mr. Henoersoxn, K.C.: It is quoted there: “With the necessary amendment,
90 per cent—" : 4 :

. By Mr. Elliott: y '
Q. I see in your correspondence back and forth with Mr. Tolchard—explain
to the Committee what Mr. Tolchard’s function was?—A. Mr. Tolchard was
the Secretary of the Toronto Board of Trade, and secretary of our Toronto Com-
mittee. Our Executive was made up of two committees, one selected at a joint
meeting of the Toronto Board of Trade and the Canadian Manufacturers’ Asso-

_ ciation; the other selected at a meeting called by the Montreal Board of Trade.

When they met in joint conference, Mr. Tolchard acted as General Secretary; at
other times, he acted as Secretary of the Toronto Committee, meeting alone.

Q. You say “when they met in joint conference”; you refer— A. When'
they met jointly. / -

Q. Both the Toronto Board of Trade and the— A. The Toronto Com-
mittee and the Montreal Committee met jaintly and Mr. Tolchard acted as
General Secretary. ¥

Q. Then would you describe your Committee as a joint committee of the
Montreal Committee and the Toronto Committee— A. Yes.

Q. Or, rather, your associates were divided into two committees, the Mont-

§ real Committee and the Toronto Committee?—A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Tolchard was Secretary of the Toronto Board of Trade and was
Secretary of the Toronto branch of the Committee?—A. Yes.

Q. And who was the secretary of the Montreal branch—A. We had no
secretary in Montreal.

Q. I see that on the 9th of March, in your correspondence back and forth
with Mr. Tolchard, you mention, among other things, that the Minister is still
in bad health. That was a fact, as you have already indicated?—A. Yes.

Q. Then your letter of March 13th to the Prime Minister, which was read
into . the record yesterday by my learned friend, Mr. Henderson, contains this
clause: (See Exhibit 31, page 132) “Any further reference to your suggestion
that we should put before the Committee of the Cabinet concrete suggestions as
to the amendment to the Act”. You had evidently seen the Prime Minister per-
sonally a day or so prior to the 13th of March, 1925?—A. Probably.

Q. Look at that letter?—A. Yes. . ‘

Q. The House would be in session at that time?—A. Yes.

Q. And if it is any$hing like this session, I suppose everybody would be
reasonably occupied?

Hon. Mr. Benxerr: No, the majority was not so narrow.

Mr. HenpersoN, K.C.: You were not here then, Mr. Elliott.

By Mr. Elliott:

Q. At any rate, the suggestion came from him to you, as I take it from the
letter, “Tell us what amendment you want to the Act, that will make this the
best possible, and we will ‘try and do it”. Is that a fair statement of what the
Prime Minister said to you at that time?—A. A very fair statement.

Q. And I suppose, as a result of that offer, you and your associates and
their counsel did prepare a draft act?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the'file, if you have read it, produced by the Prime Minister, shows
the proposed acts and their history through the House, or the history before they
were actually *~troduced. As this Bill 145 was finally introduced, did it go

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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- through in the form introduced exactly?—A. There was a slight amendment in
the Senate. The Senate referred the Bill to the Committee on Banking and
Commerce, and we appeared, a large deputation of business men appeared before
the Senate Committee on Banking and Commerce, and after a slight amend-
ment to which we agreed, the Bill was reported back to the House of Commons,
and passed. : , i _

Q. I believe, before the Senate, somebody took the position that the

penalties were a little too drastic?—A. Yes, they took that position very strongly,

but after hearing our representations they accepted the principle absolutely.
Q. And it was put through?—A. Yes. i
Q. And you will also be aware that in the letter of the 13th March, 1295,
from you to the Prime Minister, you used this clause. (See Exhibit 31, page 132.)

“I am taking the liberty of enclosing a copy of a resolutionpassed
at the Annual Meeting of the Canadian Association of Garment Manufac-
turers, which you will note expresses appreciation .of the efforts already
made by the government to preyent this traffic, and urges further action.”

A. Yes.

Q. That is correct, and that you know expressed the views of the Canadian
Manufacturers Association at, that time, as indicated—A. Yes, it expressed the
view that that was the beést attitude to take at that time.

Q. Let me understand you. Do you mean that you meant/ it?—A. Yes,
we meant it. A ;

Q. T'take it that you were sincere in these statements, Mr. Sparks?—A. Yes.

Q. Then I see, on the 20th of March, and perhaps as we reach that point-in
our discussion, you might refer to it, although it refers specifically to Bisaillon,
not to the amendment so much. Apparently at that time the Minister of
Customs and Excise was ill, and the House was in session, and the Prime Minister
had had some discussions with you in regard to Bisaillon?—A. Yes. .

Q. And he tells you, in the letter of the 20th March, or he tells you in a
conference just prior to that letter of the 20th of March, that (See Exhibit 28,
page 129.) , 2
“If the Association or any individual is prepared to make definite
charges against the Customs officer he would appoint a Royal Com
mission to investigate § :

such charges?—A. Yes.

Q. That was his attitude at that time?—A. Yes.

Q. I think perhaps you will agree with me, that the correspondence indicates
what, no doubt, the fact was, that the Prime Minister said to you, “That is one
Department, of the government, I am not in charge of that department”. At
least “The Minister in charge of that Department himself is ill, but if anybody
will make the charge against it—"—A. I think Mr. Elliott, T would sooner that
yvou would not set out just what the Prime Minister said at that conference. I
think the Prime Minister would like to have regarded as confidential the
discussion which took place previous to that.

Q. I do not want to press you for anything*that is confidential?—A. No.

Q. I want to get for the benefit of this Committee—

Mr. HenpersoN, K.C.: May I suggest to you that at that time, at all events,
if not still, Mr. Sparks had the complete confidence of the Prime Minister.

Mr. EvLLiorT: Yes. (3

Mr. Bern: Perhaps we will have the advantage of the evidence of the Prime
Minister here, and inquire of him. :

Mr. HenpersoN, K.C.: There are things there that had probably better not
be referred to.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]




N

' RE DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS AND EXCISE 191

' By Mr. Elliott: ok '
Q. He explained to you at any rate what he thought was the fair position
_ to take at that time. If somebody would make a charge, he would appoint a
commission?—A. Yes, that is set out in the letter. |
Q. Lacking a definite charge, I understand from that second paragraph, or
lacking such further charges, no further action would be taken?—A. I would
like to keep to the letter.
Q. I think that is fair. Now, let us get along. That brings us to the 20th of
March, and that was clearly what was taking place up to this time?—A. Yes.
Q. Then I find correspondence on the 25th of March a letter from Mr.
Tolchard, who was their real Secretary, to the Prime Minister.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: What was the date of the letter you were referring to?
Mr. Eruiorr: The 25th of March.
Mr. HenpersoN, K. C.: The 20th of March is the one that has been read.

By Mr! Elliott: 4 .
Q. Do you happen to have a copy of the letter, written by Mr. Tolchard
“to the Prime Minister, and of the letter to the Minister of Customs, on the
25th of March?—A. Not by our Association, Mr. Elliott.
Q. Yes?—A. Are you sure that is not the Toronto Board of Trade?
Q. Well, it may be, but I take it they were all acting practically the
same——A. Well, I might have no knowledge of the letter. -
‘Q. Isee. Allright. This is the letter which, I think, the Committee should
have before it, from Mr. Tolchard, the Secretary of your concern; but it is
gea% that in this he was acting as Secretary of the Toronto Board of Trade?—
. Yes.
Q. And was expressing the view of the Toronto Board of Trade?—A. Yes.
Q. (Reading):

EXHIBIT No. 49.

“THE Boarp oF TraDE oF THE Ciry oF TORONTO,
Rovar BaAxk Buinping,
ToroNTO, CANADA, March 25, 1925.

The Hon. W. L. Mackenzie KiNg,
/ Prime Minister of Canada,
Parliament Buildings,
Ottawa, Ont.

Dear Sir,—Enclosed I am sending you copy of a letter which has
been addressed to the Hon. Jacques Bureau, Minister of Customs and
Excise, under instructions from the Council of this Board with regard
to the prevention of smuggling.

In view of the rapid increase in this illegitimate traffic, and the
very detrimental effect which it is having upon the trade and commerce
of the country, the Council of this Board is pleased to learn that the
government, contemplates making special efforts to curtail smuggling,
and respectfully urges that more stringent and adequate measures be
put into effect without delay.

Assuring you of the co-operation of this Board in every way possible
in your efforts in this connection, I am,

Yours very truly,

(Sgd.) F. D. ToLcHARD,
Secretary.”
[Mr. R. P. Sparks,]
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And to the Minister of Customs at that time and under the same date

is addressed this letter, which I think should be referred to. (Reads).
y ; \
EXHIBIT No. 50.
“THE BoArp or TrADE oF THE CiTy OoF TORONTO,
‘ March 25, 1925.

Hon. JAcQues BUREAU,
Minister of Customs and Excise,
Parliament Buildings,
Ottawa, Ont.

DeAr Sir,—The Council of this Board has instructed me to express
to you their appreciation of the announcement made in the House on
your behalf by the Hon. Minister of Railways and Canals, on the third
inst. to the effect that you purpose introducing more stringent legislation
for the 'prevention of smuggling, and asking the House for power to
appoint a number of men especially fitted to carry on preventive work.”

That was, to your knowledge, the attitude of the Toronto Board of Trade, as
represented by Mr. Tolchard at that time?—A. Well, according to the letter.

Qd. I perhaps should read the rest of the letter, so that it will be all in the
record.

“This Board has been interested in the curtailment of this traffic
for some considerable time, due to the heavy inroads which it has made
upon legitimate trade, which must also have had a serious effect upon
the Federal revenue. For the past few months we have been particularly
close to the problem through investigations which have been made in
this city. These investigations have revealed a very widespread organi-
zation carrying on smuggling, which is having a serious effect upon
bona fide commercial interests in this city. These operations can only
be successfully dealt with by a thoroughly efficient preventive service
with all of the resources of the Government behind it. I am, therefore,
instracted to commend the Government for the action which it contem-
plates to meet this situation and to urge that, in view of its seriousness,
the legislation proposed and the appointment of an efficient and adequate
preventive staff be proceeded with at the earliest possible date. This
Board will be pleased to co-operate in every way possible with your
Department in this matter.

Yours very truly,
(Sgd.) F. D. ToLCHARD,
Secretary.” .

Q. That was the attitude of all the organizations at that time, as far as
you know?—A. Yes. We were very anxious to get legislation.

Q.. Now we come to the letter from yourself, dated the 8th of April,
addressed to the Prime Minister. Have you that copy before you? (See Exhibit
30, page 153.)

Mr. HexpersoN, K.C.: That copy was taken out of our file, but we have
the letter acknowledging it.

By Mr. Elliott:
Q. In that letter you say:
“T beg to enclose herewith a memorandum covering proposed amend-.

ments to the Customs Act, as recently discussed with you.”
A. Yes.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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. Q. That was the time you enclosed to the Prime Minister the amendments
which you thought most desirable?—A. Yes.

' Q. You also referred to something that perhaps will be interesting to the
~ committee: (Reads.) kL ,

“While these suggested amendments may appear drastic, I would
like to point out that legislators have never before been called upon to
deal with such a situation. The condition exhibited by the United States,
a nation with about sixteen thousand miles of-border or coast line, along
practically all of which smugglers (commonly called bootleggers) by the
pundreds of thousands are endeavouring to evade the laws of the country,
created a situation entirely unprecedented in the history of the world.”

That was your view?—A. That was my view.
Q. That was your view at that time?—A. Yes.
Q. You also say: .f

“Smuggling on this continent has become a huge industry. Along
the international border between Canada and the United States thousands
of men are making;their living by illicit trade.”

And in the next paragraph you say:

“After months of investigation by trained investigators, we have no
hesitation in saying that this traffic constitutés a national problem of the
very first importance. Our investigations have proved to our complete
satigfaction that the only successful way in which this traffic can be dis-
couraged is by the imposition of the most severe penalties.”

That was you view at that time?—A. I think I usually carried along with the
penalty idea the idea of an improved preventive force. I have carried the two
along throughout the whole of the correspondence. ;

Q. Am I not, fair in putting it in this way, that you felt that neither changes
in the force nor anything else could be effective or made satisfactory at any
rate until after the amendments which you proposed came into operation?—
A. That is quite correct.

Q. There is no doubt of that, is there?—A. No.

Q. Because your correspondence indicates it?—A. Yes.

Q. You will correct, me if I am not putting it clearly when I say that your
attitude was that the first thing you could get along the path of progress in
this matter would be the amendments which were proposed?—A. Yes.

Q. And that they must be made most drastic?—A. Yes.

Q. In your letter you referred to the fact that on the other side of the line
there was a condition unparalleled in the history of the world?—A. Yes.

Q. So that ours was not the only country suffering seriously from that
trouble at that time?—A. No.

Q. In a further paragraph in your letter you say:

“We believe there are icertain matters of administration in the
matter of enforcement which could be greatly improved. However, until
the Act is amended along the lines suggested, the departmental officials,
no matter how efficient, will be unable to cope with the situation.”

That was your view?—A. Departmental officials at that time, in my mind,
represented the officials at Ottawa. I felt at that time that so-called depart-
mental officials at other points between Windsor and Quebec were not doing
their duty. .

Q. I am not asking you about that particularly; I am only getting at your
viewpoint, with the idea of placing it before the committee as accurately and
as fairly as I can, and I think you are trying to help me as much as you can.
I again refer to this paragraph in which you say that until the Act is amended

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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along the lmes suggested the departmental oﬁ'rclals no ma.tter how eﬁclent, will, 3
be unable to cope with the situation. Is that correct?—A. That i is right. v
Q. And that it would be impossible to meet this situation until you got the Y
amendments to the Act?—A. Yes. :
Q. That was the situation on the 8th of April, 19257—A. Yes.
Q. Then on the 16th of April there is a letter which I think should go fn

as part of the record. Have you a copy of a letter which was sent by the Clerk g

of the Privy Council on the 17th of April, 1925, asking you to go into the matter?
Mr. HexpersoN, K.C.: We have a letter of the 16th. There are two letters
under date of April 16, 1925, one acknowledging the receipt of the proposed
amendments and saying that the matter is now receiving the attention of the
Cdbinet (See Exhibit 29, page 131), the other acknowledgmg a letter in reference
to Mr. Bisaillon.
Mr. Erviort: Have you a letter giving mﬁtructlons to the Deputy Minister?

: Mr. Hexperson, K.C.: We would not have that; we have only our own
etters. «
Mr. Eruiorr: I will endeavour to get the original and put it in.
- Have you your letter of May 27th addressed to Mr. Tolchard, enclosing
Bill No. 145?
“Mr. HENDERSON K.C.: We have not extracted the correspondence with
Mr. Tolchard, but it is all in the file. )

By Mr. Elliott: 3

Q. This is the statement ‘cgptamed in that letter, in which you enclose a
copy of Bill No. 145:—

“The amendments propoeed by the Government meet our demands
in full and should, I think, be considered satlsfactory z :
A. Yes.

Q. That was your attitude at that time?—A. That was my view at that
time.

Mr. Henperson, K.C.: Will you allow me to suggest that it had been under-
stood prior to that, as he has already said, that the proposed amendments other
than the main one should not be taken up that session, but he still thinks he
wants the committee to consider them.

Mr. ErviorT: The committee I am sure will be glad to have representations
made with regard to the other amendments, but I think you agreed that these
were-all the amendments you eould poss1bly ask for at that time, and that they
were quite satisfactory to you,

Mr. HenbpersoN, K.C.: With the prospect of successfully getting them
through the House.

The WirNess: Yes.

By Mr. Ellott:

Q. I find then that the Bill as sent in by you was passed through the House,
introduced by the Government?—A. Yes.

Q. Passed through the House, and was assented to on the 27th of June?—
A. Yes.

Q. Following that there was a warning 1~sued which I think you prepared
did you not?—A. No. Mr. Farrow prepared it, but he consulted me.

Q. He prepared it with your a.pproval?—A. Yes. :

Q. And it was sent out to all border points?—A. Yes.

Q. Have you a copy of it there, or have we got it here?—A. Mr. Farrow
filed it; he read it into the evidence.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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B ~ Mr. ]ELLIOTT This should go into the file, but I think I will read it in here.
Mr. Henperson, K.C.: It has not been read in yet, Mr. Elliott.

i Mr. Eruiorr: I think you should at this point have this Bill as assented to
put into the record. I do not want to tear out the one that is in the departmental
file, but I suppose we can put it in.

Hon. Mr. Bowvin: The Bill and the memorandum are printed together. -
(Ezhibit 2, not printed in Evidence.)
" Mr. Eruorr: The Bill and the memorandum were printed together, but
the warning was a separate affair. I think we might consider the Bill for a
moment as assented to. It says: |

“His Majesty, by and with the adviee and consent of the Senate
and Houée of Commons of Canada, enacts as follows:—

B 1. Section two hundred and six of the Customs Act, Chapter forty-
eight of the Revised Statutes, 1906, is répealed and r_the following is
~ substituted therefor:— : : > : ]
206. (1) If any person,— :

(a) Smuggles or clandestinely mtroduces into Canada any goods
subject to duty under the value of two hundred dollars; or

(b) makes out or passes or attempts to pass through the Custom-
House any false, forged or fraudulent invoice of any goods
of whatever value or

(¢) In any way attempts to defraud the revenue by avoiding
the payment of the duty or any part of the duty on any

4 goods of whatever value;

such goods if found shall be seized and forfeited, or if not found but the

value thereof has been ascertained, the person so offending shall forfeit

the value thereof as ascertained, such forfeiture to be without power of

remission in case of offences under paragraph (a) of this sub-section.”

By Mr. Elliott:

Q. Mr. Sparks, have you in your mind the remedy that that amendment
effected?—A. That first section did not effect very much, with the exeeption of
the addition of the words “without power of remission”.

Q. That is it, as I recall it. Then the Act goes on:

“(2) Every such person/ shall, in addition to any other penalty to

which he is subject for any such offence:—

(@) forfeit a sum equal to the value of such goods, which sum may
be recovered in any court of competent jurisdiction; and

(b) further be liable on summary conviction before two justiees of
the peace to a penalty not exceeding two hundred dollars and not less
than fifty dollars, or to imprisonment for a term not exceeding one year
and not less than one month, or to both fine and imprisonment.”

Q. Do you recall the remedy which that provided?—A. T think there is very
little change in the Act, in that part of it.

. Q. As T recall it, prev10uely there was not the remedy of both fine and
imprisonment.—A. Possibly that is the case. I am chiefly interested in section
3.

Q. I am coming to that now. It is as follows:

“(3) Every one who smuggles or clandestinely introduces into Canada
any goods subject to duty of the value of two hundred dollars or over is
guilty of an indictable offence and liable in addition to any other penalty
to which he is subject for any such offence to “imprisonment for a term

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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not exceeding seven years and not less than one year for a first “oﬁénce;,v-

and to imprisonment for a term not exceeding ten years and not less than
three years for a second and each subsequent offence, and such goods if
found shall be seized and forfeited without power of remission, or if not
found but the value thereof has been ascertained the person so offending
shall forféit without power of remission the value thereof as ascertained.”

Q. You had in mind what remedy that effected?—A. Yes, that is prac-

tically a new section. |

Q. Will you just say, for the benefit of everybody, what remedy that gives
that we did not formerly have, as you understand it?—A. It fixes an arbitrary
punishment and takes away from the Judge the power of inflicting a light:
sentence. It fives the punishment arbitrarily at not less than one year where

the smuggled goods are valued at not less than $200. e

Q. That was the point you were pressing, that where there was a conviction

for one of these offences there should be no power in the Court to give a penalty
« of less than one year’s imprisonment for a first offence, and three years for a
second or subsequent offence?—A. Yes. : .

Q. That was an entirely new remedy, in the history of this country at any
rate?—A. Might I say, Mr. Elliott, that this touches a most important point,
on which I think I might say a word. N

Q. We would be glad to have it—A. It differentiates between what is
commonly known as petty smuggling and what we regard as commercial
smuggling. .

Q. You distinguish between petty smuggling and commercial smuggling.
Petty smuggling you refer to as that of the man who has gone over to the
other side and bought something that is dutiable and taken it home persenally?
—A. We tried to distinguish, by this classification, goods for your own use,
but the Department of Justice thought that was weak. We then suggested
“goods for resale”. Again the Justice Department thought that was weak. We
finally decided that the only way the thing could be done was -to fix an amount,
and this matter was a matter of discussion as between the Department of

Justice, the Department of Customs and ourselves. I would like to say now '

that we are not primarily interested in what is known as petty smuggling. We
were dealing with the commercial problem.

Q. And you were business concerns?—A. Yes. .

Q. I will take just a moment or two on the point I want to make. Just
while you are at that, is it not a fact—I have been so advised, although I have
not, read the Act; I understand the law on the other side of the line deés not
regard petty smuggling as a serious matter, but allows anybody travelling to
take in $100 worth of goods. It is not smuggling if they only take in $100
worth. Has that been called to your attention?—A. Not all goods.! They are
authorized to take in $100 worth of wearing apparel, but not other goods.

Q. Personal effects?—A. Exactly. I think, wearing apparel.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. No, personal effects, I think.—A. Possibly that is so.

By Hon. Mr. Boivin: %
Q. And they must be declared?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Elliott:
Q. Then next in this bill is subsection (4) as follows:
“ Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 1028 of the Criminal
Code or of any other Statute or law, the court shall upon any proceeding
[Mr. R. P. Sparke]
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. by indictment under subsection (3) hereaf, have no power to impose less
than the minimum penalties therein prescribed, and shall in all cases of
~ conviction impose both fine and imprisonment.”

Q. That is also entirely new, a drastic change of the law?—A. That was
inserted at the sugestion of the Deputy Minister of Justice, Mr. Edwards, as
a further safeguard. y ! ey h ;

Q. Mr. Sparks, am I fair in this, to say that the attitude of the Minister
of Justice, or the Department of Justice, as expressed through the Minister and

~ the Deputy Minister, was, “If this is tc be your remedy, we are going to make

it so strong that if legislation will do it, we are going to put in such penalties
as will stop this.”—A. I might differentiate between the Deputy Minister and
the Minister. ,

Q. Well, I assume the Deputy Minister was expressing the views of the
Department?—A. Presumably so.

Q. At any rate, that was the view of the department as expressed\to you
and as expressed in the legislation by the Minister, and in your discussion with
the Deputy Minister?—A. I think the legislation was sent over by the Customs

~ Department to the Deputy Minister.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. The Deputy Minister of what?—A. The Deputy Minister of Justice.
I had previously had a number of discussions with the Minister, who, on purely
legal grounds, was disposed to object to the legislation.

By Mr. Elliott:

: Q. Yes. I assume, of course, that the legislation finally went through his
department?—A. I assume the Council settled the matter.
P Q. The Council settled it?—A. Yes.

Q. I would not be unfair in saying this, that the Cabinet Council—that is
the Council you are referring to?—A. Yes.

Q. In settling this matter, did take a strong, firm hand in providing the
most drastic legislation that could be provided?—A. That is quite right.

- Q. I think that is fair?—A. Yes.

Q. Just a moment; I have not come to that section which I would like to
discuss at; a little length, but I may say that we will resume on that second
section; but there is no doubt about this, that up ta that time you had obtained
the legislation which, in your opinion, was the great desideratum, in order to
get a remedy?—A. That 1s quite right. .

Q. And that in this you were backed up quite strongly by the Cabinet
Council and the government?—A. They accepted our suggestion, yes.

Q. That will do, thank you. Would you be good enough to let me have
to-morrow the minutes?

Mr. Hexperson, K.C.: I should have said that this witness telephoned
to Mr. Tolchard, not trusting to a telegram, and Mr. Tolchard said he would
have them copied as soon as possible, and try to have them sent forward last
night. This witness left his office this morning before the Toronto mail arrived.
As soon as they are available they will be sent to you for the committee, if that
will be all right.

Mr. Evviorr: 1T think perhaps that will do nicely.

The CHAIRMAN ;- Mr. Farrow produced this morning the evidence of Joseph
_Alfred Edgar Bisaillon, referred to by Mr. Sparks, and having been handed to
the Department of Customs and Excise by Mr. Sparks.

The witness retired.

&

The committee adjourned until Friday, February 19th, 1926, at 10.30 a.m.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
| A5 FﬁmAY, February 19, ‘1926_.

The Committee met at 10.30 a.m., Mr. Mercier, the Chairman, presiding.
. Present: Messrs. Bell, Bennett, Donaghy, Doucet, Elliott, Kennedy,

- Mercier, St."Pére, and Stevens.—9.

"The minutes of yesterday’s meeting were read and approved.

The Chairman read a telegram received from the Reliance Manufactqring
Company, Chicago, to the effect that the statement made before the Committee
that the Milton F. Goodman shirt is prison-made, is untrue.

Moved by Mr. Donaghy,—That the Clerk communicate with the Reliance
Manufacturing Company of Chicago, requesting their manager’s attendance
before this Committee at as early a date as possible, said date to be arranged

N . ‘by the Clerk.. . .

Motion agreed to.

Moved by Mr. Douceﬁ,—For a list of all special customs and excise pre-
ventive officers appointed under the special vote of $350,000.

Motion agreed to. ? M

Moved by Mr. Doucet,—For the production of the files containing all
documents, reports and correspondence relating to certain enquiries held by
the Department of Customs and Excise, concerning the export of certain liquor
cargoes from Halifax, N.S,, for the years 1924 'and 1925. :

Motion agreed to. ' ‘

Moved by Mr. Doucet,—For the production of the files containing all
documents, court proceedings, correspondence, telegrams and reports, in con-
nection with the illegal sale of intoxicating liquors by one, Harry Rabonivitch,
in 1924 or 1925 at Halifax, N.S.

Motion agreed to.

Moved by Mr. St. Pére—That Mr. R. L. Calder, K.C., be appointed
counsel for the Committee in pursuance of leave granted by the House.

Motion agreed to.

Moved by Hon. Mr. Bennett,—That Mr. R.. L. Calder, K.C., counsel of
the Committee and the auditors of the Committee, should have access to the
files and documents produced and filed up to date, and from time to time, and
that they be given all the help necessary by the Clerk, and his assistance, for
the benefit of the Committee, f

Motion agreed to. : .

Mr. A. F. Holmes, Customs and Excise Examiner, Rock Island, Que., was
called and sworn. He was examined regarding smuggling, and filed with the
Committee:—

Exhibit No. 51.—Memorandum submitted by Mr. A. F. Holmes, Customs
Officer, Rock Island, Que., of Customs entries re Gilmore Bros., New England
Apparel Co., and Northern Cotton Exchange.

16358—13
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~ Exhibit No. 52 —Memorandum submitted by Mr. A F. Holmes, Customs
Officer, Rock Island, Que., of Customs entries re Jenkms Overall Co.

Witness retlred subject to recall by telegram

Mr. Gregory George, Vice-President and General Manager, Dominion Dis-
tillery Products Company, Limited, Montreal, Que., was further examined. He
filed with the Committee:— !

Exhibit No. 53 —Letters Patent incorporating Dominion Distillery Pro-
ducts Company Limited.

Exhibit No. 54.—Share certificates (5) of Dominion Distillery Products .

Company Limited.
Exhibit No. 55.—Dominion Dlstlllery Products Company Limited, sum-
mary as at March 31, 1925, required under section 106 of Companies Act.
Exhibit No. 56.—Dominion Distillery Products Company Limited, sum-
mary as at March 31, 1924, required under section 106 of Companies Act.

Witness retired.

The Chairman laid oh the table five files from Cusfoms Departmelit in
connection with the theft of intoxicating liquors from Shediac and Port Elgin,
N.B., and for production of the record file of John Landry of the Port of Mont-
real.

Also a statement dated February 16, 1926, showing amounts paid by the

Commercial Protective Association to Mr. Walter Duncan.

Mr. R. P. Sparks was further cross-examined in reference to amendments
proposed last year By the Commercial Protective Association as respects the
Gustoms Act. (See Exhibit 2.) Mr. Sparks read and filed:—

Exhibit- No. 57—Warning to the public against smuggling, issued by
Department of Customs and Excise, June 30, 1925, signed by R. R. Farrow,
Deputy Minister.

Exhibit No. 58 —Letter dated July 21, 1925, from Mr. Sparks to Mr.
Farrow, Deputy Minister of Customs and Excise, expressing appreciation for
issuance of warning notices and memorandum to Collectors, and requesting
further supply of revised sections of Customs Act, for Commercial Protective

Association.

There was also filed, during the course of Mr. Sparks’ cross-examination:—

Exhibit No. 59.—Letter dated July 13, 1925, from Mr. Gundy, President,
Board of Trade, Toronto, to Prime Minister expressing thanks for introduction
of legislation to assist suppression of smuggling.

Witness retired.

Mr. St. Pére moved,—That Mr. J. A. E. Bisaillon, Montreal, be summoned
to appear before this Committee on -Tuesday next and from day to day until
discharged. \

Motion agreed to.

Hon. Mr. Boivin produced a list of Customs and Excise enforcement officers
paid from the special vote passed last session for Customs and Excise Pre-
ventive Service.

The Committee adjourned until T'uesday next at 10.30 a.m.

WALTER TODD,
« Chief Clerk.




MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

-

Fripay, February .19, 1926.

The Special Committee appointed to investigate the administration of the
Department of Customs and Excise and charges relating thereto met at 10.30
a.m., the Chairman, Mr. Merc1er, presiding,

A. F. HoLmEs, called and sworn.

By the Chairman:

Q. What.is your name?—A. A. F. Holmes. =

Q. And your occupation?—A. Customs and Excise examiner.
Q. Where?—A. At Rock Island.

Q. In the Province of Quebec?—A. Yes, sir.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Mr. Holmes, you are summoned here to-day for the purpose of giving
to the committee such correspondence and memoranda as you may have in
regard to the question of smuggling at the port at which you are employed.
Have you any such memoranda?—A. I have some memoranda here.

Q. Will you produce your memoranda, Mr. Holmes; you have not with
you any official files of goods brought in?—A. No, sir.

Q. Where are they, at the office in Rock Island?—A. These goods have not
been brought into Canada; these goods are simply shipped through Canada in
transit, from the United States through Canada and back into the United States
again. I have no record of any goods coming into Canada direct. '

Q. _Let me understand this, Mr. Holmes. You produce memoranda of goods
coming into Canada and back into the United States?—A. Yes.

Q. At the border towns?—A. On the B. & M. Railway.

Q. At what place?—A. Rock Island.

Q. But what place south of the line?—A. Rock Island and Derby Line.
Rock Island is in Canada, and Derby Line is in the United States.

Q. Have reports been made of these goods to the Department in ‘Ottawa,
or to your superior officers?—A. Not to my knowledge.

Q. What is this memoranda you are producing? Will you hand it to me?
You hand me a list headed Jenkins Overall Company (Ezhibit No. 62 not
printed), then a list of dates, January, 1923, and on through March, April and
May, and down to 1924?—A. 1924.

Q. I am not going to read this list, because apparently it is very long; it
indicates for instance cotton overalls, shirts, buttons, bales of drills, barrels of
W1re snaps and so on. What does this-list mean?—A. Goods coming through
in transit. T took these figures from the mamfest copied from the manifest,
the transit manifest.

Q. And as a Customs officer how do you interpret that; what is your view
about these goods?—A. I can only express my own opinion, "that i ig all. T have
no reason to know where these goods went after they arriv ed at Derby Line.

. Q. Do you know where they were delivered, at Derby Line?—A. They were
delivered from the station.

[Mr. A. F. Holmes.)
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Q. To whom?—A. Most of these goods were taken from the stétlon by a g
chck man, a Mr.’Seguin, : & i\

Q. What do you say his name is?—A. Mr. Seguin. :

Q. Have you any other documents?—A. Yes.

Q. You had better give us whatever you have; hand them in, and we will
see what we can make of them.—A. (Producing papers) these may be a little
ink splattered. i

Q. One is headed The Northern Cotton Exchange; (Ezhibit No. 51 not
printed) who are the the Northern Cotton Exchange?——A I could not tell you;

I have not been able to find out.

Q. You do not know?—A. I do not know any such firm. .

Q. Do you mean to say you do not know of any such firm?—A. No, sir.

Q. How long have you been living down there?—A. Twelve years.

Q. Where is the Northern Cotton Exchange supposed to be?—A. Well, I
have always understood that they were supposed to be at Derby Line.

Q. Tt is not a very large place, is it?—A. 700 or 800.

Q. 700 or 800 people?—A. I would say so.

Q. And in twelve years you have not been able to locate the Northem
Cotton Exchange?—A. No, sir, I have not.

Q. There is another one, Gilmore Brothers, a similar list?—A. Yes. i

Q. Where are they located ?—A. Gilmore Brothers are located at Derby
Line; he runs a gents’ furnishing store.

Q A gents’ furnishing store?—A. Yes, sir. He does not handle that class
of goods at all, to my knowledge.

Q. These are goods consigned to Gilmore Brothers, of Derby L1ne passed
bhroug"h Canada, and they are goods that to your knowledge he does not, handle -
in his store?—A. I am quite positive of that.

Q. Did you take these off the manifests yourself?—A. I did. Approxx-
mately these numbers are correct, although T mlghf, have made some error
possibly in copying them.

Q. The New England Apparel Company; who are they?—A. Well, person-
ally I do not know, but. I understand that they are supposed to be represented
by a man named Marios.

Q. Where is the New England Apparel Company located?—A. He lives in
Derby Line, but I do not know where his place of business is.

Q. What does he do?—A. He is supposed to have something to do with the
overall business. As to my personal knowledge, I am not sure about it but I
understand he handles the Jenkins Overalls.

Q. You say you understand he handles the Jenkins Overalls‘?—A That is
what I understand.

Q. You have no other papers, no correspondence Wlbh the Department?—

A. No, sir, no correspondence with the Department.

Q. Have you made any reports to the Department?—A. No, not with
reference to this.

Q. Have you made any reports to other officers, to superior officers other ;
than at Ottawa?—A. I made that report to our sub-collector, Mr. N. C. Knight.

Q. Where is he?—A. At Rock Island; he is sub-collector at the port. of
Rock Island.

Q. What did you report to him?—A. I don't know that I showed him the
whole list, but I told him what I had, that I had got these records. ‘

Q. That these goods were passing through there from tlme to time?—

A. Yes.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I would like to ask, Mr. Chairman, that these papers
be filed, to be used by the auditors for ehecking purposes on the books that are
here. We may need them again later on. \

{Mr. A. F. Holmes.]

\
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W : The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Holme}s,‘ 'you are released temporarily. If we need

l ~ you again we will wire you.

By Mr. Bell: :
Q. I would like to ask you one or two questions, Mr. Holmes. Do I
correctly understand that the material filed by you exhausts the records from

. the district?—A. They are supposed to be the correct records‘of my office.

' Q. But do these exhaust them all?—A. No, they only extend from January

11923 to January 1924. :

Q. Is it correct to say that all your records for that purpose are covered
by the documents produced here?—A. Yes. You will understand of course
that there may be some errors, but they are intended to be correct.

Q. There are no other documents, that you know of?—A. No, sir.

The CuammMaN: We will release you, Mr. Holmes, but you will return
telegram to you; will you return as soon as possible?—
A. I will. : -

GreGOrY GEORGE, re-called.

Mr. Brackin, K.C.: Mr. Chairman, before Mr. George produces the paper
he has been asked to produce, I would like to direct the attention of the com-
mittee to the return of the Dominion Distillers. The other day Mr. Hushion

said Ire was not a director of the company. Under our charter we have five

directors, that is, the charter of the Dominion Distillery Products Company,
Limited, issued in 1923. In a return made to the Department the book-keeper
who made it out set up the names of the directors; he put in six directors instead
of five, and the last one was that of Mr. Hushion. What was put in that return
was the names of all the shareholders of the company. Mr. Hushion was never
appointed a director, 4nd never acted as one, but it will appear in that return
that he is the sixth. We have not got six, we have only five. 1 sent word to
Mr. Hushion that if the matter arose this morning he should return to Ottawa,
to be on hand if called. He is in Ottawa now.

Mr. Brri: Five out of the six are directors?
Mr, Brackin, K.C.: Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. You were asked, Mr. George, to produce the stock books of the com-
pany; have you the stock register?—A. We sent all the records of our company
to Messrs. Laflamme, Callaghan & Mitchell; the company was to be reorganized
and recapitalized. We have not received those documents back as yet.

Q. You could have secured them, could you not?—A. We have tried to
secure them but they cannot locate them.

Q. They are a firm of responsible barristers?—A. Yes.

Q. Who told you that, what member of the firm?—A. Mr. Bulger.

Q. That is of your own law firm?—A. Mr. Callaghan.

Q. He told you yesterday?—A. He told Mr. Bulger. I was not in Montreal,
I was in Ottawa, and they advised me by wire. I told them to procure these
things, and Mr. Bulger advised me that he had been to Mr. Callaghan’s office
yesterday several times to produce these documents.’

Q. All right, produce what you have, and let us get them in order here.
You produce certain share certificates; (Exzhibit No. 64) are these cancelled?
—A. They should be cancelled; they are cancelled.

Mr. Brackin, K. C.: They are the ones issued to qualify.

[Mr. Gregory George.]



ST SRR <

Al

. 202 SPECIAL COMMITTEE
By Hon. Mr Stevens: .

Q. You produce the charter of the company, Mr. George\?—-A Yes, gic. =

(Exhibit No. 563.)

Q. The charter of the Dommlon Distilleries Products Company?—A. Yes,
siry_

Q. How about your stock certlﬁcate book?—A. All those have been sent
over to that firm.

Q. Did you get a receipt for them from the firm?—A. No, I don’t think
we did, not that I remember of anyway.

Q. Well, Mr. George, we want those books produced?—A. We shall
endeavour to produce them; we have asked them to keep on looking for them,
and as far as I know they have done so.

Q. Probably the time was a little short; I do not want to be unreasonable,
but will you produce them on Monday or Tuesday?—-—A I will make every
effort to do so.

Q. The stock register and the stock certificate books along with the
stubs?—A. Yes.

~Mr. BracgiN, K.C.: These returns might help the committee as to the
shareholders. We will produce these also; they are for 1924 and 1925, (Ezhibits -

Nos. 55 and 56) and they set forth the names and addresses of the shareholders,
under Sec. 106 of the Companies ‘Act.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

s Q. Do you know George Scherer, of Ford, Ontario?—A. I have not met
im.

Q. I did not ask you whether you had met him or net, I asked you do
you know him?—A. T know of him.

Q. Where is he located?—A. I think he lives in Detrmt I am not sure.

Q. You are the Manager of the Dominion Dlstlllerles?—A Yes.

Q. You do a great deal of business with Mr. Scherer?—A. We ship him
a lot of goods.

Q. You cannot assist the committee in locating Mr. Scherer?—A. Well I
don’t know the exact address of this man; he is in Detroit, as far as I know

Q. That may be all right, but I have here your shipping accounts. Mr.

Scherer was summoned to appear before this committee on the 9th. The sum-

mons was issued on the 9th of February of this year. On February 11th you
shipped him a car, No. 86382, Canadian National*Railways, to George Scherer
of Ford, Ontario?—=A. For export

Q. Canadlan National Railways to Walkerville, boat to Klllarney, for
export to Mexico City, Mexico, containing 996 cases of whiskey. Attached
to that is a Permit also madé out to G. Scherer, of Ford, and on January 28th
another car, No. 14805, containing 1,100 cases of whiskey, to G. Scherer, of
Ford, and so on down through. I find a great many of these shipped to Mr.
G. Scherer, of Ford City, Ontario. Can you not assist the committee to locate
Mr. Scherer?—A. Other than he lives in Detroit, I don’t know his exact
address.

Q. He lives in Detroit?—A. Yes. .

Q. You know the man personally?—A. No, I said I did not.

Q. You have had correspondence with him personally?—A. No, I don’t
remember much correspondence with him.

Q. Have you had any correspondence with Mr. Scherer personally?—A. I
don’t think we have.

Q. None?—A. No.

Q. Although ‘he buys every few days a carload of whiskey?—A. Yes.

[Mr. Gregory George.]
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Q. Tell me frankly, Mr. George, is there such a man existing as Mr.
Scherer?—A. I have never met him personally. I could not say as to that, sir.
- Q. Will you tell me that there is no such man existing?—A. I wouldn’t
" say that either. :

"~ Q. You wouldn’t?>—A. No. I understand there is such a man.

Q. You cannot tell whether there is such a man or not?—A. I have never
~met him personally.

Q. Is Mr. Scherer merely a dummy?—A. No, I wouldn’t say that.

Q. To whom was this liquor consigned?—A. To G. Scherer.

. It was consigned to a name, G. Scherer?—A. Yes.
. Did G. Scherer receive the liquor?—A. I could not say as to that; my
business is in Montreal here.

Q. Who paid for the liquor, because it was sent collect?—A. The liquor,
was paid for cash, through the bank. :

' Q. Cash in the bank where?—A. At Walkerville, Ont. :

Q. Who put the money in the bank at Walkerville?—A. I couldn’t say
that, either; one of our directors, I understand. Probably~Scherer, I don’t
know.

Q. Now, Mr. George, we want Scherer, but as far as we can find out—
and I have made very wide enquiries—there is no such man existing.- You
have done a lot of business with him, and you must know.—A. I have never
met him personally. : :

Q. Any member of your firm ever met him?—A. Not in Montreal, I should
say. I don’t know; I couldn’t answer that.

: Q. And yet you ship liquor to him every few days?—A. Yes. He has
the money to pay for it, and we are here to ship to him. For every ear of
1,000 cases the government has received in duties approximately $15,000, and
we have shipped probably over 100,000 cases, from which the government of
Canada- received duties of $1,500,000; sales taxes of approximately $150,000,
and I think we are the only distillery in Canada that has paid sales tax on
whiskey, duty paid, that has been exported out of Canada.

Q. This was exported to Mexico, I see.—A. I said exported out of Canada.

Q. I say it is billed to Mexico.—A. Yes.

Q. Sent by boat from Ford to Mexico?

Mr. Brackin,; K.C.: The railways will not take it billed to Mexico.
Hon. Mr, Stevens: I know; you have to send it from Montreal to Ford

first. .
The Wirness: ' We have the legal right to sell, and if they have the money
to pay for it, I don’t see why we shouldn’t sell it.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. What I want to find out for the moment is not your procedure, but
who Mr." G. Scherer is; he is apparently one of your best customers.—A. I
have never met him personally.

Q. And you cannot tell the committee whether such a man exists or not?
—A. I have said I have not met him personally. I said to you I think there
is such a person, and that he lives in Detroit. Other than that I don’t know.

By Mr. Bell:

Q. Did you ever sell him any alcohol over ‘the telephone?—A. I “don’t
remember.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. What is his alias? By what other name is he known?—A. He might
have a lot of them. G. Scherer is the only one I know of.

[Mr. Gregory George.l
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Q. Do you mean to say you don’t know whether there is any such
at all?—A. I said I never met him personally.
t? That does not answer the question. J—A i don’t know wha.t you ms‘h -
me to say.
Q. Just the truth.—A. What was the question, please?
Q. Do you know whether or not there is any such man as G. Schezer?—
A. T think I told Hon. Mr. Stevens that I think there is such a man.
Q. What other name does he go by besides Scherer?—A. I don’t know.
Q. Sure of that?—A. Yes sir:
Q. Have you any letters from him ordermg liquor?—A. I don’t know,
-gir. I don’t think we have.
Q. How are the orders sent?—A. They are all cash transactions.
4 Q. How are the orders sent?—A. Through one of our directors at Walker-
ville. '
Q. What director?—A. Mr. Cooper. :
Q. And delivered verbally to you?—A. No, I don't just remember how
lfil started, but it was established, I suppose, on the start, and has never been
changed.
Q. What was established on the start?—A. The procedure of shlppmg these
cars.
Q. The method of shipping?—A. Yes.
Q. I suppose they are all cash agalnst bills of lading?—A. No, cash before
shipment.
Q. Where is the cash depos1ted?——A It is paid into the Hiram Walker
office.
Q. Where does the cash go?—A. It is transferred to Walkerville.
Q. When you say that Scherer bought stuff from you, how did he pay
for it?—A. In cash. -
Q. Where was the cash deposited?—A. I couldn’t say as to that.
. How do you know he paid for it in cash?—A. I underetand that.
. Who told you that?—A. Mr. Cooper.
Do you know anything about it yourself at all?—A. Except what is
on the bills of lading there.
. Did you make a bill of lading at any time?—A. Probably.
. You consigned stuff to Scherer at Ford? A. Yes sir.
. And it was paid for before you consigned it?—A. Yes sir.
. And you don’t know where the cash came from?—A. I couldn’t swear I
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do.

Q. How did you know it was paid for at all before you shipped it?—A.
These cars, a lot of them, come down there; they are purchased from the Hiram
Walker Company, and we ship them back.

Q. They come to Montreal?—A. Yes sir.

Q. And you ship them back to Scherer?—A. Yes sir.

Q. And the money that pays you for them is deposited in the bank where?
—A. I couldn’t say exactly, but I think probably Walkerville.

Q. You don’t know?—A. No sir.

Q And you really don’t know whether there is a man called Scherer at all
or not?—A. I couldn’t swear there is; I have never met him.

Q. You don’t know any other name he may have besides Scherer?—A. No
sir. :

Q. Do you know the Dominion Mahogany and Veneer Company?—A. Yes
sir.

Q. You leased that property, didn’t you?—A. Yes sir.

Q. Where is that property ?-—A. It is located on the Lachine Canal, opposite

Montreal West.

[Mr. Gregory George.]
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. Q. What is the warehouse used for?—A. As a distillery.
Q. How long since has it been used as a distillery?—A. Since we rented it.
' Q. When was that?—A. Some time in 1923; I think probably around the |
‘month of October. = ; ; '
Q. Who leased it; where is the lease?—A. The lease is with the firm of
Mitchell, Callaghan and Laflamme, I think. :
Q. You will produce that lease?—A. Yes sir.
Q. Who were the lessees?—A. What do you mean, to whom is it leased?-
Q. Yes—A. The original lessee is L. George, and it was then transferred
‘to the Dominion Distillers. =
Q. And that is you?—A. No, my brother, the president of this company.
Q. And now it is part of the property of the distillery company?—A. Yes
8ir, y
Q. And it is used as a distillery?—A. Yes sir.
Q. Manufacturing alcohol?--A. Yes sir.
Q. Are you in the hay business?—A. Our firm has been in the wholesale
grocery, provisions, and so forth, in Ontario; not in Montreal.
Q. How many carloads of hay did you ship out containing liquor?>—A. We
‘may have shipped lots of cars.
Q. Containing liquor?—A. Yes.
Q. As hay?—A. Yes.
Q. You have a record .of them?—A. No, I don’t suppose we have.
Q. You are coming back again, I suppose, are you not? Will you get those
documents about the distillery lease?—A. Yes. ' ~
Q. And the list of the shareholders of the distillery, which you are going to
get for Mr. Stevens? 5 -
Mr. Bracken, K.C.: They are in that return.
Hon. Mr, Bex~err: Only the directors.
Mr. BrackeN, K.C.: There are only those six.
The Wirness: There are only six shareholders in the company.

Mr. Bracken, K.C.: But they are set out in that return as directors.

By Mr. Donaghy :

Q. Mr. George, who represented your company in these deals for the dis-
posal of liquor?—A. In the disposal of it?

; Q. I think you heard me.—A,. I am a little deaf, I would like to say.

Q. You are right; I said “ disposal ”.—A. 1 couldn’t say truthfully.

Q. What?—A. I couldn’t say truthfully who disposed of them. I have
never seen them disposed of.

Q. Do you mean to say you don’t know what member of your company
acted in the disposing of this liquor?—A. I know who acted in the purchase of
it.

Q. I am not asking you that. You know what I am asking, don’t. you?—
A. I don’t just think I do know what you are asking me.
- Q. All right, answer it.
Mr. Bracken, K.C.: He said he did not know.
The Wirness: I don’t think so.

! By Mr. Donaghy :

Q. Very well, I will repeat it. What is the name of the person who acted
for your company in making the disposal of this liquor to Scherer?—A. I don’t
know what person, except what is on the bill of lading. They are consigned
on a through bill of lading.

I
[Mr. Gregory George.]
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Q. I am not a.skmg you to whom they are consigned, and you know I am
not. Just please answer the question honestly and squarely.—A. The disposal
of this liquor?

Q. Please answer the question. Answer it fairly and truthfully, Mr.
George?—A. Do you mean at the port.of exit?

Q. Please, Mr. George, answer the question. It is very simple, and I
want your answer—A. I don’t know, sir.

Q. You don’t know?—A. No.

Q. Give me the names of all the persons in the employ of your company,
or who have been acting for your company. Give me the names of them all, :
and their addresses.—A. All the shareholders and directors? -8

Q. You heard what I said, Mr. George.—A. I couldn’t give you all those 7
offhand; I could produce them. ]

. Have you them in a record, in a book?—A. Yes.
. In what book?—A. In our sa.la.ry book ; wages.
. Then you will produce the salary book‘?—A Yes. * s
. Is it here now?—A. I think so. !
. Do you know?—A. It should be, if it isn’.
. And if it is not, you will get it here?—A. Yes sir.

That will give the list of all the persons employed-by your company,
or authorized to act for your company ?—A. Yes sir. :

Q. Now give me the names. You have already, you say, filed the names \ 1
of all the directors and all the shareholders?—A. Yes sir. |

Q. Have you also given us the names of all the officers of your company?

LOLLDOLO

—A. Yes sir.

Q. Then we will hear from you later on when we have examined these ‘

documents, and we may call these gentlemen to find out who disposed of this ;

liquor. ; 1 u
By M. Bell:

. Q. Mr. George, what were the books and documents that you sent to Mr.
Laflamme’s office, in connection with the re-organization?—A. We sent all our
stock books and all other books of organization of the company.

Q. Specify what you mean by “ all other books ”’, will you?—A. We sent,
so far as I can remember, our stock certificate book our minute book; pur
charter, and the record of our certificates.

Q. 'And your books of account?—A. No sir, just the organization books.

Q. And the date when you turned those over was approximately what?—A.
To Mr. Laflamme? -~

Q. Yes—A. That was in, I should say, May, I think.

Q. Of what year?—A. No, I think it was in July of last vear, 1925.

Q. And to what member of the firm did they go?—A. They went to Mr.
Callaghan, T think. X

Q. And was he the one who had in hand personally the matter of the reor-
ganization?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you consulted with him afterwards in connection with the reorgani-
zation?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. And found he had received the books?—A. So far as I remember, yes, -
sir. ’
Q. You know whether or not he spoke of them as received, don’t you?—A.
Yes, I think so.

Q. So undoubtedly he did have them?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. When was the re-organization completed?—A. It has not been com-
pleted yet, sir. ‘

Q. It has not been completed?—A. No.

[Mr. Gregory George.]



RE DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS AND EXCISE 207

: Q. When did you first discover the books had been lost?—A. Yesterday;
~ when I asked for them. -
-Q. That was the first time?—A. Yes. :
Q. And did they explain to you how they expected to complete the re-or-
. ganization of your company with. the books and records lost?—A. Well, I
was not talking with them personally. n .
Q. Did the man who did speak to them personally for you explain that?—
A. I don’t know, sir.
Q. Did you ask him?—A. Yes. I told him to endeavour to get them and to
keep after Mr. Callaghan to secure them. i
Q. And what explanation did he say Mr. Callaghan gave to him as to why
these books and records had been lost?—A. I do not know, sir.
Q. Did you ask for one?—A. He said they were looking for them and would
+ probably find them.
Q. Did you ask more than once?—A. Yes, sir.
Q. How many times?—A. He said they were over several times.
Q. Who said that?—A. Mr. J. P. Bulger, the secretary of the company.
1 do not know whether he was over there, but he said he was in ’phone communi-
cation with them. : ‘ 3 .
Q. And he having told you that, you did not personally communicate with
Mr. Callaghan to whom you, yourself, had given them, to find out if he had
lost them?—A.. No, sir, I did not.
~ Q: That was as far as it went, was it?—A. (No audible answer).

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Just one word, before you go, Mr. George. I have this list before me and
Ihﬁnql “@G. Scherer, c¢/o James Cooper, Ford, Ontario ”—A. Is that the record
there /

Q. Yes. In one of your bills. Here i5 a car December 29th last, January
11th, one here January 9th, another one January 9th. You shipped a lot of
liquor and yet you do not know, so you swear, whether Scherer exists or not?
—A. I did not swear that. I swore I never met him personally, but I did not
swear he did not exist.

Q. Tell me one thing. Is there such a man in existence as G. Scherer?—A.
I think so.

Q. You were the manager of this company?—A. Yes.

Q. And shipped several cars of liquor to him within the last couple of weeks?
—A. Yes, but I do not know—

Q. Never mind that. You only guess at his existence?—A. I still guess
at a lot of things if they put down the cash to get it.

~ By Mr. Bell:

Q. Cooper should know if he is really in existence, if you shipped to Scherer
in care of Cooper?—A. I don’t know. .
Q. What? .

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. These transactions would run into hundreds of thousands of dollars—
Mr. BeLr: Pardon me; I would like him to answer that question.

By Mr. Bell:

Q. Cooper should know if Scherer really exists, should he not?—A. He
might have, but I cannot swear to it. :

’ s : : [Mr. Gregory George.]

]
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By Hon. Mr. Bennett
Q. When did you ship the last carload of llquor to Mr. Scherer?—A., Whatrv
ever the record shows.
Q. No, that won’t do. These records came here some days ago— —A. We
might have shipped some since I left Montreal. T
Q. That is what I thought—A. Yes, sir. -
Q. And I suppose if any one got on the car and went with it and stayed with
it until Scherer got it, they would know who Scherer was?—A. Probably.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Have‘you had any cars of liquor seized since New Year's?—A. Probably.
Q. As manager, you ought to know?—A. I think may be we did.
Q.

You have had seizures?—A. Yes. - : .

Q. When?—A. In Montreal, the Quebec Liquor Commission selzed it, but:
handed them back when they found that the documents were all right.

Q. Did you have any liquor seized by the Quebec Liquor Commission?—
A. T just said we did.

Q. When?—A. Just now.

Q. No I mean when was it seized?—A. I cannot say offhand. I would say
within the past year.

Q. No, no, within the past month?—A. Yes.

Q. Within the past two weeks?—A, Yes, sir.

Q. Within the past week?—A. Probably. )

Q. One of these cars was directed to G. Scherer, was it not?—A. Coming in.
or going out?

Q. One of these cars that was seized was directed to G Scherer?—A.
Probably.

Q. And G. Scherer did not receive that car, because there was a summons.
issued here for G. Scherer, and they were afraid ‘at the other end?—A. I do not
know that.

Q. And the car came back and was seized?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is right, is it not?—A. Yes, sir.

4 Q. And you still persist that there is a man called G. Scherer?—A. I think
there is.

Q. You think there is?—A. Yes. '

Q. And you have been holding the position as Manager of this company for- ’
how long, two years?—A. Since it was incorporated. ‘

Q. And have shipped hundreds of thousands of dollars’ worth of goods con-
signed to the name “ G. Scherer ”?—A. Yes, sir. 4

Q. And you still merely “ think ”’ that the man exists?—A. Yes; I don’t mind.
tk;)hinking when a man puts down his cash for the goods. I am in Montreal to do -

usiness

Q. What bank did G. Scherer put his cash in, to your ¢redit?—A. T cannot
swear to that.

Q. Do you mean. to say, Mr. George,— —A. Probably the Bank of Com-"
merce at Walkerville.

Q. There is no “ probably ” about it. You know. You know the bank into -
which this $30,000 at a time, and so forth, was deposited to your credit?—A. I
cannot say; I cannot swear to it.

Q. Well, if you cannot, you are g poor manager of a business of that kind.—

A. That may be, sir.

Q. How does the money reach you?—A. How does the money reach me? It -
does not come to us. The goods come to us and we ship them back. \

Q. Explain that. T do not quite follow you. You sell a carload of liquor to -
G. Scherer, and the money is deposited in an unknown bank. I ask you now how -

[Mr. Gregory George.]
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"s‘ that money reaches you?—A. The money is paid mto the Walker Distillery Com- '

 pany.
J Q.5 How do you get your money out of 1t?—A On commissions.

, ey By Mr. Bell: :
: Q. Does the Walker Dls’mllery pay it to you?—A. No.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens

Q. Mr. George, just a moment. I mentioned a Canadian National car, with
-a certain number—I have it here some place—which comes to Montreal to" you,
and is shipped from Montreal to Ford, to G. Scherer. That has nothing to do
with the Walker Distillery Company—— ,

Mr. Bracxkiy, K.C.: Oh, yes it has.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. —I want to know how G. Scherer pays you for that car?—A. He pays in
cash to the Walker Company, to our account there.

Q. How do you get the record? How do you know you receive the money?
—A. We have no record other than what is'there. The car comes down. That
is how we know. The car comes to Montreal and we ship it back to him.

Q. That car originated in Ford, and is shipped to you in Montreal?—A. Yes,

~and reshipped by us.

Q. Under consignment? Is it consigned to you?—A. Yes. Shipped to our
company, you mean? '

Q. Yes?—A. Yes.

Q. And you ship it back to G. Scheler at Ford?—A. Yes.

Q. You run a kind of a merry-go-rotund on the railway?—A. Yes.

Mr. Brackin, K.C.: Because Walker will not ship direct.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. How.does Scherer pay to you?—A. He pays to our account at the Hiram
Wa.ll{ker Company, in cash, and they ship the goods to us and we ship them
bac
£ Q. Is Mr. Cooper and G. Scherer one and the same man?—A. I don’t

ow.

Q. Are you sure you don’t know?—A. Yes.

Q. Quite sure?—A. Yes.

Q. And on oath you declare they are not the same man?—A. Yes, sir;
as far as I know.

By M. Bell:
Q. I suppose we could get Cooper here any time?—A. I suppose so.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:
Q. Where does he live?—A. Walkerville.
Q. Why does this liquor come to Montreal?—A. I don’t know why—
. Mr. Brackin, K.C.: Maybe Walker’s have conscientious scruples about
it.
The Wirness: Walker’s do not ship whiskey for direct export.
By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

dQ. Who pays the sales tax?—A. The Hiram Walker Company on their own
goods.
Q. Who pays the excise?—A. The Hiram Walker Company on their own

goods.
[Mr. Gregory’ George.]
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Q. What does the Dominion Distillers get out of thm transactlon?—A. We
make probably $1 a case profit.
Q. How do you get 1t? In what form?—A It is transferred in cash to
us.

Q. By whom?—A. By Mr. Cooper or Mr. Scherer; Mr. Cooper, I should

say.
Q. By Mr. Cooper or Mr. Scherer?—A. No, Mr. Cooper.
Q. You said “ or Mr. Scherer V?—A. I wish to withdraw that.
Q. Mr. Scherer never transferred any money to you?—A. Not directly.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: This looks pretty “ fishy ” to me.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. The only money you ever got out of this transaction came from Mr.
- Cooper?—A. Yes, sir. °

Q. And he transferred it by telegraph or by bank draft, or by cheque?—
A. Cash or bank draft.

Q. From where?—A. Mostly from Walkerville.

Q. So that the real profit to your company in these transactions is $1 a
case for permitting the stuff to be consigned to you at Montreal and your
reconsigning it to Mr. Scherer at Ford?—A. That is right.

Q. You get $1 a case for it?—A. Approximately.

Q. That is your whole interest in the transaction?—A. Yes, sir.

That is the story?—A. Yes, sir.

$1,000 a car?—A. Approximately, yes.

How many cars do you handle in the course of a week?—A. We have
handled over 100,000 cases.

Q. That would be- 100 cars?—A. Yes, approximately that.

Q. In how long a time?—A. Within the past year, I think.

Q. 100 cars, and you get $1,000 profit a car; that is $100,000 you have
received for using your name in that way?—A. Yes.

Q. You never unload the stuff?—A. Sometimes we do, and sometimes we
don’t. ;
Q. It just comes in and goes out?—A. Yes.

Q. And with all this vast volume of business you do not know who Mr.
Scherer is?—A, I never met him.

Q. That sounds like the famous Italian witness in the Queen Charlotte
case “I don’t remember?”’—A. (No audible answer).

Q. You never met Mr. Scherer?—A. No.

Q. Never had a drink with him?—A. No.

Q. You would not be willing to say that Mr. Cooper and Mr. Scherer is the
same man?—A. No; I don’t think they are.

Q. Who do you think Mr. Scherer is?—A. I think he lives in Detroit.

Q. You really think he lives in Detroit?—A. That is what I said, sir.

DL

By Hon. Mr. Stevens: -

Q. How do you receive this liquor in Montreal? I understand—and you
can correct me if I am wrong—that the Quebec Liquor Board were the only
ones who could bring liquor into Montreal?—A. The distillery is licensed to
buy whiskey from another distillery, in bond, duty paid, or any other way—

Q. For blending purposes?—A. For any purpose; from another Canadian
distillery.

Q. You bring that liquor in and unload and repack it and send it out again?
—A. Not always. That is, whiskey bought from Canadian distilleries.

Q. This liquor frem Walkers you send that same car right back?—A. As
a rule.

[Mr. Gregory George.]
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Q. You do not hyé,ndle~ the liquor at all?—A. No, not. ‘very much; we do not

- handle any more than we have to.

Q. You do not take it into your distillery?—A. Sometimes we do.
Q. What would you do that for?—A. We might want to have some on hand

- for quick shipments.

Q. You shipped two cars in January in one of which there were 188 cases;

- that is a very small load for a car. Would that be hay or whiskey 7—A. I did

not see the bill of lading; whatever it says. It may be hay, I do not know.
Q. That was car 204664, Canadian Natiodal, 188 cases. That is a very
small number of cases to put in a car?—A. When was that, sir? :
. Q. That was on January 11th, I think. That is, I am not saying that you
shipped it with 188 cases. It arrived at Ford, with 188 cases in it. Would that

i be a car that came down to you, and then you turn around and send it back?

—A. No, I do not think so.. That might be a small lot which was in that car,

shipped out. As a rule, these cars contain about 1,000 cases. We would not
 bring down a small amount and ship it back.

{
.

By Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. It must come in carload lots, coming to you?—A. Not necessarily. It
may ‘come L.C.L. There is no regulation to stop it.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Mr. Chairman, I want to find out who G. Scherer is. Thi$ witness is
very reluctant, in my estimation, to tell us what he knows about it?—A. No, 1
do not think I am. I have said I have never met Scherer, and I think he lives
in Detroit. I do not think I could swear any more than that.

By Mr, Bell: ‘

Q. Where 'does'J. J. Clicks live?—A. Maybe in the same place.

Q. Where does M. Green live?—A. Probably in the same place.
~ Q. Have you got any written orders from either Green or Clicks?—A. No,
I do not think we have.

Q. And none from Scherer?—A. Not that I remember of.

Q. Are we to understand that the goods consigned to Scherer, Green and
Clicks have all been contracted for, on orders received through Cooper?—
A. Probably; yes, I would say.

Q. Probably?—A. I would say yes.

Q. Are you saying it positively now?—A. As far as I remember.

Q. Is there any other way you can suggest that you received orders from
any one of these three, excepting through Cooper?—A. No, I do not think so.

Q. If we get Cooper here, he ought to be able to tell us about the three?
—A. Probably.

Q. I beg your pardon?—A. Probably, yes, I should think so.

By Mr. Kennedy:

Q. You have a distillery at Montreal?—A. Yes.

Q. Do you ship any of the stuff you manufacture in Montreal; whiskey,
to Detroit?—A. Yes.

Q. And to Ford?—A. For export; duty paid for export.

Q. Now, what percentage of the stuff which you ship to Scherer is manu-
factured in Montreal?—A. I should say about 15 or 20 per cent.

Q. Probably 20 per cent?—A. Yes.

Q. About 80 per cent comes from Walkerville?—A. Yes.

Q. What is the reason that liquor has to be shipped from Walkerville to
Montreal—A. Where wé have not got—we are just a new distillery, and we
have not got a supply of spirits that is big enough to supply these Mexicans.

16358—2 ) [Mr. Gregory George.]
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By Mr. Donaghy: : % o

Q. I think you said the Walkerville d'xstlllery refused to Shlp hquor, expoﬂ;*'_

it to the United States?

Mr. BRACKIN ORI | sa;1d they do not ship direct to the United States'
_Nelther do we."” by

By Hon. Mr. Stevens: \
Q. Do you not find it hard navigating out of Ford? * $

Mr. Brackin, K.C.: We export about 16,000 people over there every day, i‘
and bring them back at night, with American money. e

Hon. Mr. Stevens: To Mexico?
Mr. Brackin, K.C.: Yes, to Detroit. ;
Wirness: 1 wish there were a lot more Scherers; that is all I can say.

Mr. Brackin, K.C.: Ifithey see a Canadian b111 in Windsor, they arrest 4 3
you for having counterfelt money in your possessmn 7

By Mr. Bell: ’ A

Q. Any time that you take liquor in and keep it for a while, when it leaves
your distillery, what label is on the bottle?—A. If it is Hiram Walkers it is -
labelled Hiram Walker’s. If it-is our own, we use our own labels.

Q. What labels do you put on the brands which you ship out?—A. We _
have a brand which we call “Royal George Liqueur”; we have a brand called
“Canadian Crown Whiskey”; we have a brand called “Old Bridgeport,” and
we are now going to put up a gin called “Royal Arms Gin.”

Q. Do you use any labels indicating American brands?—A. Yes, .we do.
We have “Old Bridgeport”, that is shown as an American type whiskey, what-
ever .you wish to call that.

Q. But it is made up whiskey, is that it?—A. No, we blend that’ ourselves. -
It is not very good, I am sorry to say. /

Q. Do you ship out any under the name of “Old Crow”?—A. No, that
is Corby’s.

Q. Or “Old Smuggler”?—A. No.

By Mr. Kennedy:

Q. Can you tell us how that stuff gets to Mexico?—A. I do not know
for sure. I am not worrying about it either. I will sell them all they want.

Mr. Ecrviorr: Mr. Chairman, I had thought this witness was going to
produce certain documents for the Committee, and that we would this morning
continue the examination of Mr. Sparks, but I must say, I have found this
examination so interesting that I do not object at all to the fact that Mr.
Sparks’ examination has been deferred, though I think perhaps, it is hardly
fair to Mr. Sparks and his counsel. I just want to ask a question or two, if
I may, Mr. Chairman, from this witness. ;

By Mr. Elliott:
Q. Your understanding is that Mr. Cooper lives in Detroit?—A. Yes, sir.
Mr. Brackin, K.C.: Not Cooper.

25

By Mr. Elliott:
Q. That Seherer lives in Detroit?—A. That is my understanding. I think
there is such a person.
Q. Evidently, in the most exclusive portion of Detroit?—A. I do not know
about that. He buys a lot of whiskey anyway.
[Mr. Gregory George.] 3 L \

.




. Q. That is the policy—?—A. That is my policy.

. e

et RE DEPARTMENT OF CUSTOMS AND EXCISE . 213
B My BN \ ,
Q. Well, he would?>—A. Well, he should if he does not.

!" . ] By Mr. Elliott: =) > ‘
ey Q. Is it not the custom of your concern to endeavour to effect any personal
" contact with your best customers?—A. I just did not get that right, please.
RELY Q. I did not make it clear?—A. I am a little deaf. I have holes in two
} ~ drums in my ear. , ‘

K~ Q. Is it not the custom of your concern to endeavour to effect any personal
' contact with your leading customers?—A. Yes. =

-~ Q. You do?—A. Yes. SRR
Q. Then:you would see them?—A. You said “not to effect.”
It is not to effect?—A. Yes, sir. So far'as I am concerned, in Montreal.
That is your policy?—A. Yes. . 2
Q. I suppose, in that, you voice the, policy of the company?—A. T should

think so. !
S Q. Have you ever tried to meet this important customer?—A. No. I have
[ never tried. _
R Q. Do you know if any of the rest of your people have?—A. No, I could
not say sir, as to that. v

Q. I might say that I understand it is a policy with a great many of
those concerns to meet their leading customers, take them out to dinner, and
then entertain them? That has never been done with Scherer, as far as you
know?—A. No, we should do it though, I think. If you will let us keep on
selling them, I will see that we do take him out.

.B,y Hon. Mr. Bennett: = :
Q. Well, you know where he is?—A. I think he lives in Detroit.
Q. You will try and find him?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Elliott: ;

Q. You said as to the money, the money does reach you?—A. The com-
mission reaches us.

Q. Do I understand by that that you are only paid by the commissions?—
A. In Montreal. As far as our company in Montreal is concerned.

Q. You do not get paid the full price of the carload?—A. The full price is
transferred to our acdount at Hiram Walker’s.

Q. Let us see if we cannot get a little further. Do you or do you not get
paid the full price, for a carload of liquor that you sell to Scherer?—A. Not
in Montreal.

Q. I am not asking whether you get it in Montreal? Do you get it at any
place?—A. We have an account with the Hiram Walker Company, and it is
paid in to them. I do not know what way you want to call that.

Q. Then the purchaser pays in to Hiram Walker the full price of the car-
load?—A. Yes, sir. : .

\ Q. Then have all the carloads that have been bought by Scherer been paid
for to the Hiram Walker Company, at Walkerville?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Have you any information as to the manner in which those payments
have been made?—A. I cannot say that I have.

Q. Or to the person who makes them?—A. No, I cannot say that I have.

Q. Do you draw on Scherer?—A. No, we do not. Those commissions
come in to us. When the cars come down we ship them.

Q. Do not confuse commissions and the price of the carload. Who pays the
full price for the carload?—A. To our man at Hiram Walker’s.

200523 - R WD {Mr. ‘Gregory ~George.)
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Q. To your men at Hiram Walker's?—A. That i 1s all I know abont xt, S0
far as the cash paid for the goods is concerned.
Q. Do you mean by that that some man in Hiram WalEer s pa.ys for these*
goods?—A. I do not know what the procedure is exactly. 2
Q. Who would, they apply to then?—A. Poss1bly Mr. Cooper, he is oneu
of the directors of the company. )
Q. Or would it be then some one ab Hiram Walkers who paid xt?—-A.
Possibly. )
Q. Somebody brings in this money, and it is paid?—A. Yes.
Q. Who attends to that?—A. Possibly Mr. Cooper. p
Q. Is Mr. Cooper receiving teller for leam Walker?—A. No, he is.a
director of our company. e
Q. He would not receive the money that is pald in to Hn'am Walker’s?——
A. I do not know, sir. .
Q. Can you tell whether this cash is paid in to Hiram Walker’s by some
messenger coming in there with the cash and paying it m there or not?—A.
Well, I could not swear to that.
’ Q You could not swear to that?—A No, I could not swear to that. :
Q. Would you be good enough to tell us who would be able to tell us?—A.
I think Mr. Cooper, or the Hiram Walker Company.
Q. Possibly the Hiram Walker’s recelvmg teller>—A. Probably. I should

think so.

" By Mr. Kennedy: : : \

Q You stated that you just got the commﬁsswns‘?—A Yes. v ;

Q. What about the twenty per cent of your own liquor, shipped to Ford?—
A. That is paid for here in Montreal. -

Q. How does that money come to you?—A. By cash, as a rule.

Q. Through Mr. Cooper?—A. No, whoever comes down for this odd ship-
ment.

Q. Whoever comes down for this odd shipment?—A. Yes. \

Q. Can you tell us who comes down for this shipment?—A. Whoever are
on the bill of lading there.

Q. The parties whose names are on the bills of lading?—A. Yes.

Q. When it is shipped to Scherer, they would come to Montreal with the
money, in the case of these cars. Is that it?—A. On some of those.

Q. You get the full amount of the money, the purchase price of the 20
per cent of this liquor that has been shipped to Ford, Ontario?—A. Mr. Cooper
sends quite a bit of that down. |

Q. He pays vou?—A. Yes, sometimes.

S SR e e S e e 5 i

By :Hon. Mr. Bennett:

Q. You say you have been making various kinds of liquor?—A. Yes.

Q. And you have only been operatmg for a year and a half?—A. Approxi- =~
mately. i

Q). 1t is not matured spirits at all?—A. Yes It is brought in under a
Government certificate of age.

Q. Brought in from where?—A. What we blend is brought in from Scot-
land. Our “Royal George Liquor” is brought in under a certificate of age,
supplied to the Government, and the youngest whiskey is not less than three
years old.

Q. Your youngest whiskey is not less than three years old, and you started
in 1923?7—A. These malts that we blend our Scotch with come in from Scotland,
under a certificate of age, and the certificate shovxs that these malts are not
under three years old. !

[Mr, Gregory George.]




Shortly put, you t.ake the product, Of your al*oohol and send it out to

Yy P
Woﬂd under a certificate of age?—A. Yes.
Q And your distillery has been running smce 1923"—A Yes.

b By Mr. Kennedy ?
. Q. Is there an Excise oﬂicer in connection Wl’eh your dlstlllery‘? A Yes
Q. What is his name?—A. Mr. Lally.

?1_‘ By Mr. Doucet: '

it Q. You have just the one?—A. We have a couple there sometlmes
| Hon. Mr. Bovin: May I ask a question or two on behalf of the Depart-
ment, Mr. Chairman? _ i

~

The CuamrMAN: With pleasure. |

o ‘By Hon. Mr. Boivin:

E,‘ - Q. Mr. George, how long have you been e‘hup'pmg hquor to Mexico in \thl“
 way?—A. I should say for the past year and a half.

"~ Q. For the past year and a half, you say?—A. Yes, sir.

.~ \Q. The invoices are made to people living in Detroit?—A. Yes, sir:

g Q. What Hon. Mr. Stevens read a moment ago, are they the invoices or the
~ bills of ladmg‘?———A Those are the bills of lading.

Q. Where is the duty paid on that liquor?—A. On Hiram Walker’s goods,

the duty is paid at Walkerville. - :
N Q. And on what you ship from your own distillery ?—A. The duty is paid

- at Montreal.
4 Q. From what points are those goods exported from Canada to a foreign
country ?2—A. At the ponts of Ford and Walkerville, those lake ports.
Q. Who makes the export entries?>—A. I could not say. That is done
at the port, of exit.
Q. The export entries are ‘made at the port of exit?—A. Yes, sir.
Q. Are the entries made by Mr. Scherer and--what is the name of the
other man—on the bills of lading?—A. Mr. Green.
Q. Are the entries made by Mr. Scherer and Mr. Green?—A. I could not
- say for that. They are made at the port of exit. ;
Q. You do not know who makes the entries there?—A. No, sir.
: Q. Has Mr. Cooper anything to do with the making of the export entries?
_—A. I don’t think so.
Q. Did you ever see any of the export papers?<-A. Not the originals.
Q. I am interested to know something about these export entries, and T
wfould like to know who makes them?—A. They should be made at the port
of exit.
Q. Can you tell us by whom they are made?—A. The peoplo who (Ien
those boats.
Q. The people who clear the boats?—A. Yes, sir.
Q. I do not want to interject any statement here, but I have been under
the impression that the liquor shipped from the Dominion Distilleries was
: shipped to Detroit, Michigan, and 1 think the entries in the Department will
show that?~A. That is powble We consign them all-rail to Mexico, as the
t railways will not accept shipments direct to the States.
Q. Am I to understand that all your bills of lading are made to the point

-

M et o

T T

’r-’  of export, and the export entries are made there?—A. The export entries arc
b usually made up there.

£ Q. You do not know that they are made to Mexico?—A. I could not say
: as to that., I think there is a regulation preventing the shipment or clearance
J' of boats to Mexico, when the boat is not capable of making that voyage.

g p ~ [Mr. Gregory George.
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Q. Don’t you know as a matter of fact that there is leglslatmn w’hmh ‘
prohibits liquor from any Ontario port to any port that cannot be reached 5
by a boat?—A. Yes. a1

Q. Sailing from that por’o?—A Yes. The regulatmn as I remember
it states that a boat that is not capable of making the voyage from, we W111 ;
say, the port of Ford to Mexico-is not allowed to clear with whiskey.

Q. Are you not willing to admit now that no boat, no matter how. bxg 1’0
is or how strong it is, is able to go from Ford City to Mexico, because there
is no water connection between the two ccountries?—A. I don’t know. There
is the Chicago Drainage Canal.

Q. You do not know, you could not answer-that?—A. No. :

Q. Have you any mformathn that will he]p the committee as to who
makes those entries?—A. No, sir.

Hon. Mr. Bovin: I would suggest, Mr. Chairman, if you will allow me,
that the Customs Collector be summoned before this committee to tell us who
makes those export entries. I would like to suggest that, with your permission.

~ Hon. Mr. Stevens: There are certain other out ports, such as Sandwich
and Riverside. -

Mr. BrackiN, K.C.: And LaSalle.
Hon. Mr. Stevenxs: From which points these ports were esta,bhshed

recently; when I say recently, I mean a matter of a few years, from which these A

exports were shipped. So we ought to have all these officers that are involved.
I may say, for the Minister’s information, that the bills of lading cleary set
forth shipments exported to Mexico via Canadian National Railways to Ford,
and by some vessel named from Ford to Mexico. So we ought to have the
officers of these different ports here. I might inferject here that I had it in
mind to go a little later into the matter more fully. I want to find out who
Scherer was or is.

Hon. Mr. Bennerr: Let us dealgyith the Wlndsor situation as one, and ‘
bring all the witnesses here at the samé@time.

The CuakMaN: There is a motion made by the Minister. What shall we
do with it?

Motion agreed to. . ‘

Hon. Mr. Borvin: T understand it will be made by a number of the eom-
mittee later also. '

Hon. Mr. Bexnerr: That is quite proper.

By Hon. Mr. Bowin:

Q. The Hon. Mr. Bennett asked you a queetlon a moment ago about the
liquor manufactured in your own distillery. When did you first start opera-
tions®—A. I think ‘it was in October, 1923, if I remember correctly.

Q. Did you ever get from the Government—MTr. Stevens will be able to
tell us that.

Hon. Mr. Stevens:, It is there.

By Mr. Bowin:

Q. Did you ever get an Order in Council authorizing you to place upon
the market aleohol which had not been aged for two years?—A. 1 don't
remember that.’

Hon. Mr. BENNETT: - There s one here.
Hon. Mr. Borvin: Through the Dominion Distilleries?
Hon. Mr. BexnerT: I think so.

[Mr. Gregory George.] :
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A Hon. Mr. Bowvin: They were laid on the table, in the House, but I don'’t
knaw that they were produced.-

By Mr. Brackin, K.C.:

Q. You do not use anything under two years, do you‘?——A Not for

oonsumptlon, for export.
By Hon. Mr. Bowin: :

| Q. Do you remember, Mr. George, that the Dominion Distillers Products
. Company at any time apphed for an Order in Council authorizing you to
| sell alcohol which had not been matured for two years?—A. Well, I don’t
remember, it may have. S

Q. Did you ever get that permit?—A. I don’t think so.
5 Q. You don’t think so,'you say?—A. No, sir.
£ Q. As I understand it, you import from Scotland with the permission of
. the Quebec Liquor Commlssmn for blending purposes‘?—A Yes.
g Q. A certain amount of Scotch?—A. Yes.

Q. What else do you import?—A. We have imported brandy and wine.

Q. I mean for use in the distillery?—A. That is what we have imported
for use in the distillery.

Q. You have imported brandy and wine?—A. Yes, and Scotch.

Q. In the liquor which is blended in your distillery and sold under a
Cagladlan label as your own liquor, do you add a certain quantity of alcohol?
—A. Yes, sir.

B Q. In some of the brands?—A. Yes.

Q. Where do you get that alecohol?—A. Well, we make some and we have
to buy some. We buy some from other distilleries.

Q. That aleohol vou make is not two years old?—A. Two years old from
other distilleries, but what we make is not two years old.

Q I want to find out what vou do with the liquor shlppcd out, is it
aleohol you buy from other distilleries, or aleohol vou make?—A. It is both,
I would say. All goods are exported in bond.

Q. There is no matured?—A. No, sir. It is when it is exported in bond.

Q. Do you export very much liquor in bond?—A. No, net very much.

Q. To what places or to what countries?—A. We have exported some in
bond to Panama.

Q. You have exported liquor in bond to Panama?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. But you cannot export liquor in bond to the United States—that is
forbidden by law?—A. Well, T don’t know about that.

Q. Well by regulation?—A. Yes, I think so.

Q. You know that you cannot export it in bond to the United States?—
A. Not unless you have a permit from the Prohibition Department in the
United States. :

Q. Liquor that goes in for medicinal or doctor’s purposes?—A. Yes.

Q. You do not ship any in that way?—A. No.

Q. Where do you buy the alcohol you use to blend with the liquor imported
from Scotland, and which you put on the market?—A. From other Canadian
distilleries.

Q. Whén you get that alcohol from them, do you get a certificate of age
with it?—A. No, I don’t think we do. The age is shown on the pqcl\wos

Q. So that with the exception of a small quantity of liquor which you have
shipped in bond for P‘marm your (llstlllerv has been more of a bottling estab-
ave to be that way when a distillery
starts; you c”mnot use matured gooda for two years.

[Mr. Gregory George ]
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Q That is wha.t. I want fto get at?-——A We ha;ve to do tkese-
order to go into business:

Q. Most of the alcohol you have. ma.nufa.ctured has been dlsposed of fo
what purposes—industrial purposes?—A. Yes. i
Q. Denatured alcohol?—A. Yes. \ ‘
i YQ You say that the officer in charge of your dlstlllery 1s a Mr Lally?—~

es.
‘ Q. And the duty on your own hquor that is to say, the hquor sold under
your own labels, has always been paid in Montreal?—A. Yes, to the order offi".
the Collector of Customs and Excise at Montreal. Vel

Q. Who collects that, is it collected by Mr. Lally?—A. No, mr We send
in an accepted cheque to the officer, on McGill street. e

Q. Who determines the amount you should pay?—A The oﬂicer in charge e
of the distillery. . g

Q. Who is Mr. Lally ?—A. Yes . 4

Q. Those cheques go to the collector of Cus’ooms Mr., Weldon‘?—-A Yes.
They are brought in to the Cashier’s office.

Q. Just for the information of the committee, and to prevent pexhaps some
misunderstanding in the future, who stopped than two cars you referred to a
moment ago, who seized them?—A. 1 have not been in Montreal since I came
up here, but I understand they were seized by the Quebee Liquor Commission. =

Q. How long were they held under seizure?—A. They were held under
seizure a couple of days, I think.

Q. Then they were released?—A. They were released then, I believe.

Q. And they were shipped?—A. They were shipped.

Q. To whom?—A. To Mr. G. Scherer, of Ford, Ontaric, I suppose.

Q. Were they originally consigned to G. Scherer, at Ford Ontario?—
" A. Yes, sir.

Q. You say they were?—A. Yes.

Q. Can you give the committee any reason or any idea why those cars
were seized by the Quebec Liquor Commission?—A. No, I cannot; I don’t know
why.- They do a lot of seizing down there that I don’t think thev have a lot
of authority to do, those people down in Quebec.

Q. As a matter of fact at any rate, the cars were seized ?—A. Yes, they
were.

Q. And were afterwards released?—A. Yes.

. Q. They were held under seizure how long?—A. Two days, T think.

Q. Perhaps we will be able to ascertain why the Quebec Liquor Commis-
sion did that?—A. It might be interesting.

Q. Have you any knowledge of a car of liquor containing imported Scotch
and other imported liquors, which was shipped by somebody from Montreal,—
I am not going to say who to, beeause I do not know,—but from somebody in
Montreal to Windsor, Ontario, or to Ford, Ontario, two or three weeks ago,
liquor in bond?—A. Yes, I know of a car.

Q. You do know of a car?-—A. Yes.

Q What did that car contain?—As It contalned Scotch.

Q. Scotch whiskey?—A. Scoteh whiskey.

Q. Imported Scotch?—A. Yes.

Q. Can you tell me who that car was shipped by, and who it belonged to?

—A. No, I.don’t know.
Q. Can you tell me who it was consigned to?—A. To Mr. G. therer
Q. Was any duty paid on that car‘?—f& No, sir, there was no duty paid
on it. ‘
Hon. Mr. Bexxerr: It was a car of hay.
Hon. Mr. Bowvin: No, a car of imported Scotch whiskey.
The Cramrman: Was it consigned as hay?

[Mr. Gregory George.]
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* By the Chairman: - Rt :
Q. Tt was a bonded car. What happened to that car when it got to
. Windsor?—A. It was held by the Customs there, to see if the duty was paid.
Q. And was the duty paid?—A. No, the car was returned to Montreal.
Q. The car was returned to Montreal. Were there some other cars in
' Montreal loaded with Scotch at the same time?—A. Yes sir, five.
" Q. Upon which duty was not paid?—A. There were four cars, four other
& cars. ;
' Q. Can you explain to the committee how it happens that that car, upon
" which duty was not paid, was shipped to Mr. Scherer at Windsor?—A. It
~ came out to our siding apparently through some error of the railways, or some-
" body, I don’t know, and it was on our siding for five or six days, and one of
our officers shipped it out to F%rd in some error, or something like that, as far
as I can remember. 1

Q. It was returned to Montreal?—A. Yes, sir. :

Q. Are you sure that all the liquor that went through consigned by your
concern during the last year and a half, and went out of Canada at Windsor
© or elsewhere, was duty paid liquor?—A. If it is not duty paid, it cannot go eut,
. without putting up double duties at the port of exit. _

- Q. Just one more question and I am through. This is for information.
When your liquor is imported from Scotland for blending purposes, how does it
come into Canada?—A. It comes in in bond, under a certificate of age.

Q. In bond, under a certificate of age. Where is it delivered, to the Cus-
toms warehouse in Montreal?—A. It is first passed through the Customs entries
and goes to the Customs House.

Q. At the Customs warehouse?—A. T don’t know.

A Q. Or does it come to the distillery from the car?—A. It first goes into
the port and is held in a place such as the C.P.R. warehouse, and the papers are
passed by our Customs broker, and it is then released and transferred ia bond
to our distillery. ;

Q. For blending purposes. But when that liquor comes in, don’t you have

, to get some kind of a permit from the Quebec Liquor Commission?—A. Yes,
sir, a permit to import that. ;

Q. You get a permit to import.—A. Yes. I don’t know whether we should
have to or not. :
Q. Is that a blanket permit, or do you have to get a permit each time some-
thing is imported?—A. We get a permit each time.
Q. Do you have to pay something for that?—A. $25.
- Q. You have to pay $25 for each permit? Then when do you pay the
duty on that?—A. When we make a sale we pay the duty, and ship it out.
Q. It comes into your warehouse in bond?—A. Yes.
Q. In other words, everything that goes into your warehouse goes in in
bond and the duty is paid when it goes out?—A. Yes.
Q. Apart from the Scotch liquor that you import, do you import anything
else in bond from overseas, that goes into your warehouse?—A. Brandy and
wine. y
Q. Can you tell us, just for information, what you use the wine for in the
distillery 7—A. It is used to blend the Scotch with.
Q. And all that comes in in bond?—A. Yes sir.
Q. And the duty is paid on it when it goes out?—A. If we ship in bond
we put up double duty.
Q. You give a bond guaranteeing the double duty for what you ship in
(.« “bond?—A. Yes sir.
‘ Q. But you told me you have only shipped a very small quantity to
Panama?—A. Yes.
Q. And what you ship to' Mexico is duty paid?—A. Yes. Only a very
small quantity we have shipped in bond.
; [Mr. Gregory George.]
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Q The quantity you have shipped in bond to Panama is so neghgl le
I do not think it is necessary for the committee to pay much attention
A. Perhaps 50 cases; I think that is all. '

Q. Perhaps 50 cases in the last year and a half. The duty you pay on this
liquor, when 1t goes out, is that excise or customs duty?—A. It is both customs
and excise. g

Q. What is the difference between the customs and excise duties?—%A. 'ﬂle
customs is one dollar more per proof gallon.

Q. And you pay customs duty because it is 1mported hquor?—-A On

imported liquor we pay customs duty.

Q. And you pay the excise duty on the proportlon of the Canadian product .,  ;

which is added to it?—A. Yes.

Q. And all that is kept in black and white by the officer in charge of the
distillery?—A. Yes sir.

Q. When you denature any alcohol for industrial purposes you have an
additional oﬁicer there; is that the 1dea‘?—A Yes sir.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Just one question. You sold a lot of alecohol, you told the Minister,
for industrial purposes, which you produced vourself‘?—A We have sold, yes.

Q. Did you sell a quantity of it?—A. No, we bought most of it, sir ;

Q. That is what puzzles me, why you buy alcohol for the makmg of
whiskey, and at the same time you tell the Minister that you sell a lot for
industrial purposes.—A. In the past five months we have been making some
alterations in our distillery, put in practically a new plant.

Q. How much industrial aleohol did you sell during the last year?—A. I
should say 30,000 or 40,000 gallons, probably.

Q. How much did you~ buy ?—A. Probably the "same, about the same
amount.

Q: Do your books show that?—A. Yes sir.

The Cuarman: You are released for to-day, but if we need you we will
let you know.

The Wirness: Can T go back to Montreal?

The CHAIRMAN: - Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

- Q. You will produce those books as soon as you possibly can?—A Yes
SI1T,

The witness retired.

The Cuamman: Now I would like to file with the committee five files
contained in a large brown envelope from Mr. Farrow, received by Mr. Todd, in
response to a motion made by Mr. Doucet on the 16th instant.

I would also like to file a statement from the Commercial Protective
Association showing the amounts paid to Mr. Walter Duncan, which is dated
February 16th, 1926.

R. P. Srarks recalled.

Mr. HexpersoN, K.C.: Mr. Chairman, may I say this, since we are ask-
ing personal favours now; if the Committee could arrange to defer Mr. Sparks’
examination, which probably will not be finished this morning, until Tuesday,
it will be a personal favour to me, because I have a rather important engagement
on Monday morning. A

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.] '
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) .Mr Evuorr: I am sure Mr. Henderson’s convenience will be met by the
Comm1ttee

'; The CHARMAN: It is not‘our mtentxon to sit on Monday, so you will be
free on that day

- By My. Elliott:

Q. Mr Sparks, at the time the Committee ad]ourned yesterday, I think
~ we had finished section 1 of the amendment assented to on the 27th of June
~ last?—A.Yes.

Q. Now, I want to come to section 2, and in case you do not have in your
hands a copy of that amendment, may I ack you to look at this (handmg docu-
 ment to witness) (Ezhibit 2). In regard to section 2: Will you just say briefly
 what the remedy was which was sought to be obtained by section 2?—A. it
was to impress on the purchasers of smuggled goods that it was an offence to

knowingly have smuggled goods in their possession.
o Q. And what other remedy is provided by that section?—A. The section is
not a strong one. The word “knowingly ” takes from it the force. My own
view was that if the word “ knowingly ” was taken out, and also the words
“ without remission ”, the section would be stronger.

Q. An that is ]uct something on which T want to have the view of the
Committee which has been acting in concert with you in connection with it. Is
it your opinion now that the word “ knowingly ” should be taken out of that
section?—A. Yes, but only taken out if the words “ without remission ” are also
taken out. Otherwise it might be a hardship on those who have smuggled goods,
innocently purchased.

Q. You will agree with me, I think, that the section as it stands is a com-
plete change from what the law was before— —A. No, not a complete change,
no.

Q. Why do you say “not a complete change ”? It is complete as far as it
‘affects the change?—A. It was always an offence to “ knowingly ” have smuggled
goods in possession, but the penalties provided are increased under this section.

Q. And that is the section as arranged with the Department by the people
who prepared it for you?—A. Yes.

. Q. So that it went through as the Department was asked to put it
_ through? Is not that correct, Mr. Sparks?—A. Not as the Department was
asked to put it through; as the Department finally decided to put it through.

Q. Let us be clear about that? Were not those amendments all agreed to,
exactly in the form they were in before they were put through?—A. They were
~ agreed that these were the best amendments, that we could, at that time, get
through/parliament.

Q. They were the best amendments that vow could at that time get through
parliament, or expect to get through parliament?—A. That is. wright,

Q. That is right. Now then, I want to take up with you at some later session,
Mr. Sparks, other amendments that were proposed. 'There were a number of
other amendments proposed and dmu«ed by you and representativ es of the
different departments at that time?—A. Right.

Q. And I would like if you w nuld devote your attention between now and
Tuesday, when you will be here again, to looking up these amendments, and
I want to discuss them before the Committee with you?—A. If I might suggest,
Mr. Elliott, it is a suggestion on my part, that this Committee will, I think,
understand better the need of these amendments at a later stage of this inquiry.

Q. Next. Tuesday?—A. They will then have a fuller knowledge of
smuggling, and, if it' met with the concurrence of the Committee: T would pmfer
to defer until the Committee are more fully seized of the whole situation
before advancing further suggestions as to thc amendments.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]



Q That W‘ill *be satlsfactory tq the Cmnmmee; At
lel. i - 6.

The CHARMAN: It is all nght

By Mp. E'llwtt ] ‘ (A

Q. Then following these amendments ‘a warning was lssued bo whlc :
- we referred yesterday. Will you just take into your hand this w , and
refer—would you just read it, the note on the corner, as well as the balance
of it, so that # will get into the record?—A. This is a copy of an official
warning which I had printed and circulated for the benefit of those swpportmg 3
this organization, to show what the govemment had done. There i is a notice,
which does not appear on the official warning, “5,000 copies, size 13x16,
printed, to be posted in public places, such as ranlway stations, customs oﬁoes,
m’;lematlonal bridges, mternatlonal roads, ete.” Now, the official notice is as.
follows: .

G2 e
ek

~EXHIBIT No. 57 '
“ WARNING ¥ i

Under amendments to the Customs Act assented to 25’oh June, prid
1925, smuggling is punishable by imprisonment, and heavy penaltles Bt
without power of remission, and where value of smuggled goods 15 i
$200 or over it is an indictable offence. 3

On conviction for indictable offence terms of imprisonment may

~ be imposed up to ten years-and not less than one year.

. The law requires that every person bringing goods into Canada,
whether dutiable or free, shall report them at the nearest Customs
House, and when report is not so made such person is guilty of ¥
smuggling and .subject to penalties provided by The Customs Act. _ {

Articles brought into Canada for personal use are subject to report e
at Customs in the same manner as merchandise for sale and are A
regarded as smuggled when not so reported.

All persons- are warned to govern themselves accordingly as the f.'
prov131ons of the law will be strictly enforced. : i s
538

R. R. Farrow, G

Dﬂputy Minister of Customs and Exczse

Department of Customs and Excise,
Ottawa, Ont., June 30, 1925.” : ' b

Q. Yes. Now, yvou have in your file your letter of the 21st July, or a
copy of wyour letter to Mr. Farrow, the Deputy, dated the 21st July. May ]
I see the departmental file?—A. Ye~ I have it before me. S

Q. Well, the origin 11 is in the file, and will you just read it, please? Ui
That was July ads) : ¥ 17

EXHIBIT No. 58

“ Orrawa, July 21, 1925.
Mr. R. R. Farrow,

Deputy Minister of Customs and Excise,

Ottawa, Ont.

Dear Mzg. Farrow,—We are in receipt of «quite a number of letters

from trade sources expressing appreciation of the action taken by o

your " Department. in issuing warning notices and the memorandum to .

Collectors. Ty

[Mr. R. P. Sparks,]

\
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. We have had a number of requests for a few more copies of the

revised sections of the Act, which were attached to the memorandum

 to Collectors. I got from you one hundred copies, and wondered if

we could get a further supply of say one hundred. If these are not

available, of course, we can have the Act mimeographed, but if you
could spare the printed copies we would be greatly obliged.

- Yours truly,

Hi R. P. SPARKS,
Chairman, Executive Commattee.”

Q Now then, I want you also to read into the record, if it has not been
read,—you will check me up on this, Mr. Henderson, the letter of March 20th—

. was it read in full?

Hon. Mr. Bexnerr: To Hon. Mr. King. T think it was from Mr. Sparks

g‘; ~ to Hon. Mr. King.

Mr. Henperson: I think it was, my recollection is that it was.
‘Hon. Mr. Bexnerr: I speak subject to correction.

Wirness: I have not the copy.

The CHAIRMAN; Yes, it is printed at page 129 of the evidence.

By Mpy. Elliott:

Q. I want, at this stage, to refer to a letter; of which you will probably
have a copy, Mr. Sparks, from S. T. Gundy, President of the Board of Trade

of the City of Toronto?—A. To me?

Q. No, it is addressed to the Hon. the Prime Minister. You do not have

a copy?—A. No, it is unlikely T would have a copy.
Mr. Erviorr: Where is the original? T will read it in the record at this
stage, if I may. (Reads). ;
5 , EXHIBIT No. 5\9.

“THE Boarp or TRADE OF THE CITY oF TORONTO. V¥
ToronTo, July 13, 1925,
Rt. Hon. W. L. 'Mackenzie KiNg,
. Prime Minister of Canada,
Ottawa, Ont. ¢

Sir:—On behalf of the Executive and Council of the Toronto Board
of Trade, I desire to express appreciation of the action of the Govern-
ment in introducing legislation at the recent Session increasing the
penalties for the smuggling of goods into Canada and including in the
Estimates a substantial sum to enable the Preventive Service to be so
strengthened and improved as to be able to cope with this illegitimate
traffic. We are also gratified that the House of Commons and Senate
have accepted the Government’s recommendations and that the new
law is now in force.

You will remember that a deputation from this Board waited upon
you and your colleagues in the Cabinet last Fall and discussed the
seriousness of the smuggling situation with you. You then expressed
the desire of the Government to do everything in its power to combat
the inroads which the smugglers were making into the legitimate trade
and revenues of the country and you welcomed the co-operation to this
end of an organization of business interests which it was then proposed
to form. Acting on this, assurance, the members of this Board compris-
ing the delegation organized the Toronto Branch of the Commercial
Protective Association. We were very pleased to note from your remarks

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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in the House with rerect to the proposed new leglslatlon that
appreclatedé the vast proportions of this traffic and the need for drasti
action have been in close touch with the Association’s work and
it has been a great pleasure for this Board to learn that the Government'
 has co-operated to the fullest extent with the result that adequaten
machinery to deal with the smuggling menace will, we understand,
shortly be in operation. We are informed the fact that 'the new penaltles :
are already in force has had a very deterrent effect upon the traffic
and we sincerely hope that.in connection with the reorganization of the
Preventive Service which is now under way, the dominant note wﬂl
be the strict enforcement of the law in the interests of the lawful com-
merce of the Dominion and an increased national revenue which in
turn will be reflected in an improvement in economice condltlons .
generally. =
‘We congratulate and thank you for your efforts in the solutlon of
this problem and assure yéu of the continued co-operation and support
of this Board in curtailing’ the smuggling traffic. with the aid of the
DeW POWers now available; I am, b

Yours very truly, .
(Segd.) S B. Gunpy,  -.
Preszdent h ,
Mr. Erutorr: That is the original, and I think probably it should be put e

“L

in. o

The CHARMAN: It is the orlgmal, and should be filed. -
' b

By Mr. Ellott: s

&) Followmg that up, Mr. Sparks, I think I asked you the question, if that
expressed the views of the people who had been associated with you?——A Yes. “8

Q. The other officers, as well as the Toronto Board of Trade; is that a fair

way of putting it?—A. No, I scarcely think so. There was a meetmg about
that date, referred to in my correspondence, when the matter was discussed at
considerable length, as to whether this Association should go on record as
expressing appreciation of the Government’s action. i

Q. Are you not getting ahead of your story, Mr. Sparks, are you not refer— ‘
ring to the meeting of the 8th of September, reported by you in your letter of
about the 20th of September?—A I was under the i 1mprex31on that Mr. Gundy s
letter was about that date.

Q. That is dated about the 13th of July?—A. We are ahead.’

Q. You are nearly two months ahead of your story?—A. Yes.

Q. I am now speaking of the feeling that existed on the 13th of Jul ; it
may have been different on the 8th of September.” Am I not correet in saying
that the general feeling on the 13th of July was pretty fairly expressed in Mr.
Gundy’s letter?—A. The general feeling was very hopeful.

Q. The general feehng was very hopeful, and you were very much pleased
with the results that had been so far obtained in the legislation?—A. I would
sooner stick to the word hopeful, Mr. Elliott. 7

Q. That is very satisfactory to me. May I say now, if I have correctly
read the correspondence, that there were letters coming in to you personally—
and I hope you will not mind my referring to certain personal correspondence -
with you at that time?—A. That raises a question, Mr. Elliott. I have been
perfectly frank with this committee; I have brought here for the use of this
committee every scrap of paper in my possession in reference to this matter,
confidential and otherwise, and I will feel that if use is made of my confidential
correspondence, I am released by the Government from holding confidences.
I want to make that clear. T 4

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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"~ Q. Perhaps if you had waited until I had completed my question, it would -

" have saved you some words.—A. You mentioned that you were going to quote

.~ from my correspondence. g

i Q. The letters I intend to refer to are all congratulatory, Mr. Sparks. You
will not object to that?—A. Well, I might. I am not looking for congratulations.

B Q. But you could not prevent it?—A. Possibly not.

Q. It evidently was forced upon you in -connection with this matter; isn’t
that right?>—A. Well, I have no objections, Mr, Elliott.
~ Q. I think it is only fair to yourself and fair to the Government, I may say.

~ You did receive from many of the men associated with you in this work letters
congratulating” you upon the results?—A. That is true.

Q. I think perhaps,"while ye are on the subject, that I might just go a step
farther without hurting your feelings in_any way, or betraying any ‘confidences.
You were, as a result of what you had done, the recipient of not only many
‘expressions of appreciation or congratulation, but there was I believe a banquet
held here, at which those expressions were made very freely?>—A. Yes, a private
banquet. , :

Q. Now, I think that is a fair statement, is it not, of the feeling in regard
to the results that had been so~far obtained up to the time of this banquet to
which we have referred?—A. I have also already tried to get clearly and

 honestly the position at that time, and I am going to st‘i'c\k to the same word
“hopeful.”

Q. I am not quarrelling with it. About that time you had a meeting on the

8th of September, and that was a general meeting of the concerns which you
- represented ?—A. Yes.

Q. And of the men associated with you in this work?—A. Yes.

Q. A very full meeting?—A. Very representative.

Q. I mean most of the representatives were there?—A. Yes.

Q. I am going to ask you, Mr. Sparks, if you will collect together, if you
wish, the letters received from a number of these gentlemen whose names I
will give you?—A. Might I at this stage make the observation I started to make
a few moments ago? On the afternoon of the day the banquet was held, =
meeting was held, and I suggested to the committée the propriety or otherwise
of passing a resolution of appreciation for the Government’s action. The dis-"
cussion lasted most of the afternoon. The ultimate decision was to defer at
that time -any message of congratulation officially, until such time as certain
action was taken as regards the administration.

Q. That was the 8th of September?—A. That was the official position.

Q. I am asking you as to the date?—A. That-was the 8th September.

Q. I am going to try and direct this examination fairly, and if you will
aniwe‘r( the questions we will get along better. That was on the 8th September?
—A. Yes.

Q. And on the 8th of September, is it not a faet that at that meeting the
manufacturers and members of the Board of Trade,desired to pass a resolution
congratulating the Government upon what they had done?—A. That was a
subject for discussion.

Q. Is it not a fact that among your papers appears the resolution, which
was presented?—A. It probably does. I prepared a resolution; I prepared one,
but my committee refused to instruct me to present it, and the copy, the draft,
may be among my papers. i

Q. Is that the resolution that appears under the name of Mr. Powley?—A.
Possibly that would be it; he was there.

Q. That expressed your idea of the situation at that time?—A. No. I felt
that 1 prepared it for consideration, which is always a good plan, to go to a
meeting with something to put before the meeting,.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Q For conSJderatlon?——A Yes, sir. ) :
Q. In preparing for the consideration of the committee a resolutlon,
you prepare a resolution which to your mind most nearly approached what you

considered would be the view of those gentlemen at that time?—A. If the com-
mittee decided to take that action, I think that resolution might have fitted

in very nicely. [7

Q. Would you kmdly answer the question I asked you?—A. Personally

I was opposed to the sending of the resolution.

Q. You were opposed to the sending of the resolutlon personally?—A. 4

Yes, I was.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Was it ever sent?—A. No. At that time I proposed to send a strong
resolution at the proper time, because I thought the Governinent deserved some
thanks. They had done something, and had done a very satisfactory thing, but
- they had only partially done what we desired, and my own view was to wait
until we could make a resolution with full force

Q. Then why did you prepare the resolution before the meeting?—A.
Because I had received many letters from our members, very appreciative of the
action of the Government, and I knew that the matter would be one for dis-
cussion. If you will observe my notice calling the meeting, it points out and
asks that those who are coming come prepared to say whether they desire the
organization to be continued. If it had been the decision to then and there

discontinue, I think then and there would be the proper time to have put our-

selves on record.

Q. Just arising out of that, am I correct in saying that the correspondence
shows, Mr. Sparks, that when this organization started it was intended only to
continue for a year?—A. That was my idea, for a year.

Q. That was your idea?—A. Yes.

Q. And that if it found at the end of a year that it was doing good-work,
sufficient, to justify its continuance, it would then be continued?—A. Yes.

Q. And may I also ask you what was the decision as to continuance, or
as to justification for its continuance, at the meeting of the 8th of September?—
A. T think a resolution on my file will indicate that the decision was to remain
as we, were until after the election.

Q Until after the election?—A. Yes.

Q. So am I not correct in this, that the gentlemen present were unanimously ,
in favour of continuing your orgamzqtlon for another year?—A. Yes, I think
they were all in favour of continuation.

Q. I am under the unfortunate handicap of not having the minutes which
I had hoped we would have a day or two ago, -but which, through no fault of
yours or your counsel, are not here. I understand they will be along—A.
Exactly,

Q. But they were, I understand, absolutely ananimous in believing that
the work had been excellent, and that the Association should continue t co~
operate with the Government along the lines it had been working on?—A.

Q. That is correct, is it?—A. That is’correct.

Q. And everyone was then of the opinion that, as the election had been
announced, nothing much more could be done until after the election was over‘?
—A. Yes, some time in November.

Q. And you decided you would not again meet until November 12th?—A.
That is correct.

The witness retired.

The committee adjourned until Tuesday, February 23rd, at 10.30 .m.

.
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. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

"Turspay, 23rd February, 1926.

The Committee met at 10.30 a.m., Mr. Mercier, the Chairman, presiding.

Present: Messrs. Bell, Bennett, Donaghy, Doucet, Elliott, Kennedy,
Mercier, St. Pére and Stevens—9. i

The minutes of the last meeting were read and apprqved.

A letter was received from the Deputy Minister of Justice stating that that
Department has no file respecting Franco-Canadian Import Company of Halifax,
NS, asked for by Mr. Doucet on 17th instant.

Mr. lj‘ar;ow submitted: —

(1) Copies of all Orders in Council to date respecting release of alcohol
from distilleries within a shorter period of time than set forth in
the Inland Revenue Act, R.S.C. 1906, chapter 51, section 171.

(2) Customs departmental file No. 112845 re seizure of an automobile
at Ste. Cesaire, P.Q., asked for by Hon. Mr. Stevens.

(3) Customs departmental file respecting schooner “Annie.”

(4) Customs departmental files respecting record of one, F. F. Mader

- of Mahene Bay.

(5) Customs departmental files respecting alcohel at Edmundston, N.B.

; Mr. Henderson, K.C., counsel for Mr. Sparks, produced copy of minutes of
the Commercial Protective Association from October 20, 1924, asked for at a
previous sitting of the Committee. :

Hon. Mr. Stevens moved,—For the production of the files from the office
of G. W. Taylor, Assistant Deputy Minister of Customs and Excise, regarding
the purchase by the Dominion Distilleries of certain alcohol seized on the barge
~“Tremblay.” 1

Motion agreed to.

t

Moved by Hon. Mr. Stevens,—For a list of the names of all Customs and
Excise officers at all distilleries with (a) length of service, (b) when appointed!
at t}(lie distillery, (¢) by whom were they appointed and (d) on whose recom-
mendation.

Motion agreed to.

Moved by Hon. Mr. Stevens,—That a summons be issued for the attendance
before the Committee on Friday next and from day to day until discharged of
Mr. A. F. Healy, Windsor, Ontario, and that he be required to produce before
the Committee his books and records, inclusive of cancelled cheques, bank
books, bank account statements and cheque-book stubs,

Motion agreed to.

Moved by Hon. Mr. Stevens,—That a summons be issued for the attendance
before the Committee on Friday next and from day to day until discharged of
l\gr. Wm. Egan, Windsor, Ontario, and that he be required to produce before
the Committee his books and records, inclusive of cancelled cheques, bank
books, bank account statements and cheque book stubs. ;

Motion agreed to.

16458—1}
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Moved by Hon. Mr. Stevens,—For the production of all’letters received
by Mr. W. F. Wilson, Chief Preventive Officer, Mr. R. R. Farrow, Deputy
- Minister and Mr. C. P. Blair, General Executive Assistant of the Customs and
Excise Department, and copies of all letters written by them having reference
to the dismissal of Bisaillon. Also copies of all reports of subordinate officers
submitted to any one of the three officials above mentioned regarding the actions
of the said Bisaillon.

Motion agreed to.

k|

e D

Moved by Hon. Mr. Stevens,—That a summons be issued requiring the
attendance on the Committee of the Manager of the Ottawa office of the Canadian
National Telegraph Company, the Western Union Telegraph Company, the
Canadian Pacific Telegraph Company, the Postal Telegraph Company, and any
and all foreign companies for which they act as agents in Ottawa, at the sitting
of the Committee on Thursday next, and be required to produce the originals of
all telegrams from July 1st last, 1925, to date, from the Minister of Customs or
any officer or official of his Department and the Minister of Justice or any
officer or official of his Department and despatched from Ottawa, and also
copies of all telegrams received during the same period by the said parties above
mentioned. Also a copy of all monthly accounts of the Customs Department
and the Justice Department for telegrams despatched or received at Ottawa.

And that an order be issued by this Committee to the said telegraph com-
panies and cable companies that all telegrams received by them during the period
from July 1st, 1925, to date shall be preserved and not destroyed in accordance: *
with the usual custom, pending an order of release by this Committee,

Motion agreed to.

oo o g A st CRPOU SN

Moved by Mr. St. Pére,—That summons be issued requiring the attendance
upon the Committee Tuesday next and from day to day until discharged of official
representatives of the following firms: Distilleries Corporation Limited, Montreal;
Federal Distilleries Limited, Montreal; Joseph E. Seagram &!Sons Limited,
Waterloo; Gooderham & Worts Limited, Toronto; Consolidated Distilleries
Limited, Belleville; Hiram Walker & Sons Limited, Walkerville.

And that each be required to produce all original books of entry, receiving
books and shipping books, cash books, journals, ledgers, and bank books or
bank account statements, and cancelled cheques; also for the years 1920 to 1925
both inclusive, invoices of goods inwards, invoices of goods outwards, waybills
(express and freight), shipping receipts, warehouse receipts, original order books,
orders received for goods, shipping instructions, Customs entries, Customs
receipts, Sales Tax returns, Sales Tax receipts, transfer and cartage accounts and
also insurance policies of all deseriptions, also particulars of the names of the
officers and directors of each firm.

Motion agreed to.

The Chairman read two telegrams, one from the Sheriff of Essex County,
Ont., re inability to locate G. Scherer of Ford, Ont., and one from the Peerless
Overall Company, Rock Island, Que., stating that only man available to attend
Committee with productions required is sick. Letter and doctor’s certificate to
follow. g

Moved by Hon. Mr. Stevens,—That the Clerk be instructed to advise the
Peerless Overall Company and Mr. Bissonnet, who was summoned, that the
Committee insist upon the production at once of the books of the Peerless
Overall Company.

Motion agreed to.
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Moved by Mr. Elliott,—That the Manager of ‘the Canadian Bank of Com-
merce at Walkerville be summoned to produce all books, papers, documents,
- cheques and whatever bank accounts he has in connection with the account of

the Hiram Walker Company at Walkervﬂle

Motion agreed to.

Mr. William C. Hickling, Chief Clerk, Preventive Service Office, Montreal,
Que., was called and sworn. He produced correspondence asked for, with the
exception of one or two files. Wltness retired.

Mr. R. P. Sparks, was recalled and further examined. He filed,—

 Exhibit No. 60.—Letter dated February 4, 1926, from Mr. Sparks to Hon.
G. H. Boivin, Minister of Customs and Excise, re proposed committee of Par-
liament to investigate smuggling, and activities of Commercial Protective
Association.
Exhibit No. 61 —Letter dated February 12, 1926, from Mr. Sparks to Hon.
G. H. Boivin, Minister of Customs and Excise, respecting relations between
Customs Department and Commercial Protective Association.
\

Witness retired.

Moved by Mr. Donaghy,—That the following be summoned to attend as
witnesses on Thursday, February 25, 1926, at 10.30 a.m.: Messrs. J. E. Bisaillon,
_ex-Preventive Officer, Montreal; Ralph Garceau Preventive Officer, Montreal;
"Germain Perrault (or Perrot), Central Garage Montreal; J. A. Lefebvre
Central Garage, Montreal; Thomas Heavers, Preventive Ofﬁcer Montreal; J.
A. Masson, Preventive Ofﬁcer, Montreal; J. E. Knox, Preventive Ofﬁcer, Mont-
real; H. I. Levitt, 224 Villeneuve street, Montreal; and C. A. Verreault c/o
Automobile Recovery Bureau, Transportation Building, 180 St. James street,
Montreal.

Motion agreed to.

Moved by Mr. Donaghy,—That the following be summoned to attend as
witnesses on Friday, February 26, 1926, at 10.30 a.m.: A representative of Police
Department, Automobile Seizure Branch, Montreal (bring all papers re Dodge
Coupe, seized by Customs, August 4, 1924) ; Bertha Gelinas; Manager, Green
Avenue Branch, Bank of Montreal (bring record of account standing in name
of Bertha Gelinas in August 1924, and cheques issued by her.)

Motion agreed to:
The Committee adjourned until to-morrow at 10.30 a.m.

WALTER TODD,
Clerk of Committee.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

Tuespay, February 23, 1926.

The Special Committee appointed to investigate the administration of the
Department, of Customs and Excise and charges relating thereto, met at 10.30
a.m., the Chairman, Mr. Mercier, presiding.

WiLiam C. Hickuing, called and sworn.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. What is your position?—A. Chief Clerk in the Preventive Serviee office.

Q. At Montreal?—A. Yes. ;

Q. Have you with you all of the documents and correspondence from the
files of the office of the chief preventive officer?—A. No, sir.

Q. What have you brought with you?—A. All the list asked for on the
subpoena with the exception of two or three letters of different dates. Do you
want me to give you the dates?

Q. You were asked to produce all correspondence from the office of the chief
preventive officer at the port of Montreal, Mr. Bisaillon?—A. Yes.

Q. That is what we want. Have you that with you?—A. That is all pro-
duced, with the exception of Nos. 1, 2, 11, 12, 13 and 14.

Q. Will you produce these documents and hand them in to the clerk?

Witness produced files.

Q. Have you any list of these at all, an index or book of record?—A. No,
sir, that is on the outside of the folio.

The CHARMAN: You are released momentarily, witness, When we need
vou we will call for you. Stay in the hall.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Do not leave the city. Stay right here.

Wrrness: All right, sir.

The witness retired.

R. P. Sparks, recalled, and further examined.

By Hon, Mr. Stevens:

Q. Mr. Sparks, you have been on the stand on two previous occasions, and
have been examined at considerable length by Mr. Elliott. I desire to ask
some questions which rather follow along the line of some of the questions asked
upon your previous examination. On Thursday last, if T recollect it correctly,
vou stated that you had received, in the work you had been conducting towards

the suppression of smuggling, the co-operation of the Government in the passing
of certain legislation?—A. Yes,

Q. Does that refer to Bill 145?—A. Yes.

Q. I would like to ask, Mr. Sparks, did the Government intimate to you,
or any members of the Government that it would like to have the co-operation
of other sections of the House?—A. Yes.

Q. In what form did that suggestion come?—A. It came in the form of a
suggestion from the Acting Minister, the Hon. Mr. Cardin.

Q. Did you assist in securing that co-operation?—A. Yes, sir.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]



228 . ; SPECIAL C'OMMI TTEE

Q. Whom did' you see?—A. I saw Mr. Meighen, Mr. Forke and I ehould

say I saw twenty-five other members of Parliament.

Q. Did those others whom you consulted respond to your requests for

vk
41
y &

A

co-operation?—A. Yes, so far as the House of Commons was concerned.

Q. T am speaking now of the House of Commons?—A. Yes.

Q. Therefore the co-operation you received mlght be termed as common
to all sides and partles‘?—A So far as proceedings in Parliament were con-
cerned, yes.

Q. That is—I mlght as well name them—that the Conservative and the
Progressive groups as well as the Government forces all co-operated in securlng
the passage of this legislation?—A. Yes.

Q. Does the same thing apply to the passage of the item in the estimates
for $350,0007—A. Yes.

Q. For a special grant?—A. Yes.

Q. So that you were working in harmony with all concerned?—A. Yes. We
had no politics.

Mr. Henperson, K.C.: 1 think we should emphasize, Mr, Chalrma.n that
Mr. Sparks’ activities were entirely non-political.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. That. is what I am trying to show, Mr. Sparks, that it was a non-
political move, and that you received the co-operation of all the parties in
Parliament?—A. Yes, exactly.

Mr. Berr, K.C.: T understand he is a Liberal in politics, anyway.
Mr. Henperson, K.C.: He was at that time.

By Mr. Henderson:

Q. You referred to a confidential conversation with the Prime Mm.ster,
and you asked in the last examination that you might be excused from saying
what that conversation was?—A. That is right.

Q. Did the Prime Minister specify his conversation as confidential?—A.
No, but I think he regarded all those conversations as confidential.

Q. I do not want to ask you to break confidence, but I want to ask you
one thing, because I want to get a correct impression from your answer of the
other day; did that conversation you had with the Prime Minister, which you
regarded as confidential, have regard to the manner of the administration of
the Customs Department?—A. T would sooner not answer that question.

Q. I am not going to press for any details that might be regarded as con-
fidential, but I think you might answer that question, whether or not it had
reference to the manner in which the Department of Customs was being admin-
stered ?7—A. That was the chief subject of all these conversations.

Q. And it was the subject of that conversation?—A. Yes.

Q. You made a statement also the other day paying some tribute to the
manner in which the officials’ of the Customs Department administered affairs;
a rather complimentary reference. To whom did you refer?—A. Mr. Farrow,
Mr. Wilson, and Mr. Blair.

Q. That is, you were limiting your reference to what might be calied the
head officials of the Department in Ottawa?—A. Yes sir: A

Q. In that answer did you refer to the manner of the administration of
the Customs Department at, we will say, Windsor, Niagara Falls, Montreal,
Rock Island, Rouse’s=Point, and other border points?—A. No.

Q. Do you consider, as a result of your experience over this considerable
period of time, and your-observation and examination, that the administration
of the Customs along these border points has been satisfactory, speaking as a

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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business man?—A. No, the whole administration, in my judgment, broke down
about 1922 or 1923. It is still broken down, and it will be the function of this
committee to start it to work again.

Q. In other words, you consider that the administration of ‘the Customs
along the line of the border has virtually broken down?—A. That is quite right.

Q. And you have had considerable opportunity of judging?—A. Yes, we
spent $25,000 to find out. | “

Q./In your experience, in the expenditure of this $25,000 and the work
which it pérformed, did you find interference in connection with, for instance,
seizures, or the improvement of the administration at various points? Did you
find interference on the part of the Minister?—A. That is the weakness' of the
‘whole system, ministerial interference with good officers. ‘

Q. Then you consider that the deplorable condition along the boundary
between Canada and the United States, and the excessive smuggling that has
been going on in the last few years, are due to interference on the part of the
ministerial head of the department?—A. I think ministerial interference has
handicapped the officials at Ottawa. >

Q. Perhaps I can put it this way. You have had considerable experience,
Mr. Sparks, with seizures; I understand you made a number, or a number were
made under your leadership. Take the K-9 report, which has been referred to
frequently here in the various exeminations. Does report K-9 fix definitely
upon the officials of the Department the responsibility of determining what shall
become of a seizure?—A. No, sir.

Q. Why?—A. Because it has to go before the Minister for final settlement.

Q. That is, that the Minister may overrule all of the reports of these vari-
ous officers?—A. Certainly. :

Q. In whom you expressed great confidence?—A. Certainly.

Q. Is it your contention that that is a frequent occurrence?—A. Oh, yes.

Q. Quite frequent?—A. Quite frequent.

Q. Do you consider that as one of the chief causes of the serious condition
into which the Department’s administration has fallen?—A. I certainly do.

. By the Chairman:
Q. Will you allow me a question? Have you ever been employed in the
Customs Department?—A. No, sir.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. Just to make that particular point perfectly clear, for the last eighteen

, months or more you have been very actively engaged in exposing and endeavour-

ing to suppress smuggling—that is, your committee?—A. I would sooner use
the word “ investigating ”.

Q. That is a very good word, too. You have been investigating these
things?—A. Yes, exposing to the Department-itself, but not to the publiec.

Q. And you had four officers who had been appointed Customs officers
working under you, under Mr. Duncan and yourself?—A. They were working
under Mr. Wilson, but I had something to sa¥y in the direction of their activities.

Q. They were officers of your association?—A. We paid them.

Q. If you paid them they were your officers. Under the amended Act,
that is, sections 206 and 219 of the Customs Act, as amended by Bill 145 last
year, have you followed the prosecutions that have been made under that?—A.
I have some knowledge of them. :

~ Q. How many prosecutions have been had under the amended Act—A. The
Minister of Customs the other day said six. I am inclined to think he was
wrong; I think up to the first of the year only three. I say that because one
t(,)}fx the cases the Minister mentioned was not under section 219. I think only
ree, &

o
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Q. So far as you have been able to discover, only three?—A. Yes.

Q. You welcomed that amendment last year, Mr. Sparks, and your asso-

ciates also, according to the rather eulogistic letters that have been written?—
A. We certainly did. .

Q. Have you experienced since that was passed, or have you observed the
results, the beneficial results from that legislation which you expected?—A. The
immediate results were very good. Smuggling stopped, and the deputy minister
showed me figures showing an increase in Customs receipts at border points,
but that improvement did not last.

Q. How long did it last?—A. I wouldn’t like to fix the time.

t‘% Just approximately will do?—A. I would say it was effective for a
month, P

. Q. That would be up to say the 1st of August or the middle.of August or
around there?—A. I wouldn’t like to specify.

Q- Do you infer that there has been a lapse since then, back to former
conditions?—A. I do not infer it; I state it, because I know it.

Q. You know it?—A. Yes.

Q. And that the value of this new Act with its more stringent penalties is
not resulting in the suppression of smuggling as hoped?—A. The Act never was
enforced. The government got machinery, got a vote of Parliament to ereate
machinery for its enforcement and they did not spend the money.

Q. That is under the $350,000 vote?—A. Yes. /

Q. They appointed 67 officers, and I think you said in your evidence that
they only required ten good officers. How do you account for that?—A, What I
think should have been done, and what I advised, with some knowledge, was
that the acting Minister should call in conference the three men in Canada who
knew more about the situation than any other three men; that was the deputy
minister, the Chief of the Preventive Service, and Mr. Walter Duncan; and I
suggested that these three men be asked to produce a plan for dealing with
smuggling. I think if that had been done this committee would never have
needed to have met.

Q. Now, before we leave that, in regard to Bill 145, did you discuss this
matter with the Acting Minister, Mr. Cardin?—A. Yes, quite frequently. -

Q. He was Acting Minister through a considerable portion of last year,
was he not?—A. Yes.

Q. And you had frequent conferences with him about Bill 145 and other
matters?—A. This committee seems interested in Bill 145, and I think I should
perhaps make a statement as to the going into effect of that bill, if I might
be permitted.

Q. Go ahead.—A. The Bill was introduced in the House of Commons under
the circumstances which have already been set out. It went to the Senate and
met fierce opposition. I saw Mr. Cardin, and Mr. Cardin proposed that an
amendment be added to satisfy the opposition in the Senate which, in my judg-
ment, would have taken the whole force out of the Bill. T asked Mr. Cardin to
allow us to fight for the Bill before the Committee on Banking and Commerce,
to which the Senate had sent it. I sent out 108 telegrams from one end of
Canada to the other, urging trade organizations and business houses to wire
their Senators asking support for Bill 145. 1 organized a deputation of about
50 business men to wait on the Senate Committee on Banking and Commerce.
I had the privilege of presenting the case on behalf of the business interests; 1
" had in my pocket three amendments, containing the amendments which Mr.
Cardin wished to present to the Senate. One amendment only was made. We
were prepared to grant one amendment; we were prepared to make a ﬁght on
the second amendment but to concede it if we had to, but we were d.etem.nned to
oppose any further amendment. The committee passed the Bill with one

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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amendment, but our troubles were not through. Senator Belecourt had moved
an amendment which would have completely nullified the effect of the Bill. It
was defeated in the committee, but he said he would move it on the floor of the
Senate. In the afternoon of that day a small committee met Senator Belcourt
and Senator Beique, his seconder, and after a good deal of discussion they
agreed to withdraw the amendment, and the Bill was presented on the floor of
the Senate that afternoon and went through without a further amendment,
went back to the Commons and was accepted. That is the story of Bill 145,
briefly.

Q. I see. Now, coming down to the latter part of last year, after this Bill
had been in effect for five or six months, what induced you to ask for, or agree
to the appointment of a Parliamentary committee te investigate the conditions
of the Customs and Excise Department?—A. It had been my view for two years
- that that was the only method by which the whole situation could be cleared up.

I had nothing to do with the appointment. When Mr. Stevens moved for it I
agreed that it was a good thing, as did my associates in this matter.

Q. You mentioned "the other day that you had been hopeful. Were you
very hopeful for the appointment of a Parliamentary committee to investigate
it, from what experience you had had over a period of six months, since the Bill
was passed?—A. I was hopeful in June.

Q. Were you hopeful in December?—No, I was not hopeful in December.

Q. In other words, you had given up hope that this Bill which, if properly
administered, would effectively deal with smuggling—you had given up hope
that it would be properly administered?—A. Yes.

Q. And you felt that the only satisfactory method of securing redress
would be through a Parliamentary committee?—A. That was my opinion.

Q. Now, in regard to the administration of the law and prosecutions under
Customs, and prosecutions under Excise, are you acquainted with the difference
between the two?—A. Well, I know that under excise the law provides that any
seizures shall be settled in court, but under customs there is no such provision.
Q. That is, under the Excise Branch of this Department, if there is a
seizure, it is carried directly to the courts?—A. Yes.

Q. And under the Customs Branch of this Department, if there is a seizure,
it is rarely that it goes to the courts?—A. That is correct.

Q. But it goes through this K-9 performance and is decided by the Min-

- ister?—A. Yes.

Q. Do you consider that a weakness on the Customs side?—A. A very
great weakness.

Q. Do you think if there was more of the application of the Excise practice
under the Customs Law it would improve conditions?—A. I can see no reason
for any distinction between two types of seizure.

Q. No; that is, the seizure under the Customs might just as well go to
court as the Exeise?—A. I think so.

Q. Now, in your investigation you were following very largely what might
be termed “commercial smuggling”?—A. Yes. ,

Q. That is, the smuggling of goods for re-sale in Canada?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. It is your opinion that this has reached large and serious dimensions?—
A. It certainly has. ,

Q. Does the smuggling, for instance, of cotton goods into Canada adversely
affect bona fide business men throughcut the country?—A. Well, in the hearings
before the Senate a letter was read from the President of one of the large cotton
companies—I think it was Senator Webster read the letter—in which he stated
that if smuggling could be stopped, his mill, which was only operating four days
a week, could be operated for the full week.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Yes. _
Q. By the cotton goods being smuggled in?—A. Yes. o
Q. Does the same thing apply to silks?—A. Yes. We made some rough

calculations based on the per capita consumption in Canada as compared with
the United States, and we arrived at an estimate—which is only an estimate,

and is not correct—of somewhere between $5,000,000 and $7,000,000 annually

of smuggled silks.

Q. Could you give the Committee any idea of the methods followed in the
smuggling of these commercial goods, cottons, silks, and so on?—A. Well, silks:
The general practice is to take delivery from, say, New York, by freight or
express to a border point— :

Q. A border point on the American side?—A. On the American side.

Q. Yes?—A. And run them in in truck loads. They would break up a
shipment of, say, fifty thousand into, say, ten trips— ;

Q. Fifty thousand what?—A. $50,000 worth of silk. I now have in mind
a particular case which we followed through. They break up a load at, say,

Malone and run it in by trucks or touring cars, and deliver them in Montreal,
Ottawa and Toronto.

Q. Toronto, Montreal and other points?—-—A. Yes. I think Toronto is

worse with silks than Montreal.

By the Chairman.:

Q. Do they go west also?—A. (No audible answer.).
Hon. Mr. Stevens: That is a terrible blow to Toronto.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. You seriously think the silk smuggling is more serious in Toronto than

- in Montreal?—A. It is pretty hard to say anything is more serious than Mont- .

real. Silk smuggling is bad both in Toronto and Montreal.
Q. By what routes do they smuggle into Toronto?—A. The Niagara

Frontier. There is a lot of silk smuggled in across the Quebec border and then
moved to Toronto.

Q. You mean Toronto firms clear their goods at Quebec points?—A. That
would refer to undervaluation, but I was speaking of direct smuggling.

Q. How about cigarettes?—A. There is a very large movement of smug-
gled cigarettes. :

Q. Caused by what? The high duty?—A. Well, I would not like to set

' out the cause. That is not under my consideration. I am dealing with fagts,

not causes—effects.

Q. It is the abnormal profit which induces the smuggling?—A. I assume so.

Q. What form have you observed cigarette smuggling to take?—A. I might
illustrate it by a case which we handled. An express messenger was caught
and convicted of smuggling in five cartons. My recollection is that he stated
that he had carried five cartons from Buffalo practically every day for two
years.

Q. He was a regular smuggler?—A. Yes. We had reports—simply reports;
take them for what they are worth—that the method adopted on the Quebee
border was the packing of cigarettes as eggs. We checked up and found an
egg-crate of cigarettes and an egg-crate of eggs weighed exactly the same. A
farmer could bring them into Sherbrooke or any railway point and ship them as
eggs to the Montreal market.

Q.' That has been done?—A. We believe it has been done.

Q. From your investigation?—A. Yes.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Q Now, Mr. Sparks, coming back to the questlon of cotton-goods smug-
gling. Have you any complaints from merchants in other sections of the country,
such as Winnipeg, Edmonton, Calgary, Regina or other sections, regarding the
~ competition in cotton goods Wlth prices with which they cannot compete?—A.
- Well, I read into the record the first day I was giving evidence a telegram
mgned by nine manufacturers of Winnipeg, which said they were threatened
with extinction. I have a great deal of correspondence along the same line.

Q. Threatened with extinction because of competition?—A. Yes.

Q. And te what do they attribute this competition?—A. They attribute it
to smuggling.

Q. The goods offered in competition have not paid duty?—A. Yes.

Q. Now, you spoke a moment ago about the methods of bringing these
goods in by trucks across the boundary. Have you ever made an examination
~or an investigation or a test of the difficulty of passing goods that way across
the border?-—A. I do not think I feel disposed to discuss that publicly.

Q. You would rather not discuss that publicly?—A. I do not think I should
be asked to discuss it with the Committee. If the Committee wants to hear it
in camera, I am willing to discuss it with them, and be perfectly frank; there
is no secrecy about it, and I have nothing to conceal, but there are reasons why
I think that sort of question should not be pressed publicly before the Com-
mittee.

By the Chairman::

Q. You would only like to discuss general questions before the Committee?
—A. Yes. I will say, however, that I know from personal knowledge that there

. is no difficulty at all in smuggling goods into Canada, at Niagara, on the Quebec

border or at Windsor.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. I would like to respect your wishes, Mr. Sparks, but just now you said
these goods were run across the boundary in trucks and touring cars. I would
like the Committee to know—and I do not think there is any need for secrecy
to be observed in this question—how they manage to run backwards and for-
wards across the boundary without interference by the Customs Officials?—A.
Because they buy the Customs Officials first.

Q. They what?—A. They buy the help of the Customs Officials first.

Q.Nn other words, the Customs Officials have been corrupted before the
smuggling is attempted?—A. Certainly. We proved that beyond a doubt.

Q. Now, have you ever in your investigation tried to test the facility with
which you could cross the boundary?—A. Yes.

Q What was the result of that test?—A. Very easy.

Q. Give us an idea of how you managed it?

The CuamrMAN: This is very confidential matter, I think. We would
show very many persons how, to smuggle.

The Wrrness: I think according to law the principals in any transaction
interfering with any operations of the customs are liable. I was not a principal,
but I had full knowledge 6f the facts, and I took no action, made no move of
any character, without the full knowledge of ‘the officials of the Department of
Customs who should have knowledge of it.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. You demonstrated to your own satisfaction and to these officials that
it could be done?

Mr. HenpersoN, K.C.: By pre-arrangement with them.
/ [Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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The WirNESS: The best evidence IS that they discharged a number of
Customs Officers.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Now, how about Rock Island? We have heard a lot about Rock Island.
Have you ever discussed the conditions at Rock Island with Mr. Farrow or Mr.
Wilson; those are the two chief officers affected?—A. Very often.

Q. Give the Committee some idea of these discussions with the officials?—
A. Well, the officials of the Department were well aware of what was going on
at Rock Island. There was no need for me to tell them anything; all I wanted
was to have it stopped. 3

Q. And they knew as much about it as you did?—A. Yes; I thmk perhaps .
they knew more about it than I did.

Q. In other words, it was quite open knowledge that smuggling was going
on freely at that point, as well as others—speaking of Rock Island now?—A.
Oh, yes. I offered to put men into Rock Island; 1 offered to pay the men,
supply the plans, supply the -men, and so forth, to clean up Rock Island, and
Mr. Wilson said somebody else was in charge, and he could not accept my offer
It was made in good faith but not accepted.

Q. Mr. Wilson said there was somebody else in charge? What did he
mean?—A. I don’t know. Mr. Wilson could not interfere for some reason. He -

is in this/room, and perhaps can explain.

Q. Who was in charge of Rock Island during the past year-and—a-half?—
Mr. Bisaillon, as far as I know.

Q. Who?—A. I understand Mr. Bisaillon was in charge.

Q. He was the Chief Preventive Officer over that district?—A. Yes.

Q. That comes under his jurisdiction?—A. Yes.

Q. Now, you had four men appointed—that is, you had four men engaged
—Mr. Duncan and three others, and then you asked the Customs Department
to appoint these men as Preventive Officers?—A. Yes.

Q. Was this suggestion on your part met with approval on the part of the
Minister of Customs?—A. Not at the start.

Q. To which Minister do you refer? Mr. Bureau?—A. Mr. Bureau, yes.

Q. He objected?—A. At the start he did.

Q. What was the ground of his objection?—A. Well, I don’t know. He
objected on general principles to any interference with his Department; he felt
that nobody should have authority which was not directly under him. There
was some force to his objection.

Q. Whom did you see besides Mr. Bureau in order to secure their appoint-
ments?—A. I think I discussed it with Hon. Mr. Robb, and I think I discussed
it with the Prime Minister.

Q. With Mr. Robb and the Prime Minister?—A. And Mr. Lapointe.

Q. How did they receive the suggestion?—A. I think they were more
favourably disposed than the Minister of Customs.

Q. And you finally got them appointed?—A. Yes.

Q. And how many seizures did they effect? . Can you recollect?—A. I think
we took sixteen cases igto court.

Q. Sixteen cases?—A, Yes. On this’ question, Mr. Stevens, if I might say
just a word

Q. You may.—A. When theqe men were appointed they received a general
direction re Customs Act from Mr. Wilson, under whom they were acting. These
general instructions contained the following clause:—'

“That when cases are taken to court, have the information lald in
the name of the King. However, in seizures under the Customs Aet, no
proceedings in court are to be taken until instructions have been received
from me, after receipt here of a full report.”

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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: ‘When they received those instructions, Mr. Duncan called me on the 'phone,
~ and said that if they were to strictly follow the letter of their instructions, their
usefulness was at an end, and we had a conference which I recall very distinetly.
Mr. Duncan and Mr. Knox said that they were willing to disregard instructions,
and we agreed that the first time we caught a smuggler, we would lock him up
and then report, instead of reporting before we locked him up, and see what
would happen. That is what we did. Nothing happened. We went ahead on
that basis. ‘

4 Q. I see. You consider it is necessary for the effective prevention of
- smuggling, that officers should have the right to act promptly?—A. Certainly.
' Q. You consider that their services would be more or less abortive if they
had not that power?—A. Well, I have read the instructions:—

3 “Take no action; no proceedings in court are to be taken until
instructions are received from me.”

Q. That is signed by whom?—A. That is signed “ W. F. Wilson.”

Q. I see. Now, coming back to Rock Island for a moment, Mr. Sparks,
these officers we have just referred to, went into Rock Island?—A. Which
officers?

Q. The ones we have referred to. Duncan and others?—A. No, they never
went to Rock Island at all.
Q. They never touched Rock Island? Did they have others who assisted

them and looked into conditions there?—A. Yes, we had some knowledge of the
goings on at Rock Island.

Q. When you met the Minister and the government, did you submit par-
ticulars to them of firms suspected of smuggling?—A. Oh, yes.

Q. Pretty full information?—A. Yes, very complete information.

Q. And what was the attitude of the Minister?—A. Well, the Minister of
Customs told me that he had discussed the smuggling situation with a group
from Rock Island, and that they had agreed to do no more smuggling, and for
that reason he would not prosecute.

Q. What is that, they had agreed to quit smuggling?—A. That is what he
told me. A

Q. Which Minister was that?—A. Hon. Mr. Bureau. They made a lot of
seizures in October in 1924, and I went to the Department. 1 pressed Mr.
Farrow; I pressed Mr. Bureau, to prosecute in these cases under the law, and
Mr. Bureau told me that he would not prosecute because he had discussed it
with those men who were charged, and they had agreed not to smuggle any more,
and that, in his judgment, was a further reason for no prosecution.

Q. Would you tell me who the representatives of these firms were, who met
Mr. Bureau in this regard?—A. You have before yeu the records of the seizures.

Q. That is, they were individuals who were affected by these seizures?—A.
That group of seizures in 1924; the group that came to Ottawa.

Q. Can you recall some of the names of this group?—A. Well, seizures, as
taken from the records presented here, the. Jenkins Overall Co., the Peerless
Overall Co., the Glove Suspender Co., the Reliable Garment Co., Rock Island
Overall Co., Stanstead Mfg. Company, Stanstead, Que., Telford Bros., W. Pike
& Sons, Telford & Chapman, R. & G. Manufacturing Co., J. A. Gilmore Co., the
Perfect, Overall Company. They were all people who had goods seized during
1924, and we decided to make a fight on that situation right there. We lost.

Q. The Minister refused to prosecute?—A. He refused to prosecute.

Q. Did you discuss that situation with any other Minister, with the Acting
Minister, Mr. Cardin?—A. T do not recollect doing so.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Q. Would you mind my asking a question, as to whether or not there were

any forfeitures, or any penalty, or anything imposed upon them, or did they go
scot free?—A. I should make that clear. There were a few forfeitures, bqt as 1
said, the forfeitures were not worth anything.

; Q. T am only asking what was done?—A. There was no breach of the law
by the Minister. The Minister acted perfectly legally in every way, but he
did not act in the way we thought he should have acted to prevent this fraud.

/ By Hon. Mr. Stevens: ’ ,

Q. That is, the Minister who is clothed with power to make any decision
he sees fit, acted within his rights, but did not take th¢ action you thought he
should have taken?—A. No doubt. -

Q. But in your estimation, such action was not sufficiently severe to lead
to the suppression of smuggling?—A. That was my judgment.

Q. And then you called on him’ as representing these business firms, after
investigation on vour behalf, for more serious action, and he refused, is that
right?—A. Yes, and my experience in December, January and February, and
he did not do what he promised to do; prosecu’oe if he caught them again.

Q. Then followed a group of selzures, in October, 1924, and after these
gentlemen had promised not to smuggle again, he made further seizures?—A.
According to the records, he did.

Q. When? 1In November and December, 1924?—A. December, January,

February and March.

Q. That is, January, February and March, 1925?—A. 1925.

Q. What happened in these cases?—A. T do not know. All I know is on
the records produced here; there were settlements.

Q. There were settlements?—A. Yes. I did not know that there were until
the records had been produced.

Q. In any case there were no prosecutions?—A. No, there were no prose-
cutions.

Q. Did you ever meet Mr. Clark, Who is the Impector at the port of Mont-
real?—A. Yes, I met him once. .

Q. Did you ever discuss with Mr. Clark, as inspector of Montreal, the
activities of Bisaillon?—A. He came to Ottawa to discuss that with me.

' Q. Oh?—A. Mr. Clerk eame to Ottawa to discuss—

Q. When was that, Mr. Sparks?—A. T should say that was in May, 1925.

Q. In May 1925, Mr. Clerk, the Inspector of Montreal, came to Ottawa
to discuss the Bisaillon act1v1tlec~we vnrﬁ refer to it in that Way,—mth you?—
A. Yes.

Q. Was there anybody else present besides Mr. Clerk and yourself?—A.
The Deputy Minister.

Q. The Deputy Minister, Mr. Farrow?—A. Yes.

Q. I see. What-did Mr. Clerk state on that occasion, or what was the con-
versation between you and Clerk?—A. Well, Mr. Clerk told me that Mr. Cardin
had authorized him to conduct an investigation into the activities of Bisaillon.
He came to Ottawa to see if we could help him out, that he wanted investi-
gators, and I put our whole staff at his disposal.

Q. What else? Anything else?~A. Well, we had a general discussion of
the whole situation.

Q. Yes. Did he indicate to you why it was advisable to investigate
Bisaillon, or did you indicate it to him?—A. Well, he had instructions from
his Minister to investigate him, and of course, Mr. Clerk was very familiar with
the whole situation, and told me that, of course, Bisaillon was not acting in' a
proper way.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Q. Mr. Clerk told you that?>—A. Oh, yes. , {
Q. He knew that, as Inspector of the district of Montreal?—A. Oh, yes.
. Q. Now, was there anything specified by Clerk to Mr. Farrow regarding
_ Bisaillon’s activities?—A. Well, as I recall the conversation, it chiefly had to
~ do with the smuggling of automobiles. But I-also recall that Mr. Clerk told
me or referred to a previous conversation with the Depﬁty, in which he said at
sometime Bisaillon had offered him $100 a week to put somebody at some
particular point. I have not got the details, but I have a distinet recollection
of Clerk telling me that Bisaillon offered him $100 every Friday morning.
* Q. That was in the presence of Mr. Farrow, was it?—A. That was in the
presence of Mr. Farrow. ' ‘ v
Q. Mr. Farrow made some reference to it in his evidence. Let me get this
clear. Mr. Clerk had come to Ottawa to discuss this matter with you and with
the Deputy. That is the Bisaillon situation—A. He came to see me. I under-
stood that is what he had come for.
Q. Was this in the Deputy’s office?—A. No, it was in the Chateau Laurier.
Q. At that conference Mr. Clerk, Inspector of Customs at Montreal, who
had been instructed by the Minister to investigate Bisaillon, made the state-
ment that Bisaillon had offered him $100 a week, payable on each Friday
morning, if he, Clerk, would appoint Bisaillon te a position in the Customs
which he desired. ! :
“Mr. Gagnon: Before the answer is given, Mr. Sparks is now reporting a
. conversation which took place between him and Mr. Clerk.
_ Mr. BeLn: 'And Mr. Farrow. ;
Mr. Gagyzox: Mr. Farrow was not there. The witness says he was report-
ing statements that Clerk made to Mr. Farrow. If it is not hearsay I do not
know what it is. : i

Hon. Mr. Stevens: If the stenographer will read me the question, we
will see what it is. -

Question read as follows:

“Q. At that conference, Mr. Clerk, Inspector of Customs at Mont-

‘real, who had been instructed by the Minister to investigate Bisaillon,.-

made the statement that Bisaillon had offered him $100 a week, payable

o on each Friday morning, if he, Clerk, would appoint Bisaillon to a posi-
tion in the Customs which he desired?” °

A. My recollection is; that in the presence of Mr. Farrow Mr. Clerk made
- the statement as I have narrated it, that he had been‘offered by Bisaillon $100
a week for a certain consideration, which had to do with the placing of some-
body at some specific duty—the names I vould not recollect, but I have a clear
recollection that there was a consideration of the placing of somebody at some
specific duty.

The Cuamman: That is not the best proof to offer. It is only a matter

of opinion. You may take the evidence necessary to complete that particular
point. That proof by itself is not complete, and it is not admissible in law.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Regarding the question of prosecutions—and, in asking this question
I want to make it clear to the Committee that I am not reflecting upon the
administration of the courts of Quebec, but I think we ought to have the facts—
yvhat was your experience in regard to the prosecution of cases of smuggling,
in, we will say, the city of Montreal?—A. Very unsatisfactory.

e [Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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The CHAIRMAN: Walt a mmute now. I take the statement }unt en‘imcz—
ated by Mr. Stevens as fair—“in the courts of Quebec" but on the other hand
I would like to have it understood that the witness is only testxfymg to a ques- i
- tion of oplmon : ; : Pt

= % = ¥ —

~ By Hon. Mr. Stevens.:

Q. I will put the question another way, Mr. Chairman: Did-you ever have
any correspondence with the Attorney General of Quebec regarding the manner
in which cases were conducted in the provinee of Quebec?—A. Both corre-
spondence and personal discussion. :

Q. Did you ever have any correspondence w1th the Prime Minister of
Quebec?—A. The Prime Minister and the Attorney General are the same. Mr.

Taschereau is Prime Minister~and” Attorney General < AL

Q. What did you lay before Mr. Taschereau in this regard?—A. I laid
before Mr. Taschereau a comprehensive Q‘ca,tem t dealing with specific cases.

Q. Have yvou got a statement or a copy of it?—A. No, Mr. Henderson
mlght have it. I have not with me the original statement, \Whlch took place a
considerable time before the organization of the Commercial Protective Associa-
tion. I had taken the matter up with Sir Lomer Gouin, who advised me that
it was a provincial matter.

Q. Sir Lomer was then Minister of Justice?—A. Sir Lomer was then Min-
ister of Justice. We subsequently saw Mr. Taschereau, a deputation of -three,
including myself, and presented to Mr. Taschereau ten specimen cases, taken
from the files of the court house in Montreal, giving the names in each case, of
the judge, counsel for the deienve and coun~el for the Crown, regarding the
procedure in each case.

Q. Well now, what was the response of Mr. Taschereau to your representa-
tions?>—A. Mr. Taschereau advised us to go back to Ottawa and have the
Customs Act changed.  Mr. Taschereau freely admitted that it was an unsatis-
factory condition, from the standpoint of business men. ¢

Q. That is, it was very difficult to get.convictions, and that the process
was very slow?—A. Very slow, I"think Mr. Calder will bear me out in that.

Q. Just one further question upon that point. As a result of your investi-

gations and your experience, do you consider that some definite effort should
be made to speed up prosecutions?—A. There is no doubt about that. >
Q.- Where prosecutions are held?—A. There is no doubt about the necessity
of that. = ,
Q. Do yvou (on~1rler that as a contributing factor to the continuance of =
stantial rontrlbutmg “factor. :
Q. Just Iot me sum un in a few woras the situation.—A. Mr. Stevens, in
order-that I may not be unfair to anybody, might T say this; reference has been

i e Talbisc

SR

made to the Montreal courts, and they are verv bad in that regard, but we have E
had experiences in the courts of Ontario just about as bad as in the Provinece ]
of Quebec. :

Q. Did you ever make any repre~entat10n~ to the Hon. Mr. Nickle or to
the Attorney General of the Province of Ontario?—A. I wrote a letter to the
Toronto Committee, asking them to make representations to the Attorney
General. : ; 3

Q. What you state in regard to the necessity of. speeding of proSecutions
is a general remark applicable to Ontario as well as Quebeec; as well as other
sections or provinces?—A, Well, border magistrates, magistrates in border towns
should not be dealing with smuggling matters at all; they are subject to local
influence,-and you cannot get a.sound administration of justice from border
magistrates.

{Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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SBy Mr. Bell, KC.: T

3 Q Mr. Sparks, do you recollect any specific place in Ontario which you
hawze occasion to criticize on account-of delays?—A. There are circumstances
m connection with these cases that I would prefer not to say anything about.
3 - of course, I am willing to tell the committee the names of the courts, the judges
L and the magmtratee

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
3 Q. Just to sum up what I want to ask you,—then I haxe another queetlon
. upon another subject,—I want to ask this; were your sathﬁed with the legisla-
tlon of last year and the vote of $350, 0007—A Yes.
. Q. But you are not satisfied with the_results of that legislation, up to the
. present time?—A. No.
' Q. One other subject and I am through.

il The Cuamman: I would like like to ask one question, with your permission,
% Mr. Stevens. =i

>

- By the Chairman:
i - Q. Did you suggest to the Government any way to expend that $350,000?—
& AiYes.
Q. A very definite way?—A. A very definite way. :
Q. Which would be to the satisfaction of the Commercial Protective Asso=
ciation; did you show them a plan, how to spend that money?—A. I suggested

Duncan, as-to vsorkmg out-a plan. I was satisfied to leave it with those three
gentlemen. They were Government officials.

By Hon. My, Stevens:

Q. By the way, did your association ask for that $350,000 vote to be made?
—A. Well, there were no funds; the Government had no funds for preventive
work, to carry on any extensive programme; we urged them to provide funds,
and they did so.

Q. Let me ask a question or two in connection with the Gaunt case. You
remember the Gaunt case?—A. Yes.

Q. The John Gaunt Company seizure? 7~ A Yes—

Q. Are you well acquainted with the case?—A. I have a general knowledge
of what took place.

Q. Did your association give the first information that resulted in that
-seizure?>—A. T believe so.

Q. Will you tell the committee vour view of that case, as a typical case
seriously affecting business men; T want you to give a business man's view of
the case, briefly? —A. We believed, in fact we knew that fraudulent invoices
were being used for the entry of goods. This was a case in which it was proven
‘that one thousand invoices had been obtained from Holland, signed, and used

invoices, and passed them through the Customs. Tt was a type of fraud whieh
we knew went on. Once we discovered it, we wanted it investigated and prose-
cuted vigorously. There was a prosecution for having false invoices in posses-
sion. Gaunt pleaded guilty, and was fined $500. - There was no effogf made,
s0 far as T am aware, to find out the extent of the fraud, the means which were
used to defraud the Government, and no effort made to recover moneys which
we believed should have been recovered, and we were very much dissatisfied with
the whole conduet of the case.

Q. Let me get that quite clear. You say Gaunt,_w\as fined $5007—A. Yes,
under one section. ¢
7 [Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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~ what I have said, a conference between Mr. Farrow, Mr. Wilson and Inspector

by an importer, who took his original invoices, copied them on to fraudulent .
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Q. That was for having certified blank invoices in his possession?—A. Yes.

Q. But there was no prosecution of his action in filing the invoices and pass-~

ing them for-bona fide invoices, which is a matter of fraud?—A. That is right.

Q. There was no prosecution for that?—A. There was no prosecution for

that at all. : -3 <3

Q. That is your criticism of the conduct of this case?—A. That is my .

criticism of it. - < 4

Q. You feel that the man who uses blank certified invoices, filling them in’

- and defrauding the exchequer, ought to be prosecuted?—A. Yes, and the exchequer §

ought to recover the amount out of which it had been defrauded. 4

Mr. Hexorrson, K.C.: A civil action might have followed, to ascertain the

extent to which that man had defrauded the Government. That is only a typical
case.

" Hon. Mr. Srrvens: I did not catch that, Mr. Henderson.

* Mr. HenpersoN, K.C.: 1 say a civil action might have followed, to recover
the moneys in respect of which Gaunt had defrauded the Government.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: In addition? i
Mr. Kennepy, KiC.: Yes, in addition to the criminal case. B

==

By Hon. Mr. Stevens: »

Q. I said T was done, but there is one further subject I would like to
refer to, although I understand we are going to take it up later on; that is,
the subject of prison made goods. I think your word has been challenged,
Mr. Sparks, in a telegram sent by the Reliance Company. T would like to
give you an opportunity of giving your reply to that now, which I think you
are entitled to have. o

The CuamrMaN: This man has been summoned, and has made an assertion
in person. This employee from the Reliance Company has been summoned,
and the clerk has fixed the date. That man should be heard first, and then
Mr. Sparks can come in in rebuttal.

Wirness: That would suit me very well, because I am conducting a most
complete investigation into the whole thing. -

The Cuamman: I object to the filing of that telegram or letter now.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Very good. I will ask Mr. Sparks a few questions
about these prison-made goods. -

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Mr. Sparks, has this importation of prison made goods been a matter
of serious annoyance and loss to Canadian manufacturers and Canadian
dealers?—A. Very serious. - ' -

Q. And the competition is such that it is hopeless for our people to compete
with these goods?—A. Absolutely hopeless.

Q. What is the rate per day of the wages, do you recollect?—A. It varies
in the various penal institutions. It is a matter of tender, a matter of specu- _ =
lagion. It is one of the most serious economic problems in the United States, 3
that is, employing the services of thousands of prisoners. It runs down I think
to 20 cents a day, 40 cents and 60 cents, depending upon the State in which the
contract is given, and depending upon the political influence of the man who
wants the contract. ™

Q. You do know Milton Goodman, of the Reliance Manufacturing Com-
pany ?—A. Yes. : @ SN

Q. Have you had an opportunity of investigating their operations in times
past?—A. I know something of them. ; :

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.] =
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4, Q. This man Goodman is one of the chief-contractors of prison labour
~ in the United States?—A. There is no doubt about that. : .
i Q. Is the head of all the prison contracting concerns?—A. He is president
of the Reliance Manufacturing Company, or was up until recently; I do not
. want to speak of the present moment, but up until very recently they were the
~ largest operators and the largest owners of prison contracts in the United
States. , . y
" Hon. Mr. Stevexs: We will let this rest until we take that case up separ-
- ately. That is all I have to ask, Mr. Chairman. 1 -

’

Ve

-~

By the Chairman:

Q. You told us, Mr. Sparks, at the beginning of your cross-examination
today that you had received many complaints about silk from many of the
" members of the Canadian Protective Association. Would you be good enough
to file before the committee a complete list of the subscribers or members of
 your Association since it has been organized, if that is possible?—A. T think
. it is in otr papers here, they are all here. .

# Q. They are filed?—A. They are produced, not filed. :

- Q. If this list is not right, will you get one?—A. I will produce one.

Mr. Erztorr: I want to ask a question in regard to the productions; I
- want to ask the witness, although I do not intend to examine him upon the
. minutes, just one or two questions.

By Mr. Elliott:

Q. I see, Mr. Sparks, that the minutes presented by you today, which we
asked for a week ago, start on the 20th of October, 1924?—A. Yes.

Q. Your correspondence shows that your organization started to function
on the 6th of August, 1924. That was about the date of your meeting with
tile cabinet?—A. The Canadian Pretective Association had not been established
then. : .

Q. I am just asking, were any minutes kept prior to the 20th of October,
1924?—A. I think not./ I am sure there were none, if Mr. Tolchard says there
were none.

Q. You have'a branch in Toronto, and apparently that is where the minutes
were kept?—A. The minutes of the Toronto meeting. §

Q. Are these minutes you produce minutes of all the meetings which were
hield in connection with you association?—A. No.

Q. Where are the rest?—A. These are all that exist, so far as T am aware;
. there were no minutes.

Q. Are these minutes that are produced by you all the minutes that have
been taken by your Association or any branch of it?—A. So far as I know,
that is correct, sir.

Q. And they were all taken by Mr. Toplehard?—A. They were all taken
by Mr. Tolchard.

. In Toronto?—A. Yes.
And kept in Toronto?—A. Yes.
. You have a branch in Montreal?—A. We had an office in Montreal.
Were minutes kept of the proceedings at Montreal?—A. No.
No minutes were kept?—A. No. &
Of those meetings?—A. No.
. Did Mr. Tolchard attend the meetings at Montreal?—A. No.
. He did not?—A. No.
. Then were the Montreal meetings meetings of this Association?—A. The
Montreal meetings were meetings of the Montreal committee. I should say more

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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often than otherwise the committee had dinner together, and there woula. be
a general discussion, but no minutes kept.

Q. No record was kept of what they decided at those meetings?—A. Mr. o

Robertson, the Chairman might have some records; I will ask him.

Q. Will you endeavour to get them?—A. I (rertamly will. .

Q. I do not want to hurry you, but I hope we will be able to get them in
less than a week?—A. Mr. Robertson is in New York today.

Q. Then there were no minutes kept here in Ottawa‘?—A None in Ottawa.

There are also some letters I want you to produce for the committee, Mr.

Sparks, and if I give you the dates perhaps it will be better than my attempting

to extricate them from the file. I will hand you a list of the letters T wish you
~ to produce, and the dates.

Mr./Henberson, K.C.: Are they among those produced or are they new
letters; are they among the letters produced?

Mr. Erutorr:  Very largely, T think.
; Mr. HexpersoN, K.C.: They can be filed, by the dlrectmn of the commit-
ee.

By Mr. Donaghy: '
Q. Mr. Sparks, there seems to be some doubt about, ’oha.t black shirt; it seems
to come up quite often. I want to show you a big poster here offenng $1,000

reward; you might trace this up. It says that this advertisement is being run |

in industrial and labour publications reaching more than 4,000,000 readers.
I am going to show it to you. It is a rather remarkable document it deals
with this black shirt, offering $1,000 reward, apparently, to anybody that will
produce any ev1dence that this Goodman shirt is made in a prison factory.—
A. Milton F. Goodman is liable to do something pretty startling.

Mr. Bern: Is the poster dated?

Mr. DonagrY: I don’t know whether it is dated or not.

The Witness: I might call attention to this sentence in the poster, “Made
nowhere except in our twelve modern sanitary factories shown on this page.”
He does not, say that the employees and operators in his twelve modern sanitary
factories are not State prisoners which, as a matter of fact, they are. That
is the answer.

By Mr. Kennedy:

Q. Mr. Sparks, you are chiefly interested in connection with the Commer-
cial Protective Association in the suppression of smuggled goods from the
United States into Canada, silks and so on?—A. Commodities, largely, yes.

Q. In your investigations did you come across evidence that there was
another kind of goods being smuggled from Canada to the United States?—
A. T instructed all our men to report nothing to me on the question of liquor.
It was another problem, and it was a dirty filthy business that I didn’t want
to mix up in, and I have no reports of any kind on it.

Q. The business is there, however.—A. The business is undoubtedly there.

By the Chairman:
Q. You cared only for overalls?——A We were interested in the return
cargoes, and while we were interested in the system, we did not feell like going
into the whole question in all its phases.

By Mr. Kennedy:

Q. In one of your letters to the Prime Minister, I think it is the letter
dated August 8th, you state that there are thousands of men engaged in the
smuggling business along the international boundary?—A. Yes sir.

{Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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ur remedy for the prevention of smuggling was to put teeth into the
an Customs Act and an efficient preventive service?—A. Yes. :
Q. Do you think it would be sufficient if, for instance, we have men who

e interested in the smuggling of liquor from Canada into the United States? -
In my judgment it would prevent 75 per cent to 90 per cent of all the
mmercial smuggling. 3 {

Q. That is, from Canada into the United States?—A. From the United
tes into Canada. i : _

Q. You think the problem can be successfully handled by just looking at |
from one side?—A. Undoubtedly it can, at a very .small cost. ;

; By Mr. Donaghy: 1
~ .Q. By the way, Mr. Sparks, you made a rather interesting remark that I
~ never heard made before. That is, that prison labour in the United States—
~ the labourers are taken from the prisons to factories, where they work. I
. was rather astonished to hear that, but I was also interested to hear it—
The whole subject is interesting. There is no set method. In some States
e State supplies the factory and machinery. ' In some States the State supplies
e factory, and the contractor the machinery. In some States the State
supplies nothing; the contractor supplies the factory and machinery.
Q. And you think this Reliance Manufacturing Company has some factories
making shirts, and that they get the prisoners out of jail and bring them
to the factories? —A. I propose, if I am permitted, to put comprehensivn
evidence before this committee next week on that point.
Q. We would be very glad to hear it.—A. Very well.

| By the Chairman: Py

i Q. You said a moment ago that your Association, the Commercial Protec-
- tive Association, had a place of business in Montreal?—A. We had an office.

1 Q. Did you close that office?—A. Yes.

. Q. When?—A., I should say in August.

' Q. Of what year?—A. 1925.

o By Mr. Elliott: y
-~ Q. May I just ask one question, arising out of something said to one o
. my colleagues just now. In your investigations into the smuggling of clothing
*and dry goods generally—it was dry goods you limited yourself to, practically?
- —A. No, cigarettes, automobiles, jewellery, and radio supplies.
Q. But you never happened to run across liquor smugglers, in your investi
. gations?—A. Yes, we very frequently did.
Q. It would be of interest to me, and perhaps to some other members of
. the committee, to know why vou paid no attention to that branch of smuggling?
- —A. Because my organization was supported by business men involved in the
lines of trade which I have indicated, and we were endeavouring to protect our
*  own business, and incidentally to protect the revenues of the country. We
*+ were not altruists at all; we were trying to protect our own legitimate business,
- and that is what we were interested in. ‘
- Q. You were an organization of people representing various business con-
cerns?—A. Yes. 3
A Q. And were not concerned at all as to the evasions of the Act so far as
- liquor smuggling was concerned. Is that correct?—A. All tax-payers are con-
. cerned. Yes, we were very much concerned.
\ Q. Then why is it that you did not devote yourselves to the liquor end of
. it, which I am told is, in certain sections, the biggest end of the smuggling
- business in this country?—A. It was too big a job for us to handle the liquor
g ‘ [Mr. R. P. Sparks.]

49




D44 ! : SPEC’IAL C'OMMITTEE ‘

§ ‘ £,
prog}em We were not competent or capable of dea.lmg w1th that tremendous g
problem. = — k
Q. You realize that that is a very serious and unportant matter?—A. Very )

' serious and important. s

Q. At the present time?—A. Yes. '

/ Q. And as I understand it, you were lookmg out for the busmesm which
your people were engaged in?—A. Exactly.. '

Q. Purely and simply?—A. And our interest, fortunately, c01nc1ded with
the public interest, so we were on very sound ground national ground.

Q. I swould say rather that the principle coincided with the public prmc:ple,
but your interest was purely concerned with the business that you were con-
nected with—A. I think, Mr. Elliott, if you will examine the list of our sub-
scribers, you will find that our interest is substantially the public interest; we
are a very important section of the public, the commercial interests of Canada.
It is very hard to separate those from the public interests.

Q. At any rate, you are not offering to give the government, or this com-
mittee any cuggestlons with regard, to the amelioration of conditions with regard
to liquor smuggling?—A. No, we would prefer not to.

By Mr. Kennedy: ' ;
Q. Mr. Sparks, I think you described the situation in July, 1925, as hope-
ful?—A. Yes sir.

Q. What about September, 1925; how would you describe it at that
period ?—A. Hope had pretty well disappeared.

Q. What was the reason for that?—A. The reason was the failure of the
Minister to grasp the situation that he had-in his hand; he threw his chance
away and did nothing,

Q. What did you do then?—A. I remonstrated with him.

Q. Did you-take it up with anybody else‘?——A No, there was nobody here :
after that. i
Q. Was it after that time that you took it up with Mr. Forke and Mr.

Meighen?—A. No, that would be in February or March.

Q. Are we right in concluding that from September, 1925, until after the
election there was very little done by your organization?—A. Yes, we did not
do much. But there was this, Mr. Kennedy; the Associated Boards of Trade
were meeting at Winnipeg, and I was asked by both the Toronto and Montreal
Boards of Trade to prepare a memorandum on smuggling, which I did, and these
Associated Boards of Trade passed a resolution which they proposed presenting
to the Government. In view of that, we decided to see how the Boards of
Trade got on before we made representations immediately after the election. We
left it in their hands from, I should say, September until' November—we left
it in the hands of the Associated Boards of Trade.

Q. Until November?—A. Yes, until about November.

Q. Then what action did you take?—A. Then Mr. Stevens came to see me,
and T thought/then the Committee was going to function. The Minister gave
evidence saying that from the 1st of December until now he Kas done nothing,
leaving it to the judgment of this Committee, and I took exactly the same position

as the Minister.

By Mr. Donaghy:
Q. I don’t think the Minister said he had done nothing?—A. Forbuna.tely I
have a copy of his evidence, which I w111 be glad to read.

By Hon. Mr. Boivin:
Q. I wish you would?—A. The Minister’s words suit me splendidly; they -
are exactly my position. ;. ; 1
[Mr. R. P. Sparks.] : _ ‘. S d s AT OR 5
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By the C’hazrnwn s i i

- On what page?—A. Page 85 (Reading): :

‘ ~ “Q. Have you taken any action outside of ﬁrmg Mr. Bisaillon, as

 you say you did on the 11th of December?—A. No, I have not. I
- discussed the matter with one or two of my officials, but in view of the

fact that this inquiry was taking place, in view of ‘the fact that the entire

~ evidence was being placed before the Committee, in view of the fact
. that I felt that the Committee should recommend in the matter, make its

recommendations in the matter, I left it to the Committee to decide what

 steps should be taken for the punishment of any one who may have been

found guilty, and any- changes in the orga.mzatmn which they might

desire to recommend.”

e By Mr Donaghy :

- Q. Where do you find -the words that he had done nofthmg since the 1st

December?—A. (Reading): “Q. Have you taken any action outside of

firing Mr. Bisaillon, as you said you dld‘on the 11th December?—A. No, I
ave not.” :

.~ Q. Where do you find the words that he had done nothing since the 1st
~ of December?—A. Perhaps I.should not have left that impression; I do not

~ want to do that.

" Mr. Be: It is-there for what it is worth.

By the Chairman:

g Q. You mean he had complied with the Customs Act as it is now drafted?
- —A. I do not want any reflection on the Minister from anything I say.

s Mr. Donagry: It is very clear that the Minister says there that since the
appointment of this Committee he has not interfered.

The Wrrness: That was about the 1st of December.. My position was the

- same.

Mr. Henperson, K.C.: Mr. Sparks did not intend to cmmclze the Mlmster

. it was rather the other ~way about.

_ Mr. DoxacaY: I wanted to correct that wrong impression.

- The WirNess: Seeing that the Minister has said I was not entirely fair
~ to him, I want to say I have no desire to be unfair to anybody-.

3

By Mr. Kennedy:

Q. The opinion of your organization in November was that the only way to
~ handle the situation would be through a parliamentary committee?—A. A par-
liamentary committee was asked for and we thought it should be gone on with.
Mr. HexpersoN, K.C.: And they had felt that way for a long time.

By Mr. Elliott:

Q. Was a parliamentary committee discussed before November, or was that

- the first occasion?—A. No, away back. It appears in my correspondence with

'1 - the Prime Minister in March or April. It-had previously been a matter of
. discussion with the Prime Minister. We are clearly on record as believing in

a parliamentary committee. ,

Q. For a year?—A. For a year-and-a- half

The CuamrRMAN: That is all.

Hon. Mr. Borvin: No, just a minute. T have quite a few questions I want
~ to ask, and there is one I want to take up at once.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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By Hon. Mr. Boivin: AL f , RIS PR

Q. Seeing that you have broken your rule regarding private conversations,
and repeated what you say I said to you privately, that you had been unfair
to me, I wish you would complete that conversation and say in what manner
you had been unfair to me?—A. Well, Mr. Boivin, your opening words were
“breach of confidence.” I must say I thmk your breach in the House of Com-
mons was the first breach. Now, I will answer your question. Your conver-
sation in this room, in which you said that I had been most unfair to you in not
giving you a chance was not—I did not regard 1t as a private conversation:
other gentlemen heard it. '

Q. Then why did you say it was rpnvate‘?—~A In a conversation in this
room. - 4
Q. Well, I have nothing to hide in any of my conversations, Mr. Sparks,
and you are quite at liberty to reveal anything I have ever said to you. Let
that be understood at once. There is nothing confidential about any conver-
sation between you and me. I want to ask you—and I want you to be fair with
me, and I want to be fair with you—if I did not say that you had been unfair
to the Minister in charge of the Department in not reporting a single case of
infraction or in not making a single request to him since the date of his appoint-
ment? Did I not say that to you?—A. I do not recall that was the position you
took, no.

Q You do not recall that?—A. No.

Q. Well, let me put it in another way. What charges of smuggling, what
charges of maladministration or inefficiency on the part of my officers, what
charge of maladministration in the Department of Customs have you brought
to my attention since my appomtment as a Minister?—A. I havé made myself
clear in saying— ‘

The CuarMAN: That could easily be answered by “yes” or “no.”
The Wirness: No, it cannot be answered by “yes” or “no.”

By Hon. Mr. Bowvin:

Q. T would like a listi of the charges and complaints?—A. I was under no
obligation in any way to bring charges or complaints against your Department
to you. . I saw you at the earliest opportunity I felt was necessary, was abso-
lutely -frank with you, told you my views, told you the views of this Association,
and I think we were in perfect harmony and have been up until a week ago.
You have no complaint to make of me until a week ago.

Q. What complaint have you to make a week ago?—A. What, have you to

make? I have none. I had no complaint to make Well, I had one complamt
to make, yes.

Q. That is the one I want to hear about.—A. It is stated in some coi'res-
pondence which I have no objection to reading.

Q. You are perfectly welcome to read any thmg That is what I want read?
—A. In a letter of February 4th, 1926—if I might refer to a conversation previ-
ous to that letter; may I, Mr. Boiyin?

: Q. You are at llbertv to refer to any conversation that you.like, sir.—
A. I discussed with Mr. Boivin the employment of counsel on behalf of the -
Commercial Protective Association, in a conversation, and I intimated to Mr.

Boivin that there was a certain amount paid by the Commereial Protective

Association which the Deputy Minister had thought might properly be refunded
to this Association. = My recollection of the conversation is that Mr. Boivin
agreed ‘that that would be a very proper action for his Department to take. I
subsequently confirmed the conversation in a letter. (Reads):

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]




» ; EXHIBIT No. 60
e g g 0vmm deruary 4, 1926.

Hon, Grorce H. Bowin, s G 3 s\ ‘
Minister of Customs and Exclse, Y
Ottawa, Ont.

Drar SIr, —It now appears certain that a select committee of Parlia-
ment will be appomted to inquire into the administration of Customs in
regard to the matter of smuggling.

This association, representing as it does: practically all branches of
trade and industry in Canada, has, as you know, conducted an exhaustive
inquiry into this illieit traffic. The name of the association and of the
_undersigned has been mentioned a number of times during the debate,
and we have considerable information which we are desirous of placmg
. before the committee.

[ For your information I beg to attach herew1th a list of the members
e of our, Executive Committee, and also a list of the commercial organiza-
i.ﬁ : tions affiliated with this asso(natlon A perusal of the attached will, I
fol think, convinee you that we might properly assume to represent the whole
k" business community, who are vitally interested in this inquiry.

E. X I propose immediately to consult with our executive as to whether

_ ~ we should be represented by counsel before the Committee of Parliament.
T If we decide that this is desirable two courses are open to us,—first, to
s employ counsel at our own expense, which would necessitate the raising
i of some funds, and second, to request the Govgrnment to provide for the
payment of 1ndependent counsel to act on behalf of the business com-
munity.

In this regard I beg to refer to a matter which is not directly related
to the question of the employment of counsel, but which will, no doubt,
influence our decision in this regard.

s ' One of the reasons why this association conducted an investigation
g in connection with smuggling was that no money was available to the
Customs Department during 1924 for the employment of trained investi-
gators. As a consequence, with the-consent of the Department, this
" association employed a number of investigators, four of whom were
. attached to your Department as Customs Preventive Officers without pay.

Moneys being available after March 31st, 1925, we discussed some

months ago with Mr. R. R. Farrow, the Deputy Minister, the propriety

= of the Customs Department refunding to us certain expenditures incurred

: 18 after the beginning of the new fiscal year. The amount involved was

$5,502.69, vouchers for which can be furnished. Mr. Farrow agreed that

e it would be a very proper action for your Department to refund this
i amount. No such refund, however, has been made.

If such funds are now made available to us I believe our decision will

be to use such amounts as may be required for the payment of counsel.
This would relieve us of the necessity of raising funds at the present time,
and also would make it unnecessary to make any request to the Govern-
ment in this regard. ' :
R As the investigation is of very keen interest to the business com-
munity, and in fact to every tax payer in Canada, we think it proper
that independent counsel should be in attendance, and we, therefore,
trust that you will see fit to authorize the payment to this association of
e : [Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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the moneys above referred to, whlch will be used in so far as necessary'\

for the employment of counsel to act on behalf of the busmess com-

munity in the investigation before the committee.
Trusting that this matter will receive your early and favourable
. consideration, I remain, : ! ; L
Yours truly, '

5 R. P. SpARKsS, ‘
Chairman, Executive Commzttee <

That was followed with a very brief conversation with the Minister, in a

room upstairs in which the Minister said, so far as I recollect, that we had béen

most unfair to him, that we had been trymg to make trouble for the Govern-
ment instead of helpmg them, and that he would not_agree to the refunding of
that amount. T subsequently confirmed my recollection of the conversation
by the following letter. (Reads) 5 ,

EXHIBIT No. 61 SN

“ Orrawa, February 12, 1926.
Hon. Georege H. Bowin, 4y
Minister of Customs and Excise,
Ottawa.

Dear Str—In further reference to the matter referred to in my
letter of February 4, my understanding of our conversation of the 10th
“instant was that you would not recommend the rebate of the amounts
referred to. The reason you gave was that this Association had not
been trying to asfist the Customs Department in the prevention of
smuggling, but had been trying to make trouble for the Department.
You stated as a further reason that the Association had been unfair to
you and had not given you a chance. Both these statements are
contrary to fact, and, in any event, have no bearing on the question
at issue.-

I might point out that your statement is a severe reflection on
the honour and good faith of the members of this Association and
particularly so in regard to myself. The only excuse I can make for
your statement is that you are not aware of the facts. In view of your
statement I expect that you will facilitate in every possible way the
establishment before the Committee of the exact relationship which
existed between this Association and your Department.

In the meantime I would appreciate it if you would confirm by
letter our conversation in reply to my letter of February 4. - 7

Yours truly,
R. P. Sparks,

Chairman, Ezecutive Committee.”

Q. Now, Mr. Sparks, I would like to try and establish the relationship
between your Association and the Department, and for that reason, I repeat
again the question. Since my appomtment as Minister what charge of
smuggling, what complaint concerning mal-administration, inefficiency or
. dishonesty, on the part of my officials, did you, as President of this Association,
ever report to me?—A. I reported to you early in December a full statement
of many of the complaints which we had against: vour Department fully.

Q. What complaints?—A. Complaints of dishonesty of officers.

Q. What officers?—A. I do not think I was specific.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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). No, I do not think so.—A. No. But if I might say so, I said this:
t without any reflection on your desire to improve the position, we were
olutely convinced that you were not strong enough to clean the situation
up. That was no reflection on you, sir, but it was our view that this situation
~ would not be cleaned up until the Parliamentary committee exposed it, and
1 told you that you might clean it up as soon as the public had knowledge of
~all the facts, with your hands strengthened but without publicity you were
~ not strong enough to clean up the situation. :

Q. So that from the date of my appointment, until the date of the appoint-
~ ment of this Committee, you did not expect me to do anything?—A. T will not
~ say “anything”. I think you would have done something, but I do not think
- you would have done what we would have wanted. ‘
. Q. Did you not state, Mr. Sparks, that the purpose of the formation of
- the Commercial Protective Association was to co-operate with the Govern-
~ ment for the prevention of smuggling?—A. Yes, sir.

. Q. In what way did you co-operate with the Government for the preven-
tion of smuggling since my appointment as Minister?—A. First, in making
clear to you that we were entirely dissatisfied with the present conditions;
second, by laying before this Committee all the information that we had in
reference to the traffic. T

" Q. And you admit very frankly—I want to be fair to you, and I think
you want to be fair with me—that that is the only co-operation that we have
received from you since I was appointed Minister—A. I wish to revert to your
own words, that as soon as the Committee took up the work, then my view
was that the proper place to go with representations was to that Committee
and not to you. 2 ! ;

Q. Did you think it was quite proper to allow dishonest officials to remain
in office or did you think it was quite proper to allow smuggling to be carried
on from the 1st day of November, 1925, to the date of the appointment of
this Committee, waiting for the Committee to be appointed?—A. No, sir. 1
knew that on November 15th the associated Boards of trade—15 days after
the election—I felt that there was no use in doing anything in the first fifteen
days after the election, but I knew that about the 15th of November the
Associations ‘were going to make representations to you, based on a report
which I had made to them, so they were in substance my representations,
‘made by the Associated Boards of trade. Then two weeks later I laid the
whole situation before you. s

Q. At the time you laid the situation before me, is it not a fact that
Inspector Walter Duncan had been charged by my Department to make an
investigation into the administration of the preventive service in Montreal?
1y —A. It certainly is a fact. It is also a fact that Mr. Stevens moved for a
.« Committee at the same time, approximately on that date.

i Q. Do you know upon what date; in the first place, I do not suppose you
wish to contend that Mr. Stevens moved for a committee before Parliament
assembled?—A. No, I think it was early in December some time, but I do
not know the date. : 3

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: It is very easy to clear that up. The House was called
for December 10th, and, following the practice, I handed the resolution to the
clerk, and it was published.

By Hon. Mr. Boivin:

Q. What date was it published in the Press, Mr. Sparks?—A. I don’t know
anything about these dates; I have no records here, at least.

Q. As a matter of fact, it was published in the Press about the 5th of
December, was it not?—A. I would say that is about right.

. [Mr; R. P. Sparks.]
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: Q. You did not tell me before that that Mr. Stevens intended to do this?—
A. I certainly did not know it. 2 £ ot fp

Q. And it is a matter of common knowledge, and will be shown by the
documents produced, that the investigation had been commenced in Montreal
on the 1st of December, 1925?—A. Of course I have no connection with that;
I know nothing about these facts. I may say that I made representations two
weeks after the election; two weeks later I personally made representations to
you, so that you cannot say that I have not done my duty.

Q. I do not say that, but you admit that it was at the beginning of
December, after Inspector Duncan had begun his investigation, that T met you
in a room at the Windsor Hotel in Montreal?—A. Yes.

- Q. And we had a general conversation?—A. Yes.

Q. Concerning your efforts to prevent smuggling?—A. Yes.

(%. And your general desire to co-operate with the Departmeht?<A. That
is right. {

Q. If I remember correctly, Mr. Sparks, at that time I told you that, as
you had apparently been disappointed many times in promises received from
my predecessors, I would not ask you to accept any promises from me, I merely

~asked you to wait and see what I might do; do you remember that?—A. Well,
I am inclined to think that I took that position first, that promises would be
no use at all.

Q. Possibly?—A. Yes.

Q. I do not say that you did not, but the fact remains that I did not make
any ?—A. No. '

Q. The fact remains that I did say, “Now, Mr. Sparks, give me a chance
and wait and see what I ean do, if I cannot succeed in doing something I want
to.get out of that Department.” Didn’t I say that?—A. I think you did say
that.

Q. After that you had no further conversations with me?—A. None.

Q. You never reported anything to me, and never made any complaints
to me?—A. You know the reason, Mr. Boivin.

Q. You have already stated the reason?—A. This committee was to heet,

Q. Providing Parliament agreed to that?—A. Providing Parliament agreed
to ity ; \ :

Q. Now, Mr. Sparks, before we go into the details of your examination
this morning, I would like to go back a little bit further and ask you who it
was that had the idea of forming the Dominion Smuggling Preventive Associa-
tio, or the Commercial Protective Association, as it was later named?—A. Who
originated the idea? _

Q. Yes, who originated the idea?—A. The idea was first proposed at a
meeting on August 7, 1924. I think the original proposition came from Mr. E.
M. Trowern, the Secretary of the Retail Merchants Association. I have a dis-
tinct recollection of Mr. Trowern calling attention to the Automobile Recovery
Bureau, conducted by the Underwriters Insurance on Store and Automobiles in
the United States, and I think Mr. Trowern first suggested a business organiza-
tion to co-operate with the Government. ,

Q. On what date?—A. I think that would be August 7, 1924,

Q. Was that the day of your interview with the Government?—A. The day
after the interview. It may have been the 6th.

Q. Who was there to mterview the Government at that time?—A. I have
read them into the record. I should say there were twenty-five. ;

Q. Mr. Trowern expressed that idea on the 7th of August, 1924?—A. He
suggested that at a meeting.

Q. A meeting of which organization?—A. A meeting of the people who are
referred to as composing the deputation.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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(1% What orgamzatmn was that?—A. It was called by me as Pre&udent of
‘the Canadian Association of Garment Manufacturers.

' Q. The original meeting was called by you?l—-A The original deputation
was called by me. '
Q. So that you are the founder if I may use the word, of the Commercial
Protective Association?—A. No, I would net say so.

/ Q. Still, you called a meetmg of it, the meeting which was called?—A. That -
right.
O \3 Q. The idea was yours—A. No, Mr. B01v1n, the idea was not mine.

Q. Why did you call the meetmg‘?—A The idea of a deputation waiting
~ on the Government to protest against smuggling was mooted, but at that time
" there was no thought in my head of an organized body

~ Q. What are the conditions of membership in the Commercial Protectlve
Association?—A. There are no conditions of membership. Anybody who will
- contribute towards the funds is a member.

Q. Anyone who will contribute towards the funds; what is the amount of
' the contribution exactly from the members?—A. There is no amount fixed. We
 send out a general appeal. Some people gave $1,000, others gave $§10. We
have no control over that.

Q. Can you tell me roughly, without mentioning the names, how many
people gave you $1,000?7—A. Four I think; six ultimately.

Q. Who sent out the appeal?—A. The Toronto Board of Trade and the
Montreal Board of Trade took in hand the collection of funds. I had com-
~ ‘paratively little to do with it.

; Q. How much money has been collected, from the inception of the move-
ment to date?—A. Approximately $20,000.

Q. Will you be good enough, Mr. Sparks, to file a list of the members of
the Association, and the amount of their respective contributions to it?—A. I
think that is already on file, Mr. Boivin.

Q. If it is not, you will file it?—A. Certainly T will.

Q. Now, Mr. Spa,rks\, I am not going to go over the conversations and the
interviews and the correspondence you had with the different Ministers; in fact
I think that has been very thoroughly done by members of the committee. I
just want to ask you one question, and it is this: what was the last date upon
which the members of your Association considered that the members of the
Government, without exception, were co-operating with you as well as they
could for the prevention of smuggling in Canada?—A. I do not think at any
time all of the members of the Government were co-operating with us; we were
co-operating with them, but they were not co-operating with us.

Q. You say they were not co-operating with you?—A. Yes.

Q. Did you not state in your cross-examination the other day, Mr. Sparks,
that you were of the opinion that until teeth had been placed in the law there
was very little that could be done to prevent smuggling goods into Canada’for
commercial purposes?—A. Yes, I did say that, but I would point this out; I am
not taking back that statement but T would like to point out that at that
particular juncture I was trying to get teeth put into the law, and while T am
not belittling it, while it was an absolutely true statement, perhaps I may have
been a little too optimistic as to what teeth in the law would do.

Q. You are not so sure now that you were absolutely right, that those teeth
would have been the cure of all the evils?—A. I was never sure of that. I
contended at all times, in every letter and at every interview that teeth in the
law were no good mthout, a preventne service, and that a preventive service
was no good without a good law.

Q. So that both should have been organized or created at the same time?
—A. Exactly.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks,]
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Q. The teeth were placed in the law on June 28th 1925 1f I remember, g
rightly>—A. Yes, parliament passed the Act.

Q. When did you first request the government or the Minister to give
power to some of your investigators—that is to say, to give them the power
generally conferred upon the Preventive Service officers, but without salary?
—A. It was discussed at the meeting of August 6th, with the Cabinet.

Q. When did your men get these powers?—A. In October ‘some time.

Q. In October, 1924?—A. October, 1924. - v
Q. You refer there to Inspector Duncan and three other men?—A. That is
right. ;

Q. Mr. Knox, Mr. Alexander, and who was the third?—A. Mr. Sloan.
Q. They \remamed in your employ until what date?—A. The end of July,
I think.

Q. Have you any recollection, Mr. Sparks, of the date upon which Mr.
Knox and Mr. Alexander were placed upon the preventive staff of the Depart-
ment of Customs at a salary paid by the Department of Customs?—A. Well, it
would be immediately after their leaving us. They went from us into the
Preventive Service.

Q. In other words, the only change in their position was that instead of
being paid by your Aesocxatlon they were, after that certain date, paid by the
government?—A. Yes, and in connection with my letter, our pos1t10n was that
the government nnght quite properly date back their payment to March 31st,
when funds were available. . ; :

Q. I quite understand that. They continued the same class of work
that they were doing, paid by the government?—A. I understand so, yes.

Q. Is it not a fact, Mr. Sparks, that their position was hardly changed,
and that they continued, as before, to perform their duties under your guid-
ance and advice, to a certain extent?—A. Well, guidance and advice would
hardly be correct no.

Q. Use your own expreesmn then.—A. When they were absorbed into the
Department, I went to Mr. Wilson and asked him what my relationship was
to them. He said I was free to discuss matters just as I had before, so I had
no guidance or advice, but when I was in Montreal I might meet ‘them and
discuss matters.

Q. That is what I mean, that from the time they were taken over by the
government; in other words, when the government took these men over, there
was no intention of removing them from your jurisdiction, or preventing com-
munication with you in any way.—A. They were removed from our jurisdiction,
but there was no interference with my speaking to them, that is all.

Q. No interference with your speaking to them?—A. That is all.

Q. And you have remained in communication with them more or less since?
—A. Yes, I have seen them at times.

Q. You say that up to the time that Bill 145 was passed, after you had
interviewed Mr. Meighen, Mr. Forke and other members, you were fairly well
satisfied with the efforts of the government. I think you said that again
this morning—A. I was hopeful.

Q. Hopeful?—A. Yes sir.

Q. You say that hope disappeared when?———A It was pretty well d1ss1pated
by September.

Q. In other words, it gradually diminished from July to September?—
A. It evaporated when I had an interview with Mr. Cardin and learned
the method of appointing the preventive officers. Then it was through.

Q. What date was that?—A. September, some time.

Q. Are you aware of the fact that very few of the preventive officers that
you refer to had been appointed in September?—A. I was then aware of the

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.] (
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: ﬂia.t Mr Cd?rdm was not go:ng to do What 1 had suggested. My suggestion
; not have been proper, but I knew then that our plan—that is, the plan of
‘having Mr. Wilson, Mr. Farrow and Mr. Duncan Work out a plan—had been
andoned J
50 Permanently, or temporarily?—A. I know Mr Cardin told me that
B h'ey; were appointing officers, and a statement was published in the press that
they had appointed 200.
kK Q. Is it not a matter of fact that Mr. Cardm told you that he was only
g Actmg Minister of the Department, and that he did not want to make any
~ drastic changes in the organization until a permanent Minister was appointed?
- —A. That is quite—hardly the conversation, but I would point out that a state- .
~ ment had been issued by the Department officially, that 200 men had been
: Aappomted Taking that, with Mr. Cardin’s statement to me that the appoint-
~ ments must be very secret and that nobody must know who they were; taking
the whole situation officially, from official statements of . the Mlmster I
. concluded—and properly concluded—that my plan had been abandoned.
g Q- Now, Mr. Sparks, you want to be fair, don’t you?—A. Absolutely.
. Q. Will you tell me when any official statement, was ever issued by the
- Department, of Customs that 200 men had been appointed to the Preventive
Service under that vote?—A. I will produce the paper that it appeared in.
~ Q. You will produce the paper with that statement in it, a statement made
£ to thtzpress by the Deputy Mlnlqter‘?—A Yes, so the newspaper who published
1t sal
"Q. That 200 men had been appointed?—A. Yes.
- Q. You will produce that to-morrow?—A. Yes sir, and the Deputy Minister
. will verify it here.
B Q. Let the Deputy Minister speak for himself. All T want you to say—
at least, I am not going to dictate the answer, but all I want to ask you is,
~ upon what date was that declaration made?—A. I do not recollect the date,
~ but I recollect the item very well.
Q. You don’t recollect the date?—A. No.
, Q. Can you swear that that was in September?—A. No, without looking
up I would not, swear to September.
Q. Can you swear it was in October?—A. I wouldn’t swear to it at all.
. Q. Is it not a fact that the statement was not published in the press until
F - November?——A It might be so.
" Q. And still your hope vanished in September?—A “The hope vanished
with my interview with Mr. Cardin.

The Committee adjourned till- 10.30 to-morrow.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS )

WeDNESDAY, 24th February, 1926.

The Committee met at 10.30 a.m., Mr. Mercier,‘ the Chairman, presiding.
* Present: Messrs. Bell, Bennett, Donaghy, Doucet, Elliott, Kennedy, Mercier,

- St. Pére and Stevens—9.

The minutes of yesterday’s meeting were read and approved.

' Moved by Mr. Doucet,—For copy of the report of the court proceedings
in the case of the King vs. Albert Fillmore, Port Elgin, N.B., for infraction of
. customs laws in 1925.
Motion agreed to.

Moved by Mr. Doucet,—For the production of the files containing all docu-
. ments, reports, correspondence and telegrams in connection with the theft of
. liquor at St. Leonard, N.B., in 1924 and 1925.

' Motion agreed to.

Moved by Mr. Doucet,—For the files containing documents, correspondence,
telegrams and reports in connection with the seizure of the schooner Annie B. M.,
in 1924 or 1925 and disposal of liquor seized, as per customs seizure No. 5238.

Motion agreed to.

Moved by Mz. Doucet,—For the production of the files containing the corre-
spondence exchanged between the Right Honourable W. L. Mackenzie King
and the Social Service Council of Nova Scotia re the violation of Customs and
Excise laws. ;3 \

Motion agreed to.

The Chairman read a letter from Mr, A. F. Holmes, a witness before the
Committee on the 19th instant, asking that his evidence be corrected, to the
effect, that he was in the Customs Service for twelve years, seven of which were
at Rock Island (page 200).

The Chairman read a letter from the Clerk of the Peace, Quebec, dated 20th
February, 1926, respecting the record in the case of Bisaillon, Brien, Hearn and
Symons, stating that the main part of said record could be had from the Clerk
of the Session in Montreal. Montreal record to be procured.

Mr. Laverty, K.C., asked that Mr. Jenkins, summoned to appear on the
22nd instant and still awaiting examination, be released. Mr. Jenkins to remain
in attendance.

Mr. R. P. Sparks was further cross-examined. .He produced a statement
of subscriptions received for the work of the Commercial Protective Association
to September 1st, 1925, and filed,—

Exhibit No. 62—Extract from Toronto Globe of July 13, 1925, headed ““ 200
secret service officers to commence big offensive against border rum-runners .

The witness retired.

The Committee adjourned until to-morrow at 10.30 a.m.

WALTER TODD,
Clerk of the Commiattee.

16628—13






MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

WepNEsDAY, February 24, 1926.

The Special Committee appointed to investigate the administration of the
. Department of Customs and Excise and charges relating thereto, met at 10.30
. a.m., the Chairman, Mr. Mercier, presiding.

. R. P. Sparks, cross-examination continued.

By the Chairman:
Q. Mr. Sparks, you understand you are under the same oath?—A. Yes, sir.

By Hon. Mr. Boivin:

Q. Mr. Sparks, the thread of our cross-examination was interrupted yester-
. day by the adjournment. I think at the moment of adjournment, or just about
* that time, I had made inquiries concerning Mr. Duncan, Mr. Knox, Mr. Alex-
. ander and Mr. Sloan, the four gentlemen who were first employed by the Com-
- mercial Protective Association to assist in making an investigation into the
general conditions concerning the possibility of smuggling in Canada?—A. Yes,
Sir.

Q. Would you be kind enough to tell the committee where you secured the
gervices of these four gentlemen?—A. We secured the services of Mr. Duncan
through the kindness of the Hon. Mr. Robb, Minister of Finance; we secured
the services of Mr. Knox through the kindness of the Canadian Pacific Railway,
with whom Mr. Knox was engaged on investigation work; we secured the services
of Mr. Sloan and Mr. Alexander through applications from them for employ-
ment with us.

Q. Which one of the four did you first engage?—A. Mr. Duncan.

Q. Did Mr. Duncan have anything to do with the recommendation of the
others?—A. Oh, certainly, yes.

A YQ. And they remained directly in your employ until the 1st of July, 1925?—
. Yes.

2 Q. After which they became the paid employees, that is to say, referring to
Mr. Knox and Mr. Alexander—they became the paid employees of the Depart-

ment of Customs?—A. I think so.

Q. And Mr. Duncan remained in the employ of the Department of Fin-
ance?—A. Yes, so I understand. b

Q. What became of Mr. Sloan?—A. We did not suggest his employment
by the Department. :

Q. Were any other of your officers given the power of preventive officers
without salary, by the Department of Customs?—A. No, sir.

Q. With whom did you have any communication concerning what you con-
gidered to be the proper way of expending the $350,000 vote which you were, to
a certain extent, instrumental in obtaining from the last House of Commons,
the last Parliament?—A. I think the most important discussions were with Hon.
%'Ivyi Cardin, the acting Minister. I also discussed it with Mr. Farrow and Mr.

ilson.

Q. Can you recall at what date you had that discussion with Mr. Cardin?—
A. There were several discussions. One took place in the Chateau Laurier; I
could not locate the date, but it was very shortly after the passing of the vote.
The other took place later, I should say in September.

[Mr. R. P. Bparks.]
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Q. You say, very shortly after the passing of the vote. What was the
reason you did not discuss this matter with Mr. Bureau?—A. Mr. Bureau was
not here. \

Q. T think in your examination in chief, or in your cross-examination by
Mr. Elliott, you have already stated about What date Mr. Bureau finally left
Ottawa; can you, for my information, give me the date of your last communica-
tion with Mr. Bureau?—A. My recollectlon is that it would be a.bout February
or March, but I am not clear about it.

Q. I thmk there is a letter on file saying that he left Ottawa on or about
February 17th?—A. That would be about correct.
o Mr. HENDERSON, K C.: There was some correspondence indicating those

dates.

Hon. Mr. Borvin: I am speaking subject to correction, but I think there
was a lapse between Mr. Bureau’s leaving Ottawa and Mr. Cardin’s appoint-
ment as Acting Minister.

By Hon. Mr. Boivin:

Q. I think Mr. Cardin was appointed on February 17th, and Mr. Bureau
left a couple of weeks before. Would that be about it, Mr. Sparks‘?—A Yes.
Q. So that after about the 1st of February, 1925, your communications
were with Mr. Cardin, insofar as the department was concerned, and not with
Mr. Bureau?—A. Yes. ;
Q. In addition to the interviews you had with Mr. Cardin, the Acting
Minister, I suppose you had several interviews with Mr. Farrow and other
oﬁiclals—A Yes.
Q. Can you recollect the date of your letter to the Prime Minister, in which,
you relate a conversation you had with him, in which he made some kind of
an offer concerning the appointment of a Royal Commission, or was it a Royal
Commission?

Mr. Bern: There was a suggestion as to a Royal Commission, undoubt-
edly, because he replied to it.

Mr. Henperson, K.C.: It was March 20th.

By Hon. Mr. Bowin:

Q. In that letter you referred to a conversation in which the Prime Minister
promised you a Royal Commission to investigate any charge you might make;
is that the substance of it?—A. That is the substance of it, as set out in the
letter.

Q. At any rate, that is the substance of it?—A. Yes.

Q. Was that before or after you forwarded to the Minister the extracts
from the Bisaillon evidence in Quebec?—A. That was long before.

Q. Did you consider the filing of that evidence, or that extract from the
evidence against Bisaillon with the Prime Minister a compliance with his
request, that is to say, did you consider that in filing that evidence you were
making a charge against Bisaillon which was well worthy of the appointment
of a Royal Commission?—A. Certainly not.

Q. You say certainly not?—A. No, sir.

Q. Will you tell the committee at what stage you laid a definite charge
with the Prime Minister?—A. I at no time took the position of laying a charge
against Mr. Bisaillon. Throughout my correspondence it will appear that I
suggested to the Government the propriety of their investigating it.

Q. So that we are agreed then that at no time did you attempt to comply
with the condition which I will say was imposed upon you, if you like, by the
Prime Minister, concerning a Royal Commission?

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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.~ Mr. HexoersoN, KC.: The letter of March 20th shows that there was no
- compliance. §

~ Wrrness: My own personal view when the suggestion was made was that
it was an improper request to make of us as private individuals. I said then
. that I did not want him to take my own personal view, that I was going to take
~ the matter up with the committee. I called the committee together in Toronto
~ and in Montreal, laid the facts before them, and they agreed with my view,
. that no obligation, moral or otherwise was upon us to lay a charge against
- public officers who were suspected of being false to their oath of office.

By Hon. Mr. Boivin:

! Q. So that as a matter of fact you did not attempt to lay any charge?—
.~ A. No, I drew the attention of the Government to public documents which
~ showed that Mr. Bisaillon was unfit for his job.

' Q. And those public documents were evidence in a case of the King v.
Simons?—A. No. The first case was that of Rex v. Lortie; the next was the
case of Rex v. Simons, which referred to two phases of the situation; the next
was the records of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police; the next was the record
in the department of the ownership by Bisaillon of property on the border, which,
although not conclusive, certainly in my judgment should have led the depart- -
 ment to make an investigation.

Q. When you made that charge concerning the ownership of property on
the international border, did you file any document in support of your con-
tention that he owned property there?—A. No, because I knew the document
was already in the department, or the knowledge in fact was in the department.

Q. To whom had the knowledge been given?—A. I knew that Mr. Farrow
and Mr. Wilson were aware of the fact that Mr. Bisaillon owned property on
both sides of the line.

Q. What makes you say that you knew that Mr. Farrow and Mr. Wilson
were aware of the fact that Mr. Bisaillon owned property on both sides of the
line?—A. Because they told me.

Q. You are sure that they said both sides of the line?—A. I am positive.

Q. At what time did Mr. Bisaillon ever own property on both sides of the
line?—A. I have no personal knowledge of the facts at all. I drew the attention
of the Government to the reports of my officers that such was the case.

Q. So that that is one thing of which you have no personal knowledge?—
A. No. You have mentioned charges. I made no charge at all. I kept them
informed, according to their own request, to the best of my ability.

Q. You informed the Government of what you had heard concerning this
business?—A. I thought that it was my duty to do so.

Q. But without having any personal knowledge?—A. Yes.

Q. If I understood you correctly yesterday, you repeated in answer to Mr.
Stevens a complimentary reference which you had made to Mr. Farrow, Mr.
Wilson and Mr. Blair, three officers of my department?—A -Yes.

Q. You have not changed your opinion concerning these officers?—A. No,
I have not changed my opinion. 3

Q. Remember, Mr. Sparks, that my idea in this cross-examination is, not
to spare any one, not even myself; I want to get at the bottom of the facts, as
far as you are able to lead us that way, and we will continue on?—A. That is
what I am here for, Mr. Boivin. ;

Q. You say that you consider they are competent and honest officials, but
that they have been hampered in their work—I think that is the way you put it?
—A. That is my opinion.

Q. Not hampered by the men under them, of course?—A. Hampered by an
obsolete system of doing business.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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. Q. Are they not more or less responsible for the system?—A. I will not
attempt to place the responsibility upon anybody. In my judgment the system
was wrong, too much ministerial interference, too much interference by members
of Parliament. I do not attempt to establish the responsibility; the committee
can do that. : 1

Q. T am anxious to place the responsibility somewhere, but so far there does

~ not seem to be very much to establish. You made the statement yesterday that

»

you considered that there was too much ministerial interference?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you refer to ministerial interference concerning organization, minis-
terial interference concerning appointments, or ministerial interference concern-
ing the disposal of cases?—A. I mean ministerial interference with the prosecu-
tion of smugglers individually and collectively.

Q. As I understand it, you desire to convey to the committee the idea that
in certain casés where certain penalties for prosecutions have been recommended
by these officers, especially Mr. Blair and Mr. Farrow, they have been interfered
with by the Minister and the prosecution stopped, or the penalty has been
reduced; is that what you mean?—A. That is the fact. I have the fact of that
having taken place. ?

Q. Will you give the names of a few cases, please?—A. I gave one name
yesterday.

Q. What case?—A. I gave the case in reference to prosecution of certain
seizures made at Rock Island. That is, so far as Mr. Bureau is concerned, a
splendid typical case. I also inferred interference—I state interference by Mr.
Cardin in the prosecution of the Gaunt case.

Q. Let us take the last one first. You charge interference by Mr. Cardin,
Acting Minister of Customs, in connection with the prosecution of the Gaunt
case?—A. Yes, sir. I do not like the word “charge”. The Minister was within
his rights.

Q. I do not want to use the word “charge” in the sense that you are charg-
ing him with a crime. You assert that he interfered; let us put it that way.—
A. I know he interfered; he interfered with me. That is, he made suggestions
to me personally, which, to my mind, constituted interference which should not
have taken place.

Q. In other words, you think that the Minister, the Acting Minister of
Customs, should not have interfered with you in the administration of the
Department. Is that it?—A. No. I say that a conversation with him indicated
that he had interfered. \ .

Q. Indicated that he had interfered?—A. Yes.

Q. Who were the officers in eharge of that case?—A. The departmental
officers were in charge of the case.

Q. I know, but who were the preventive officers who made the case?—A.
Mr. Duncan and Mr. Knox, acting under instructions from Mr. Wilson.

Q. Do you know at what stage or by whom Mr. Duncan or Mr. Knox
were told that they should not prosecute in the Gaunt case?—A. I do not know
the facts; I think we could learn them better from them. I know the facts
leading up to it. |

Q. Just a minute. You have been laying some terrible charges, yesterday -
and to-day, against the government.—A. No.

Q. Against the Department of Customs?—A. No. 3

Q. Against the administration of the Department?—A. No, against the
system.

y Q. So therefore you have no complaint to make against anybody in the
Department?—A. I don’t think that inference could be taken from my answer.

Q. You say your complaints are now concerning the system?—A. And I

am illustrating the complaints by actual cases.

IMr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Q. And I am asking you to give an actual fact in connection with one of
- your actual cases, and you say you don’t know any.—A. Yes, I will give you
‘the facts as I recall them. This charge against Gaunt was initiated by the
~ Commercial Protective Association. ‘
3 Q. Through Mr. Knox and Mr. Duncan?—A. Through Mr. Knox and Mr.
. Duncan. The evidence was collected; a seizure was made of about $20,000
~ worth of Gaunt’s goods. Gaunt’s books were brought to Ottawa for inspection,
and a witness, a man who knew all about the situation, was employed at our
suggestion to go through these 4,000 invoices. My information from him, the
‘man who made the investigation, was that the government were properly entitled
. to the collection of approximately $60,000 of duties which had been wrongfully
 evaded. Whether that is correct or not—1I did not see the documents—I believe
it is the fact. Mr. Cardin spoke to me about the matter. The partner of
Gaunt—Gaunt, in the meantime, had gone to Europe—his partner, who I under-
stand is an estimable gentleman, spent a good deal of time in Ottawa, and in
view of the fact that Gaunt was gone, who Mr. Cardin and Mr. Farrow said
 was the real culprit, they felt disposed not to press for the collection of these

- moneys, and although they had $20,000 worth of goods in their possession, they
released them, and Mr. Cardin and Mr. Farrow both said to me, they intimated
that would the Commercial Protective Association not be satisfied not to prose-
cute Mr. Gaunt’s partner. Mr. Farrow said to me that if Mr. Gaunt himself
ever set foot in Canada again, they would arrest him and put him in jail. Mr.
Gaunt came back, went into the Department, and gave evidence in this chair
a few days ago. I don’t know whether Mr. Gaunt was guilty; I believe he was
guilty of fraud, that he defrauded the government, and the government had
goods in their possession and they released them, and I was not satisfied with
the disposition of that case, and I think Mr. Cardin could explain why no
prosecution was taken.

Q. Now as a matter of fact, Mr. Sparks, is it not true that your two men,
Mr. Duncan and Mr. Knox, were authorized to prosecute Mr. Gaunt in this
case?—A. They say they were not.

Q. Is it not a fact that they obtained a summons or a warrant against
Gaunt, which they never executed?—A. They say not. That was entirely
between the Department and themselves. I have no knowledge of the facts.

Q. Have you any knowledge that they were instructed to prosecute?—A. It
would be a great surprise to me, if it were true.

Q. Have you any knowledge that they were ever asked not to prosecute?—
A. I have knowledge of the fact that I was asked not to press for a prosecution.

Q. Against an innocent party, against Mr. Gaunt’s partner—A. I regarded
the firm as having defrauded the revenue of Canada out of certain moneys. I
was not distinguishing between partners.

Q. Have you not just stated that Mr. Farrow made the statement to you
that if Mr. Gaunt ever returned to Canada he would be prosecuted?—A. He
did say that to me, yes.

Q. Do you know whether or not this case has ever been disposed of
‘definitely in the files of the Department of Customs?—A. I know that the action
Mr. Farrow said would be taken was not taken.

Q. Do you know whether the investigation concerning these 4,000 invoices
and the value of the goods imported from abroad—I think from Holland, I am
not sure—do you know whether that has been entirely completed?—A. The
ma}'n who was engaged to do it says it was completed and a complete report
put in.

Q. Did he tell you when that report was put in?—A. Yes, he told me ab
the time. I couldn’t tell you the date, because he was here in Ottawa,-and he

S| [Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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said his job was finished; he had made a complete report, and he went back .
to his home in Montreal. ‘ : .

Q. Are you convinced that Mr. Cardin is the man who said “Don’t prose-
cute Gaunt”?—A. I could not have knowledge of that. '

Q. Then why do you accuse him?—A. I do not accuse him. I state a fact,
that within my knowledge certain information was given to the Department.

Q. Quite true, but, Mr. Sparks, you also stated another fact. I am not
disputing the facts; I think on the facts we entirely agree—A. I might state
another fact of which I have knowledge. I don’t know whether I should say
1 have knowledge; I have information that the case was settled for $3,400.
That may be true, or may not, but that is my information.

Q. Now, Mr. Sparks, I do not like your idea of throwing out, for the con-
sumption of the press and for the benefit of the public—I do not think it has
much effect on the members of the committee—these statements that you cite
as facts, but*which, under cross-examination, you know nothing about.—A. The
Chairman can stop me at any time. I am trying to give the information wanted.
I am doing the best I can to be fair to everybody.

Q. I think we can- get along very well together. I think you and I are
perhaps on the same track.—A. I hope so.

Q. Attempting to fix responsibility for irregularities.—A. That is what I
am here for.

Q. You say you have no idea whatever of any statement or any instructions,.
rather, given by the Acting Minister of Customs concerning the Gaunt case,
but you know as a matter of fact that no prosecution was entered, and that
the case is not settled insofar as you know except for the payment of $3,400, of
which you have heard. Is that correct? -I want to be fair to you, Mr. Sparks,
and if it is not correct, say so.—A. I thought the case was settled.

Q. If I might interject, let me tell you as a matter of fact that the case
is not, settled and that no ministerial decision has been signed in the Gaunt case.
—A. Tt has been a long time waiting for a decision.

Hon. Mr, Stevexs: The Minister makes a statement, but the file shows that
the case was settled in November and that it was re-opened in January, since
the opening of the session.

Hon. Mr. Bowvin: Settled, insofar as the payment of $3,400 duty on' goods‘
which were seized is concerned. Isn’t that correct, Mr. Stevens? I want to
be fair to everybody. 75

Hon. Mr. Stevens: The law officer of the Department states that he has
no further instructions to give at the present time, and Mr. Wilson also:
“1 am now directed to inform you that the Department has no
further instructions to give at the present time with regard to pro-
secution of Gaunt upon any other charges.”

Then comes the list of legal fees paid to the solicitors closing out that
action. . Then on January 19, Mr. Farrow writes to Mr. Wilson—this is after
the resolution was before the House, and the mention of the Gaunt case—Mr.
Farrow states as follows:

“Re seizure 36602-5990. Referring to the above-numbered seizure
and charges respecting importations of John W. Gaunt Company Limited,
it is noted that the present calculations go back for a period of approxi-
mately three years. While the Department may not impose penalties
jn respect of undervaluation prior to that date, the duties shortpaid
may still be collected, and it is important that you continue your in-
vestigations extending back as far as records are available, in order to
ascertain the full amount of undervaluation, and you are instructed to
have this done.”

[Mr, R. P. Sparks.]
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~ This is directed to Mr. Wilson, but I would suggest to the Minister that it -
_ is not fair to the witness to lead him through the line he has, when this file shows
~ clearly that the case was settled in November. 3 j
7 Hon. Mr. Bowvin: I have no right to question a member of the com-
~ mittee, but I think Mr. Stevens will understand that we are all searching for
- the truth here.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Certainly; that is why I brought this file out.

Hon. Mr. Borvin: Especially to establish responsibility, and I would like
Mr. Stevens, if he would be kind enough, to read the decision settling the case.

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: I have been trying to find these decisions; they are
very difficult to find. There are a lot of things missing that ought to be here.
You get none of the references from the Minister to the Deputy; you have
to find this out by going through long lists of files but I am pointing out here
that the official file shows that case was closed by the officers in charge, Mr.
Blair, the legal officer in direction to Mr. Wilson, the preventive officer. That
was on November 5. That follows the settlement which this witness has been
complaining, about, and establishes, I think, beyond peradventure, that he
was right. He has no knowledge that the file was re-opened on January 19
‘after my resolution was placed on the Order Paper.

Hon. Mr. Bovin: So that, Mr. Stevens, we have no knowledge that the file
was closed.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: This is clear enough.

Hon. Mr. Borvin: And no more prosecution for the present.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: And the solicitors paid off. If that does not close the
deal, I don’t know what more you want. Gaunt accepted it as settled.

Hon. Mr. Borvin: Possibly, but we want to find out who settled it.

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: Mr. Bain, on behalf of Gaunt came back and said he
wanted a rebate of the $3,400, but the case was settled as far as the department
was concerned. I have just sent for some other papers which are very illumi-
nating

Hon. Mr. Bowvin: Is that form K-9 there?

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I don't think it is. 1 have been waiting for a later
opportunity to take this case up in its entirety.

~ Hon. Mr. Bowvin: Well, T think we have been drawn away from our cross-
examination to some extent. What I wanted to get at was the responsibility,
for the delay.

~ Mr. Hexperson, K.C.: That can be done within the department. The
witness has told what he knows. Surely the Minister would not intend to suggest
that he has been powerless for months. '

Hon. Mr. Borvin: Just a moment, Mr. Henderson. I want to prove to the
Committee that the witness has been stating a great many things which he does
not know.

Mr. HenpersoN, K.C.: The witness has been stating a great many things,
Mr. Chairman, which are the result of information which he has received and
passed on to the department. Please understand that the witness is not now and
never was in the position of making charges, excepting in individual cases which
he has met.

Hon. Mr. Bowin: That is right.

Hon. Mr. Bennerr: 1 think the witness in an answer to Mr. Boivin said
“1 have no knowledge, but am giving you my information ”.

_ Hon. Mr. Borvin: If the witness tells me that he has no knowledge of minis-
terial interference, I am quite willing to accept that as an answer.

The Wirness: I have knowledge of ministerial interference.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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By Hon. Mr. Bowin: . .
Q. What is your knowledge?—A. The Acting Minister came to me ‘and told

me he did not want to prosecute to colleet these moneys, because an innocent

party would suffer, and he asked me how the Commercial people would regard
that, and I said “ I will take no responsibility for anybody; I am not an officer
of Customs; let the law take its course”. That was the conversation, and it
looked like ministerial interference. He was within his rights. I am not com-
plaining, but I say that a system by which any minister may interfere with the
recovery of moneys stolen from the Treasury is a wrong system.

Q. I agree with you entirely, Mr. Sparks, but according to your statement
and knowledge, the Minister had some hesitation about prosecuting an innocent
party. That is what you have just said.—A. No, that was not the question.
He made out that the prosecution of the Gaunt Company would be the prosecu-
tion of an innocent party. I did not agree with him. .

By Mr. Bell: .

Q. That was in the person of his partner?—A. That was his partner, yes.
Mr. HenpersoN, K.C.: Who presumably shared the benefits.

By Hon. Mr. Bowin:

Q. That was Mr. Cardin?—A. That was Mr. Cardin.

Q. Who did not want to prosecute—what is the partner’s name?—A. Mr.
Porteous,

Q. Mr. Cardin did not want to prosecute Mr. Porteous while Mr. Gaunt
was away 7—A. No; I would not put it that way. My recollection was that Mr.
Cardin did not want to prosecute the Gaunt Company because Mr. Porteous
would be the chief sufferer. Mr. Porteous was not charged with anything,

Q. At that time, as T understand it, Mr. Sparks, the new amendment to the
Customs Act was not yet in force, at least at the time the offence was com-
mitted?—A. I think that is right.

4 Q. So that the penalty would have been the collection of money?—A.
xactly.

Q. And the action would have been taken against the firm instead of the
individual?—A. I think the penalty might have been a jail sentence, as well
as the collection of money. T think there were two phases of the prosecution
which should have been instituted, one to recover the amount out of which the
Government had been defrauded, and the other to punish the man for using false
invoices. :

Q. As a matter of fact, Mr. Sparks, do you know whether or not a minis-
terial decision was rendered in the case, and the form K-9 ever signed?—A. I
have no means of knowing that.

Q. Now, you referred to the Rock Island case——

Mr, Henperson, K.C.: It must have been. Would not that follow auto-
matically, Mr. Boivin? The Minister must have functioned. The charge was
there, and it was his duty to function.

Hon. Mr. Borvin: Oh, Mr. Henderson, no. You have no right to interject
and say the Minister “ must have funectioned”. 1 do not know .very much
about the Department of Customs as I have only been there for a short time——

‘Mr. HexpersoN, K.C.: He either did or did not.

Hon. Mr. Borvin: —— but if you will turn up the records there which have
been pending—I am not trying to excuse anybody—you will find records pend-
ing since 1922,

Hon. Mr. Stevens: This is a closed record; this is not a pending record.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks]
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Hon. Mr. Borvin: That is what I am trying to ascertain. I am trying to
find the K-9 to find out whether it was closed.

Hon. Mr. Bowvin: I want to know if Mr. Sparks has personal knowledge;
I am not pretending to say whether it is correot or not, but I want to know if
it was from personal knowledge /

N

By Hon. Mr. Bowvin: :

It
|
: Q. You have no personal knowledge as to whether this was settled or not?—
A. No.
.. Q. Now, referring to the cases at Rock Island and the seizures made ‘there;
. certain penalties were imposed, were they not, in those cases?—A. Yes, sir,
Q. And the only complamt you have to make—I think Mr. Bureau was the

‘\‘ Minister at that time, was he not?—A. Yes, sir.

I Q. And the only complaint you have to make concerning Mr. Bureau is
. that these parties were not prosecuted in the courts., Is that it?—A. That is
¢ the complaint, yes.

I Q. Yesterday you referred to “ministerial interference”; do you know
| whether or not in their reports Mr. Blair or Mr. Farrow recommended prosecu-
~ tion in those cases?—A. Mr. Farrow told me he recommended prosecution.

Q. Mr. Farrow told you that?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Ycu admit, of course, that Mr. Farrow’s report is in writing and will
be found in the records of the case——A. I am giving my evidence under oath—

Q. I understand that. I am not questioning your statement at all. You
gsaw Mr. Bureau about that matter, did you not?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And Mr. Bureau told you he considered these men should not be
prosecuted before the court?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And if I remember your evidence correctly, he gave you as one of his
reasons the fact that they had undertaken not to do any more smuggling?—A.
That is right.

Q. Do you consider that in all serious cases of smuggling the guilty parties
should be taken before the court?—A. Certainly.

Q. You have a great deal of confidence in the judgment of Mr. Duncan and
Mr. Knox?—A. Yes; I think they are both excellent officers.

‘Q. If I showed you a couple of cases, in one of which Mr. Duncan, and in
the other Mr. Knox advised settlement without bringing the guilty parties
before the courts, would you say they did right or wrong?—A. They did right,
and I was a party to that suggestion.

Q. So that when Mr. Duncan or Mr. Knox do not bring parties before the
court, they do right, but when Mr. Bureau does not bring parties before the
courts, he does wrong?—A. I am glad the Minister brought this up. If I may
explain that to the Committee, I am delighted to have the opportunity of doing
it. We were endeavouring to demonstrate beyond argument that a cash penalty
was not a deterrent, and we caught one man with five pieces of silk in his
possession. We had a slim case. I do not think we could have ever have got
a conviction, but he did not want to face a court, and he ultimately paid in to
the Receiver-General of Canada a cheque for $15,000 and attached an affidavit:
i AN S do hereby declare that I have defrauded the Government of
Canada of $15,000, which is hereby returned,” and that cheque for $15,000 in
settlement was a complete vindication of my posmon from the start that a cash
settlement would not stop smuggling. They will all pay. Cash settlements are
of no use. And we demonstrated in that case that fact, and Mr. Farrow knows

: that I said “Here is a case; while we are in favour of prosecution, settle with
k this fellow, as far as we are concerned,” and he left the matter in the hands of
Mr. Duncan, who got $15,000 in payment for the five pieces of silk.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Q. Remember I am not criticizing the action of Mr, Duncan or Mr. Knox.
I agree with you that they are both excellent officers, and I think Mr. Duncan
did excellent work in this particular case, but I merely mentioned this as a
sample of a case settled without prosecution before the courts?—A. Mr. Boivin,
I have kept in the minds of this Committee that I was attacking the system,
and I thought the best way to indict the system was to show that a cash settle-
ment was no good, and took a good cash settlement just to show the fear of
the court in the hearts of the smugglers. j y

Q. You do not pretend for a moment that this man owed the Government
this amount of duty upon goods imported without the payment of duty?—A. In
my opinion, that man had robbed the Government of at least $100,000 duties
in five years. h

Q. And you settled for $15,000—A. We had no evidence.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens: Y
Q. Settled this one case for $15,000—this five pieces of silk?—A. Yes.

Q. The $100,000 represented other goods?—A. Yes; we had no proof of
even $15,000, but it was the fear of appearing in court that prompted the man
to give back $15,000 rather than face a judge. I think we could have got
$25,000 if we had stood out for it.

By Hon. Mr. Bowin: _

Q. You thought $15,000 for the public Exchequer was better than nothing
at all?—A. No; that had nothing to do with it; it was demonstrating that the
crooks were not afraid of penalties. ;

Q. What I want to get at are the facts in these cases, as nearly as possible.
What did that $15,000 collected by you, represent?—A. It represented the
amount which a professional smuggler would pay rather than face a judge.

Q. Now, Mr. Sparks, is it true that—I am sorry—I do not think the record
has been filed yet, but this is a case where you have personal knowledge. Is it
not true that Inspector Duncan obtained an affidavit from this man, certifying *
that he was paying the $15,000 because it represented the amount that he had
defrauded the Government of by the importation of goods without the payment
of duty?—A. That is what the affidavit represented. s

Q. That is what the affidavit represented?—A. Yes. Negotiations for the
$15,000 took place in my office and I was present. I objected. to the acceptance
of $15,000. I wanted $25,000 as a demonstration. Mr. Duncan settled for
$15,000. I thought he was easy. !

Q. In spite of the fact that the man swore that $15,000 was the amount
he owed, you wanted $25,0007—A. He would have sworn to anything to escape
facing a court. :

Q. So that there are people, Mr. Sparks, who, when it suits their con-
venience, will swear to anything?—A. Any professional smuggler will swear to
anything, because he is a criminal.

Q. Is it not a fact, Mr. Sparks, that in a great many cases, the Department
of Customs have a great deal of difficulty with informers, because they will
swear to anything to get the reward?—A. Yes: I have some views on this
question of informers. I do not think the Committee wants them now. I will
be glad to give them later. 5

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. You had better give them to us, Mr. Sparks. It is interesting. You
have been asked for information, you might as well give it? > ‘
Hon. Mr. Bowvin: I have no objection, Mr. Stevens.
[Mr. R. P. Sparks.] b i oy A
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By Hon Mr. Stevens:

Q. Let us have it.—A. There is an old age controversy as to the subject
 of information from the informers. Some people say it incites, and there are on
record cases where it has incited officers of the law, perhaps, to what might be
called “frame-ups” to get the moiety. My own view is that the granting of
moieties is in the interest of the collection of revenue and that on the whole,
while it has features that are perhaps not very praiseworthy, on the whole it
meets the ends of justice and does at times bring offenders before the courts,
which otherwise might not be the case.

Mr. HENDERSON, KO Mlght I suggest there is another point on this
subject—

By Hon. Mr. Bowin:

Q. In the case of jail sentences, there is no m01ety?——-A In the case of jail
sentences, there is no moiety, that is why the Act is strong.
Q. And there is no incentive for people to inform?—A. That is quite right.
Q. In this particular case that you have just referred to, Mr. Sparks, I do
not think the defendant’s name was given. What is the name of that case, the
$15,000 case?—A. I do not know whether the Committee wants it to be on
the record.
Q. It will be on the record in a day or two. I will take the responsibility
for it.—A. Glassburg,.
Q. Glassburg? There is one thing I do not think you should state publicly,
- and I am not going to ask you to give any name, but I am going to ask you
. whether there was an informant in the Glassburg case?—A. No. I think we
appeared as informers ourselves. Our information came from New York, the
original information. We were working with a silk association in New York.
My recollection is that'my information originally came from New York.
Q. Do you mean to say that you were the informer in that case?—A. I
think we were probably on the K-9 form as informers.
Q. I see a note on the record which I will file to-morrow, with the permis-
sion of the Committee, that Inspector Duncan waived any portion of the
- award, or of the moiety to which he might be entitled, that the informer should
receive. Did you receive it?—A. We received the moiety in the Glassburg case.
Q. Oh, you did?—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:

Q. Is that the Commercial Protective Association?—A. That is the Com-
mercial Protective Association, yes.

Mr. Henperson, K.C.: May I be permitted to mtervene there. If I
remember correctly, Mr. Sparks made a statement yesterday that his organiza-
tion expended $25,000. It must be understood, of course, that a substantial
amount of that consisted of money received in that way. All the money so
received was expended in the prosecution of cases.

!’
1
g
s_
?

By Hon. Mr. Boivin:

Q. Now, Mr. Sparks, the interjection by Mr. Henderson reminds me of
the question I wanted to ask you. You said yesterday that you collected
about $20,000?—A. That is right.

Q. You said you would prepare a list showing the people who had sub-
scribed the $20,000?—A. My counsel has the list, I think, in his pocket.

Q. Will you be good enough, I will not ask you to file it—I want to be
fair and I do not think it should be published—would you be good enough to
produce it?—A. Certainly.

[Mr., R. P. Sparks.]
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Q. For the benefit of the Committee?—A. Positively.

Q. What was the total amount subscribed?—A. I think the subscription
amounts to about $15,000. ,

Q. And the moieties?—A. The moieties, oh, about $2,000. I should think.

Q. If I remember your examination correctly yesterday, you mentioned
that these subscriptions had been solicited and obtained by you for your associa-
tion—I do not want to be unfair—for your Association, by the Toronto Board
of Trade, and the Montreal Board of Trade?—A. That is substantially correct.

Q. Without mentioning names, did you yourself at any time write to any
of your subscribers soliciting subscriptions?—A. Oh yes, under the direction
of the committee, no doubt 1 did.

Q. And certain subscriptions were sent to you and turned over to the
Treasurer?—A. Exactly. : '

Mr. HenpersoN, K.C.: And the correspondence is all in. The Committee
has all our correspondence. { : i

Hon. Mr. Bovin: It was relying on that correspondence that I asked that
question. ' Y

By Hon. Mr. Bowin: :

Q. You were referring to the Rock Island cases. In referring to those
cases you said that Mr. Bureau had refused to prosecute?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. I cited a couple of examples where your own officers had refused to
prosecute, and you gave the reason why?—A. Yes.

Q. You admit that it was within the power of the Minister to refuse to
prosecute?—A. Oh, undoubtedly.

Q. And you are unaware whether or not the written report of the officers
requested prosecution?—A. No.

Q. And you are unaware of what the written reports contained?—A. Yes,
I had not access to them.

Q. You admit that Mr. Bureau was within his rights when he decided
that these men should not be prosecuted?—A. Within his legal rights, but not
within the public rights.

Q. Within his legal rights?—A. Yes.

Q. Of course public rights are a matter of appreciation?—A. No, I think
we had some rights that Mr. Bureau should have forced on upon our behalf.

Q. You will admit that that at least is a matter of appreciation?—A. That
is a matter of opinion, yes.

Q. Apart from these particular cases in which you say you have not seen
the officers’ report, in what other cases did Mr. Bureau interfere?—A. Well now,
Mr. Boivin, I do not know that that obligation rests upon me. I think before
this committee get; through they will find that. I have made a broad general
statement, I have supported it with two illustrations, and I think I have estab-
lished my case in the two cases. I know of my own knowledge that ministerial
interference has been constant. i

Q. So that your statement yesterday, Mr. Sparks—and I think we will
agree upon it, was a general statement, and to-day you have given us what you
consider to be two specific cases?—A. That is exactly right. :

Q. But you admit that in both cases the Ministers were legally right,
although possibly too lenient for the protection of the national revenue and
the public welfare?—A. That is my view. : 1

Q. You say that that is your view?—A. Yes.

Q. Which comes back to the statement you have already made, that the
system is wrong—A. I believe so. \

Q. And your main complaint is against the system, not against the
individuals; is that, broadly speaking, correct?—A. I think, after the repre-
sentations had been made, and keeping in mind the importance of the people

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.] s
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‘who made the representations, that the individuals were at fault in not taking
" the course which the Act provided they might take.

Q. If I remember correctly, Mr. Sparks, you promised yesterday that you

A would produce to-day the official statement made by the Deputy Minister that

200 men had been engaged as members of the Special Preventive Service forces
under the $350,000 vote passed at last session?

Hon. Mr. Ben~err:  Not an official statement, but a newspaper statement
purporting to be an official statement. I watched him carefully.

By Hon. Mr. Bowin:
Q. Do you happen to have the statément, Mr. Sparks?—A. I have one

-

‘

- statement in my hand.

Q. Will you be kind enough to read it?—A. This is a statement taken
from the Toronto Globe of July 13th, 1925. It has a two column heading, and
reads as follows: :

EXHIBIT No. 62

“200 Secret Service Officers to Commence Big Offensive against
Border Rum-runners. With Parliamentary Vote of $350,000 De-
partment of Customs Launches Campaign to Make Boundary
Smuggler-Proof.

Check Officials and Travellers. ;
To Meet Problem Created by Automobile, Every Road of Possible
- Entry Will be Manned. '

(By F. C. Mears)
(Staff Correspondent, of the Globe)

Orrawa, July 12—A more determined war on smuggling of all
kinds, including rum-running, has been inaugurated by the Department
of Customs and Excise, the aim being to make the border between
Canada and the United States as near smuggler-proof as possible. Half
a million dollars will be expended by the department every year until
that goal is reached, and already this year $350,000 has been voted by
Parliament for that work. As this year’s campaign cannot, be fully put
into operation before August 1, one-third of this fiscal ‘year will have
passed, so that, roughly, two-thirds of the annual outlay has been asked
for this year, or the $350,000. : \

To begin with, the department is employing 200 secret service men,
a new and formidable departure, and important results are expected from
their activities. They will be employed to keep a check on all kinds of
smuggling, and also a close check on Customs officers themselves to
wateh for undervaluation, and any other practice to which officers of the
department at the various border points may resort. They will, of course,
baffle identification not only by the thousands of people who daily cross
the boundary line but also by the Customs officers, so that the latter, it
is anticipated, will be alert in the performance of their duties.

Increase Regular Staff Also

. In addition to those secret service men, there will be a considerable
addition to the regular staff of officers covering the numerous points of
entry from the United States into Canada. The rapidly growing use of -
the automobile has multiplied the problems of the department, and it
is the intention of the latter not only to man every road of possible
access, but to give a 24-hour service on every road along the border,
especially in Quebec and Manitoba.

16628—2; [Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Travellers across the border, by whatever means will have no excuse
to offer the Customs officers for not having the documents necessary tc
facilitate their crossing. Hereafter warning cards will be posted in all
Customs Houses and in ferries and other international means of transit
to inform people of the necessmy of having their property duly examined
and cleared before attempting to cross. 3

. It is known that the amendment to the Customs Act this last session,
making smuggling of goods of over $200 an indictable offence punishable
by imprisonment has had a perceptible effect already in the business ?
stores in Canadian towns and cities on the border, there being a very
considerable reduction in the amount of goods bought on the other side
and smuggled across.”

Q. That is the statement you referred to yesterday as emanating from Mr.
Farrow?—A. That is one reference in the newspapers. I expect to have others
to-morrow. g

Q. Mr. Farrows name is not mentioned there?—A. No. ‘

Q. Have you any personal knowledge as to where this information by Mr
Mears in The Globe was obtained?—A. It corresponds with the facts. Mr.
Mears is here. ‘

'Q. Did Mr. Farrow represent to you at any time that the 200 men had
been employed?—A. I referred to this item in a dlecussxon with' Mr. Farrow,
and he said he gave it out to Mr. Mears.

Q. But did he tell you that 200 men were employed?—A. I have tried to
recall that conversation, and I will not swear that he said that, but he did
say that he authorized this statement.

Q. Did he not say it was the intention of the Department to employ 200
men for this purpose?—A. Yes. That might have been the way; I would not
swear to it, but that might have been the way.

Q. Would that not be a fair inference to draw from that article, that that
was the intention of the Department.at that time?—A. I notice the use of the
words “1s employing.”

Q. Do you think it possible, Mr. Sparks—you have stated that it would
be difficult to get ten capable men, but that you thought that with ten men
great good could be accomplished—do you think it would be possible that within
less than a month after this legislation was passed, and after the vote was
adopted, 200 men would have been found and employed in Canada?—A. I
think they could find 200 of a certain type within an hour. You yourself told
me you had 800 applications. This is no secret.

Q. I think perhaps I have 900, but I did not employ them.—A. When you
ask could they be obtained? I say yes, they could be obtained.

Q. Did you really believe, when you read that article and when you had
your conversation with Mr. Farrow, that 200 men had been employed?—A. No,
I thought it was all a bluff.

Q. Still you made the statement yesterday that it was official?—A. Pardon
me, I did not say it was official.

Q. It was when you saw this’ bluff, was it, that your confidénce in the
administration began to wane?—A. Well, it was a contributing factor, along
with a number of others.

Q. It was a contributing factor?—A. Yes.

Q. You admitted I think yesterday that it evaporated—I think that was
the word you used—between the 27th of June and the 5th of September, was it?
—A. Well, it is pretty hard to analyse one’s mind, but I would say that it was
about then that I abandoned hope.

Q. On the 5th of September you had abandoned all hope?—A. Well, I had
come to a realization, in my opinion—I might have been wrong, but in my

[Mr. R. P. Sparks] !
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f.,,op,inio'n on the 8th of September, when we held that meeting, I had come to the

conclusion that Mr. Cardin was not serious in his attempts to stop smuggling.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. That was the 8th of September, when you held a meeting of your

- association?—A. Yes.

Q. At that time you reported to your association?—A. Yes. We had a lot
of wopinions and discussion of the whole situation.

By Hon. Mr. Bowin: ‘

Q. I want to be fair to you, Mr. Sparks, but does the 8th of Septembe
about coincide with some other important event in the history of Canada?

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Richmond Hill. ;

Hon. Mr. Bowvin: I thought T was examining Mr. Sparks. I would be glad
to have him give the same answer. A

Hon. Mr. Stevens: It is obvious, from the trend of all these questionms.

Mr. DoNagHY: Mr. Chairman, it is not dignified to throw out political
headlines in this way. This is a serious investigation that we are on now.

Mr. Bron: Let us be dignified, by all means.

The Wirness: I think this comment calls upon me to make a statement.

Mr. HenpersoN, K.C.: May I suggest, Mr. Boivin, that that question be
not asked.

Mr. DonagHY: You should not interrupt, Mr. Henderson, when a witness
is being cross-examined. That is the whole basis of a cross-examination.

Mr. HenpoersoN, K.C.: May I not make a suggestion to the Minister?

Mr. Doxagay: No, I don’t think you may, when the witness is answering.

Mr. HexpersoN, K.C.: Will you let me tell you what I happen to know?

Mr. Doxaguy: No, I ‘do not want to know what you know.

Mr. Henperson, KIC.: We do not need any of these high explosives." I
was going to suggest that there was a confidential situation at that time, which
had better not be referred to. Mr. Donaghy may want to precipitate it.

Mr. DonagrY: I have not heard of it yet.

Hon. Mr. Bowvin: I really do not ask for any confidences, Mr. Henderson.

Mr. Henperson, K.C.: T suggest that the question be not pressed. The
Minister may or may not take my suggestion; he may do as he pleases, and
the witness will be free. :

Mr. Doxacuy: The witness knows.

Mr. HenpersoN, K.C.: Yes, the witness knows.

Mr. DoxaGgHY: At any rate, he seems quite bright.

Mr. Henberson, K/C.: T agree with that.

Mr. BeLn: Yes, by comparison. h

Hon. Mr. Borvin: I agree that he is a very active witness.

By Hon. Mr. Boivin:
Q. Does this coincide with that special event in the history of Canada that
you remember?—A. No, sir. I can speak of no event that coincides with it.
Q. Was there a speech delivered at Richmond Hill, on the 5th of Septem-
ber?—A. There was a speech delivered, but I do not know the date. It might
be well, Mr. Chairman, for me to interject a remark which I think will help.
I want to say that I am now giving evidence under oath, that I have a full
realization of what that means, and that from the 7th of August, 1924, to this
1662823 [Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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hour no political consideration has affected any word or act of mine in dealing
with this smuggling problem. Now you can go ahead all you like.

Q. I am glad to have had that statement. I do not want to delve into
politics, because I am only trying to get information which may be of service
to me in cleaning up my Department, and I was trying to ascertain why it
was, Mr. Sparks—I may be on the wrong track altogether—but I am trying to
ascertain why it was that after the 5th day of September, 1925, co-operation
on the part of the Commercial Protective Association with the Department of
Customs absolutely ceased?—A. The records in my correspondence will show
that the Commercial Protective Association was organized for one year, that
that year ended in September, 1925, that a meeting was called to find out
whether it would continue-another year, and that they by a resolution decided
to stop activities after November 15th, and on the 15th of November a body of
business men representing the Associated Boards of Trade in Canada made
representations to the Government acting upon a report by me in reference
to smuggling. ‘

Q. That was at the same time that that same Board made several other
representations?—A. Exactly. :

Q. So that between September 5, 1925 and November 15th, 1925, your
Association made no representations to the government?—A. Not at any time.

By Mr. Bell:
Q. Pardon me; was not the date mentioned by the witness September 8
and not September 5?7—A. Yes, September 8.

By Mr. Bowin: >
Q. Did you make any representations after September 8?—A. By resolu-
tion my committee instructed me to do nothing until after the election, and
the resolution was moved by a very strong supporter of the present government.
Q. I understand that. After the 15th, then, and up to the present time,
the representations which you had to make were held in reserve, as you stated
yesterday, to be made to this committee, because you knew it was going to be
functioning?—A. Yes. My position and yours in that regard are identical.
Q. I would not agree to that. You read yesterday an extract from some
evidence I gave on—what date was it?—A. I don’t know; it was on page 85.
Q. Referring to Mr. Duncan—I think you will agree with me that every-
thing on page 85 of my evidence refers to Inspector Duncan’s investigation
at Montreal. I think you will find his name repeated in practically every ques-
tion.—A. It is the last question, the last paragraph.
Q. The last question? You will find just below the middle of the page
that, being examined by Mr. Donaghy, was the following: =
“Q. You say he began on the 1st of December; when did he finish?
—A. He began on the 1st of December and ended away along in January.
Q. He took two solid months examining these witnesses?—A. Yes.
Q. You got to the stage when you said Mr. Bisaillon was fired and
other men removed from the office as a precaution?—A. Removed from
the preventive service to the port.
Q. From one department to another?—A. Yes.
Q. Until you found out whether they were tainted or not?—A. Yes.
Q. Go on.—A. Of course I was not present when this investigation
was carried on. Mr. Duncan reported to me verbally I think once or
twice; he did not give me a copy of the evidence nor any report except
this interim report until Thursday of last week, when I received it from
him by registered mail from Montreal.
Q. Thursday was what date?—A. Thursday was the 11th of
\ February.
[Mr. R. P. Sparks]
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B Q. On the 11th of February you received this typewritten evidence:
taken by Inspector Duncan and his short summary or report?—A. Yes..
A day or two before that I may say that I received a copy of part of the;
evidence from Inspector Duncan, a carbon copy of part of the evidence.”

Then came the question which you read yesterday.—A. Yes.

Q. I think in fairness, Mr. Sparks, you will admit that the answer I gave
there when I said that I had done nothing else, refers to the dismissal and
the changing of the employees at the port of Montreal—A. Well, if you say
that is what is meant, I am quite prepared to accept it. I gathered that from
December 11 until to-day—because the date is specified—you had done nothing.
I may have taken the wrong inference.

Q. You do not mean to.insinuate, Mr. Sparks, at least I hope not, that I
have done nothing at all in the Department?—A. Oh, positively not.

Q. We agree entirely, then. I think I have only one more question. There
are a great many other questions which I might ask as a politician, but as
Minister of the Department, I think I have only one more. You filed with the
committee the other day—or rather produced, because I do not think you
could probably call it filing—a prison-made shirt?—A. Yes sir.

Q. I think it is in the interests of the administration of the Customs law in
this country to prohibit the importation of prison-made shirts?—A. That is

~ right.

~ Q. Are you prepared to give your assistance to prohibt the importation of
these shirts?—A. T think I have already given some assistance.

Q. T am going to ask you for a little bit more. Where did you buy that
shirt?—A. T have agreed to give that confidentially to the committee.

Q. Now, Mr. Sparks, I am in the hands of the Chairman, but I am going
to ask you to tell us now, publicly, where you bought that prison-made shirt.
If any man is selling prison-made shirts, T think this department should know, it;
I think the committee should know it, and I think the public should know it.
‘The intention of the department in asking the question is to follow up and investi-
gate and ascertain whether or not that is a prison-made shirt. You say it is;
the Reliance Manufacturing Company, from whom it was purchased, state by,
telegram that it is not. I think we are entitled to that information. The com-
mittee has brought forward a great many men who have not been accused of
breaking the law. Their affairs are going to be made more or less public, and
certainly, if you have a suspicion of this kind—or it is not a suspicion, because
you state emphatically that that, is a prison-made short,—I think we are
entitled to know where it was purchased. I am in the hands of the Chairman.

Mr. Hexperson, K.C.: The witness would have no objection whatever to
giving the department the name.

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I would like to suggest to the Minister that I understand
there is a seizure of prison-made shirts in Montreal. Why not follow that?
That is«in his own hands.

Mr. BeLL: May I suggest that there was a motion made the other day, 1
think by my friend Mr. Donaghy, to have some official of the Reliance Manu-
facturing Company brought here. Surely that would be the most direct evidence
we_could ‘get.

Hon. Mr. Borvin: Not at all. If the Reliance Manufacturing Company
sell prison-made garments, they may sell them to a great many people. Here
is the leading witness in this enquiry, who admits that he collaborated to a
certain extent with Mr. Stevens and others in bringing this about for the benefit,
of the country—and I honour him for it; I am not casting any reflections. He
makes a specific statement that he bought a prison-made shirt in the city of
Ottawa. I want to know who sold that shirt.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Mr. Bern: Then if that is the purpose of the Minister’s enquiry, T take it

that he can get all he needs for his purpose by the name being privately supplied

as has already been suggested by Mr. Sparks’ counsel. ‘

Hon. Mr. Bowvin: Will Mr. Bell allow me a question? Why then should
not all the investigations of the committee into possible smuggling operations
be conducted in private, and not publicly? ; .

Mr. Berw: T think there might be a very good reason for making this public
after we have heard the evidence of the representative of the Reliance Company,
if he attends here before this committee, ' :

Hon. Mr. Borvin: Well, I would like the information. I am in the hands
of the Committee. 1

The WiTNEss: Might I interject a remark—

The CHAIRMAN: Just a minute—

Mr. Eruiorr: Mr. Chairman, it would seem to me there would be some-
thing in the suggestion that the name of the vendor of the shirt be given
privately if this shirt had been produced to the Committee in camera, or
privately. However, it was not so done, and I think the name of the man who

sold this shirt to the witness, who produced it here, should be put into the

record in exactly the same way that the shirt was put in—
The Witness: If T might interject—
The CrHaRMAN: Just a minute, Mr. Sparks. We are discussing this point.
The Wirness: This will have a bearing; however, I don’t care—

Hon. Mr. Stevens: I would like to suggest that we let Mr. Sparks speak.
Furthermore, we must remember that this shirt was secured from a retailer.

Hon. Mr. Borvin: I am not accusing the retailer of smuggling it.

The Wirness: Mr. Boivin, you will find in the King’s warehouse in
Montreal a shirt bearing the same mark “Milton F. Goodman, representing the
Reliance Manufacturing Company”, and a black shirt bearing the mark
“Product of the Reliance Manufacturing Company” now in the possession of
the Government, and the Department will be able to tell you who the importer
was from whom these goods were seized. That is very much better than my,
shirt. Tt is the same shirt, but is a very much better situation for you to get
the information from as to the importer, and not the retailer.

Hon. Mr. Borvin: That is an admission, is it not, that the Customs Officials
in Montreal are doing their duty fairly well yet?

Hon. Mr. Stevens: Not “yet”—now.

The Wirness: I do not know that that has very much bearing on the
whole situation.

By Hon. Mr. Bowin:

Q. Are you in a position to state that the person who bought that shirt
bought it through the same importer as those included in the shipment seized
in Montreal?—A. I have no objection to giving the name; it is for the Com-
mittee to decide whether it shall be public or not. Might I say—

Hon. Mr. Bex~err: 1 think perhaps the public interests would be served
if the witness would hand the name on a piece of paper to the Chairman or
the Minister. If the Minister says his only object is to enable him, through his
officers, to trace this matter to its source, I think the reasonable way would be,
instead of putting the name on the record, to hand it to the Minister. It might
be that people prejudiced against prison-made garments would boyecott this
man, who may be and probably is a perfectly reputable merchant of this city,
and as the Ministér says his only object is to enable him to pursue his inquiries,
I think it could be done this way satisfactorily.

[Mr. R. P, Sparks.]
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" Hon. Mr, Borvin: If I might be permitted to interject a word in support
‘my argument; I am inclined to agree with Mr. Elliott that the public
interests could have been just as well served by Mr. Bparks presenting the shirt -
‘to the Committee, instead of headlining it as he did, and now refusing to give

 The Wirness: I did not refuse. ‘I have refused nothing since I have been
sitting in this chair.
.~ Mr. Hexoerson, K.C.: (Handing paper to Chairman)—I am handing the
Chairman of this Committee a slip of paper containing the name of the party
from whom the witness bought, this shirt, and the name of the Company from
“whom the retailer said he purchased it. I would suggest these names be handed
‘to the Minister for his information now, and if the question is then pressed, it
“will be for the Committee to say; we have no concern with that. You will
' notice, Mr. Chairman, that the concern itself is to be investigated as well as
' the Reliance Company, and 1 would suggest, as a counsel with some experience,
' that.in making this public you would be giving information to them in advance.
1 Hon. Mr. Bowvin: If Mr. Sparks, after having produced the shirt in the
dramatic way in which he did, refuses to give the name of the person from
- whom he purchased it, I will not press the question—
: The Wrrness: I have refused nothing—
Hon. Mr. Borvin: I asked if you refused to give it publicly.

p The Wirness: If the Committee orders me to give it publicly, I will do
e The CramrmAN: You see the point, Mr. Sparks. The other day, without
~ any preliminaries at all, you opened your brief case or hand bag and took out

- that shirt and threw it to the Committee. Do you think that was fair?
The Wirness: After I had read my letter?

~ The Cramman: I said then it was not proof. From the label nobody
- could see that it was a prison-made shirt.

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: Mr. Chairman, this whole question of prison-made
. goods is to be threshed out at a later date. I will move that the question of
this name be, for the time being, held in private by the Committee, but handed
. to the Minister for the purpose of his office.

The CuAmRMAN: There is another thing to be considered. There are
. always people who want to act as vindicators, and produce evidence which has
. been handed to them by somebody else. They want to get all the flowers but
" do not want to come and give their evidence personally. I think any man
* desirous of acting in the public interests should not be afraid to take the stand
~ and tell the truth.

j The Wirness: Is that an inference' that I have not been frank with this
. Committee?

: _ The CuammaN: Not at all.

By Mr. Donaghy:

Q. Do you belong to some Garment Makers’ Association?—A. Yes.

Q. Does that Association take the trouble to inform the retail trade of the

. names of the garments produced in penal institutions?—A. I think the trade

. papers have carried that.

, Mr. DoxaeaY: If the trade papers carry that information, and if the

. retailers have an opportunity of seeing it in print, as they thould, I think that
the name should be publicly mentioned beyond any doubt. I think that is a

~ fair inference. I am in favour of this name being published now. 1 was not,

. until the witness made that remark. I think if the retailers are properly

- [Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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informed by the trade journals that these certain garments are prison-made,
and, knowing that, if one defies the laws of this land in selling these goods, in
my opinion, he is not entitled to any consideration whatever. A /
Mr. Hexberson, K.C.: There is no objection on the part of the witness to
giving the name.

The CwmamrMan: Let me make this observation. When you filed this
shirt in the manner you did, the newspapers of the country—as they have the
right to do—assumed that the shirt was smuggled into Canada, and they took
your evidence for proof. It was misleading, to a certain extent, and perhaps
reputable merchants are fearing for their trade. This fact has been thrown
into evidence uncompleted, and we are trying to complete the proof and to
ascertain if the evidence is correct or not. !

The Wirness: I will complete it before we are through with this inquiry.
Everything cannot be done at once. I will complete it.

Hon. Mr. Borvin: Mr. Chairman, if Mr. Sparks tells us that he is not sure
that that was a prison-made shirt, I am not going to insist upon the name being
made public, but if he, however, states positively that he knows it was a prison-
made shirt, then I do not think we should have any mercy for the man who
sold it.

The Wirtness: I am not in a position to swear that that was a prison-
made shirt, because I was not in the prison where it, was made.

Mr. Hon. Mr. Boiwvin: 7

Q. Then why did you produce it as evidence against the Department and
proof of smuggling, when you state now that you do not know?—A. Because
from the very best trade sources accessible to me I have reason to believe that
it was made in a State penal institution in the United States.

Q. Like the rest of your evidence, it was only on “reason to believe”.

Mr. Henperson, K.C.: Now, Mr. Chairman—

Hon. Mr. Borvin: Just a moment—

Mr. Henperson, K.C.: I object—

Mr. DoNaGgHY: Are vou going to rescue your witness again?

Mr. HEnpeErsoN, K.C.: Yes—

Mr. DonacrY: I don’t think you should rescue him too often.

Mr. HenpersoN, K.C.: I am objecting to that question. Counsel has no
right to say “ like the rest of your evidence .

Hon. Mr. Borvin: Like some of the other parts—

Mr. Henberson, K.C.: T submit that is an improper question.

Hon. Mr. Bowvin: I .will withdraw the statement, Mr. Henderson. I do
not object too strenuously to your intervention here, so I will withdraw the
question and put it this way.

Mr. Hon. Mr. Bowwin:
Q. Like an enormous portion of your evidence—
Mr. BeLn: That is the same thing.

By Hon. Mr. Boivin: .

Q. —in which you stated explicitly that the statements made by you were

based on belief and information received from other parties—

Hon. Mr. Bex~err: That question might be read. The witness does not

want to take the responsibility for a great many of these statements excepting

from information he received from reputable parties.
[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Mr. HenpersoN, K.C.: The witness has differentiated throughout his
evidence. .
Hon. Mr. Bexxerr: From knowledge of information.

Hon. Mr. Stevexs: The witness is the head of a large organization, and he
would possibly have intimate knowledge of every detail. He has stated what
he knows, and what he received from Mr. Duncan and Mr. Knox and others
employed by him. ;

Mr. DonagHY: We are not through deciding about producing his name.
The witness says, from these trade journals, and from information he has, he
is satisfied that this is a prison-made shirt; he also tells us that the retail trade
of this ecity is supplied with the trade journals containing this information.
That places this evidence in the same character, on the evidence of the witness,
as this information from trade journals, which I think is a public black list
of prison-made garments. The witness has said that.

Wirness: The retailers have not access to the names. I have access to it.

By Mr. Donaghy:

Q. Let. me ask you again. I want to get this perfectly fair and clear.
You belong to some sort of an Association. You told us the Garment Manu-
facturers?—A. I now belong to the Canadian Association of Garment Manu-
facturers. I have belonged to the International Association of Garment Manu-
facturers.

Q. Does your Association adopt any means of informing the retail trade of
the brand of goods that are made in prisons, or by prison labour?—A. No sir.

Q: Do any of the trade journals that are supplied to the retail trade con-
tain that kind of information?—A. I think I recall an article on prison-made
goods, but it is unlikely that it would be very extensive, because there are no
Canadian prison-made goods. The American prison-made goods are sold sur-
reptitiously, as a general thing.

Q. If they are sold surreptitiously, I take it that your Association tries
to inform the trade if these goods surreptitiously come into this country, do
they?—A. The usual practice is to remove the labels, which might indicate a.
prison-made manufacture.

Q. But, in cases where the labels are not removed, as in the case of this
black shirt, do you try to keep the trade informed?—A. No.

Q. It seems to me that you gave a diametrically opposite answer-a minute
ago, but I would not say that unless the record were turned up. You told me
about ten minutes ago that you took means to keep the trade informed of the
goods that were made by prison manufacture, or by prison trade?—A. I had
in mind the United States, of course.

Q. You had not in mind Canada?—A. No.

Q. So the Canadian retailer is kept in ignorance of these matters, while
the American retailer is kept informed? Is that what you say now?—A. That
is what I say now.

Q. Why is the Canadian retailer kept in ignorance of these things? Why
should that be when you have knowledge that the goods of American manufacture
are brought in here?—A. They cannot be identified, as a rule.

Q. How can the Customs identify them, if the retailer cannot identify
them?—A. The Customs have an excellent way of identifying them. Under
a Convention with the United States government, the Customs Department have
a ]egal right to consult the books of any firm in the United States, doing export
business with Canada, and I supply them with the names of the American
manufacturers; I supplied them wtih the name of the Reliance Manufacturing
Company. and I suggested that an examination of the books of the Reliance
Company be made. I had no means of knowing that it was done.

[Mr. R. P. Sparks.]
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Q. You thought it was necessary to supply the Customs Department with
the names of firms making prison-made garments?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that the Customs: Department know the names of the firms making
prison-made garments?—A. Yes. ;

Q. You did not think it was necessary, however, to inform the retail trade
of the prison-made garments, so that they would be on their guard, against
dealing in them?—A. Because in my letter to the Customs Department, I

indicated that as a rule, the labels were removed, so that there was no way of

the retailer knowing when they were prison-made. The burden must remain on
the Customs Department as to getting at the origin of the prison-made goods.

Q. Let us not get away from the point. Here is a garment, which, to your
knowledge, is being sold here. Does not your Association take steps to inform
the trade that they are prison-made garments?—A. Nobody was more surprised
to find this garment with Milton F. Goodman’s name on it. It was a shoek
to me two weeks ago when I learned that it was there. It was an absolute
surprise.

Q. Was that the only one you saw in Canada with a tag on it?—A. Yes,
the only one I personally saw.

By Hon. Mr. Stevens:
Q. With the tag on it?—A. Yes.

By the Chairman:
Q. They usually take the tags off for non-identification?—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Boivin:

Q. If the tag had not been taken off, this garment would come in the
usual way to Canada?—A. If it is prison-made?

Q. How could you tell it was prison-made if you saw it in a store?—A. I
indicated the source of my information. :

Q. By the shirt itself?—A. By the label, by the name of Milton F. Good-
man. If I have the permission of the Committee within the next ten days, I
would be glad to make further representations in reference to prison-made
garments. I am making an extensive investigation in the United States, because
it is my business, and, in my judgment, is a matter of international importance
and I think I am fully within my rights in making the investigation and bring-
ing facts to light, and I propose to do so.

Mr. Erviorr: Mr. Chairman, just to get on, I would assume that the
question that has been asked, as to the name, should be answered, but if the
questioner is satisfied with the answer of the witness that he cannot say that it
is a prison-made shirt, and that is what the witness says, will that clear up the
matter.

The Wirxess: Mr. Elliott, unless I saw the shirt made in the prison, I
could not say that it was prison-made. .

By Mr. Elliott:

Q. Can you go this far, that you are not in a position to say to the Com- °

mittee now whether that is a prison-made shirt or not.

By the Chairman:

Q. Personally?—A. Personally. I was not in the prison when it was made.
I ca